
Smarter Students & Stronger Families

Through the reorganization and transformation of City Hall, the Berke Administration has placed a new emphasis 
on ensuring Chattanooga’s youth have an opportunity to succeed. The City must play a role in supporting students 
through both strong partnerships with the schools and the provision of direct services. However, investing in our 
Chattanooga’s youth and families pays the largest dividend when embraced by everyone – government, churches, 
families, and schools.

Supporting the development of Chattanooga’s youth starts long before they walk into a Youth & Family 
Development Center.  Building a strong foundation through prenatal care and early learning is critical to the later 
success of children in school and beyond. Community efforts should be undertaken to provide pregnant mothers 
and young fathers with the critical knowledge they need to be successful parents. 

The success of children in school largely depends on their families and communities. The City must help kids in a 
sustained way, starting as early in their lives as possible to create a critical mass of supportive adults who 
understand what it takes to help children succeed. Through community partnerships that leverage our strengths 
and assets, there must be a pipeline of services for kids and families – including academic support, recreation 
opportunities, and parental resources. As neighborhood anchors, the City’s Youth and Family Development 
Centers should play a role in maintaining strong community partnerships that proactively disseminate 
information to residents.

Total funded: $24,295,904.00
Total requested: $32,944,516.00
Total number of offers funded: 21

The following are Funded Offers for the Smarter Students & Stronger Families Result Area: 
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OFFER SUMMARY 

Offer Name: Arts Education Initiatives 

Lead Agency: ArtsBuild 

Collaborating City Department(s): Youth and Family Development 

Contact Name: Rodney Van Valkenburg 

Primary Results Area: 
Smarter Students, Stronger 
Families 

Offer Cost (Funding Request): $59,500 

RESULTS AREAS 

1. Safer Streets – Safe communities, reduced crime, positive opportunities, and alternate

pathways.

2. Growing Economy – Growing and supporting local businesses, workforce development,
business recruitment and retention, and an environment for innovation.

3. Stronger Neighborhoods – Neighborhood leadership, connected communities, healthy
residential markets, and rapid re-housing.

4. Smarter Students, Stronger Families – Parents and first teachers, community support, and

community health.

5. High Performing Government – Data-driven decision making, sound operations, outstanding

customer service, resource management, and exceptional talent.

6. Innovation Fund – Something different – processes, services, technologies, ideas.  Shifting the

way government operates.

DETAILS 

Description: (What is the service/program? How will it be provided? What innovation & sustainability practice does this leverage? 
What difference does this offer make and how will we know? Make a compelling case for your offer.) 

Imagine! Initiative 
The long-range goal of the Imagine! Initiative is to enable all local public elementary students (grades K-5) to 
experience a series of exhibits, concerts and performances presented by leading Chattanooga arts 
organizations. These experiences are strategically organized to increase exposure to the arts and to enhance 
student learning.  ArtsBuild pays for the students’ tickets, transportation, and provides support materials to 
maximize the presentation’s curriculum connections. 

Students are engaged in the study of the “creative process” throughout the Imagine! Initiative. The creative 
process builds students’ communication, problem-solving, and teamwork skills needed to succeed in a 21st 
century workplace. Through professionally-developed educational materials and professional development, 
classroom teachers guide students through the creative process, which is aligned with the Common Core 
curriculum and higher-order thinking capacities needed to advance students on standardized tests.  

Schools are not mandated to attend the Imagine! performances; however, EVERY elementary school within 
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Chattanooga city limits VOLUNTARILY participated in the Imagine! Initiative in the 2013-2014 school year. 
This year, three Imagine! presentations were offered: second grade students attended Chattanooga Ballet’s 
The Nutcracker, third graders attended the Chattanooga Symphony and Opera’s Young People’s Concert and 
fourth graders attended the Southern Lit Alliance’s professional theatre presentation of The Adventures of 
Tom Sawyer. All presentations were held at the Tivoli Theatre.  

ArtsBuild would like to add a first grade Imagine! presentation for the 2014-2015 school year. First grade 
students would attend the Chattanooga Theatre Centre’s internationally-acclaimed Youth Theatre production 
which will focus on bringing age-appropriate literature to life on stage.  By offering experiences to first 
through fourth grades, ArtsBuild would serve approximately 6,600 students living within Chattanooga city 
limits.  

Adding first grade would enable ArtsBuild to achieve its goal of developing a new, through-line curriculum for 
the Imagine! Initiative with the theme of “exploring the creative process.” Consecutive years of arts 
experiences will deepen curriculum understanding through the creative process which is aligned within the 
approaches of Common Core Curriculum. The creative process includes: reflecting, assessing, creating and 
revising work; all of these areas are embedded within Common Core. Studies have shown that: 

• Students who receive arts-integrated instruction have higher attendance than those who do not.
• Arts education develops students’ critical thinking skills—including skills for comparing,

hypothesizing, critiquing, and exploring multiple and alternative viewpoints.

Statement of Need 
This initiative began in 2009 as a result of a survey of arts experiences in our public elementary schools. We 
found that 20% of all local public elementary school students had no exposure to the arts during elementary 
school outside of a 40 minute music class once a week. Fifty-two percent of all elementary students had no 
more than three arts experiences during their entire elementary school career. We found that the amount of 
arts experiences varied widely from school to school.  

This discrepancy was of great concern to ArtsBuild. Recent research and books such as the Rise of the Creative 
Class by Richard Florida and Daniel Pink’s A Whole New Mind show that success in the 21st century workplace, 
depends on developing a creative community. The arts must to be part of every child’s education to develop a 
workforce that can work as a team, communicate well, and process and synthesize information in a coherent 
manner. 

ArtsBuild’s Imagine! Initiative is taking a strong stand with our belief that exposure to the arts should be by 
design and should be for every elementary school student in our community. 

ArtsBuild’s guiding philosophy was confirmed by a study published in September 2013 about the lasting 
impact of arts field trips on students attending activities at the Walton Performing Arts Center and Crystal 
Bridge Art Museum in Fayetteville, Arkansas (EducationNext, Winter 2014). Researchers Jay P. Greene, Daniel 
H. Bowen and Brian Kisida surveyed more than 2,000 students and were able to establish a random control 
group for the study. Their research found that students that attended arts field trips read more, were more 
curious about the arts, and were more tolerant and empathetic individuals. 

Local Kennedy Center Workshops 
For the past 12 years ArtsBuild has partnered with HCDE and the John F. Kennedy Center’s Partners in 
Education program to host a workshop series, specifically designed for K-12 teachers, which focuses on how 
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to integrate the arts with literacy instruction. The series consists of two, two-day workshops, a one-day 
follow-up workshop, a teacher in-service day, and a workshop for principals. ArtsBuild would like to add 
workshops for other types of educators such as community center employees, after-school educators, and 
local teaching artists. 

We anticipate 50 community educators and teaching artists would participate in the new workshops. The 
workshops will take place in October and November 2014. Matching funds are also provided through a grant 
from the Tennessee Arts Commission. The current teacher workshops consist of arts integration instruction 
strategies, demonstration classes with students, coaching participants in the implementation of activities, and 
lesson plan facilitation. Participants include grade-level teams from our local public schools.  

Workshop participants gain a better understanding of the impact high-quality art experiences have on 
students. Workshop leaders explicitly identify theatre, visual arts, and language arts curriculum standards 
while focusing on instruction techniques needed for arts integration to occur. The leaders also connect 
activities to core curriculum. 

Statement of Need 
With the emphasis on Common Core Curriculum Standards in Tennessee schools, learning in, about and 
through the arts has been recognized as a significant way to help students achieve high results. Common Core 
stresses the need for students to look more deeply into curriculum subjects. Students must develop higher-
order thinking skills, cooperative behavior and the ability to analyze visual texts to succeed; arts education 
develops these skills. The Common Core initiative emphasizes effective instructional strategies; however, 
many teachers are not prepared to teach the way Common Core requires. ArtsBuild Teacher Workshops will 
continue to assist teachers in implementing teaching strategies aligned with the goals of Common Core 
Curriculum Standards. 

ArtsBuild’s objective is for at least 85% of the participating teachers to be comfortable leading classroom 
activities learned during the workshops. We provide all of the supplies and materials teachers need to begin 
implementation in their classrooms. While this outcome projects a high percentage success rate, it is 
consistent with past participant evaluation surveys.  

By implementing the activities in the workshops, students are better able to succeed in a cooperative learning 
environment and are able to increase literacy comprehension through deeper comparative analysis, 
inference, and awareness of detail. As required by Common Core Curriculum Standards, students are able to 
communicate knowledge and understandings of curriculum through different means such as drama and visual 
art. Teachers are able to differentiate their teaching strategies and assess student learning through multiple 
art forms. 

Any funding requested from HCDE or Hamilton County General Government? 
ArtsBuild does not request funding from Hamilton County Department of Education. However, HCDE provides 
in-kind support for use of Barger Academy for the local Kennedy Center Workshops as well as administrative 
and staff time at Barger Academy and the HCDE Central Office. The approximate value of the in-kind support 
is $7,250 per year. Our programs would not be possible without HCDE’s in-kind support. 

While Hamilton County general Government does not currently support any nonprofit programs, individual 
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Commissioners have provided support from their discretionary funds. In 2013, Commissioner Larry Henry 
committed $10,000 and Commissioner Marty Haynes, $2,500 to support our education programs. 
Commissioner Tim Boyd committed $20,000 in 2012 and 2013 for our Community Cultural Connections grants 
program. 

What percentage of students served are City residents? 
Of the projected 12,800 HCDE students in grades 1-4 who attend Imagine! presentations, approximately 52% 
(or 6,600) attend schools within the Chattanooga city limits.  

Of the 114 teachers who attended the local Kennedy Center workshops in 2013, 54% (or 61) of the 
participants teach in schools within the Chattanooga city limits. 

Do workshops improve TVASS scores for participants? 
While we do not measure a causal relationship between the workshops and TVASS scores, the workshop 
strategies presented are embedded with recognized best instructional practice.  ArtsBuild believes that 
supporting and building effective teacher instructional practice will have a positive result on test scores. 

These best practices are shared, modelled with students, and participants are given time to practice and 
identify placement within their classrooms. We measure teacher’s comfort in leading the activities in their 
classroom. In 2013, 88% of participants reported that they were very confident or confident implementing 
the workshop activities in their classrooms. 

The workshop leaders align their sessions with six learning principles: learning is actively built, experiential, 
reflective, evolving, collaborative, and embraces problem solving. The instruction strategies shared are 
consistent with recognized educational approaches such as Piaget’s Constructivist Theories, Bloom’s 
Taxonomy and Gardner’s Multiple Intelligences. The instructional strategies learned are researched-based, 
reach diverse learners, and address 21st century workplace needs. 

Are program surveys used to measure? 
Teacher surveys are used to measure the impact of both the local Kennedy Center workshops and the 
Imagine! Initiative. 

This year's teacher workshop evaluations demonstrated that 97% of participants rated the workshops as 
excellent. The value of the workshops is represented in the teachers' comments:  

 "I have been teaching since 2004 and these workshops are the BEST, MOST APPLICABLE sessions I
have EVER been to."

 "Needs to be system wide –everyone involved!"

 “This is a must for educators interested in managing classroom behaviors productively and effectively
and for building dynamic and free-thinking learners."

 "I have attended many workshops on inquiry-based learning, and this is the most accessible. Everyone
who teaches common core and is responsible for teaching visual literacy should attend this
workshop!" “I can really see this changing how I teach!"

Imagine! teacher surveys demonstrated that 96% were very satisfied with the events. Fifty percent of the 2nd 
grade student attendees had never been to the Tivoli.  Ninety-one percent of the teachers led at least two 
pre-or post-activities that supported the grade-level curriculum. 
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Teacher comments for the Imagine! Initiative included: 

 “I am very honored that ArtsBuild provides such a powerful performance for Hamilton County second
graders to attend.  Otherwise, they probably would never get to witness a first-class ballet in such a
beautiful theater.”

 “This is an amazing chance for teachers to integrate fine arts into the literacy curriculum.  I wish we
had more opportunities like this, and I sincerely appreciate ArtsBuild for creating the Imagine
Initiative.  I hope the program continues; it is one of the highlights of the year for second graders.”

 "This is one of the most worthwhile programs ArtsBuild provides for Hamilton County school
children.” “I know the "Language Arts" time we spent learning the history of ballet and some of the
elements of ballet benefitted my children as much as the work we did with the story.  It was time well
spent.”

 “I'd like to take this as an opportunity to say thank you VERY MUCH for financing this field trip for us.
As a 90% free lunch school, we don't have many opportunities for field trips during the year. So, this
was a wonderful, fascinating trip for my kids here at Rivermont.”

Identify Which Desired Outcomes This Offer Impacts: 

1. Increase reading proficiency for children and adults

2. More kids graduating high school, college, and career ready

3. Fewer kids dropping out of school

BUDGET REQUEST

Summary:  (Please complete based on information contained in Attachment F) 

Offer Name 
Personnel Costs 

(including Benefits) Operating Costs Total Request 
 FTEs 

required 

Arts Education 
Initiatives 

$0 (salaries covered 
by endowment) $112,000 $59,500 1 

Capital Budget Impact?   Yes  X  No     $Amount 

Financial Offsets: (Please list other revenues associated with the specific program for which funding is requested) 

Name Amount 

Tennessee Arts Commission $10,000 

Unum $25,000 

ArtsBuild Operating $17,500 

PERFORMANCE DATA

Measurement 1: 

Elementary school students will have systematic exposure to quality arts and culture experiences provided by 
area arts organizations and will utilize our City’s cultural resources. 

 Continue the current 100% level of participation from all HCDE elementary schools within the
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Chattanooga city limits in the Imagine! Initiative. 

Measurement 2: 

The Imagine! Initiative will enhance student learning by connecting to the Common Core curriculum. 

 90% of the teachers will lead at least three pre-and/or post-curriculum activities connected to the
Imagine! Initiative.

 90% of the teachers agree that the Imagine! Initiative or Kennedy Center Workshops were
valuable and enhanced the curriculum or their instructional strategies.

Measurement 3: 

Teachers will understand and implement arts integration instructional strategies through participation in local 
Kennedy Center workshops. 

 85% of teachers participating in the Kennedy Center workshops state that they are comfortable
to lead the activities learned during the workshops in their classroom.

 80% of the participants, surveyed three months after the workshop, indicated that they have
implemented activities in their classrooms.

Return on Investment: 

How do citizens benefit?  
ArtsBuild’s education programs help to develop a creative, innovative workforce. Arts education in schools 
and in the community engage young people and make our community attractive to those interested in 
moving to Chattanooga as a dynamic place to live, learn, work and play. 

Does this activity leverage other financial resources?   
ArtsBuild has been a past recipient of state and national grants for our arts education efforts. There is a new, 
significant grant opportunity for arts education through the National Endowment for the Arts. Our 
partnership with the City, particularly as Chattanooga’s officially designated local arts agency, will greatly 
assist us as we approach the NEA and other national sources for funding. 

How does this activity decrease costs over time for the City?   
Young people who are engaged in the arts are more likely to stay in school and are less likely to commit 
crimes. The more youth are engaged in positive activities, overall expenses for the City will decrease. 

How can this program become sustainable without City funding?   
The arts education programs are not designed to generate any earned income through ticket sales or fees. 
ArtsBuild is a fundraising organization in addition to providing programs benefitting our community. We 
believe that the City’s support will assist us with fully implementing our education programs, and this will 
greatly enhance our efforts to increase additional financial support for these programs. 



Fiscal Year ends June 30 Agency Name:

ATTACHMENT F

Actual FY 2011 Actual FY 2012 Actual FY 2013

 CASH Budget  

FY 2014

Project CASH  

FY 2015

Incr (Decr) 

Request vs. FY 14 

Budget

% Change 

Request vs FY 14 

Budget
REVENUES:
Contributions

  Individuals/Private 601,178$     657,251$     544,131$     632,000$     632,000$     -$    0.0%
  Corporate/Organizations 293,955$     225,866$     294,887$     228,000$     228,000$     -$    0.0%

Fees/Grants from Governmental Agencies
  Federal - N.E.A. 40,000$    250,000$     
  State- Tennessee Arts Commission 187,435$     88,910$    90,935$    93,035$    98,065$    5,030$    5.4%
  Hamilton County Government 150,000$     $0 $0 -$    
  County Districts  $2,500 $52,500 30,000$    30,000$    -$    
  City of Chattanooga 201,200$     176,472$     226,472$     275,000$     359,500$     84,500$    30.7%
  Public Art Chattanooga 4,000$    
  Foundations (including grants) 235,850$     480,750$     231,750$     307,250$     298,500$     (8,750)$     -2.8%

Holmberg Institute Tuition 6,200$    9,000$    9,000$    -$    0.0%
Hamilton County Fair Income 104,657$     137,600$     125,264$     135,000$     135,000$     -$    0.0%
Endowment to Operating & Cultural Partners 834,540$     782,840$     632,409$     665,895$     641,870$     (24,025)$     -3.6%
Other Revenues 110,850$     31,178$    43,155$    57,000$    50,000$    (7,000)$     -12.3%

TOTAL REVENUES  2,765,865$     2,833,367$     2,245,503$     2,432,180$     2,481,935$     49,755$    2.0%

OPERATIONS EXPENSE:
Personnel Expenses
Salaries 325,165$     329,496$     321,324$     339,792$     339,792$     -$    0.0%
Payroll Taxes, etc. 25,755$    25,824$    25,283$    26,804$    26,804$    -$    0.0%
Pension/Retirement 19,423$    20,466$    16,146$    18,288$    18,288$    -$    0.0%
Employee Health, Life and Dental benefits 24,141$    26,969$    35,578$    41,609$    44,940$    3,331$    8.0%

Total Personnel Expenses 370,343$     375,786$     398,332$     426,493$     429,824$     3,331$    0.8%

Fund-Raising-Development Expenses
Total Fund-Raising-Development Expenses  4 52,135$    54,990$    96,490$    75,000$    75,000$    -$    0.0%

Administration
Board/Committee Events 2,546.04 1,657.37 1,990 2,000$    2,000$    -$    0.0%
Conferences/Training 1,689.80 31.25 3,165 3,200$    3,200$    -$    0.0%
Dues,Subscr.,Fees,Pubs. 3,725.00 2,870.25 4,229 4,000$    4,000$    -$    0.0%
Audit /Professional Fees 14,095.26 13,167.18 13,906 19,400$    19,400$    -$    0.0%
Insurance 5,529.20 5,436.60 5,267 5,640$    10,000$    4,360$    77.3%
Maintenance & Repairs 8,076.46 6,677.69 6,223 6,600$    8,200$    1,600$    24.2%
Maintenance-Computer 4,342$    2,146.05 3,131 2,500$    2,800$    300$     12.0%
Copier/Printer Expense added 2013 → added 2013 → 2,340 2,600$    2,600$    -$    0.0%

Building Security 761.13 803.01 850 900$     3,500$    2,600$    288.9%
Utilities-Electric and Gas 5,170.27 4,890.81 4,173 4,500$    7,000$    2,500$    55.6%
Office/Data Supplies/Printing 7,144.38 5,111.71 9,418 7,500$    8,500$    1,000$    13.3%
Postage 927.46 641.83 269 1,800$    2,000$    200$     11.1%
Rent- Office 35,997.43 36,950.70 35,133 36,300$    -$    (36,300)$     -100.0%
Other Rent/Leases added 2013 → added 2013 → 3,965 4,696$    4,750$    54$     1.1%

Telephone/ISP/Communications 5,863.33 3,735.50 3,465 3,950$    5,600$    1,650$    41.8%
Local Travel/Entertainment 2,467.54 1,378.61 2,080 2,300$    2,300$    -$    0.0%
Board Discretionary Fund 9,405.00 -$    
Supplies-Kitchen and Bathroom 468.17 824.40 991 1,000$    1,000$    -$    0.0%
Mbrship / Miscellaneous 4,412.61 740.35 1,090 2,550$    2,500$    (50)$    -2.0%

New Location:
Net Occupancy - Dover Building E. 11th Street 38,693$    

Total Administrative Expenses 103,216$     96,468.31 101,685$     111,436$     128,043$     16,607$    14.9%

PROGRAMS AND PROJECTS: `
  Cultural Partner Allocations 1,457,768$     1,020,438$     970,896$     875,000$     846,000$     
  Cultural Partner Share of Endowment Draw for Operating 239,541$     224,450$     221,383$     235,998$     249,587$     
  Art Education 175,495$     84,402$    79,302$    78,000$    139,500$     
  Project Grants- Includes HC Fair 134,224$     227,262$     185,851$     160,503$     215,000$     54,497$    34.0%

Other Designated Grants:
      SPARK 108,768$     

  Main Terrain 232,350$     244,710$     
  Dover Building Facade 80,000$    

      ARTSPACE 63,750$    
  MARKETING CHATTANOOGA/ARTS COMMUNITY 62,500$    

  TECHNICAL ASSISTANCE TO PARTNERS 35,000$    
  COMMUNITY CULTURAL CONNECTIONS 67,500$    
  POPS ON THE RIVER 70,000$    
  SPECIAL INITIATIVES 275,000$     
  CULTURAL PLAN 67,527$    
  CAPACITY BUILDING- WOLFBROWN 50,217$    
  Other 128,074$     26,970$    76,920$    31,000$    124,000$     

Total Program, Project & Designated Grants 2,252,846$     1,815,872$     1,887,831$     1,759,251$     1,849,087$     

Other Expenses: Depreciation, GIK, etc 46,563$    26,086$    56,212$    60,000$    

TOTAL EXPENSE: TOTAL OPERATION 2,825,103$     2,369,202$     2,540,549$     2,432,180$     2,481,954$     

REVENUE OVER/ (UNDER) OPERATIONS (59,238)$     464,165$     (295,046)$    -$    (19)$    -$    N/A

Notes:

Total Fiscal Year Endowment Earnings $2,236,232.00 ($69,169) $1,539,149

CITY OF CHATTANOOGA

FY 2015 Agency Funding Financial Form

Does not include Endowment Earnings, 

Gifts-in-Kind
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OFFER SUMMARY 

Offer Name: Baby College 

Offer Number:  7 

Department 
Offer Rank:         2 

Lead 
Department: Youth & Family Development Collaboration: Y ____     N   X__  

Administrator: Lurone Jennings, Sr. 

Offer Cost: $580,725 Primary Results Area: Smarter Students, Stronger Families 

RESULTS AREA

1. Safer Streets – Safe communities, reduced crime, positive opportunities, and alternate

pathways.

2. Growing Economy – Growing and supporting local businesses, workforce development,
business recruitment and retention, and an environment for innovation.

3. Stronger Neighborhoods – Neighborhood leadership, connected communities, healthy
residential markets, and rapid rehousing.

4. Smarter Students, Stronger Families – Parents and first teachers, community support, and

community health.

5. High Performing Government – Data-driven decision making, sound operations, outstanding

customer service, resource management, and exceptional talent.

6. Innovation Fund – Something different – processes, services, technologies, ideas.  Shifting the

way government operates.

DETAILS 

Description: (What is the service/program? How will it be provided? What innovation & sustainability practice does this leverage? 
What difference does this offer make and how will we know? Make a compelling case for your offer.) 

The Department of Youth & Family Development has five important areas of focus that impact the daily lives of families 
and students the most: education, career development, leadership training, social services, and recreation.  While the City’s 
Youth & Family Development Centers have been charged with providing opportunities for learning as well as recreation, 
and have incorporated literacy programs using the Lexia internet based curriculum software into their facilities, a great 
need still exists for learning opportunities for young families to build a strong foundation for the future. 

Research has shown that children from low-income families had a cumulative vocabulary by age 3 that was less than half 
the vocabulary of a same-age child from families of middle and higher income.  Research has also shown that children’s 
brains grow more in the first three years of life than at any other time.  Thus, it is imperative that language and vocabulary 
are addressed as early as possible in a child’s development and this should begin with inception. 

Youth & Family Development will implement the Baby College program for young parents in acceptable YFD Community 
Centers and other facilities where community centers are not available.  
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The Baby College curriculum will aid parents and parents-to-be or caregivers in ensuring that parents expecting or raising a 
child between the ages of 0 and 3 will have the information and support necessary to bring up happy and healthy children 
who enter school ready to learn.  Parents will increase the frequency with which they read to their children, connect with 
community resources such as health services and Head Start, and improve their understanding of their role as parents.  
The goal of the Baby College program will be not only to share information and resources with the participants but to 
change the participants’ view of themselves as both parents and teachers, encouraging them to accept the idea that their 
child’s education and intellectual development begin at inception and that they, as parents, have a crucial role to play in 
that development.  The curriculum will be designed to foster discussion between participants and will focus on sharing 
information in the context of fostering positive parent-child relationships.   Curriculum will included:  Brain Development; 
Health Care; Safety; Discipline; Education; Career Development 

Identify Which Desired Outcomes from Request for Offer(s) that this Offer Impacts: 

1. More pregnant women accessing prenatal care
2. More parental involvement
3. Increase reading proficiency for children and adults

BUDGET REQUEST

Summary:  (Please complete based on Dept. Operating Detail and Dept. Personnel Detail Forms) 

Department 
Personnel Cost 

(including Benefits) Operations Request 
%  of 
offer 

 FTEs 
required 

Youth & Family 
Development 380,725.00 200,000.00  $580,725.00 100% 3 

0% 

Total  $    380,725.00  $   200,000.00  $580,725.00 100%  3 
*Amounts MUST agree with collaborating Department totals for this offer 

Capital Budget Impact?        Yes        x  No     $Amount 

*Please prepare and attach Capital Budget Request Form 

Financial Offsets: (Please list any Revenue e.g. golf course revenue, Grants, Private/Corporate Contributions, Etc.) 

Name Amount 

PERFORMANCE DATA

Measurement 1:  Increase Graduation Rate

FY2012 FY2013 FY2014 FY2015 Target 

n/a n/a n/a 100% 
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Measurement 2: Weekly Attendance 

FY2012 FY2013 FY2014 FY2015 Target 

n/a n/a n/a 100% 

Measurement 3: Reading Improvement for parents through Lexia 

FY2012 FY2013 FY2014 FY2015 Target 

n/a n/a n/a 100% 

Return on Investment: 

How do citizens benefit? 

Citizens will benefit from this program through the resulting number of children who enter school ready to 

learn. The strengthened families that will result from participation in the Baby College program will translate 

to healthier, happier children, smarter students, higher achievement, reduced crime, and ultimately a 

reduced burden on taxpayers due to a reduced reliance on government support and a reduction in 

incarceration. 

Does this activity leverage other financial resources? no 

How does this decrease costs over time? Costs are reduced through parents being educated and informed of 

the developmental process of their child which increases the academic performance of their children which will 

increase high school graduation numbers; reduce the number of dropouts which in turn reduces delinquency 

and crime.   We are developing well educated citizens that become a viable part of our community and 

workforce.   
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OFFER SUMMARY 

Offer Name: 
Increasing Academic Achievement for 100-120 At-Risk Youth through 
After-school and Summer Programs 

Lead Agency: United Methodist Neighborhood Centers, Inc. (DBA The Bethlehem Center) 

Collaborating City Department(s): Youth & Family Development 

Contact Name: Ted Bullock 

Primary Results Area: Smarter Students, Stronger Families 

Offer Cost (Funding Request): $30,000 

RESULTS AREAS 

1. Safer Streets – Safe communities, reduced crime, positive opportunities, and alternate pathways.

2. Growing Economy – Growing and supporting local businesses, workforce development, business

recruitment and retention, and an environment for innovation.

3. Stronger Neighborhoods – Neighborhood leadership, connected communities, healthy residential

markets, and rapid re-housing.

4. Smarter Students, Stronger Families – Parents and first teachers, community support, and

community health.

5. High Performing Government – Data-driven decision making, sound operations, outstanding
customer service, resource management, and exceptional talent.

6. Innovation Fund – Something different – processes, services, technologies, ideas.  Shifting the
way government operates.

DETAILS 

Description: (What is the service/program? How will it be provided? What innovation & sustainability practice does this leverage? 
What difference does this offer make and how will we know? Make a compelling case for your offer.) 

As identified through the RFO and the priorities outlined by Mayor Berke, his team, and the City Council, providing services 
that ensure our community’s students have every opportunity to succeed in school is critical. According to national research, 
students with quality education and high levels of literacy have much better odds at surviving and excelling in inner-city 
communities. Education and literacy are correlated with competitive employment and increases in economic success 
[http://www.bls.gov/emp/ep_chart_001.htm], as well as reduced crime, incarceration, and gang involvement. Although education 
is important for success in life, students who come from economically depressed neighborhoods are at great risk of falling 
behind [Hemphill, L. and Tivnan, T. (2008). The Importance of Early Vocabulary for Literacy Achievement in High-Poverty Schools. Journal of 

Education for Students Placed at Risk, 13 (4), 426-451]. For these students, additional intentional investment is critical, both after 
school and during the summer months when students are at risk of losing knowledge and skills gained over the school year 
[Cooper, H., Nye, B., Charlton, K., Lindsay, J., & Greathouse, S. (1996). The effects of summer vacation on achievement test scores: A 
narrative and meta-analytic review. Review of Education Research, 66(3), 227–268]. 

Given this need, the Bethlehem Center will deliver services to 100-120 students grades one through eight that will increase 
their reading proficiency, decrease absenteeism, and ensure their academic success through an intensive focus on reading and 
math. With a strong foundation in their early years, students are more likely to stay in school and graduate high school college 
and career ready.  

http://www.bls.gov/emp/ep_chart_001.htm
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The Bethlehem Center has an extensive track record of serving youth since its inception in the 1920s and has had a major 
impact on tens of thousands of lives during this time. The Beth serves approximately 85 to 100 children annually through its 
after-school and summer programs. Our hope is to gradually increase staff capacity to serve incrementally greater numbers of 
children in the future without diluting the quality of our programs. 

Students in our After-School Program and the Read to Lead Summer Learning Academy attend some of the most struggling 
schools in our community, including Calvin Donaldson Elementary, East Lake Elementary, East Side Elementary, Brown 
Academy, Clifton Hills Elementary, Battle Elementary, Orchard Knob Middle, and East Lake Academy. 98% of our students 
come from economically disadvantaged homes and must overcome social, as well as academic, challenges. As the tables 
below from the Lexia proficiency test (given at the start of the academic year) show, students enrolling in our programs are 
significantly behind. In fact, 70% begin the program far below grade level and 90% of elementary students are designated 
high risk (see attached report). 

Lexia Start Level by Grade for The Bethlehem Center Students, 2013-2014 Academic Year 

ELEMENTARY GRADES 

Grade Level Students Grade Level of Material (% Working On) 

P K 1 2 3 4 5 

Grade 1 12 42% 25% 33% - - - - 

Grade 2 5 - 60% 20% 20% - - - 

Grade 3 9 - 11% 56% 22% 11% - 

Grade 4 11 18% 0% 9% 9% 18% 45% - 

Grade 5 13 8% 8% 31% 23% 0% 8% 23% 

Lexia Start Level by Grade for The Bethlehem Center Students, 2013-2014 Academic Year 

MIDDLE GRADES 

Grade Level Students Grade Level of Material (% Working On) 

Basic Elementary Intermediate 

Grade 6 12 42% 17% 42% 

Grade 7 7 43% 29% 29% 

To address these deficiencies, the After-School Program runs from 3:00-6:30 PM Monday-Thursday during the school year 
while the Read to Lead Summer Learning Academy provides an intensive six week program, running from 8:00 AM-3:00 PM 
Monday-Friday during June and July.  

Through the After-School Program and the Read to Lead Summer Learning Academy, we will accomplish our objectives of 
ensuring academic success through the following activities: 

 Creation of an Individualized Education Plan for Each Student: Each student is given a test in reading and
math at the beginning of the program to assess current learning levels. Based on the results of the tests, the
program director and HCDE certified teachers responsible for implementing the program create an individualized plan
for each child, setting goals as well as a plan for achieving them by the end of the program. Major costs include the
funding of three certified teachers, the tests, and a program manager.
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 Lexia Reading Program: Our Lexia reading program is a scientifically-based, peer-reviewed, proven tool that
increases literacy proficiency in elementary and middle school students [see

http://www.lexialearning.com/effectiveness/research]. Lexia is an internet-based reading program that assesses skills,
teaches students through engaging and interactive games, determines lesson plans for teachers according to student
weakness, provides daily practice for indicated areas of need, and measures each student’s time on tasks. All of our
students access their personalized reading program on laptop computers every day and we track each student’s
individual literacy levels weekly throughout the school year and summer. Major costs include computer maintenance,
licensing fees, and teacher oversight.

 FASTT Math: Our FASTT Math program uses research-validated methods to provide systematic instruction and
continuous practice to help students automatically recall and understand math facts
[http://www.scholastic.com/administrator/math/pdf/FM_White_Paper.pdf]. Also a computer-based program, FASTT Math
uses adaptive technology to offer each student a customized learning experience based on their individual needs. All
of our student access their personalized math program on laptop computers every day and we track each student’s
individual math levels weekly throughout the school year and summer. Major costs include computer maintenance,
licensing fees, and teacher oversight.

 Homework Support & Tutoring: To complement the computer-based learning through Lexia and FASTT Math, we
provide homework assistance during the school year and individualized tutoring year-round to our students every day
of our programs. Three to four Hamilton County Department of Education certified teachers oversee this component
(three for the After-School Program and four for the Summer Academy). Teachers work individually with students to
ensure their Individualized Education Plan goals are met and any needed additional assistance given. We also utilize
volunteer and program assistant help. In fact, during each day of our academic programs, 10-15 community
volunteers assist our children - acting as classroom aids, helping kids with homework, tutoring, or reading with
students. Volunteers are so vital to our work that we recently hired a volunteer coordinator to recruit and train
volunteers to work with the youth in our programs. Major costs include stipends for the teachers, program assistants,
volunteer coordinator, classroom supplies, and relevant space for activities.

 Enrichment Activities: In addition to academic supports, we provide enrichment activities aimed at developing
healthy, creative minds and bodies. These activities, such as recreation, photography classes, arts and crafts, ballet,
music, life-skill training, gardening, and field trips serve many purposes both inside and outside the classroom, from
helping students see things from new perspectives to community engagement. Although our programs’ primary aim
is developing the mind, we believe it is important to develop the whole person, as well. Many of the enrichment
opportunities offered are in partnership with organizations such as Christ United Methodist Church, Art 120, Teen
Challenge, the Tennessee Aquarium, Fair Share, and the Chattanooga Police Department. Volunteers also provide
great help with these enrichment activities. Our volunteer leaders are excited to share their expertise and are
passionate about building relationships with the students in meaningful ways. In designing enrichment programming,
we strive for variety and choice in activities that encourage student creativity and self-expression. Students are
required to complete all homework and skill study before they participate in enrichment activities. Major costs include
supplies, program oversight, volunteer coordination, transportation costs for student field trips, and stipends for
music and swim teachers.

Throughout the programs, we also collaborate with Hamilton County Department of Education schools and the students’ 
families to ensure individualized goals are met. With the permission of parents, the schools regularly release report cards to us 
for review. Additionally, our staff frequently meets with principals and teachers to ensure our students stay on track and our 
efforts complement those of traditional classrooms. We believe we must all work together to make sure every child is given his 
or her best chance to succeed. 

Although our current metrics only track youth for the time they are in our programs, we are collaborating with the City’s 
Department of Youth and Family Development to research tracking methods and find ways to better follow our students’ 
progress past the 8th grade.  

http://www.lexialearning.com/effectiveness/research
http://www.scholastic.com/administrator/math/pdf/FM_White_Paper.pdf
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Identify Which Desired Outcomes This Offer Impacts: 

1. Increase reading proficiency for children and adults

2. More kids graduating high school college and career ready

3. Decrease chronic absenteeism

BUDGET REQUEST

Summary:  (Please complete based on information contained in Attachment F) 

Offer Name 
Personnel Costs 

(including Benefits) Operating Costs Total Request 
 FTEs 

required 
Increasing Academic 
Achievement for 100-
120 at-risk youth 
through  
After-school and 
Summer Programs 

$306,000 $199,000 $30,000 8 

Capital Budget Impact?   Yes  X  No     $Amount 

Financial Offsets: (Please list other revenues associated with the specific program for which funding is requested) 

Name Amount 

Fee for Service $15,000 

Foundation Grants $150,000 

Private (Individuals)/Corporate Financial Contributions $265,000 

Sales to Public (Thrift Store) $35,000 

Volunteer Labor (in-kind) $10,000 

PERFORMANCE DATA

Measurement 1: 

70% of participating youth will be at or above grade level in reading. At least 85% of youth will see an increase in proficiency 
from the beginning to the end the program. Progress will be measured by Lexia’s reporting systems. 

See attached reports for historical data. 

Measurement 2: 

80% of participating youth will be at or above a C average in math. At least 60% of these will see an increase in skill level 

over the course of the program. Progress will be measured through FASTT Math’s reporting systems as well as 
performance on weekly assignments.  

Measurement 3: 

90% of participating youth will have an average of 95% daily school attendance. Progress will be measured through 
reports from schools as well as attendance in the After-School Program.  
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Return on Investment: 

This Offer helps the City build a pipeline of social services for kids and families and ensures youth in South Chattanooga have 
every opportunity to succeed, a key budget strategy described in the RFO. The success of this Offer is realized through 
measurable changes in student learning in math and reading for at-risk youth from struggling schools. In particular, the Offer: 

 Will ensure 70% of participating youth will be at or above grade level in reading and that at least 85% will see an
increase in proficiency from the beginning to the end the program. As a result, there will be an increase in children
and adults proficient in reading in our community.

 Will ensure 80% of participating youth will be at or above a C average in math and that at least 60% of these will
see an increase in skill level over the course of the program. As a result, students will be better equipped to graduate
high school career-ready.

 Will ensure 90% of participating youth will have an average of 95% daily school attendance. As a result, there will be
a decrease in chronic absenteeism among students.

Academic performance will be measured by charting the reading and math improvements of each student in the program. The 
Lexia Literacy Program and FASTT Math both track results for each student, and results are assessed weekly by the education 
director. The main objective is to ensure that each child is performing at least equal to his or her grade level and/or individual 
potential. This evaluation process enables program staff to pinpoint specific areas in which the student is having difficultly and 
coordinate tutorial assistance targeted at specific weaknesses. We also use student and parent meetings and surveys, report 
cards, and progress reports from students’ schools to ensure students are on track. Successful progress is rewarded with overt 
public recognition and incentive awards. 

As stated above, success in school translates to many other positive life outcomes, including better employment, health, and 
economic conditions as well as less crime, teen-pregnancy, incarceration, and gang involvement. According to the Och 
Center’s 2013 State of Chattanooga Region Report: Education, it costs roughly $25,000 per year to incarcerate a prisoner in 
Tennessee compared to $9,300 spent annually to educate a student. It concludes, “the returns on the education investment 
include higher future earnings (thus, higher tax receipts), less antisocial behavior and stronger communities” 

[http://www.ochscenter.org/documents/SOCRR2013_Education.pdf]. By ensuring our community’s youth have the best 
possible chance at success in school, the City and the citizens as a whole benefit over the long-run. 

Because this Offer is run within a nonprofit, it leverages other financial and human resources from the private sector to help 
achieve the City’s RFO aims. Whereas in similar programs run by the City the entire budget must be funded by public dollars, 
this Offer decreases costs for the City by pairing its resources alongside the charitable donations of both time and money from 
individuals, corporations, and private foundations, allowing even more to be accomplished with less investment by the public 
sector. However, the public sector dollars are important for helping the Bethlehem Center achieve its goals in the coming year 
while we plan for future sustainability. We are currently looking at ways to increase our donor-base, to capitalize on volunteer 
labor, to increase our thrift store’s revenue stream, and examining how to better utilize business models to fund our 
programs.  

http://www.ochscenter.org/documents/SOCRR2013_Education.pdf


School Progress Report

School: The Bethlehem Center

Date: August 30, 2013-April 4, 2014

Current Status Performance Predictors

Grades PreK - 5
Sep 1, 2013 (0 students)

Nov 1, 2013 (47 students)

Jan 1, 2014 (46 students)

Mar 1, 2014 (52 students)

n/a

2% | 19% | 79%

5% | 15% | 80%

4% | 17% | 79%

Progress

Current Status Lexia Skill Set

Grades 6 and Above
Sep 1, 2013 (0 students)

Nov 1, 2013 (12 students)

Jan 1, 2014 (16 students)

Mar 1, 2014 (16 students)

n/a

50% | 25% | 25%

56% | 31% | 13%

38% | 38% | 24%

Progress

Show: On Target Some Risk High Risk Meeting Usage

Grade Overall Aug 1 Sep 1 Oct 1 Nov 1 Dec 1 Jan 1 Feb 1 Mar 1 Apr 1

Kindergarten n/a n/a 0% 0% 0% 100% 100% 100% 100%

1st Grade n/a n/a 60% 69% 69% 90% 92% 91% 92%

2nd Grade n/a n/a 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100%

3rd Grade n/a n/a 71% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100%

4th Grade n/a n/a 64% 73% 62% 62% 85% 57% 93%

5th Grade n/a n/a 66% 86% 60% 70% 71% 71% 77%

All Grades n/a n/a 64% 79% 71% 80% 87% 79% 91%

Note: The monthly percentage is calculated on the first day of the month and reflects the previous month's performance and usage.

Show: Intermediate Elementary Basic Meeting Usage

Grade Overall Aug 1 Sep 1 Oct 1 Nov 1 Dec 1 Jan 1 Feb 1 Mar 1 Apr 1

6th Grade 50% n/a 50% 50% 70% 70% 54% 40% 50%

7th Grade 50% n/a 40% 50% 33% 33% 29% 33% 29%
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Lexia Reading® Research Report: September 2012-May 2013 
Student Software Usage and Gains: Grades 1 – 3  
Data compiled and analyzed by The Educational Research & Design Team (research@lexialearning.com) 

Program Description 

Lexia Reading provides an explicit, systematic, personalized learning experience and delivers norm-

referenced performance data and analysis without interrupting the flow of instruction to administer a 

test. Aligned to the Common Core State Standards, this research-proven, technology-based system 

accelerates reading skills development, predicts students’ end-of-year performance and provides 

teachers with data-driven action plans, lessons, and skill builders to help differentiate instruction.  

Lexia Reading provides individualized learning that is both student-driven and teacher-directed. 

Student-Driven 

 Independent, adaptive learning on

foundational reading skills

 Explicit, systematic instruction that

scaffolds students as they struggle and

advances them to higher levels as they

demonstrate proficiency

Teacher-Directed 

 Differentiated instructional materials for

all students based on their performance in

the software

 Individualized, data-driven action plans

that focus teacher time on the greatest

needs

 Easy to use reports prescribe the

instructional intensity needed to help

students reach their end-of-year goal

Sample Selection and Description 

The sample of students in this report consisted of 39 first-third graders from the Bethlehem Center in 

Tennessee. These students used Lexia Reading for at least 30 days since the start of the school year and 

spent at least 10 minutes a week on the software. Students who used Lexia Reading last year continued 

working in the program where they left off the previous spring. For new students, Lexia Reading’s Auto 

Placement tool determined an appropriate starting level in the program consistent with each student’s 

performance. For example, a 2nd grader could place in Primary Reading Level 3 (second grade skills) or 

Primary Reading Level 1 (kindergarten skills). 

Analysis 1: Skill Mastery by Usage 

In Lexia Reading, students advance through the program by completing Lexia activities (i.e. skills) such as 

initial/final consonants discrimination, silent-e word construction, and sight word recognition. Skills are 

organized in the program by grade level of the material and mastery of skills is required to advance 

through the program. Bethlehem students, with varying levels of intensity on Lexia Reading, showed 

differences in their progress. Figure 1 below compares the amount of material mastered by all 1st – 3rd 

grade students from three usage categories. 

Bethlehem Center 
Grades 1-3 

mailto:research@lexialearning.com


Bethlehem Center, Grades 1-3, May 2013 

  2 

Figure 1. Comparing Students’ Progress in Lexia Reading by Intensity of Software Use (N=39) 

Analysis 2: Progress in Grade Level Skills for At-Risk Students 

This analysis examines student progress in Lexia Reading so far this school year.  In Table 1, there are 

two rows for each grade that compare the percentage of students working at each grade level in Lexia 

from their initial placement (Start Level) to their status in May (May Level). The bold green line indicates 

the end-of-year benchmark for each grade. At the start, 28% of these students were working on skills at 

or above their grade level. By May, the percentage of students working on skills at or above their grade 

level increased to 49%. Notably, 18% of students were working on skills above grade level. 

Table 1. Percentage of 1st – 3rd graders working on the following grade level skills (N=39) 

K 1st 2nd 3rd Above 3rd 

First Grade 
 (19 students) 

Start Level 53% 42% 5% – – 

May Level 21% 63% 11% 0% 5% 

Second Grade 
 (11 students) 

Start Level 55% 36% 9% – – 

May Level 9% 73% 0% 9% 9% 

Third Grade Start Level 22% 44% 22% 0% 11% 

(9 students) May Level 22% 22% 33% 0% 22% 

Analysis 3: Differentiated, Data-driven Instruction 

Lexia Learning’s Assessment Without Testing® online tool (myLexia.com) provides teachers with detailed 

student data so they can analyze student performance and match instruction to each student’s needs.  

Reporting features support teachers’ ability to differentiate instruction by identifying and grouping 

students who have similar skill gaps. As of May 2013, 10 staff members in the Bethlehem Center logged 

in at least once. Notably, one staff member logged in 130 times.  Staff members also viewed over 725 

reports and downloaded over 425 Lexia Lessons and Skill Builders. 

Note: Totals may not add up to 100% due to rounding. 
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Account Category     Actual FY 2011 Actual FY 2012 Actual FY 2013 Budget FY 2014 Request FY 2015
Incr (Decr) Request 

vs. FY 14 Budget

% Change Request 

vs FY 14 Budget

REVENUES

Contributions

  Individuals/Private 96,464$       90,500$       93,157$       73,192$     85,000$     11,808$      16.1%

  Corporate/Organizations/Churches 136,544$     175,948$     156,517$     190,000$      180,000$      (10,000)$     -5.3%

Fees/Grants from Governmental Agencies

  Federal -$     -$       -$       -$      -$     -$       N/A

  State -$     -$       -$       -$      -$     -$       N/A

  Hamilton County -$     -$       -$       -$      -$     -$       N/A

  City of Chattanooga -$     12,500$       25,000$       30,000$     30,000$     -$       0.0%

  Other Cities (Please list) -$     -$       -$       -$      -$     -$       N/A

United Way 

  Foundations (including grants) 224,259$     277,560.00 192,564$     140,000$      150,000$      10,000$      7.1%

  Gross Proceeds Special Events 3,586$      -$       -$       -$      -$     -$       N/A

  Other UWs/Federations 42,254$       37,433$       30,585$       -$      -$     -$       N/A

  CFC/Designations received thru UWGC -$     -$       -$       -$      -$     -$       N/A

  UWGC Program Allocation -$     -$       -$       -$      -$     -$       N/A

  UWGC Special Funding -$     -$       -$       -$      -$     -$       N/A

Membership Dues -$     -$       -$       -$      -$     -$       N/A

Program Income -$     -$       -$       -$      -$     -$       N/A

Governmental Insurance -$     -$       -$       -$      -$     -$       N/A

Private Insurance -$     -$       -$       -$      -$     -$       N/A

Contracted Services -$     -$       -$       -$      -$     -$       N/A

Fee for Services 7,573$      6,268$      4,108$      13,500$     15,000$     1,500$     11.1%

Other Program Income -$     -$       -$       -$      -$     -$       N/A

Sales to Public 56,353$       73,348$       29,906$       32,500$     35,000$     2,500$     7.7%

Investment Income 1,630$      676$      854$      1,500$     1,500$       -$       0.0%

Miscellaneous 3,163$      3,536$      8,230$      8,500$     8,500$       -$       0.0%

Other Revenues (Please list separately  any major item) -$     -$       -$       -$       N/A

Transfers in from other internal  budgets -$     -$       -$       -$       N/A

Income from Previous Year -$       N/A
TOTAL REVENUES     571,826$     677,769$     540,920$     489,192$      505,000$      15,808$      3.2%

OPERATIONS

Personnel Expenses

Salaries 233,175$     274,103$     254,395$     275,000$      280,000$      5,000$     1.8%

CITY OF CHATTANOOGA

 FY 2015 Agency Funding Financial Form
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Fringe Benefits -$     -$       -$       -$      -$       N/A

Employee Health 3,389$      3,187$      7,660$      6,000$     6,000$       -$       0.0%

Pension/Retirement -$     -$       -$       -$       N/A

Payroll Taxes, etc. 18,745$       23,680$       26,036$       20,000$     20,000$     -$       0.0%

Other (unemployment, life insurance, etc) 1,385$      1,578$      5,017$      -$      -$       N/A
Total Personnel Expenses 256,694$     302,548$     293,107$     301,000$      306,000$      5,000$     1.7%

OPERATING EXPENSES

Administration

Professional Fee & Contract service 68,517$       44,391$       60,920$       22,900$     27,000$     4,100$     17.9%

Utilities 32,000$       47,183$       45,081$       -$       N/A

Other -$     1,167$      -$       N/A

Rent -$     20,303$       20,896$       7,000$     7,000$       -$       0.0%

Travel/Transportation 14,292$       15,285$       14,757$       13,000$     15,000$     2,000$     15.4%

Insurance (not employee health) 13,338$       12,364$       13,505$       12,400$     13,000$     600$      4.8%

Materials & Supplies 59,699$       64,140$       36,225$       43,292$     45,000$     1,708$     3.9%

Telephone, Fax, ISP 5,470$      4,084$      2,799$      4,500$     4,500$       -$       0.0%

Postage and Shipping 2,110$      1,512$      1,802$      2,000$     2,000$       -$       0.0%

Occupancy/Building/Utilities 28,876$       913$      -$       50,000$     50,000$     -$       0.0%

Equipment Rental and Maintenance (including contracts) -$     -$       -$       -$      -$     -$       N/A

Outside Printing, Art Work, etc. 1,965$      2,686$      1,260$      2,000$     2,000$       -$       0.0%

Conferences, Conventions, etc. 12,338$       9,482$      8,279$      1,600$     1,500$       (100)$       -6.3%

Special Assistance to Individuals -$     -$       -$       -$      -$     -$       N/A

National Dues/Support Payments 5,876$      4,728$      5,397$      4,000$     4,000$       -$       0.0%

Organization Dues (other than above) -$     -$       -$       -$      -$     -$       N/A

Awards and Grants 25,052$       29,109$       27,970$       11,000$     12,000$     1,000$     9.1%

Fund Raising/Self-Support Activities 8,623$      7,187$      6,208$      9,500$     10,000$     500$      5.3%

Miscellaneous 6,101$      2,632$      1,158$      500$     1,000$       500$      100.0%

Equipment Purchases (incl. capital expenses) 7,895$      -$       -$       -$       N/A

Depreciation 2,927$      60,108$       -$       -$       N/A

Other Expenses (Please list separately  any major item) -$     19,904$       8,464$      4,500$     5,000$       500$      11.1%

-$       N/A
Operating Expenses Total 295,079$     347,178$     254,721$     188,192$      199,000$      10,808$      5.7%

TOTAL OPERATIONS 551,773$     649,726$     547,828$     489,192$      505,000$      15,808$      3.2%

REVENUE OVER/ (UNDER) OPERATIONS 20,053$       28,043$       (6,908)$     -$      -$     -$       N/A



City of Chattanooga

FY15 Offers

Agency Name 

Offer Name: Early Childhood Education to At

Lead Agency: Chambliss Center for Children

Collaborating City Department(s): Youth and Family

Contact Name:  Sherry Hutsell

Primary Results Area: 
Smarter Children and
Stronger Families

Offer Cost (Funding Request): $356,000

1. Safer Streets – Safe communities, reduced crime,
pathways.

2. Growing Economy – Growing and supporting local businesses, workforce development,
business recruitment and retention, and an environment for innovation.

3. Stronger Neighborhoods
residential markets, and rapid re

4. Smarter Students, Stronger Families
community health.

5. High Performing Government
customer service, resource management, and exceptional talent.

6. Innovation Fund – Something different
way government operates.

Description: (What is the service/program? How will

What difference does this offer make and how will we know? Make a compelling case for your offer.)

Chambliss Center for Children will provide quality early childho
age to twelve years of age in six different Chat
children or approximately 500 on any given day.
childhood education services to children at or below the poverty level.
Star program that works very closely with the United Way in relation to assessments a
programs use the same curriculum and assessment instruments. Unless a developmental delay is identified
four year olds enter Kindergarten with the skills needed to be successful
our parents said this service was essential 

The main campus in Brainerd is a 24-7-365 program that provides services to second and third shift
workers. Annually, these programs give 85
will ensure that each child is receiving the instruction and care they need to maximize their learning potential. We will
continue to work with the United Way to make sure every child is receiving free books each month from the Imagination
Library. We will continue to work with and provide space to Chattanooga Head Start/Early Head Start to make sure that
more children and their families receive their

Research from the Perry Preschool Study and several othe

City of Chattanooga 

Offers 

OFFER SUMMARY 

Early Childhood Education to At-Risk Children in Six Locations

Chambliss Center for Children 

Youth and Family Development (Head Start and Early Head Start)

Sherry Hutsell 

Smarter Children and 
Stronger Families 

$356,000 

RESULTS AREAS 

Safe communities, reduced crime, positive opportunities, and alternate

Growing and supporting local businesses, workforce development,
business recruitment and retention, and an environment for innovation.

Stronger Neighborhoods – Neighborhood leadership, connected communities, healthy
residential markets, and rapid re-housing.

Smarter Students, Stronger Families – Parents and first teachers, community support, and

High Performing Government – Data-driven decision making, sound operations, outs
customer service, resource management, and exceptional talent.

Something different – processes, services, technologies, ideas. Shifting the
way government operates.

DETAILS 

(What is the service/program? How will it be provided? What innovation & sustainability practice does this leverage?

What difference does this offer make and how will we know? Make a compelling case for your offer.) 

Chambliss Center for Children will provide quality early childhood education services to at-risk children from six weeks of
age to twelve years of age in six different Chattanooga neighborhoods. Yearly, we expect to serve approximately 850

0 on any given day.  These locations will provide affordable, easily accessi
to children at or below the poverty level. These children will all receive services from a Three

Star program that works very closely with the United Way in relation to assessments and teacher training. All of the
programs use the same curriculum and assessment instruments. Unless a developmental delay is identified

indergarten with the skills needed to be successful in school and later in life. In a
 for them to be able to work or continue their education. 

365 program that provides services to second and third shift 
850 at-risk Chattanooga children access to a quality early education program that

ensure that each child is receiving the instruction and care they need to maximize their learning potential. We will
United Way to make sure every child is receiving free books each month from the Imagination

We will continue to work with and provide space to Chattanooga Head Start/Early Head Start to make sure that
more children and their families receive their comprehensive services.   

Research from the Perry Preschool Study and several other national studies shows that at-risk children who receive quality

1 

Risk Children in Six Locations 

Development (Head Start and Early Head Start) 

positive opportunities, and alternate 

Growing and supporting local businesses, workforce development,

cted communities, healthy

Parents and first teachers, community support, and

driven decision making, sound operations, outstanding 

processes, services, technologies, ideas.  Shifting the

it be provided? What innovation & sustainability practice does this leverage? 

risk children from six weeks of 
we expect to serve approximately 850 

affordable, easily accessible, quality early 
will all receive services from a Three 
nd teacher training. All of the 

programs use the same curriculum and assessment instruments. Unless a developmental delay is identified, 100% of our 
. In a survey, 100% of 

365 program that provides services to second and third shift as well as weekend 
children access to a quality early education program that 

ensure that each child is receiving the instruction and care they need to maximize their learning potential. We will 
United Way to make sure every child is receiving free books each month from the Imagination 

We will continue to work with and provide space to Chattanooga Head Start/Early Head Start to make sure that 

risk children who receive quality 
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early childhood education services are more likely to be successful in school and participate in post sec
They are less likely to drop out of school, to be involved with the juvenile court or become a teenage parent.
economist James Heckman states that every $1 invested in q
yields a $17 return to the community over the life of that child. We are asking the City of Chattanooga
us serve 850 children.  That is an annual investment of $
then the City of Chattanooga will realize a return of
all 850 children. In addition to the benefits to these children, we are also offering a tremendous help to the parents who
entrust their children into our care.  More than 400
support their families, to get a little extra help in times of emergency or of great need, or to continue to reach their
educational goals.  This ultimately leads to stronger families, more successful children, and a healthier economy.

We understand that it takes everyone working together to build strong children and families. Our six agency collaboration
has received national recognition as an early childhood educ
is validated by those who choose to partner wit
County Department of Education, HBO Documentary Films, and Vanderbilt University’s Peabody Center
for Children has been serving the Chattanooga community for 141 years.
serving the children and families of the community for over 46 years.
in the Chattanooga community, and we consistently strive to provide
possible with the resources available to us.

Identify Which Desired Outcomes This Offer Impacts:

1.More children graduating from high school, college and career ready

2.Fewer children dropping out of school

3.Increase reading proficiency for children

on information contained in Attachment F)

Offer Name 

Personnel Cost

(including Benefits)

ECE to At-Risk Children 

Capital Budget Impact? Yes 

Financial Offsets: (Please list other revenues associated with the specific program for which funding is requested

Name 

Parent Fees 

Fundraising 
Thrift Store 
USDA 
Endowment 
United Way 

City of Chattanooga 

Offers 

early childhood education services are more likely to be successful in school and participate in post sec
They are less likely to drop out of school, to be involved with the juvenile court or become a teenage parent.

every $1 invested in quality early childhood education services to at
$17 return to the community over the life of that child. We are asking the City of Chattanooga

hat is an annual investment of $419 per child or only $2.74 per day.  If Dr. Heckman is correct
he City of Chattanooga will realize a return of $7,123 over the lifetime of one child or $6,052,000 over the lifetimes of
0 children. In addition to the benefits to these children, we are also offering a tremendous help to the parents who

entrust their children into our care. More than 400 parents are allowed an opportunity to hold down a job, to financially
milies, to get a little extra help in times of emergency or of great need, or to continue to reach their

educational goals. This ultimately leads to stronger families, more successful children, and a healthier economy.

e working together to build strong children and families. Our six agency collaboration
early childhood education financial management model. The quality of our services
rtner with us: United Way, Chattanooga Head Start/Early Head Start, Hamilton

, HBO Documentary Films, and Vanderbilt University’s Peabody Center
nooga community for 141 years.  Our youngest collaboration partner has been

serving the children and families of the community for over 46 years. We are the largest early childhood education agency
, and we consistently strive to provide quality early education to as many at

possible with the resources available to us. 

Identify Which Desired Outcomes This Offer Impacts: 

More children graduating from high school, college and career ready

BUDGET REQUEST

(Please complete basSummary:  (Please complete baseded on information contained in Attachment F) 

Personnel Costs 

(including Benefits) Operating Costs Total Request 

$3,166,300 $1,345,300 $356,000 

 XNo $Amount 

other revenues associated with the specific program for which funding is requested

Amount 

$550,000 

$550,000 
$190,000 
$267,500 
$180,000 
$281,000 

PERFORMANCE DATA

2 

early childhood education services are more likely to be successful in school and participate in post secondary education. 
They are less likely to drop out of school, to be involved with the juvenile court or become a teenage parent.  National 

ldhood education services to at-risk children 
$17 return to the community over the life of that child. We are asking the City of Chattanooga for $356,000 to help 

f Dr. Heckman is correct, 
,000 over the lifetimes of 

0 children. In addition to the benefits to these children, we are also offering a tremendous help to the parents who 
are allowed an opportunity to hold down a job, to financially 

milies, to get a little extra help in times of emergency or of great need, or to continue to reach their 
educational goals. This ultimately leads to stronger families, more successful children, and a healthier economy. 

e working together to build strong children and families. Our six agency collaboration 
model. The quality of our services 

United Way, Chattanooga Head Start/Early Head Start, Hamilton 
, HBO Documentary Films, and Vanderbilt University’s Peabody Center. Chambliss Center 

ur youngest collaboration partner has been 
We are the largest early childhood education agency 

as many at-risk children as 

 FTEs 

required 

105 

other revenues associated with the specific program for which funding is requested) 
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Measurement 1: 

To assess all children using Ages & Stages Questionnaires, Ready to Read Assessments, GOLD Assessments, or ELLCO
tests to determine literacy skill level and Kindergarten readiness
developing children (excludes children with identified delays)

Historical Comparison Data? 

100% of typically developing children are Kindergarten ready

Measurement 2: 

To allow parents to work or attend school in order to support their families financially, emotionally, and educationally
goal is that 95% of our parents will be able to work or attend school while their children

Historical Comparison Data?  

400 parents have utilized our services in order to hold down employment or reach their educational goals

Measurement 3: 

To identify children as having a developmental delays/disabilities and refer them to the appropriate
resource or put the correct intervention in place. Our goal is to screen 100% of our 2
children for delays with the help of the Speech & Hearing Center and the Lions Club (vis
typically identify a small number of children (less than 1%) who need additional services. We provide
the information to the parents who can then follow through with the treatment.

Historical Comparison Data? 

100% of children screened and less than 1% were referred for additional help beyond the scope of our program

concerning a developmental delay or disability

PLEASE NOTE: Because of the longevity of the agency and this specific program, we do not have goals that are very

different (if, at all) from our current data.  This is only a reflection of the fact that our program has

1969, and we have had a lot of time and help in make improvements

we do an outstanding job of preparing our children for Kindergarten, assessing them for delays, and in making our

services affordable so that poor families can access quality care.

from our local government. 

Return on Investment: 

How do citizens benefit?  Having more children succeed in school will provide many benefits to City residents.

Children who perform better in school are less likely to drop out and contribute to the crime rate, are less

likely to become pregnant, and are more likely to graduate and move on to post

obtain better jobs.  This not only helps our streets be safer, but it helps our economy as more people enter

the workforce and are able to pay taxes. It also helps every child

community. 

Does this activity leverage other financial resources?

support from individuals, foundations, businesses, and government entities. It takes all th

working in tandem to provide a much needed service to low

City of Chattanooga 

Offers 

To assess all children using Ages & Stages Questionnaires, Ready to Read Assessments, GOLD Assessments, or ELLCO
skill level and Kindergarten readiness.  Our goal is to continue having 100% of our typically

hildren with identified delays) to be Kindergarten ready. 

Kindergarten ready 

To allow parents to work or attend school in order to support their families financially, emotionally, and educationally
goal is that 95% of our parents will be able to work or attend school while their children are with us.

400 parents have utilized our services in order to hold down employment or reach their educational goals

developmental delays/disabilities and refer them to the appropriate
correct intervention in place.  Our goal is to screen 100% of our 2

children for delays with the help of the Speech & Hearing Center and the Lions Club (vis
typically identify a small number of children (less than 1%) who need additional services. We provide
the information to the parents who can then follow through with the treatment. 

ess than 1% were referred for additional help beyond the scope of our program

concerning a developmental delay or disability  

PLEASE NOTE: Because of the longevity of the agency and this specific program, we do not have goals that are very

at all) from our current data.  This is only a reflection of the fact that our program has 

lot of time and help in make improvements.  While we know that we are not perfe

of preparing our children for Kindergarten, assessing them for delays, and in making our

families can access quality care.  But, this level of service cannot continue without help

Having more children succeed in school will provide many benefits to City residents.

Children who perform better in school are less likely to drop out and contribute to the crime rate, are less

nt, and are more likely to graduate and move on to post-secondary education and

obtain better jobs. This not only helps our streets be safer, but it helps our economy as more people enter

the workforce and are able to pay taxes.  It also helps every child to grow into a productive member of our

Does this activity leverage other financial resources?  This program is a community effort, receiving financial

support from individuals, foundations, businesses, and government entities.  It takes all th

working in tandem to provide a much needed service to low-income members of our community.

3 

To assess all children using Ages & Stages Questionnaires, Ready to Read Assessments, GOLD Assessments, or ELLCO 
. Our goal is to continue having 100% of our typically 

To allow parents to work or attend school in order to support their families financially, emotionally, and educationally.  Our 
are with us. 

400 parents have utilized our services in order to hold down employment or reach their educational goals 

developmental delays/disabilities and refer them to the appropriate 
correct intervention in place. Our goal is to screen 100% of our 2-5 year old 

children for delays with the help of the Speech & Hearing Center and the Lions Club (vision).  We 
typically identify a small number of children (less than 1%) who need additional services.  We provide 

ess than 1% were referred for additional help beyond the scope of our program 

PLEASE NOTE: Because of the longevity of the agency and this specific program, we do not have goals that are very 

 been in existence since 

we are not perfect, we think 

of preparing our children for Kindergarten, assessing them for delays, and in making our 

But, this level of service cannot continue without help 

Having more children succeed in school will provide many benefits to City residents. 

Children who perform better in school are less likely to drop out and contribute to the crime rate, are less 

secondary education and 

obtain better jobs. This not only helps our streets be safer, but it helps our economy as more people enter 

to grow into a productive member of our 

This program is a community effort, receiving financial 

support from individuals, foundations, businesses, and government entities. It takes all these components 

income members of our community. 
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How does this activity decrease costs over

states that an investment in early childhood education of at

because quality early childhood education

unemployment, welfare, and gang prevention efforts.

How can this program become sustainable without City funding?

service to low-income families, we will always need to subsidize the cost. There is no way t

population could pay for the service we provide while also providing food and shelter for their family. Thus,

we know we will always need to produce revenue and receive additional financial support to meet the

operational shortfalls of this much needed program.

City of Chattanooga 

Offers 

over time for the City?  As mentioned earlier, Economist Dr. Heckman

states that an investment in early childhood education of at-risk children will produce a $17 return. This is

because quality early childhood education reduces costs such as incarceration, healthcare for the uni

unemployment, welfare, and gang prevention efforts. 

How can this program become sustainable without City funding?  Because we are providing a high quality

income families, we will always need to subsidize the cost.  There is no way t

population could pay for the service we provide while also providing food and shelter for their family. Thus,

we know we will always need to produce revenue and receive additional financial support to meet the

much needed program. 

4 

As mentioned earlier, Economist Dr. Heckman 

risk children will produce a $17 return.  This is 

, healthcare for the uninsured, 

Because we are providing a high quality 

income families, we will always need to subsidize the cost. There is no way that our client 

population could pay for the service we provide while also providing food and shelter for their family.  Thus, 

we know we will always need to produce revenue and receive additional financial support to meet the 



Attachment F: Budget Format

Account Category

Our Actual FY 

2011  Jan-Dec

Our Actual FY 

2012  Jan-Dec

Our Actual FY 

2013  Jan-Dec

Our Budget FY 2014  

Jan-Dec      and 

Request        City FY 

2015*
Incr (Decr) Request 

vs. FY14 Bud

% Change Request vs 

FY14 Bud

REVENUES

Contributions

     Individuals/Private 355,477 295,102 312,449 275,000 (37,449) -12.0%

     Corporate/Organizations/Churches 355,477 295,102 312,448 275,000 (37,448) -12.0%

Fees/Grants from Governmental Agencies

    Federal 326,025 370,007 327,566 338,500 10,934 3.3%

    State 1,202,015 1,229,450 1,401,149 1,400,000 (1,149) -0.1%

   Hamilton County 100,807 0 N/A

   City of Chattanooga 137,500 311,250 347,500 356,000 8,500 2.4% **

   Other Cities (Please list) 0 N/A

United Way 

    Foundations (including grants) 0 N/A

    Gross Proceeds Special Events 0 N/A

    Other UWs/Federations 0 N/A

    CFC/Designations received thru UWGC 0 N/A

     UWGC Program Allocation 161,595 178,023 178,022 178,000 (22) 0.0%

     UWGC Special Funding 97,347 93,781 108,684 103,000 (5,684) -5.2%

Membership Dues 0 N/A

Program Income 508,831 521,043 503,302 550,000 46,698 9.3%

Governmental Insurance 0 N/A

Private Insurance 0 N/A

Contracted Services 129,000 129,000 128,000 117,000 (11,000) -8.6%

Fee for Services 0 N/A

Other Program Income 231,303 289,734 339,186 373,500 34,314 10.1%

Sales to Public 0 N/A

Investment Income 180,000 337,000 180,000 180,000 0 0.0%

Miscellaneous 2,938 33,821 5,460 2,000 (3,460) -63.4%

Other Revenues (Please list separately  any major item) 186,000 193,000 183,700 190,000 6,300 3.4%

Transfers in from other internal  budgets 52,040 133,505 3,500 (3,500) -100.0%

Investment Draws to cover budget shortfall 173,600 173,600 N/A

Income from Previous Year 0 N/A

CITY OF CHATTANOOGA

 FY 2015 Agency Funding Financial Form



TOTAL REVENUES 4,026,356 4,409,818 4,330,966 4,511,600 180,634 4.2%

OPERATIONS

Personnel Expenses

Salaries 2,340,644 2,513,570 2,593,074 2,608,000 14,926 0.6%

Fringe Benefits 0 N/A

Employee Health 146,251 141,448 162,992 188,300 25,308 15.5%

Pension/Retirement 124,473 112,651 118,203 120,000 1,797 1.5%

Payroll Taxes, etc. 175,892 184,463 189,237 190,000 763 0.4%

Other (unemployment, life insurance, etc) 60,982 58,691 51,426 60,000 8,574 16.7%

Total Personnel Expenses 2,848,242 3,010,822 3,114,932 3,166,300 51,368 1.6%

OPERATING EXPENSES

Administration

Services

Professional Fee & Contract service 316,601 392,399 397,557 410,100 12,543 3.2%

Utilities 0 N/A

Other

Rent

Travel/Transportation 0 N/A

Local 31,008 27,920 25,535 25,000

Out of Town 13,289 18,614 20,000 20,000

Insurance (not employee health) 41,909 37,962 44,451 45,000 549 1.2%

Materials & Supplies 326,055 329,861 344,000 352,200 8,200 2.4%

Telephone, Fax, ISP 30,192 26,994 26,677 27,000 323 1.2%

Postage and Shipping 6,945 7,463 8,400 7,500 (900) -10.7%

Occupancy/Building/Utilities 262,799 292,903 294,543 291,000 (3,543) -1.2%

Equipment Rental and Maintenance (including contracts) 25,947 25,080 43,329 30,000 (13,329) -30.8%

Outside Printing, Art Work, etc. 2,372 12,310 17,834 12,000 (5,834) -32.7%

Conferences, Conventions, etc. 22,442 27,296 27,964 27,500 (464) -1.7%

Special Assistance to Individuals 0 0 N/A

National Dues/Support Payments 0 0 N/A

Organization Dues (other than above) 0 0 N/A

Awards and Grants 0 0 N/A

Fund Raising/Self-Support Activities 19,792 19,057 25,301 26,500 1,199 4.7%

Miscellaneous 4,646 5,805 4,660 4,500 (160) -3.4%

Equipment Purchases (incl. capital expenses) 74,117 140,632 37,718 (37,718) -100.0%

Depreciation 0 N/A

Other Expenses (Please list separately  any major item) 0 N/A

Collaboration Expense -  Shared Services 34,700 52,750 37,000 (15,750) -29.9%



Repay Outstanding Line of Credit 30,000 30,000 N/A

Operating Expenses Total 1,178,114 1,398,996 1,370,719 1,345,300 (25,419) -1.9%

TOTAL OPERATIONS 4,026,356 4,409,818 4,485,651 4,511,600 25,949 0.6%

REVENUE OVER/ (UNDER) OPERATIONS 0 0 0 0 N/A

* Because our budget is for Jan-Dec 2014, this is the budget that includes the current request to the City for $352,712 for their FY 2015

** Because our FY is Jan-Dec, the City lines items include actual amounts received, not our requested amount.  These actuals represent half of one City FY and half of the following City FY.
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Girls Inc.® 709 S. Greenwood Avenue 
of Chattanooga  Chattanooga, TN 37404  

  Tel: 423 624-4757 
 Fax: 423 698-4345 
 www.girlsincofchatt.org 

April 4, 2014 

Dear Mayor Berke, 

Girls Inc. is pleased to submit a proposal to the City of Chattanooga for the expansion of our 
afterschool literacy program, the Bookworm Club, and the creation of an Urban Debate League 
(UDL). We are requesting $149,434 in funding from the City to provide these programs at a total 
of seven Youth and Family Development Centers in order to provide academic enrichment to more 
girls throughout Chattanooga. The Bookworm Club teaches literacy skills to in-need children from 
underserved and low-income communities, while the creation of a UDL would give girls the 
opportunity to sharpen their reading, research, communication, and critical-thinking skills as well 
as teach them to advocate for themselves and others. 

The mission of Girls Inc. is to inspire and equip all girls to be strong, smart, and boldSM -- healthy, 
educated, and independent -- on their journey to self-discovery. Girls Inc. offers in-school, after 
school, and school break programming for girls ages 6-18 that is age-appropriate, research-based, 
and outcome-focused. Girls Inc. provides girls with tools to improve academically, make smarter 
choices, build self- confidence, and stay focused on higher education, careers, and a successful 
future. Since we were established in 1961, we have served more than 25,000 girls throughout 
Hamilton County. We are proud that since we began tracking in 2007, 100% of girls who 
complete our high school afterschool programs in their senior year go on to college. 

Girls Inc.’s programs are successful and far-reaching because of our many partnerships with 
schools throughout Hamilton County, including Clifton Hills, Hardy, Woodmore, and East Ridge 
Elementary Schools for girls ages 6-11 as well as East Lake Academy of Fine Arts, Chattanooga 
Girls Leadership Academy, Brainerd High School, Orchard Knob Middle, and Girls Preparatory 
Schools for girls ages 12-18. Additionally, we have partnerships with the Highland Park 
Neighborhood Association, and Harrison and Brainerd United Methodist Churches, whose 
facilities allow us to provide afterschool programming for our girls. We also engage volunteers 
from several colleges and corporations throughout Chattanooga, including the University of 
Tennessee at Chattanooga, Chattanooga State Community College, Unum, and BlueCross 
BlueShield of Tennessee. Through these partnerships, we are able to provide girls with community 
support and a critical mass of supportive adults who understand what it takes to help children 
succeed. Girls Inc. understands that community partnerships are essential to success, and we 
would be thrilled at the opportunity to include YFD Centers in our already-expanding programs. 

Result area for which funding is requested: Smarter Students & Stronger Families 
Amount of money requested: $149,434 
Contact: Phil Trammell. Tel: (423) 624-4757. E-mail: ptrammell@girlsincofchatt.org 

Sincerely, 

Bea Lurie 
President & CEO 

Inspiring all girls 
to be strong,  
smart and boldSM 

mailto:ptrammell@girlsincofchatt.org
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OFFER SUMMARY 

Offer Name: Bookworm Club and Urban Debate League Expansion with YFD Centers 

Lead Agency: Girls Inc. of Chattanooga 

Collaborating City Department(s): Youth and Family Development 

Contact Name: 
Phil Trammell 

Primary Results Area: 
Smarter Students and 
Stronger Families 

Offer Cost (Funding Request): $149,434 

RESULTS AREAS 

1. Safer Streets – Safe communities, reduced crime, positive opportunities, and alternate
pathways.

2. Growing Economy – Growing and supporting local businesses, workforce development,
business recruitment and retention, and an environment for innovation.

3. Stronger Neighborhoods – Neighborhood leadership, connected communities, healthy
residential markets, and rapid re-housing.

4. Smarter Students, Stronger Families – Parents and first teachers, community support, and
community health.

5. High Performing Government – Data-driven decision making, sound operations, outstanding
customer service, resource management, and exceptional talent.

6. Innovation Fund – Something different – processes, services, technologies, ideas.  Shifting the
way government operates.

DETAILS 

Description: (What is the service/program? How will it be provided? What innovation & sustainability practice does this leverage? 
What difference does this offer make and how will we know? Make a compelling case for your offer.) 

Girls Inc., in collaboration with the City of Chattanooga’s Department of Youth and Family Development, is 
requesting $149,434 for the expansion of our afterschool literacy program, the Bookworm Club, and the 
creation of an Urban Debate League (UDL). These programs will take place in a total of seven Youth and 
Family Development Centers.  

Bookworm Club Expansion to YFD Centers: For the past two years, Girls Inc. has been improving students’ 
literacy skills in some of our city’s lowest-performing schools and producing dramatic and consistent 
improvements in the areas of desired outcomes the City seeks. The program directly increases the reading 
proficiency of children and aims to increase parental involvement in girls’ education. Girls Inc. knows that 
reading at grade level by third grade is critical to continued success in school, leading to decreased dropout 
rates, increased graduation rates and ultimately, acceptance to college. 

The Bookworm Club is currently delivered to elementary-age girls at Clifton Hills, East Ridge, and Woodmore 
Elementary Schools. Girls Inc. has been providing this program for two years, and results from pre- and post-
testing have demonstrated significant success. In the 2012-2013 school year, there was a 3.87% increase in 
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recognition of ABCs; a 19.6% increase in recognition of names of numbers; an 11.63% increase in 
recognition of names of days of the week; and a 28.6% increase in recognition of the names of the months of 
the year. Additionally, girls read faster by 2 minutes and 28 seconds. The average time for the pre-test was 4 
minutes and 18 seconds. The average time for the post-test was 1 minute and 50 seconds. There was a 19.4% 
increase in the number of correct word recognition from the pre-test to the post-test. These results show 
increased reading proficiency across several measureable areas, and we have also seen a noticeable increase in 
girls’ eagerness to read as evidenced by anecdotal staff and teacher observations. These statistics show that 
Bookworm Club makes a difference in increasing reading proficiency with the added benefits of girls 
becoming more engaged in school, attending regularly, and setting goals to pursue higher education.  

In order to bring this program to more girls throughout Chattanooga, Girls Inc. seeks funding from the City of 
Chattanooga to expand the Bookworm Club to the Carver and Shepherd Youth and Family Development 
Centers. Girls Inc. will incorporate the Lexia Reading Program available at these centers as part of this 
expansion—leveraging the City’s financial resources. We plan to reach 48 more girls with City funding in 
addition to our current number of girls served, 84, for a total of 132 girls served in the 2014-2015 school year. 
Bookworm Club will meet Mondays and Wednesdays at the Carver Center, and Tuesdays and Thursdays at the 
Shepherd Center. Each site will receive six hours of programming a week. 

In addition to providing afterschool programming and literacy education for girls ages 6-11, Girls Inc. also 
provides programming for middle school girls and teens, ensuring that we reach the continuum of critical age 
groups and equip them with the educational and life skills they need to succeed.  

Urban Debate League: In collaboration with the City of Chattanooga’s Youth and Family Development,  
Girls Inc. will implement the nationally-recognized Urban Debate League (UDL) at five YFD Centers: 
Brainerd, John A. Patten, Hixson, Tyner, and South Chattanooga. The creation of a UDL would give high 
school girls the opportunity to sharpen their reading, research, communication, and critical thinking skills. 
Members of the UDL would meet once a week at each center for three hours. Each center would serve twelve 
girls, fielding six debate teams with five urban debate league tournaments per year and a summer Debate 
Institute in the summer of 2015.  

The addition of an Urban Debate League to Chattanooga meets several of the desired outcomes articulated by 
the City for Smarter Students, Stronger Families. Based upon a study by Briana Mezuk et al conducted in 2009, 
UDL will increase graduation rates, prepare more students to enter and successfully complete college, and 
improve literacy for our children.  Researchers used data from 1997-2007 Chicago Public School and the 
Consortium on Chicago School Research.  They examined UDL students and comparable non-UDL 
participating students to account for institutional-level differences. Debaters in general were 19% more 
likely to graduate from high school and were less likely to drop out of school. The results were strongest 
for black students, with their graduation rate increasing by 70 percent. The researchers were able to 
conclude that the skills taught through the medium of academic debate would be useful to help close the black - 
white achievement gap. 

Using the same data, Anderson and Mezuk looked at the ability of debate to influence “at-risk” students (2012).  
Their research found that debaters were far more likely to score higher on the English and Science sections of 
the ACT for all risk groups.  They also found an association between debate intensity and gains on ACT and 
graduation rates.  From this data, one can conclude that debate has the ability to positively affect all academic 
aspects of the urban students’ educational experience. 

On an individual level, debate has the ability to increase student self-efficacy and empowerment. According to 
research by Warner and Bruschke, debate promotes long-term learning by giving students the chance to engage 
with a subject rather than simply memorize it (2000). Urban Debate Leagues challenge students to engage with 
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others in a dialectic process, a form of argumentation in which two or more people discuss differing viewpoints 
about a subject in order to come a conclusion that is guided by reasoned arguments. Rather than merely accept 
statements as true or show bias toward already-established opinions, debaters are called to question the very 
foundations of the world around them, thus gaining the ability to make well-reasoned and informed judgments. 
A key component of UDLs is policy debate, in which teams of two advocate for and against a resolution that 
typically calls for policy change by the United States Federal Government. Policy debates’ switch side process 
and cross-examination periods demonstrate true dialectical thinking, which in turn promotes core critical 
thinking skills. 

The impact of an urban debate league would be felt not only by individual students and schools, but also by the 
community. Georgia Hall conducted an extensive qualitative analysis of New York City Urban Debate League 
(NYUDL) participants and coaches to examine the effect of policy debate on political engagement in youth.  
Hall and her researches used the ten point framework established by the Stanford Center on Adolescence that 
outlines youth capacities and qualities that indicate civic engagement in order to increase the legitimacy of the 
findings. Across the board, UDL participation increased students’ interest and involvement with 
democracy and civic participation. The researchers found that debate not only educates students about the 
political process, but also makes it applicable to students’ lives and communities, increasing the sense that 
students can “own the issues” and affect their communities (Hall 2006).  

With funds provided by the City of Chattanooga, Girls Inc. will establish a partnership with the National 
Association of Urban Debate Leagues. This partnership will allow girls to both compete and build bonds with 
girls from a similar population throughout the nation. In alignment with the City of Chattanooga, Girls Inc. 
believes that funding a Urban Debate League would provide students with key building blocks for success they 
may have missed in school and help further develop emerging skills. Encouraging girls to value education will 
help them become excited about school, attend  regularly, and result in fewer kids dropping out. 

As a potential investor in Girls Inc. programs, you may ask, why girls only? 

A publication by the United Way states that while society’s expectations affect both boys and girls, studies 
show that girls are more disadvantaged by them. Research conducted by Harris Interactive found that 56% of 
girls – 78% of high school girls – said that, in school, boys think they have a right to discuss a girl’s body in 
public; and 65% of all girls said girls are expected to spend a lot of their time on housework and taking care of 
younger children. Harris Interactive also found that students and adults say that girls are more likely to express 
what they really feel, be listened to, be leaders, and try new things when they are in groups with girls only. 
Additionally, girls who participated in girls-only groups were more likely to say they read books, play sports, 
like school, and plan to go to college than girls who did not participate in such groups. Of the girls surveyed, 
those who believe that boys and girls have the same abilities and strengths (82%) are more likely to plan to go 
to college than are girls who believe they are very different from boys (68%). 

Girls Inc. programming addresses these and other areas of gender inequity by providing gender-specific and 
age-appropriate curricula specifically designed for the ways girls learn. Programs are delivered in a safe, 
affirming environment that fosters empowerment. Girls Inc. girls flourish and develop into the confident, 
compassionate, community-minded and empowered young women we expect them to be. Girls Inc. has a track 
record of sustainable and successful programming. In fact, since we began tracking in 2007, 100% of girls 
who complete our high school afterschool programs go on to college. 

Girls Inc. seeks funding from the City of Chattanooga for the expansion of our afterschool literacy program, the 
Bookworm Club, and the creation of an Urban Debate League (UDL). These programs will take place in a total 
of seven Youth and Family Development Centers, giving more girls throughout Hamilton County the 
opportunity for academic success and personal achievement.  
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Identify Which Desired Outcomes This Offer Impacts: 

1. More girls graduating high school
2. Decreasing chronic absenteeism
3. Fewer girls dropping out of school

0BBUDGET REQUEST

Summary:  (Please complete based on information contained in Attachment F) 

Offer Name 
Personnel Costs 

(including Benefits) Operating Costs Total Request 
 FTEs 

required 
Bookworm Club and 
Urban Debate League 
Expansion with YFD 
Centers $86,812 $62,622 $149,434 2.5 

Capital Budget Impact?   X Yes   No     $9,075 Amount 

Financial Offsets: (Please list other revenues associated with the specific program for which funding is requested) 
Name Amount 

1BPERFORMANCE DATA

Measurement 1:  
Bookworm Club: 80% of students will demonstrate growth in reading scores as determined by the Lexia 
reading program available at Carver and Shepherd YFD Centers. 

Urban Debate League: Girls participating in UDL will graduate at a higher rate than the general high school 
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student population in Chattanooga. 
Historical Comparison Data? 

Bookworm Club: Because this is an expansion of our current Bookworm Club program, we will use 
information from previous Bookworm Club programs as a baseline. This information will be determined by the 
Lexia reading program, progress and report cards, and evaluations and surveys completed by participants, 
parents, teachers, and staff. 

Urban Debate League: Initial year baseline to be established based upon national research and girls 
participating in the program. Girls Inc. will also administer the ETS Proficiency Profile, an assessment tool that 
measures four core skill areas: critical thinking, reading, writing, and mathematics. The ETS Proficiency 
Profile will determine if participation in UDL helps improve these other critical areas. 

Measurement 2:  
Bookworm Club: Girls participating in Bookworm Club will have a higher attendance rate in school compared 
to the general student population.* 

Urban Debate League: Girls participating in UDL will have a higher attendance rate in school compared to 
the general student population.* 

*Information dependent upon our ability to obtain report cards from participants.

Historical Comparison Data? 

Bookworm Club: Because this is an expansion of our current Bookworm Club program, we will use 
information from previous Bookworm Club programs as a baseline. This information will be determined by the 
Lexia reading program, progress and report cards, and evaluations and surveys completed by participants, 
parents, teachers, and staff. 

Urban Debate League: Initial year baseline to be established based upon national research and girls 
participating in the program. Girls Inc. will also administer the ETS Proficiency Profile, an assessment tool that 
measures four core skill areas: critical thinking, reading, writing, and mathematics. The ETS Proficiency 
Profile will determine if participation in UDL helps improve these other critical areas. 

 Measurement 3:  
Urban Debate League: Girls participating in UDL will have decreased school dropout rates compared to 
students who do not participate in the program.   

Historical Comparison Data? 

Urban Debate League: Initial year baseline to be established based upon national research and girls 
participating in the program. Girls Inc. will also administer the ETS Proficiency Profile, an assessment tool that 
measures four core skill areas: critical thinking, reading, writing, and mathematics. The ETS Proficiency 
Profile will determine if participation in UDL helps improve these other critical areas. 

Return on Investment: 

Bookworm Club:  

How do citizens benefit? More Chattanooga students will receive targeted literacy education to help in-need 
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students be better positioned for academic success. 

Does this activity leverage other financial resources? Yes. Girls Inc.’s proposed partnership with YFD utilizes 
the City’s investment in Lexia. By using these already-available resources, Girls Inc. maximizes results for less 
money. 

How does this activity decrease costs over time for the City? The benefits to the City are costs avoided with 
trying to create and implement a similar program. Additionally, increasing reading proficiency in girls keeps 
them engaged in education which eventually helps contribute to improved workforce talent in Chattanooga. 
Teaching students to read at an early age offsets the cost of adults who are dependent upon social services due 
to low literacy levels. By giving girls this opportunity, we give them to chance to participate as equals in 
society as adults. 

How can this program become sustainable without City funding? The program currently receives funding from 
corporate, foundation, and individual partners and would likely continue to do so. City funding is needed to 
increase the reach of the program. Lack of future City funds might only result in fewer students benefiting. 

Urban Debate League: 

How do citizens benefit?  Adults and children will benefit from the increased amount of educational activities 
provided at the centers, from the creation of an “academic” sports league, and from more children being 
prepared for college and careers.  

Does this activity leverage other financial resources?  Yes. Girls Inc.’s proposed partnership with YFD 
leverages other financial resources through use of YFD Centers. By using these already0available resources, 
Girls Inc. maximizes results for less money.  

How does this activity decrease costs over time for the City?   The benefits to the City are costs avoided with 
trying to create and implement a similar program. Additionally, increasing public speaking and critical thinking 
skills in girls keeps them engaged in education which will eventually lead to better-equipped workforce talent 
in Chattanooga. Teaching students to engage effectively with their community at an early age offsets the cost of 
adults who are dependent upon social services. By giving girls this opportunity, we give them the chance to 
participate as equals in society as adults. 

How can this program become sustainable without City funding?  Girls Inc. will immediately begin applying 
for funding from organizations and individuals who find the mission and impact of an Urban Debate League 
appealing. Since Urban Debate Leagues exist in many large metropolitan areas, there are known funders who 
will be approached nationally while we develop interest locally in sustaining and expanding this program to 
even more YFDCs.  



Girls Inc., in partnership with the City of Chattanooga’s Department of Youth and Family Development, is 

requesting $149,434 for the implementation of our award-winning Bookworm Club at two YFD Centers and the 

creation of an Urban Debate League (UDL) to be delivered at five Youth and Family Development Centers. 

Bookworm would serve up to 48 girls at the Shepherd and Carver Centers and the Urban Debate League would 

serve 60 teen girls at the Brainerd, John A. Patten, Hixson, Tyner, and South Chattanooga Centers. Bookworm 

Club is a research-based, outcome-focused program that improves elementary reading and literacy skills. In fact, 

the Bookworm Club was recently awarded by the United Way as their 2013 Impact Program of the Year. The 

Urban Debate League is a nationally recognized program that has been shown to increase high school graduation 

rates and positively affect the civic engagement of participants. Girls Inc., with our proven track record of 

producing meaningful and life changing results, is uniquely qualified to deliver this programming. 

URBAN DEBATE LEAGUE: 

The addition of an Urban Debate League to Chattanooga meets several of the desired outcomes articulated by the 

City for Smarter Students, Stronger Families. It will increase graduation rates, prepare more students to enter and 

successfully complete college, and improve literacy for our children. 

Research detailed in our offer shows that on an individual level, debate has the ability to increase student self-

efficacy and empowerment and that it promotes the learning cycle by giving students the chance to engage with a 

subject rather than simply memorize it. Urban Debate Leagues challenge students to engage with others in a 

dialectic process, a form of argumentation in which two or more people discuss differing viewpoints 

about a subject in order to reach a conclusion that is guided by reasoned arguments. Rather than merely 

accept statements as true or show bias toward already-established opinions, debaters are called to 

question the very foundations of the world around them, thus gaining the ability to make well-reasoned 

and informed judgments. 

The impact of an urban debate league would be felt not only by the individual students and schools, but also by 

the community. Georgia Hall conducted an extensive qualitative analysis of New York City Urban Debate League 

(NYUDL) participants and coaches to examine the effect of policy debate on political engagement in youth. 

The researchers found that debate not only educates the students about the political process, but also makes it 

applicable to the students’ lives and communities, increasing the sense that the students can “own the issues” and 

affect their communities. Members of the Girls Inc. UDL would meet one day per week for three hours at each of 

the five YFD centers. Each center would serve twelve girls, fielding six debate teams, serving a total of 60 teens. 

A successful partnership would include five urban debate league tournaments per year and a summer Debate 

Institute in the summer of 2015. 

BOOKWORM CLUB: 

Girls Inc. of Chattanooga proposes to expand our afterschool literacy program, the Bookworm Club, to two 

Youth and Family Development Centers, Shepherd and Carver. The Bookworm Club teaches literacy skills 

to in-need children from underserved and low-income communities. We have seen significant quantitative 

and qualitative results with this program over the past two years, and we believe this progress can be 

expanded through a partnership with YFD in 2014-2015. Successfully doing so will support a community 

need of increased reading proficiency in children—a direct connection to the City of Chattanooga’s desired 

outcomes. 

Bookworm Club will meet twice a week at each YFD center, three hours per day, for a total of six hours per 

week. During this time, girls will practice basic reading skills and participate in intensive, hands-on lessons 

designed to improve verbal and written communication skills, reading comprehension, and handwriting. 

Girls in the Bookworm Club actively engage in literacy activities including read alouds, storytelling, games, 



public speaking, individual reading, writing, and creative arts. By using a variety of engaging activities, girls 

begin to understand the importance of reading as a life skill and across all academic subjects. The age-

appropriate lessons include activities such as Strange Sentences, in which girls learn how to construct a 

complete sentence and learn the parts of speech; Funny Phonics, where girls practice phonic noises, 

recognize a phonetic sound from a visual cue, and create their own visuals related to a specific phonetic 

sound; Scrabble Mix Up, where girls practice spelling with Scrabble game pieces and unscramble letters to 

find new words; and many more educational and fun activities that keep girls engaged. These hands-on 

activities will enhance the Lexia program currently being used at the YFDs, further improving both 

quantitative and qualitative results.  

Since most of the girls do not have books at home, we help their families apply for library cards for their 

daughters so they can read together at home and visit the library together. We also take the girls on field trips 

to the library where the library staff provides engaging programming for them. In alignment with the City’s 

goal to give parents the critical knowledge to be successful parents, we work closely with parents to update 

them on their child’s progress and to provide them with guidance on how to support the improvement of their 

daughter’s literacy skills. Using the Lexia Reading Program will also incorporate an element of technology 

use to the program, ensuring that girls from low-income communities have a better chance of keeping up 

with their peers and succeeding in an increasingly technology-rich world. 

The Bookworm Club has both measurable goals, which are detailed in our offer, and qualitative goals which 

include an increased desire amongst participants to read, choosing to read in their spare time and viewing 

themselves as readers. While these qualitative goals are more difficult to quantitatively measure, we know 

they are essential for the emotional, cognitive and behavioral development of students.  The Bookworm Club 

program would incorporate the Lexia Reading Program being used by the YFD centers to enrich literacy 

programming and increase the City’s return on investment. We propose to reach 48 more girls with City 

funding in addition to the 84 girls we now serve, for a total of 132 girls who will be provided literacy 

programming by Girls Inc. during the 2014-2015 school year.  

In alignment with the City of Chattanooga, Girls Inc. believes that educating children as early in life as 

possible is crucial to helping children succeed in school. Encouraging girls to value education at a young age 

will help them become excited about school, attend regularly, and result in fewer children dropping out of 

school. In fact, since we began tracking in 2007, 100% of girls who complete our high school afterschool 

programs go on to college. 

Girls Inc. will provide a detailed accounting of how and for what purpose municipal funds were spent prior 

to the close of the City of Chattanooga’s fiscal budget year and at the close of each succeeding fiscal budget 

year until all municipal funds have been spent. Girls Inc. will also provide a list of the accomplishments 

scheduled by use of the municipal funding. 

Girls Inc. will provide the City of Chattanooga with copies of annual audits or reviews for each year that we 

spend funds appropriated by the City of Chattanooga. 

Sincerely, 

Bea Lurie  

President & CEO 



Attachment F: Budget Format Agency Name: Girls Inc. of Chattanooga - Bookworm Club and Urban Debate League

Account Category Actual FY 2011 Actual FY 2012 Actual FY 2013 Budget FY 2014 Request FY 2015
Incr (Decr) Request

vs. FY 14 Budget
% Change Request

vs FY 14 Budget

REVENUES (Not Applicable) (Not Applicable) (Not Applicable) (Not Applicable)
Contributions

 Individuals/Private -$ N/A
 Corporate/Organizations/Churches 5,750$ 8,214$ (8,214)$ N/A

Fees/Grants from Governmental Agencies

CITY OF CHATTANOOGA
 FY 2015 Agency Funding Financial Form

Fees/Grants from Governmental Agencies
 Federal -$ N/A
 State -$ N/A

 Hamilton County 1,998$ 1,031$ (1,031)$ N/A
 City of Chattanooga 149,434$ 149,434$ N/A
 Other Cities (Please list) -$ N/A

United Way
 Foundations (including grants) 10,000$ 14,286$ (14,286)$ N/A
 Gross Proceeds Special Events -$ N/A
 Other UWs/Federations -$ N/A
 CFC/Designations received thru UWGC -$ N/A
 UWGC Program Allocation 3,952$ 18,648$ (18,648)$ N/A
 UWGC Special Funding 12,500$ 17,857$ (17,857)$ N/A

Membership Dues -$ N/AMembership Dues -$ N/A
Program Income -$ N/A
Governmental Insurance -$ N/A
Private Insurance -$ N/A
Contracted Services -$ N/A
Fee for Services -$ N/A
Other Program Income -$ N/A
Sales to Public -$ N/A
Investment Income -$ N/A
Miscellaneous -$ -$ N/A
Other Revenues - Girls Inc. national (Kellog Grant) 35,714$ -$ (35,714)$ N/A
Transfers in from other internal  budgets -$ N/A
Income from Previous Year -$ N/A
TOTAL REVENUES -$ -$ 34,200$ 95,751$ 149,434$ 149,434$ N/A
Income from Previous Year -$ N/A
TOTAL REVENUES -$ -$ 34,200$ 95,751$ 149,434$ 149,434$ N/A

OPERATIONS (Not Applicable) (Not Applicable) (Not Applicable) (Not Applicable)

Personnel Expenses
Salaries 13,581$ 50,543$ 75,045$ 75,045$ N/A
Fringe Benefits -$ N/A
Employee Health 134$ 319$ 3,407$ 3,407$ N/A
Pension/Retirement 39$ 92$ 1,501$ 1,501$ N/A
Payroll Taxes, etc. 1,057$ 3,866$ 5,741$ 5,741$ N/A
Other (unemployment, life insurance, etc) 585$ 1,673$ 1,118$ 1,118$ N/A
Total Personnel Expenses -$ -$ 15,395$ 56,493$ 86,812$ 86,812$ N/A



Attachment F: Budget Format Agency Name: Girls Inc. of Chattanooga - Bookworm Club and Urban Debate League

Account Category Actual FY 2011 Actual FY 2012 Actual FY 2013 Budget FY 2014 Request FY 2015
Incr (Decr) Request

vs. FY 14 Budget
% Change Request

vs FY 14 Budget

CITY OF CHATTANOOGA
 FY 2015 Agency Funding Financial Form

OPERATING EXPENSES
Administration
Professional Fee & Contract service 37$ -$ N/A
Utilities -$ N/AUtilities -$ N/A
Other -$ N/A
Rent -$ N/A
Travel/Transportation 1,623$ 1,857$ 8,000$ 8,000$ N/A
Insurance (not employee health) #REF! #REF! 3,435$ 3,435$ N/A
Materials & Supplies 1,084$ 4,286$ 14,534$ 14,534$ N/A
Telephone, Fax, ISP 517$ 2,607$ 2,260$ 2,260$ N/A
Postage and Shipping N/A
Occupancy/Building/Utilities #REF! #REF! 3,627$ 3,627$ N/A
Equipment Rental and Maintenance (including contracts) 357$ 793$ 793$ N/A
Outside Printing, Art Work, etc. 590$ 1,471$ 3,966$ 3,966$ N/A
Conferences, Conventions, etc. 846$ 1,729$ 3,024$ 3,024$ N/A
Special Assistance to Individuals N/A
National Dues/Support Payments #REF! #REF! 1,441$ 1,441$ N/ANational Dues/Support Payments #REF! #REF! 1,441$ 1,441$ N/A
Organization Dues (other than above) N/A
Awards and Grants N/A
Fund Raising/Self-Support Activities 2,500$ 4,000$ 2,000$ 2,000$ N/A
Miscellaneous 63$ 286$ 439$ 439$ N/A
Equipment Purchases (incl. capital expenses) 6,616$ 8,000$ 9,075$ 9,075$ N/A
Depreciation #REF! #REF! 6,212$ 6,212$ N/A
Other Expenses - Support Staff 1,060$ 2,143$ 3,816$ 3,816$ N/A

N/A
Operating Expenses Total -$ -$ #REF! #REF! 62,622$ 62,622$ N/A

N/A
TOTAL OPERATIONS -$ -$ #REF! #REF! 149,434$ 149,434$ N/A

REVENUE OVER/ (UNDER) OPERATIONS -$ -$ #REF! #REF! -$ -$ N/A
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OFFER SUMMARY 

Offer Name: Chattanooga Zoo: Community Engagement Initiative 

Lead Agency: Chattanooga Zoo 

Collaborating City Department(s): 
Department of Youth and Family Development; Therapeutic Recreation; 
Multicultural Affairs; Mayor’s Office 

Contact Name: Dardenelle Long 

Primary Results Area: 
Smarter Students, Stronger 
Families 

Offer Cost (Funding Request): $36,150 

RESULTS AREAS 

1. Safer Streets – Safe communities, reduced crime, positive opportunities, and alternate

pathways.

2. Growing Economy – Growing and supporting local businesses, workforce development,
business recruitment and retention, and an environment for innovation.

3. Stronger Neighborhoods – Neighborhood leadership, connected communities, healthy
residential markets, and rapid re-housing.

4. Smarter Students, Stronger Families – Parents and first teachers, community support, and

community health.

5. High Performing Government – Data-driven decision making, sound operations, outstanding

customer service, resource management, and exceptional talent.

6. Innovation Fund – Something different – processes, services, technologies, ideas.  Shifting the

way government operates.

DETAILS 

Description: (What is the service/program? How will it be provided? What innovation & sustainability practice does this leverage? 
What difference does this offer make and how will we know? Make a compelling case for your offer.) 

The Chattanooga Zoo is committed to engaging and inspiring our community, and strives to include 

all citizens of our community regardless of race, age, or ability. With the creation of the new 

Community Engagement Initiative, the Zoo is developing opportunities for a more comprehensive and 

focused effort to reach a broader and more diverse audience. Each piece of the Community 

Engagement Initiative is centered on a cornerstone of inclusion for all people. The established 

programs associated with this initiative are: 

 The Senior Safari Outreach program; focused on bringing the wild to our community’s senior

population

 Dreamnight; a series of nights throughout the year focusing on opening the zoo after hours to

special needs children and their families to provide a unique opportunity to engage at the zoo

without other distractions

 Camp Zoo-A-Bility; for children with special needs to attend a summer camp where they

receive more personalized care and attention



City of Chattanooga 
FY15 Offers 

Chattanooga Zoo 2 

 GoFest!; festival for disability awareness as well resources awareness for people with a

disability.

One new program planned for 2014 is the Latino Family Festival day, to celebrate this growing 

population in our community.    

The Program 

Senior Safari Outreach 

The Zoo has continued offering senior programs for over two decades.  Currently, the zoo visits 16 

senior health and retirement centers each month taking animals, biofacts, and enthusiastic educators to 

have up-close and personal animal encounters with individuals who cannot visit the Zoo for a variety 

of reasons.  

One of the goals of the Chattanooga Zoo Community Engagement Initiative is to expand this 

program, and to provide the program to any interested Chattanooga senior facilities or groups. There 

is a need to provide more programs, as evidenced by the number of programs the zoo has had to turn 

down because of limited resources. The zoo would like to provide these programs at no cost to the 

seniors, so that lack of funding does not prohibit each and every senior in Chattanooga from equal 

access to these outreach programs offered by the Chattanooga Zoo.  

Though there are no specific outcomes in the BFO documents including senior citizens, the zoo feels 

that this population is important to educate and mold into smarter students and members of our 

community. According to Chattanooga.com (chattanooga.com/demographics.aspx), 15.2% of the 

Chattanooga population is 65 years or older.  The zoo feels like this is an important underserved 

audience which can be educated and enjoy these animal programs. 

Dreamnight 

The Chattanooga Zoo’s Dreamnight events have continued serve the area’s special needs population 

for over 10 years. Dreamnight is a time when the zoo is opened to the special needs community of 

Chattanooga at no charge to enjoy the zoo without the normal crowd of the day.  There are three (3) 

Dreamnights hosted throughout the year.  During the first event in June, the zoo is open after hours 

for special needs children and adults as well as their families.  This event is 100% free for these 

guests, and includes pizza for dinner, games, face painting, goodie bags, and of course balloons!  

The second Dreamnight is a special night during our Boo in the Zoo event where these same families 

can participate in the Boo in the Zoo activities without the normal large crowds that come for the Boo 

in the Zoo nights. Participants are again provided dinner, games, and entertainment. The final 

Dreamnight is hosted during our Holiday Lights event so families can enjoy the lights at the zoo, 

again, at no charge. Unum is a corporate sponsor for the zoo’s summer Dreamnight, providing both 

funds and volunteers for this event.   

Additionally, the zoo hosts 5-6 dances/events for the City of Chattanooga’s Therapeutic Recreation 

department to provide a venue for special needs children to attend these events. 

Camp Zoo-A-Bility 

Annually, the Zoo hosts Camp Zoo-A-Bility for the City of Chattanooga’s Therapeutic Recreation 

department. This camp is specifically designed to provide games, activities, learning opportunities and 
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engaging interactions to children with special needs. The zoo provides the facilities for this camp, as 

well as staff to manage snacks, materials, and games. The camp is operationally managed and staffed 

by the Therapeutic Recreation department.   

Additionally, the zoo works with other partners such as the Chattanooga Room at the Inn, and Big 

Brothers Big Sisters to provide 10 scholarships to local youth to attend zoo camp. 

GoFest! 

Since 2008 the Chattanooga Zoo has partnered with the City of Chattanooga Mayor’s Office to host 

GoFest!, a festival promoting the awareness of disabilities for Chattanooga residents. During this 

event, the zoo is opened to all patrons at no charge, and guests can visit numerous booths, vendors, or 

tables to learn about disabilities, and community resources for those with disabilities.   

Future Expansion 

This year, the zoo’s Community Engagement Initiative will also include a Latino Family Festival, 

geared at engaging and celebrating Chattanooga’s Latino population. This event will include 

providing guests with Spanish language maps, translators to speak with non-English speaking guests 

about the Chattanooga Zoo, its animals, and conservation.  Local Latino businesses and organizations 

will have the opportunity to participate in the event by setting up booths to educate guests on their 

services.  There has been a noticeable increase in the number of Latino visitors to the zoo, and the 

Chattanooga community in the last few years, and providing a more welcoming and inclusive visit is 

one of the goals of the Community Engagement Initiative. 

Program Outcomes 

Outcomes related to the initiative described above include; 

 healthier seniors, special needs citizens, and all underserved populations touched by the zoo’s

engagement initiative

 increased awareness of program offered by the Chattanooga Zoo for the community at little, or

no cost

 increased diversity of audiences served by Chattanooga Zoo

We will reach these outcomes by: 

 Strengthening and increasing the breadth and reach of both senior and special needs

programming provided to Chattanooga citizens by increasing the number of programs and

activities available from Chattanooga Zoo

 Creating a strategic plan that addresses both senior and special needs audiences. The plan will

include goals for the increase in numbers of participants educated and programs performed as

well as the creation of partners and outcomes to determine if programs make a difference in

behaviors or overall health as determined by caregivers.

 Develop a partnership with Youth and Family Development department to provide visits to

City senior centers that augments and enhances their current programming and uses their

resources to disseminate information about available programs from the zoo.

Research Data 

Why are these programs important for Chattanooga? According to the Center for Disease Control 

(CDC) pets can decrease your Blood pressure Cholesterol levels Triglyceride levels, and feelings of 
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loneliness. 

Providing access to the zoo for these underserved populations can not only lead to greater engagement 

in the zoo and in Chattanooga by these populations, but there is also research which proves that 

programs centered around animal interaction can lead to better health and wellbeing. In general, the 

CDC reports that pets can increase your opportunities for exercise and outdoor activities as well as 

opportunities for socialization. According to Dr. Andrew Weil, world-renowned leader and pioneer in 

the field of integrative medicine, “One of the most fundamental advantages of animal assisted therapy 

over other therapeutic modalities is that it provides the patient a much-needed opportunity to give 

affection as well as receive it. It is this reciprocity - rare among medical therapies - that makes AAT 

[Animal Assisted Therapy] a unique, and valuable route to healing." 

According to an article on Parenthood.com, How Animals Help Children with Special Needs,  “Kids 

and animals are natural companions. For children with disabilities, that companionship can also 

include invaluable physical and emotional therapy. Whether it’s strengthening muscles through 

horseback riding, feeling motivated to improve while swimming with dolphins or gaining confidence 

with the help and companionship of a service dog, kids with disabilities can benefit from many 

different kinds of animals.” 

City of Chattanooga Support 

The City of Chattanooga should support the Community Engagement Initiative of the Chattanooga 

Zoo because of the impact these programs have on Chattanooga as a community.  The programs 

described above all offer unique and innovative ways to engage underserved populations of the 

Chattanooga community to facilitate learning opportunities that help create smarter students, 

stronger families, and build stronger neighborhoods as well as continuing to grow the local 

economy. By providing funding for this initiative, it allows the Chattanooga Zoo to continue offering 

these programs and build upon the base of inclusion that has been started, to engage underserved 

populations.  

Funding in the amount of $36,150 from the City of Chattanooga for these programs will be used for 

the following purposes: 

 Senior Safari Program:  Underwrite 60 senior programs- $2,400

 Dreamnight:  Provide funding for the zoo’s Dreamnight Boo and Dreamnight Holiday Lights

for dinner and entertainment costs in the amount $15,500

 Camp Zoo-A-Bility: Underwrite facility costs in the amount of $15,750

 Latino Family Festival:  Provide funding for entertainment, supplies, facility costs, and

assessment costs- $2,500

Identify Which Desired Outcomes This Offer Impacts: 

1. Healthier and smarter seniors, special needs citizens, and other underserved groups.

2. Increased programs for undeserved groups.

3. Building stronger families in these underserved groups.

http://www.parenthood.com/article-topics/how_animals_help_children_with_special_needs.html/page/1
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BUDGET REQUEST

Summary:  (Please complete based on information contained in Attachment F) 

Offer Name 
Personnel Costs 

(including Benefits) Operating Costs Total Request 
 FTEs 

required 
Chattanooga Zoo: 
Community 
Engagement Initiative $11,790 $55,565 $36,150 N/A 

Capital Budget Impact?   Yes  X  No     $Amount 

Financial Offsets: (Please list other revenues associated with the specific program for which funding is requested) 

Name Amount 

Unum $6,000 

PERFORMANCE DATA

Measurement 1: 

An increase in the number of individuals utilizing the programs for underserved populations at the zoo.  Greater 
involvement leads to greater engagement through participation in these programs.  A participant satisfaction survey would 
also be developed and administered to each of the new and existing programs to determine effectiveness, changes needed, 
level of engagement, etc.   

An increase in participant satisfaction as well as participant growth would indicate higher levels of community engagement 
in these programs, stimulating increased resources (through partner growth- see measurement 2) for these underserved 
populations.  Additionally, by creating more engaged citizens in these underserved populations the zoo can provide 
increased opportunities for better overall health and wellbeing, as evidenced by the research regarding animal therapy and 
interactions with those populations. 

Historical Comparison Data? 

Program Attendance Data 

Seniors programs: 2013- 182 
     2012- 202 
     2011- 89 

Dreamnight:  2013- 2,180 
  2012- 2,100 
  2011- 700 

Camp Zoo-A-Bility: 2013- 57 
     2012- 48 
     2011- 58 

GoFest!: 2013- 1,500 
       2012- 8,500 



City of Chattanooga 
FY15 Offers 

Chattanooga Zoo 6 

       2011- 8,000 

Latino Family Festival: No data available 

Measurement 2: 

Identify and establish new partnerships with organizations that can provide increased resources for existing programs, and 
create new programs.  The measurement would be the actual increase in the number of partnerships and programs.  

Historical Comparison Data? 

Current Partnerships: 

 Therapeutic Recreation

 LaPaz 

 Big Brothers Big Sisters

 Chattanooga Room at the Inn

Measurement 3: 

Collaborate and develop programs to deliver to City funded senior centers in order to augment and enhance current 
programming used at those facilities. 

Historical Comparison Data? 

None 

Return on Investment: 

How do citizens benefit?       Local citizens benefit from these programs by becoming more engaged with 

their communities.  There is also a correlation between the initiative described above, and wellbeing through 

recreation and contact with animals.   

Does this activity leverage other financial resources? Unum Insurance Group provides funding to assist 

with the summer Dreamnight.  Coca-Cola also assists by giving product donations, and lastly, Papa John’s 

pizza provides their product at a discounted rate, and has also donated pizzas for the Dreamnight events. 

How does this activity decrease costs over time for the City?       The partnership between the City and 

Friends of the Zoo has already proven to be a tremendous cost savings to the City by removing the cost of 

personnel and benefits. By providing these programs through the Zoo, existing resources such as staff, 

vehicles, program materials, etc. will be utilized, eliminating the need to create new positions and funding.   

How can this program become sustainable without City funding?  By creating programs that are more 
engaging and serve larger segments of the targeted audiences, the programs will become more 
attractive to outside funders such as foundations and corporations. Additionally, the zoo currently has 
the facilities needed to build and maintain these programs. Efforts will be made to secure sponsorships 
for the programs to reduce the need for City funding. 



Attachment F: Budget Format Agency Name:

Account Category Actual FY 2011 Actual FY 2012 Actual FY 2013 Budget FY 2014 Request FY 2015
Incr (Decr) Request 

vs. FY 14 Budget

% Change Request 

vs FY 14 Budget

REVENUES

Contributions

 Individuals/Private -$                      N/A

 Corporate/Organizations/Churches 5,000$              5,000$               5,695$               5,695$                 6,000$                   305$                     5.4%

Fees/Grants from Governmental Agencies

  Federal -$                      N/A

  State -$                      N/A

 Hamilton County -$                      N/A

 City of Chattanooga -$                      N/A

 Other Cities (Please list) -$                      N/A

United Way 

  Foundations (including grants) -$                      N/A

  Gross Proceeds Special Events -$                      N/A

  Other UWs/Federations -$                      N/A

  CFC/Designations received thru UWGC -$                      N/A

 UWGC Program Allocation -$                      N/A

 UWGC Special Funding -$                      N/A

Membership Dues -$                      N/A

Program Income -$                      N/A

Governmental Insurance -$                      N/A

Private Insurance -$                      N/A

Contracted Services -$                      N/A

Fee for Services -$                      N/A

Other Program Income -$                      N/A

Sales to Public -$                      N/A

Investment Income -$                      N/A

Miscellaneous -$                      N/A

Other Revenues (Please list separately  any major item) -$                      N/A

Transfers in from other internal  budgets -$                      N/A

Income from Previous Year -$                      N/A
TOTAL REVENUES 5,000$              5,000$               5,695$               5,695$                 6,000$                   305$                     5.4%

OPERATIONS

Personnel Expenses

Salaries 10,578$             10,791$             11,190$             11,190$               11,790$                 600$                     5.4%

Fringe Benefits -$                      N/A

Employee Health -$                      N/A

Pension/Retirement -$                      N/A

Payroll Taxes, etc. -$                      N/A

Other (unemployment, life insurance, etc) -$                      N/A
Total Personnel Expenses 10,578$             10,791$             11,190$             11,190$               11,790$                 600$                     5.4%

CITY OF CHATTANOOGA

 FY 2015 Agency Funding Financial Form

Chattanooga Zoo
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OPERATING EXPENSES

Administration

Professional Fee & Contract service -$                      N/A

Utilities -$                      N/A

Other -$                      N/A

Rent -$                      N/A

Travel/Transportation 445$                   1,010$               910$                   960$                    960$                       -$                      0.0%

Insurance (not employee health) -$                      N/A

Materials & Supplies 721$                   1,636$               1,474$               1,555$                 1,555$                   (0)$                        0.0%

Telephone, Fax, ISP -$                      N/A

Postage and Shipping -$                      N/A

Occupancy/Building/Utilities -$                      N/A

Equipment Rental and Maintenance (including contracts) -$                      N/A

Outside Printing, Art Work, etc. -$                      N/A

Conferences, Conventions, etc. -$                      N/A

Special Assistance to Individuals -$                      N/A

National Dues/Support Payments -$                      N/A

Organization Dues (other than above) -$                      N/A

Awards and Grants -$                      N/A

Fund Raising/Self-Support Activities -$                      N/A

Miscellaneous -$                      N/A

Equipment Purchases (incl. capital expenses) -$                      N/A

Depreciation -$                      N/A

Other Expenses (Please list separately  any major item) -$                      N/A

Dreamnight* 2011 and 2012 figures are estimates 20,000$             25,000$             28,600$             28,600$               28,600$                 -$                      0.0%

Camp Zoo-A-Bility 15,950$             15,950$             15,950$             15,950$               15,950$                 -$                      0.0%

GoFest! 4,000$              4,000$               4,000$               4,000$                 4,000$                   -$                      0.0%

Latino Family Festival N/A N/A N/A N/A 4,500$                   #VALUE! N/A

Operating Expenses Total 41,116$             47,596$             50,934$             51,065$               55,565$                 #VALUE! N/A

TOTAL OPERATIONS 51,694$             58,387$             62,124$             62,255$               67,355$                 #VALUE! N/A

REVENUE OVER/ (UNDER) OPERATIONS (46,694)$            (53,387)$            (56,429)$            (56,560)$             (61,355)$              #VALUE! N/A
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OFFERSUMMARY

Offer Name: Family Resource Center

Lead Agency: La Paz Chattanooga 

Collaborating City Department(s): OMA

Contact Name: Stacy Johnson

Primary Results Area: Smarter Students and Stronger Families

Offer Cost (Funding Request): $60,000

RESULTS AREAS

1. Safer Streets – Safe communities, reduced crime, positive opportunities, and alternate
pathways.

2. Growing Economy – Growing and supporting local businesses, workforce development,
business recruitment and retention, and an environment for innovation.

3. Stronger Neighborhoods – Neighborhood leadership, connected communities, healthy
residential markets, and rapid re-housing.

4. Smarter Students, Stronger Families – Parents and first teachers, community support, and
community health.

5. High Performing Government – Data-driven decision making, sound operations, outstanding
customer service, resource management, and exceptional talent.

6. Innovation Fund – Something different – processes, services, technologies, ideas.  Shifting the
way government operates.

DETAILS

Description: (What is the service/program? How will it be provided? What innovation & sustainability practice does this 
leverage? What difference does this offer make and how will we know? Make a compelling case for your offer.)

What is the service/program? According to the U.S. Census Bureau, Latinos will make up 15 percent of Chattanooga’s total 
population by the year 2020. This is substantial when considering that in 1990, the number of Latinos living in Hamilton County 
didn’t represent even a single percent of the total population. And it is a very young demographic, as more than 70 percent of 
Latinos in Tennessee are under the age of 35. Latino growth is reflected widely across the city. For example, the number of Latino
school children enrolled in HCDE schools has more than quadrupled in the past decade alone. By and large, most Latinos in 
Chattanooga are members of young families and their needs are related to the life stages within that general age bracket.

To meet the needs of this growing Latino demographic, The Office of Multicultural Affairs and La Paz Chattanooga wish to 
establish the area’s first Family Resource Center (FRC) with a focus on Latino families in the City of Chattanooga. The aim of 
the FRC is to increase the breadth of La Paz general client service outreach through the work of highly trained interns, volunteers
and client leaders. This will allow paid staff to focus on in-depth case management services, which require more specialized 
attention. La Paz is a community-based source of information and training on domestic violence prevention, prenatal care and 
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counseling, parental engagement education, and nutrition counseling.

La Paz also aims to compile the region’s most comprehensive Latino Resource Guide—print and digital editions. This guide will
be made available to clients, as well as area service providers. 

La Paz is the most trusted resource for the Latino community, but the needs of this growing demographic far outweigh the 
current capacity of the organization. Developing leaders – trained by staff – amongst clients, interns, volunteers and the 
community will help us deliver holistic services and maximize capacity. Our goal is to train and equip professionals to work and 
advocate on behalf of the Latino population. The FRC staff will become ambassadors of La Paz services, equipped with culturally 
and linguistically appropriate skills, to not only work at the center, but in other Chattanooga organizations, thus expanding La 
Paz’s reach addressing the needs of the area Latino population.

How will it be provided? City support of this project will allow La Paz Client Services Department at La Paz to develop the 
FRC in the heart of the Highland Park Neighborhood, which is home to the City’s most densely populated Latino community. 
The FRC will implement a volunteer/internship program to include orientation, training and evaluation. La Paz will establish 
partnerships with local colleges and universities in the spring of 2014. La Paz staff will train and educate volunteers, interns 
and client leaders throughout the program year and focus on education and detailed case management. A grand opening of the
FRC will occur in the summer and the Latino Resource Guide will be developed by the end of the program year. Housed within 
the FRC will be multiple technology stations, so FRC staff and clients can access online services and resources. 

What innovation & sustainability practice does this leverage? The Family Resource Center is innovative in that it 
addresses an immediate Chattanooga need; the education, welfare and health needs of Latino families. The project will provide
referral, support and case management services to people who need it the most for job and/or educational advancement. 

What difference does this offer make and how will we know? While the Latino presence across Chattanooga has 
demonstrated evident needs, La Paz Chattanooga is the only organization whose mission and services are dedicated wholly to 
the Latino population. The La Paz staff is bilingual, multicultural and skilled at meeting the needs of the diverse Latino 
community. We will know the success of the program by measuring the desired outcomes.

Inputs Outputs Service Quality/Efficiency Outcomes
Highland Park Facility 
(La Paz)

Community partners 
and resource agencies

Volunteers and Interns

FRC Computer 
workstations

Graphic Designer for 
Resource Guide

Number of clients accessing the 
expanded services of the FRC

Memoranda of Agreement from 
community partners and 
resource agencies

Number of volunteers and 
interns trained to provide 
services

Number of computer stations 
and number of clients accessing 

Completed resource guide; 
distributed to community and 
housed online

Increase in satisfaction with 
services and engagement due 
to expanded staffing from 
volunteers and interns

Increase in knowledge of 
culture competency as well as
community resources

500 clients will access FRC 
services during FY 2015

450 clients will connect to 
and use a referral agency or
program as a result of the 
FRC

20 Volunteers will 
complete training and 
provide service

The Resource Guide will be 
distributed to 500 clients

The online Resource Guide 
will get at least 2000 hits 
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Client Consult – Health 
and Wellness

Client Consult – 
Domestic Violence

Number of client consultations 
on health and wellness  
(prenatal, nutrition, etc). 

Number of client consultations 
on domestic violence (safety 
plan, preventative education, 
etc) 

Increase in knowledge of 
health and wellness, 
resources and lifestyle habits

Increase in knowledge of 
available resources, domestic 
violence prevention

during FY 2015

35 one on one client 
consultations with La Paz’s 
Community Health Worker

20 one on one client 
consultations with La Paz’s 
Client Services Director

Make a compelling case for your offer. The growth of the Latino community in our area is incredible. The 1990 US Census 
showed less than 1 percent of the total Hamilton County population was made up of Latinos. Estimates for the year 2020 have 
that number approaching 12 percent in Hamilton County and 15 percent in the city of Chattanooga. In the last decade alone, the 
Hamilton County Department of Education has seen a 400% increase in the number of enrolled Latino students. Through events 
and individual services, La Paz works with 4,000 clients per year, and as the population grows our organization will be called on 
to provide services and connect clients to appropriate service providers.

Identify Which Desired Outcomes This Offer Impacts: 

1. More kids graduating high school college and career ready

2. More pregnant women accessing prenatal care

3. Decrease chronic absenteeism

4. Fewer kids dropping out of school

5. More parental involvement

6. Increase reading proficiency for children and adults

7. Increase access to healthy food
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CITY OF CHATTANOOGA
 FY 2015 Agency - Promotoras Program Funding Financial Form

Account Category  Actual FY 2011 Actual FY 2012 Actual FY 2013 Budget FY 2014 Request FY 2015
REVENUES
Contributions  $    -  N/A

  Individuals/Private  $    -  N/A
  Corporate/Organizations/Churches  $    18,000  $    18,000 N/A

Fees/Grants from Governmental Agencies
  Federal  $    -  N/A
  State  $    -  N/A

  Hamilton County  $    -  N/A
  City of Chattanooga  $    60,000  $    60,000 N/A
  Other Cities (Please list)  $    -  N/A

United Way 
  Foundations (including grants)  $    -  N/A
  Gross Proceeds Special Events  $    -  N/A
  Other UWs/Federations  $    -  N/A
  CFC/Designations received thru UWGC  $    -  N/A
  UWGC Program Allocation  $    -  N/A
  UWGC Special Funding  $    -  N/A

Membership Dues  $    -  N/A
Program Income  $    -  N/A
Governmental Insurance  $    -  N/A
Private Insurance  $    -  N/A
Contracted Services  $    -  N/A
Fee for Services  $    -  N/A
Other Program Income - Events  $    -  N/A
Sales to Public  $    -  N/A
Investment Income  $    -  N/A
Miscellaneous  $    -  N/A
Other Revenues (Please list separately  any major item)  $    -  N/A

  Foundations/Grants Local  $    15,000  $    15,000 N/A
Transfers in from other internal  budgets  $    -  N/A
Income from Previous Year  $    -  N/A
TOTAL REVENUES   $    93,000  $    93,000 N/A

OPERATIONS
Personnel Expenses
Salaries  $    67,500  $    67,500 N/A

Incr (Decr) Request 
vs. FY 14 Budget

% Change Request 
vs FY 14 Budget
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Fringe Benefits  $    -  N/A
Employee Health  $    -  N/A
Pension/Retirement  $    -  N/A
Payroll Taxes, etc.  $    7,500  $    7,500 N/A
Other (unemployment, life insurance, etc)  $    -  N/A
Total Personnel Expenses  $    75,000  $    75,000 N/A

OPERATING EXPENSES
Administration
Professional Fee & Contract service  $    -  N/A
Utilities  $    900  $    900 N/A
Other  $    -  N/A
Rent  $    4,800  $    4,800 N/A
Travel/Transportation  $    -  N/A
Insurance (not employee health)  $    -  N/A
Program Materials & Supplies  $    3,000  $    3,000 N/A
Telephone, Fax, ISP  $    1,000  $    1,000 N/A
Postage and Shipping  $    -  N/A
Occupancy/Building/Utilities  $    -  N/A
Equipment Rental and Maintenance (including contracts)  $    -  N/A
Outside Printing, Art Work, etc.  $    6,500 ### N/A
Conferences, Conventions, etc.  $    -  N/A
Special Assistance to Individuals  $    -  N/A
National Dues/Support Payments  $    -  N/A
Organization Dues (other than above)  $    -  N/A
Awards and Grants  $    -  N/A
Fund Raising/Self-Support Activities/Marketing  $    1,500  $    1,500 N/A
Miscellaneous  $    -  N/A
Equipment Purchases (incl. capital expenses)  $    -  N/A
Depreciation  $    -  N/A
Other Expenses (Please list separately  any major item)  $    -  N/A

 $    -  N/A
Operating Expenses Total  $    17,700  $    17,700 N/A

TOTAL OPERATIONS  $    92,700  $    92,700 N/A

REVENUE OVER/ (UNDER) OPERATIONS  $    300  $    300 N/A

**La Paz FY is January - December. 
2014 and 2015 FY is City FY and includes the funding request. 
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OFFER SUMMARY 

Offer Name: Library Services 

Offer Number:  1 
Department 
Offer Rank:      1    

Lead 
Department: Chattanooga Public Library Collaboration: Y __X__     N_____ 

Administrator: Corinne M. Hill, Director 

Offer Cost: $6,183,831.00 Primary Results Area: Smarter Students, Stronger Families 

RESULTS AREA

1. Safer Streets – Safe communities, reduced crime, positive opportunities, and alternate
pathways.

2. Growing Economy – Growing and supporting local businesses, workforce development,
business recruitment and retention, and an environment for innovation.

3. Stronger Neighborhoods – Neighborhood leadership, connected communities, healthy
residential markets, and rapid rehousing.

4. Smarter Students, Stronger Families – Parents and first teachers, community support, and
community health.

5. High Performing Government – Data-driven decision making, sound operations, outstanding
customer service, resource management, and exceptional talent.

6. Innovation Fund – Something different – processes, services, technologies, ideas.  Shifting the
way government operates.

DETAILS 

Description: 

Chattanooga Public Library’s mission is to be the community's catalyst for lifelong learning. 
The library accomplishes this mission by delivering services in four locations to 170,000 people 
including 35,000 children.  An overview of the services the library delivers includes but is not 
limited to: 

• public access to books, media, and electronic resources.
• access to public computers, the internet, and emerging technologies.
• access to spaces, both digital and physical, that act as a platform for the creation and

sharing of knowledge.
• popular public programming: children’s storytimes, codecamps and STEM learning

initiatives, author talks, community hackathons and other events.

Human Resources 
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The strategic plan adopted by the board of trustees in 2012 has allowed library administration to 
assign priority levels to our varied services and their delivery mechanisms.  The library’s 
strategic plan clearly identifies four areas of focus: Responsive Collections, Customer Access, 
Digital Initiatives, and Transformation.  Moving forward in 2014, the library has also identified 
target audiences for service improvement and enhancement.  Parents, families, and youth are 
our most steadfast and consistent users, and they have been identified as a top priority.  The 
ways we will reach this audience touch on each of the four points of our strategic plan.  First, the 
library has identified a need to build larger, stronger book collections for this population that 
depends so heavily on us.  Second, because 80% of the material circulating at the South 
Chattanooga library was youth related, we pivoted and created a new customer access strategy 
for the facility: it is now predominantly a children’s library.  Third, on our 2nd floor at the 
downtown location, we’ve been hosting code camps and hackathons, and our talented librarians 
are developing new digital literacy curricula for the children and teens that visit every day.  This 
floor is currently in the process of being completely redesigned as a youth services floor catering 
to 21st century learning styles.  Finally, the library is undergoing an organizational transformation 
that includes the addition of a new role, the Learning Strategist.  The Learning Strategist is a 
specialist who will design and deliver new services for youth just as quickly as they are identified. 

In addition to maintaining and augmenting all of the core services we are currently providing, we 
would like to offer a program called Anytime:Library.  With the Anytime:Library program, we will 
be able to put a library card in the hands of every child in the Hamilton County public schools.  
Anytime:Library is based on a successful program being delivered by Nashville Public Library 
called Limitless Libraries.  http://www.limitlesslibraries.org.  One integral part of Anytime:Library 
is an investment in our youth nonfiction and homework-help collections.  We wish to transition 
away from print toward more electronic formats, which ultimately means more children will have 
access to more content in more places.  

We also plan to implement a parent education initiative by the Public Library Association (PLA) 
and the Association for Library Service to Children (ALSC) called Every Child Ready to Read 
(ECRR) which incorporates simple practices, based on research, to help parents and other 
caregivers develop early literacy skills in children from birth to age 
five.  http://www.everychildreadytoread.org.   

We also propose re-registration of all Chattanoogans for new library cards as part of a 
rebranding of the library that reflect the energy of the transformation it has undergone in the last 
two years.  With a clean patron database to match our clean materials database we will be more 
efficient, and we will reach more children, parents and families. 

We also would like to continue training we’ve already begun for library staff.  The public library 
has been through substantial cultural change, and we need to support the folks who have 
created that change at all levels across the institution.  The library would like to offer key staff 
growth opportunities through Sandler training on topics like customer service, executive 
coaching, management and leadership training, work/life balance tailored specifically to women 
and men, change management, strategic thinking, and public speaking.  The Friends of the 
Library have pledged to match this investment in staff development as well. 

Human Resources 

http://www.limitlesslibraries.org/
http://www.everychildreadytoread.org/
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The library’s partnership with DIT is incredibly valuable; we work together closely on many 
network related initiatives.  In the coming year, we propose partnering with DIT to continue the 
rollout of gigabit wireless internet access in all of the library locations.  Gigabit wireless access 
activates our neighborhood library buildings as crucial hubs that bridge the digital divide in 
Chattanooga’s information ecosystem.  In addition, we wish to continue our partnership with DIT 
as we stabilize and upgrade the network in our downtown facility. 

The library can also partner with Youth and Family Development. Every summer, the 
Chattanooga Public Library provides a diverse suite of programs and activities for our community 
as part of our Summer Learning Program.  Those programs focus broadly on literacy and 
enrichment for youth and families.  A partnership with the Youth and Family Development 
department will allow the library to bring this programming to a larger, more diverse youth 
audience than we would be able to reach on our own.  For the Youth and Family Development 
department, this partnership represents an opportunity to partner with an agency with expertise 
and experience in the new programming areas they wish to address.  A few of the programs the 
library offers for youth and family are: Baby bounce, toddler time, preschool storytime, adventure 
club, Lego club, crafts for kids, sensory storytime and more. 

The library’s work has not been limited only to the activities described above.  A full picture of the 
significant innovations and improvements that have been implemented in the last year can only 
be achieved by reading all three of our budget offers.  Despite 30 years of neglect, the public 
library has demonstrated and proven with countless concrete examples that change and 
innovation is possible in Chattanooga.  That change has largely been driven by a 14,000 square 
foot space on the 4th Floor with no windows, fluorescent lighting, acoustic challenges, and all of 
the delightful ambience of an abandoned factory.  In our other offers, we ask for new and 
continued funding for key 4th Floor positions working with digital services and open government 
data, as well as RFID conversion, and other new programs.  Dividing what we see as a holistic 
transformation of a complex library system into three distinct offers was a challenging exercise 
for us, so we would encourage analysts to consider our offers as a whole as well as individually. 

Identify Which Desired Outcomes from Request for Offer(s) that this Offer Impacts:: 

1. More parental involvement.
2. Increase reading proficiency for children and adults.
3. More kids computer coding.

Human Resources 
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BUDGET REQUEST

Summary:  (Please complete based on Dept. Operating Detail and Dept. Personnel Detail Forms) 

Department 
Personnel Cost 

(including Benefits) Operations Total Request 
%  of 
offer 

 FTEs 
required 

Library 4,654,758.00 1,900,157.00  6,554,915.00 99% 80.5 
YFD 50,000.00   50,000.00 1% 

Total  $     4,654,758.00      $   1,950,157.00        $  6,604,915.00    100% 80.5 

Capital Budget Impact?   Yes      X No     $Amount 

*Amounts MUST agree with collaborating Department totals for this offer 

Financial Offsets: (Please list any Revenue e.g. golf course revenue, Grants, Private/Corporate Contributions, Etc.) 
Name Amount 
Library Revenue    $226,800.00 
Endowment Interest  92,584.00 
State General Library Services Grant  48,700.00 
E-Rate reimbursement   53,000.00 

Measurement 1: 10% Increase in Total Circulation 

FY2012 FY2013 FY2014 FY2015 Target 
709,286 696,129 870,161 957,177 

Measurement 2: 30% Youth Programming Increase 

FY2012 FY2013 FY2014 FY2015 Target 
   41,102   41,277  47,468 59,335 

 Measurement 3:  15% Door Count Annual Increase 

FY2012 FY2013 FY2014 FY2015 Target 
N/A 369,807 425,278 480,749 

Human Resources 
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Return on Investment: 

Six states have generated a report on economic impact of public libraries.  The results of this report show 
that, on average, every dollar invested in a public library results in $5.17 of economic 
activity.  https://www.tsl.texas.gov/roi  

Human Resources 

https://www.tsl.texas.gov/roi
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OFFER SUMMARY 

Offer Name: Administration & Personnel-YFD Human Services 

Offer Number:  1 

Department 
Offer Rank:    1 of 7      

Lead 
Department: 

Youth & Family Development-Human 
Services Collaboration: Y ____     N___X _ 

Administrator: Lurone Jennings, Sr. 

Offer Cost: $1,824,816.00 Primary Results Area: Smarter Students, Stronger Families 

RESULTS AREA

1. Safer Streets – Safe communities, reduced crime, positive opportunities, and alternate
pathways.

2. Growing Economy – Growing and supporting local businesses, workforce development,
business recruitment and retention, and an environment for innovation.

3. Stronger Neighborhoods – Neighborhood leadership, connected communities, healthy

residential markets, and rapid rehousing.

4. Smarter Students, Stronger Families – Parents and first teachers, community support, and

community health.

5. High Performing Government – Data-driven decision making, sound operations, outstanding

customer service, resource management, and exceptional talent.

6. Innovation Fund – Something different – processes, services, technologies, ideas.  Shifting the
way government operates.

DETAILS 

Description: (What is the service/program? How will it be provided? What 
innovation & sustainability practice does this leverage? What difference does this offer 
make and how will we know? Make a compelling case for your offer 

The Department of Youth & Family Development receives and disburses  federal and 
state grants to service income eligible citizens in Chattanooga. Donations from United 
Way programs are also distributed through the department.  The Department’s 
mission is to provide an excellent variety of educational, recreational, career, 
development, and social service opportunities to enhance the individual’s quality of 
life through exceptional programs in attractive, safe, and well-maintained facilities. 

Administrative support is required by the grantors for all service aspects to deliver 
required and described contracted grant services in a timely, cost effective and 
efficient manner.  Personnel support to adhere to contract services currently involves 
five (5) staff persons that include an Administrator, Deputy Administrator, Executive 



City of Chattanooga 
FY15 Offers 

Youth & Family Development 2 

Assistant, Fiscal Analyst, Senior Accountant, and Payroll Clerk. One (1) Utility Worker 
and one (1) Janitor support building maintenance. 

Additional staff is required for the proposed enhanced operation of services that 
would include a full time receptionist, a full time crew worker, and half of the 
Administrator’s salary and benefits.  Inclusion of these salaries and benefits increase 
the administrative positions by 2.5 staff persons. An increase is requested in 
personnel expenses to cover the staffing increase of 2.5 additional positions.  The 
Administrator’s salary and benefits were not included in FY14 budget.  The present 
Executive Assistant was transferred from another department.  The salary and 
benefits of the current Executive Assistant is higher than the previous Executive 
Assistant’s salary.  The FY14 budget did not include the increase in the Executive 
Assistant’s position. 

Some of the present positions in the Child Care Center that are not grant funded 
receive less than minimum wage.  An increase in personnel expenses allows those 
persons not receiving minimum wage to meet  labor law requirements.  Increased 
enrollment in the Child Care Center will necessitate employment of additional 
teachers and teacher assistants to meet state student-teacher ratio requirements. 

The Community Partnership programs, ReStart and I.AM.Ready, will require additional 
maintenance, supplies and security.  Hours of building operations will be extended 
two hours to 8:00p.m. during the week.  Activities will periodically be held on 
weekends. 

A requested increase in other line item expenses is also due to extended weekday 
hours of operation and opening of facility on some weekends for community events. 
Extended use of building will increase utilities, supplies and security spending.  More 
citizens will have access to services for longer periods of time. 

The current facility is 70+ years old.  There have not been any upgrades or renovations 
done in the facility for the past 20 years.  The new focus of YFD-Human Services 
includes two computer learning labs for children and adults. The Child Care Center will 
receive improvements to increase enrollment and improve learning standards for 
children. Renovations and maintenance of the labs and improvements in child center 
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services  is included in the requested FY15 budget increase. 

Each program and fund sources requires an application/operational plan or request 
for funds.  Requirements of the fund sources include budgets, budget revisions, 
reimbursement submittals, auditing and monitoring assistance, customer surveys, 
targeted points of delivery and mid- year and  end of year reporting.  Failure to meet 
federal and state performance measurements requires the Department to submit 
corrective action plans.  Continued non-compliance will result in funding reduction or 
elimination. Administrative staff is required to ensure all contract requirements are 
maintained and grantor inquiries are answered. 

Funding sources and community partnerships that filter through the Human Services 
division leverage dollars and activities that strengthen individuals and families. The 
services prevent crises, promote learning, provide a safe environment, improve 
literacy, increase parental involvement, provide volunteer opportunities, and  
promote physical activity and a healthy life style. Citizens aged from birth to Seniors 
can benefit from many of the services available through the Department of Youth & 
Family Development-Human Services division. 

An advisory board of 15 community representatives serves as a liaison to the citizens 
that have a stake in the services rendered.   Each city council district has an appointee 
that serves a three (3) year board term. Board members meet monthly to receive and 
approve reports and information on department activity.  The Advisory Board serves 
as an advocate for citizens receiving services. Federal funding mandates an Advisory 
Board. 

Federal funding supports Head Start and Early Head Start programming.  Current 
funding totals $8, 354, 986.00 and services 784 children at 14 different locations. 

State funding supports 1) Community Services Block Grant (CSBG) in the amount of 
$686, 400.00; 2) Low Income Home Energy Assistance Program (LIHEAP) in the 
amount of $1,971,835.00; 3) Foster Grandparent Program (FGP) in the amount of 
$407, 860.00;  4) Child Care Program in the amount of $429,00.00; 5) Emergency Food 
Assistance Program in the amount of $33, 543.00; 5) State Appropriation $22,500.00 
(unrestricted). 
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Donations for client support are received from Atlanta Gas & Light (AGL) in the 
amount of $35,000.00; United Way Project Warm Neighbors and Project Water Help 
amount depends upon public donation; Emergency Shelter and Food Program (ESFP) 
in the amount of $25,000.00 

A total of $11,971, 736.00 is leveraged for the citizens of Chattanooga through the 
operation of the Human Services division of Youth & Family Development. 

YFD-Human Services is a member of the Tennessee Association of Community Action 
(TACA). TACA strives to promote the causes of Tennesseans that are poor, elderly and 
disabled; to promote the interest and increase the effectiveness of member agencies 
and to encourage the professional development of individual members.  The 
association establishes and maintains local, state, and national partnerships that help 
customers of member agencies to achieve their full economic and social 
potential.  The promise of Community Action is to change people's lives, embody the 
spirit of hope, improve communities, and make America a better place to live. 

YFD-Human Services is a member of the Tennessee Conference on Social Welfare 
(TCSW). TCSW works collaboratively with a variety of public and private social service 
providers and advocates to support best practices and public awareness of important 
state, local, and federal policies that affect the most vulnerable citizens. 
 

In addition to historic programs administered by the Department.  Expansion of 
services will be offered to other agencies that have the vision of services to those 
most in need.  The building capacity at 501 W. 12th Street will accommodate three (3) 
local non-profits to service clients and maintain offices at the location.  Programming 
includes the I.A.M. Ready program and ReStart through The Partnership for Families, 
Children and Adults.  The Neema Resettlement Outreach is a volunteer organization to 
help serve the needs of refugees and immigrants. 

Identify Which Desired Outcomes from Request for Offer(s) that this Offer Impacts: 

This offer is for oversight of the programs in the attached supporting offers for Youth & Development-Human Services. 

Offer 2 Head Start/Early Head Start 

 More parental involvement

 Increase reading proficiency for children 

 Increase access to healthy food

 Decrease chronic absenteeism

 Fewer kids dropping out of school
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 More kids graduating high school college and career ready

 Increase citizen satisfaction with services 

Offer 3 Social Services 

 Increase awareness of existing employment opportunities 

 Increase access to healthy food

 Increase access to healthy food

 Increase citizen satisfaction with services 

Offer 4 Foster Grandparent Program 

 Decrease chronic absenteeism

 Fewer children dropping out of school

 Increase reading proficiency for children

 Increase citizen satisfaction with services 

Offer 5 Child Care 

 More parental involvement

 Increase reading proficiency for children 

 Increase access to healthy food

 Fewer children dropping out of school

 Increase citizen satisfaction with services 

Offer 6 Community Partnerships 

 More parental involvement

 Increase reading proficiency for children and adults 

 Increase citizen satisfaction with services 

BUDGET REQUEST 

Summary:  (Please complete based on Dept. Operating Detail and Dept. Personnel Detail Forms) 

Department 
Personnel Cost 

(including Benefits) Operations Request 
%  of 
offer 

 FTEs 
required 

YFD-Human Services $754,659.00 $590,157.00 $1,824,816.00 100% 10 

0% 

$754,659.00 $590,157.00 $1,824,816.00 100% 10 
*Amounts MUST agree with collaborating Department totals for this offer 

Capital Budget Impact?   Yes      X No       Amount 

*Please prepare and attach Capital Budget Request Form 

Financial Offsets: (Please list any Revenue e.g. golf course revenue, Grants, Private/Corporate Contributions, Etc.) 

Name Amount 

Head Start/Early Head Start $8,726,414.00 

Low Income Home Energy Assistance Program (LIHEAP) $1,971,835.00 

Community Services Block Grant (CSBG) $   686,400.00 

State Child Care Certificates $   300,000.00 

Child Adult Care Food Program (CACFP) $   129,000.00 
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United States Department of Agriculture – Commodities $  33,543.00 

City General Relief $  36,044.00 

Atlanta Gas & Light (AGL) $  35,000.00 

Emergency Shelter & Food Program (ESFP) $  25,000.00 

State Appropriation Funds $  22,500.00 

The Partnership for Families, Children and Adults $  6,000.00 

PERFORMANCE DATA

Measurement 1:  Amount of Funding Dollars from Grants & Donations

FY2012 FY2013 FY2014 FY2015 Target 

$14,067,005.00 $13,853,731.00 $11,918,936.00 $12,500,000.00 

Measurement 2: Decrease Number of Citizen’s Complaints 

FY2012 FY2013 FY2014 FY2015 Target 

Not Tracked Not Tracked Not Tracked 

Return on Investment: 

How do citizens benefit?  Citizens receive a variety of services in one location. Families and individuals are able 

to receive educational advancement, literacy and math skills, results oriented case management, advocacy, 

child care, employment training, volunteer opportunities, and self-sufficiency counseling. 

Administrative support ensures contracts and other funding source compliance requirements are met in 

order to receive and maintain funding from grants, donations, and unrestricted funds. 

Fiscally sound practices allow for payments to clients and vendors, reimbursements from grant funding 

sources, maintenance of files and documentation for auditors and monitors, and management of payroll 

functions for department staff. 

The department serves as a point of contact for direct inter-face with citizens, community partners, the 

Advisory Board and other city departments. 

Does this activity leverage other financial resources? Yes, administrative and personnel support leverages 

$11,971,736.00 in grants and donations.  

How does this decrease costs over time?  The cost of the offer will not decrease over time.  The benefit it 

brings to recipients will be evident in increased community partnerships, compliance with government grants, 

and citizens receiving services that would not otherwise be available.  The offer will leverage additional grant 

dollars over time. 

































City of Chattanooga 
FY15 Offers 

Chattanooga Zoo 1 

OFFER SUMMARY 

Offer Name: Chattanooga Zoo Contract Appropriation 

Lead Agency: Chattanooga Zoo/Friends of the Zoo, Inc. 

Collaborating City Department(s): Department of General Services 

Contact Name: Dardenelle Long 

Primary Results Area: Per City Contract 

Offer Cost (Funding Request): $750,000 

RESULTS AREAS 

1. Safer Streets – Safe communities, reduced crime, positive opportunities, and alternate

pathways.

2. Growing Economy – Growing and supporting local businesses, workforce development,
business recruitment and retention, and an environment for innovation.

3. Stronger Neighborhoods – Neighborhood leadership, connected communities, healthy
residential markets, and rapid re-housing.

4. Smarter Students, Stronger Families – Parents and first teachers, community support, and
community health.

5. High Performing Government – Data-driven decision making, sound operations, outstanding

customer service, resource management, and exceptional talent.

6. Innovation Fund – Something different – processes, services, technologies, ideas.  Shifting the

way government operates.

DETAILS 

Description: (What is the service/program? How will it be provided? What innovation & sustainability practice does this leverage? 
What difference does this offer make and how will we know? Make a compelling case for your offer.) 

Friends of the Zoo, Inc. (FOZ) requests their annual operating appropriation in the amount of $750,000 for FY 2015.  This 
amount is 35% of the Zoo’s annual operating budget, the same percentage appropriated in FY 2014.   

In the following narrative, each key results area for the 2015 budget is addressed. Phrases in italics indicate particular 
outcomes or strategies that are being addressed. 

Smarter Students, Stronger Families 
Education, PEDZ, Youth Programs 

The Zoo’s most profound impact on the Mayor’s Results Areas is seen in the area of Smarter Students and Stronger 
Families. By its very nature, the Zoo provides multiple educational offerings that are affordable and effective. From field 
trips and onsite programs, to the offsite programs, summer camps, and seniors, the zoo reaches all of Chattanooga and 
beyond. Nearly 50% of children that visit the zoo participate in Free and Reduced Lunch programs. All education programs 
meet state curriculum guidelines, and provide a fun and innovative approach to learning. The Zoo is also a safe, 
entertaining and affordable family outing, and as a part of the Warner Park experience, creates a safe and welcoming 
destination. 
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In 2002, the Zoo created a program entitled “Promoting Ethnic Diversity in Zoos” (PEDZ) which offered summer 
employment to at-risk, underserved youth between the ages of 13 and 18. Over the last decade, the initiative has 
continued to grow, attracting local neighborhood youth and offering not only employment for the summer, but important 
training in job skills, as well as positive role models.  Since its inception, the zoo has served over 130 local youth with this 
employment program. This program directly impacts youth from surrounding neighborhoods, providing a structured and 
nurturing environment during the summer, a time when many juveniles are unsupervised and bored. In addition to summer 
employment, the zoo encourages high school graduation and college attendance by providing college stipends to students 
who continue to work at the zoo part-time while in school.  Partnerships for this program include the Department of Youth 
and Family Development, the Office of Multicultural Affairs, Hope for the Inner City, Upward Bound PRISM program, La 

Paz, Urban League of Chattanooga, and the Boys and Girls Club of Chattanooga.  

Other youth programs include Zoo Club, which is for 12-14 year olds to experience how the animal kingdom works and 
experience these wonders of nature.  Participants gain knowledge and experience in conservation work around the world. 
Job shadows as well as senior projects are available for high school students to explore the work of the zoo and see what 
our employees do on a daily basis, and do projects focused around the animals at the zoo.  

High Performing Government 
The partnership with Friends of the Zoo has provided the opportunity for exceptional resource management of the Zoo. All 
buildings and land at the Chattanooga Zoo are the assets of the City of Chattanooga.  FOZ performs all routine 
maintenance to these buildings as well as any additional needed repairs/replacements. By eliminating the need for such 
services as purchasing and personnel management costs for the Zoo by the City, the contractual agreement for FOZ to 

operate the zoo has provided a far more efficient method of providing this important resource to the community. Not only 
that, but the dollars appropriated by the City for the management by FOZ have been leveraged to create an operating 
budget of over 2 million dollars for the Zoo, with only 35% of the funding provided by the City.  

In addition to a good ROI on the operational investment by the City, Friends of the Zoo has raised capital funds to provide 
the following improvements for the Zoo using approximately 90% private dollars, thus enhancing and increasing the value 
of the City assets: 

New roof on Zoo infirmary  Addition of new water fountain 

New HVAC unit in the Log cabin  Addition of new Forests of the World building 

Renovation of Prairie Dog exhibit  Renovation of Cougar exhibit 

Renovation of Warner Park Ranch Barn  Permanent event tent space 

Replaced HVAC Chimp building  Renovated the rehabilitation center 

Built fire proof closet in landscaping      Refurbished bathrooms in Log Cabin 
Added heat to front restrooms       Installed radio repeater 
Added HVAC on coyote building       Added a necropsy room 
Added additional walkway lighting       Upgraded walkway lighting to LED (still in progress) 
Upgraded irrigation throughout the zoo  Added HVAC to several areas in education building 

Stronger Neighborhoods 
The improvements made to the zoo and to Warner Park as a whole in the past years has allowed for a more attractive 
neighborhood destination.  The zoo has assisted in the growth of the surrounding area by spurring further development of 
the area and increasing both the areas value and citizen’s feeling of safety and security while in this area of the City.  In 
addition, the zoo’s diversity employment program (PEDZ) also assists in reducing juvenile crime.   

Growing Economy 
One of the most important areas of the economy that the zoo has impacted is in the creation of jobs.  After completing a 
strategic plan in 2011 with the consulting firm Schultz and Williams (a nationally recognized firm) several goals were 
created. One of these was to increase the internal infrastructure of Friends of the Zoo, particularly in upper level 
management. Since 2011 several key leadership positions have been added, as well as additional animal staff to care for 
the zoo’s growing animal collection.  Five key leadership positions were added between 2011 and 2013.  These included 
Director of Animal Programs, Director of Marketing and Communications, Chief Operating Officer, Director of HR, and 
Business Manager. When the contract was signed in 2010, there were 9 positions at the Chattanooga Zoo working under 
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the City of Chattanooga.  At that time, FOZ had 33 employees.  After signing the contract, all employees became FOZ 
employees. As of January 1, 2014 FOZ has 35 full time employees, 16 part time and approximately 28 seasonal, totaling 79 
employees. It is important to note that many employees that work at the zoo have been hired from other zoos across the 
country, attracting new individuals and families to our community. Beyond this, the zoo also contributes to the city’s quality 
of life, which augments the efforts to attract new businesses.  

General Partnerships
Some zoo partners include Department of Therapeutic Recreation, Department of General Services, Department of Youth 

and Family Development, the Office of Multicultural Affairs, UTC, La Paz, AIM Center, Hamilton County Schools, Unum, Girls 
Leadership Academy, BlueCross BlueShield, Coca-Cola, Suntrust Bank, First Tennessee Bank, EPB, Ronald McDonald House, 
Room at the Inn, etc. 

FY 2015 Appropriation Increase 
The requested increase for FY 2015 would cover the increases in utility costs and building maintenance associated with 
running and maintaining zoo buildings, which are city assets.  This includes the additional costs of maintaining two new 
building exhibits at the Zoo, which are two new city assets.  As the zoo buildings age, maintenance needs and costs 
increase leading to greater expenses related to maintaining these city assets (see list under High Performing Government 
for more details).   

Identify Which Desired Outcomes This Offer Impacts: 

1. Smarter Students & Stronger Families: More kids graduating high school college and career ready; Fewer kids dropping
out of school 

2. High Performing Government: Providing outstanding customer focused services and exceptional resource management

3. Growing Economy:  Increase Employment

BUDGET REQUEST

Summary:  (Please complete based on information contained in Attachment F) 

Offer Name 
Personnel Costs 

(including Benefits) Operating Costs Total Request 
 FTEs 

required 

Chattanooga Zoo 
Contract Appropriation *N/A $2,161,510 $750,000 *N/A

Capital Budget Impact?   Yes  X No     $Amount 

*Services covered under contract agreement between the City of Chattanooga and Friends of the Zoo, Inc. 

Financial Offsets: (Please list other revenues associated with the specific program for which funding is requested) 

Name Amount 

Earned Revenue $1,286,910 

Other Sources $124,600 

City of Chattanooga Appropriation $750,000 

PERFORMANCE DATA

Measurement 1: 
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Number of school children field trips. 

Increase the number of school children visiting the Chattanooga Zoo by, as well as the number of educational outreach 
program participants by 20%.  Current number of school field trip participants visiting in 2013 was 15,256.   

2014 goal- 18,307 School Field Trip Participants 

 11,484 Off-Site Participants 

Historical Comparison Data? 

2013*- 15,256 School Field Trip Participants 

     9,570 Off-Site Participants 

2012*- 12,774 School Field Trip Participants 

     9,234 Off-Site Participants 

2011*- 12,859 School Field Trip Participants 

 5,360 Off-Site Participants 

Measurement 2: 

Attendance 

Increase both the number of residents and tourists visiting the Chattanooga Zoo by 20%.  Number of visitors in 2013 total 
149,373 of which 60% percent were local residents, while 40% percent were outside of the Zoo’s local area.    

2014 goal: 179,247 

Historical Comparison Data? 

2013 Attendance*- 149,373 

2012 Attendance*- 150,095 

2011 Attendance*- 175,724 

Measurement 3: 

Earned Revenue 

Increase earned revenue by 7% for 2014.  Increasing earned revenue builds the zoo’s future sustainability. Projected 
earned revenue goal for 2014 is $1,402,960 (63% of total budget).  

Historical Comparison Data? 

2013 Earned Revenue* – $1,305,326.64 (64% of total budget) 

2012 Earned Revenue* – $1,225,067.71 (67% of total budget) 

2011 Earned Revenue* – $1,038,342.63 (62% of total budget) 

*Please note that 2011, 2012, 2013, and 2014 are all based on calendar year budgets.  As of July 1, 2014 the zoo will be
adjusting to a July 1 fiscal year. 

Return on Investment: 
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How do citizens benefit?  The citizens of the City of Chattanooga benefit from having the zoo to provide 

enhanced education, recreation, and conservation opportunities in their local community.  The zoo has long 

been a destination for local families to spend quality time together, and to learn about nature and what they 

can do to conserve the wild places and creatures all around the world.  For many citizens, the Chattanooga 

Zoo is the only place they will ever encounter an endangered jaguar, or snow leopard.   

Does this activity leverage other financial resources?        The Chattanooga Zoo leverages donations made 

from a plethora of sources, as well as earned revenue from admissions, sales, education programs, etc.  The 

$750,000 contribution that the City of Chattanooga makes is leveraged to sustain a budget of over $2 million. 

How does this activity decrease costs over time for the City?  By continuing to support the operations of 

the Chattanooga Zoo through an annual appropriation, the city continues to save funds that were once used 

to fund the entirety of the zoo’s operation.  Though the zoo’s budget has increased over the years, the 

percentage funded by the City of Chattanooga has stayed constant. 

How can this program become sustainable without City funding?   N/A- Contracted Service (See above) 
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Offer Name: FAFSA 

Offer Number:  4 

Lead 
Department: Youth and Family Development

Administrator: Lurone Jennings 

Offer Cost: $35,000 

1. Safer Streets –Safe communities, reduced crime, positive opportunities,

2. Growing Economy – Growing and supporting local businesses,
business recruitment and retention, and an environment for innovation.

3. Stronger Neighborhoods
residential markets, and rapid rehousing.

4. Smarter Students, Stronger Families
community health.

5. High Performing Government
customer service, resource management, and exceptional talent.

6. Innovation Fund –Something different
way government operates.

Description:(What is the service/program? How will it be provided? What innovation & sustainability practice does this leverage?

What difference does this offer make and how will we know? Make a compelling case for your offer.)

This program will increase college participation in two ways. F
the FAFSA forms.  Every YFD center will provide
provided, 20 laptops will be used to enable multiple access points for the
application will be provided.  The Southern Appalachian Education Opportunities Center
provides free FAFSA assistance, will provide the materials and conduct the sessions.
during the meeting in order to promote the par
scholarships, and tuition waivers require the FAFSA before they will even consider an applicant. Therefore, this is essentia
in the first steps of pursuing a college education.

The second part of the program will be college application fee stipends. This will enable students to overcome the
roadblock of monetary issues when applying for college.
due to the application fees.  By providing assistance, we will encourage students to apply to several colleges which will
increase the likelihood they will be accepted.

This program is about promoting college and ensuring all students have an opportunity to pursue their drea

City of Chattanooga 
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OFFERSUMMARY 

Department 
Offer Rank: 4 

outh and Family Development Collaboration: Y ___     N__

, Stronger Families

RESULTS AREA

Safe communities, reduced crime, positive opportunities, and 

Growing and supporting local businesses, workforce development,
business recruitment and retention, and an environment for innovation. 

Stronger Neighborhoods – Neighborhood leadership, connected communities, healthy
residential markets, and rapid rehousing.

Smarter Students, Stronger Families – Parents and first teachers, commu

High Performing Government –Data-driven decision making, sound operations, outstanding
customer service, resource management, and exceptional talent.

Something different – processes, services, technologies, ideas. Shifting the
way government operates.

DETAILS 

(What is the service/program? How will it be provided? What innovation & sustainability practice does this leverage?

make and how will we know? Make a compelling case for your offer.) 

articipation in two ways.  First, there will be an increased number of seniors who
Every YFD center will provide two FAFSA nights.  During that night, information about the FAFSA will be

enable multiple access points for the enrollees, and assistance in filling out the
The Southern Appalachian Education Opportunities Center, a federally funded program that

will provide the materials and conduct the sessions.  We will provide
in order to promote the participation.  For some, applying for the FAFSA is a roadblock.

scholarships, and tuition waivers require the FAFSA before they will even consider an applicant.  Therefore, this is essentia
in the first steps of pursuing a college education. 

second part of the program will be college application fee stipends.  This will enable students to overcome the
roadblock of monetary issues when applying for college.  Many students apply for only 1 college, or may not apply at all,

n fees. By providing assistance, we will encourage students to apply to several colleges which will
increase the likelihood they will be accepted. 

This program is about promoting college and ensuring all students have an opportunity to pursue their drea

1 

Y ___   N__X___ 

Smarter StudenPrimaryResults Area: Smarter Studenttss, Stronger Families 

and alternate pathways. 

workforce development, 

Neighborhood leadership, connected communities, healthy

arents and first teachers, community support, and 

driven decision making, sound operations, outstanding

processes, services, technologies, ideas.  Shifting the

(What is the service/program? How will it be provided? What innovation & sustainability practice does this leverage? 

increased number of seniors who fill out 
. During that night, information about the FAFSA will be 

enrollees, and assistance in filling out the 
, a federally funded program that 

We will provide food and snacks 
For some, applying for the FAFSA is a roadblock.Most grants, 

scholarships, and tuition waivers require the FAFSA before they will even consider an applicant. Therefore, this is essential 

second part of the program will be college application fee stipends. This will enable students to overcome the 
Many students apply for only 1 college, or may not apply at all, 

n fees. By providing assistance, we will encourage students to apply to several colleges which will 

This program is about promoting college and ensuring all students have an opportunity to pursue their dreams. 
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Youth & Family Development 

Request for Offer(s) that

1. Smarter Students, Stronger Families – Improving the access and reducing the roadblocks in applying to colleges will
generate more college bound students.  This will improve the focus on attending college for all students.

2. Growing Economy – Increasing the number of college graduates will improve our workforce, thus drawing in more
businesses. 

3. Stronger Neighborhoods – Providing programs at the local YFD centers strengthens the communities.

on Dept. Operating

Department 

Personnel Cost

(including Benefits)

Youth and Family 

Development 

Total  $ 
ing Department totals for this offer

dget Request Form

Financial Offsets:(Please list any Revenue

Name 

Private Donor 

Measurement 1:Number of students applying for FAFSA

FY2012 FY2013

Measurement 2:Number of students applying for college

FY2012 FY2013

Measurement 3:Participation of the programs

City of Chattanooga 

Offers 

frIdentify Which Desired Outcomes fromom Request for Offer(s) that this Offer Impacts: 

Improving the access and reducing the roadblocks in applying to colleges will
generate more college bound students. This will improve the focus on attending college for all students.

he number of college graduates will improve our workforce, thus drawing in more

Providing programs at the local YFD centers strengthens the communities.

BUDGET REQUEST

(Please complete baseSummary:(Please complete basedd  on Dept. Operating l 

Personnel Cost 

(including Benefits) Operations Request 

$0.00 $35,000.00 $35,000.00 

$  0.00  $  35,000.00  $  35,000.00 
*Amounts MUST agree with collabo*Amounts MUST agree with collabora r t ating Department totals for this offer 

X

*Please prepare and attach Capital

Capital Budget Impact?     Yes    X      No     $Amount 

*Please prepare and attach Capital Bu B udget Request 

Form 

Revenue e.g. golf course revenue, Grants, Private/Corporate Contri

Amount 

$10,000 

PERFORMANCE DATA

Number of students applying for FAFSA 

FY2013 FY2014 FY2015 Target

Number of students applying for college 

FY2013 FY2014 FY2015 Target

Participation of the programs 

2 

Improving the access and reducing the roadblocks in applying to colleges will
generate more college bound students. This will improve the focus on attending college for all students. 

he number of college graduates will improve our workforce, thus drawing in more

Providing programs at the local YFD centers strengthens the communities.

PersonnDetail and Dept.Personneel Detail Forms) 

%  of 

offer 

 FTEs 

required 

100% 0 

0% 

 100% 0 

Grants, Private/Corporate Contributions, Etc.) 

FY2015 Target 

170 

FY2015 Target 

170 
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Youth & Family Development 

FY2012 FY2013

Return on Investment: 

How do citizens benefit?  Students will have less

number of students that apply and attend college.

Does this activity leverage other financial resources?

Education Opportunities Center.  The 

students.  We will collaborate in using our centers as hubs in applying to college.

How does this decrease costs over time?

City of Chattanooga 

Offers 

FY2013 FY2014 FY2015 Target

Students will have less roadblocks in their access to college, thus increasing the

number of students that apply and attend college. 

Does this activity leverage other financial resources?  This program will work with the Southern Appalachian

Education Opportunities Center. The center is federally funded and provides free college counseling to

students. We will collaborate in using our centers as hubs in applying to college. 

How does this decrease costs over time? The computers are a one time purchase. 

3 

FY2015 Target 

340 students 

roadblocks in their access to college, thus increasing the 

This program will work with the Southern Appalachian 

center is federally funded and provides free college counseling to 
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Offer Name: Youth eVentures Development

Offer Number:  8 

Lead 
Department: Youth & Family Development

Administrator: Lurone Jennings 

Offer Cost: $50,000 

1. Safer Streets – Safe communities, reduced crime, positive opportunities, and alternate
pathways.

2. Growing Economy – Growing and supporting local businesses, workforce development,
business recruitment and retention, and an environment for innovation.

3. Stronger Neighborhoods
residential markets, and rapid rehousing.

4. Smarter Students, Stronger Families
community health.

5. High Performing Government
customer service, resource management, an

6. Innovation Fund – Something different
way government operates.

Description: (What is the service/program? How will it be provided? What innovation & sustainability

What difference does this offer make and how will we know? Make a compelling case for your offer.)

Entrepreneurs drive America's economy, accounting for the majority of our nation's new job creation

and innovations. According to the U. S. Census Bureau's

employed individuals who have no paid employees operate three

S. Small Business Administration reports that America's 25.8 million small busines

than 50 percent of the private workforce, generate more than half of the nation's gross domestic

product, and are the principal source of new jobs in the U.S. economy.

The eVentures Developmental Camp

Development and Office of Economic & Community Development. The program

week camp for 16-18 year olds in low to

a financial mindset to help with basic money management skills, entrepreneurship principles and

strategies to start their own online venture which

Owners will receive coaching, mentors

City of Chattanooga 

Offers 

OFFER SUMMARY 

Youth eVentures Development Camp 

Department 
Offer Rank:  8 

Youth & Family Development Collaboration: Y __X__

, Stronger Families

RESULTS AREA

Safe communities, reduced crime, positive opportunities, and alternate

Growing and supporting local businesses, workforce development,
business recruitment and retention, and an environment for innovation.

Stronger Neighborhoods – Neighborhood leadership, connected communities, healthy
nd rapid rehousing.

Smarter Students, Stronger Families – Parents and first teachers, community support, and

High Performing Government – Data-driven decision making, sound operations, outstanding
customer service, resource management, and exceptional talent. 

Something different – processes, services, technologies, ideas. Shifting the
way government operates.

DETAILS 

(What is the service/program? How will it be provided? What innovation & sustainability practice does this leverage?

What difference does this offer make and how will we know? Make a compelling case for your offer.) 

Entrepreneurs drive America's economy, accounting for the majority of our nation's new job creation

According to the U. S. Census Bureau's 2002 Survey of Business Owners

employed individuals who have no paid employees operate three-fourths of U.S. businesses. The U.

S. Small Business Administration reports that America's 25.8 million small busines

than 50 percent of the private workforce, generate more than half of the nation's gross domestic

product, and are the principal source of new jobs in the U.S. economy. 

Developmental Camp is a city departmental partnership between Youth & Family

Development and Office of Economic & Community Development. The program

year olds in low to-moderate-income communities and was created to develop

a financial mindset to help with basic money management skills, entrepreneurship principles and

strategies to start their own online venture which youth will build as a course project. The Young

Owners will receive coaching, mentorship and small business education for 12 months.

__  N_____ 

Smarter StudenPrimary Results Area: Smarter Studenttss, Stronger Families 

Safe communities, reduced crime, positive opportunities, and alternate

Growing and supporting local businesses, workforce development,

Neighborhood leadership, connected communities, healthy

Parents and first teachers, community support, and

driven decision making, sound operations, outstanding

processes, services, technologies, ideas.  Shifting the

practice does this leverage? 

Entrepreneurs drive America's economy, accounting for the majority of our nation's new job creation 

2002 Survey of Business Owners, self-

fourths of U.S. businesses. The U. 

S. Small Business Administration reports that America's 25.8 million small businesses employ more 

than 50 percent of the private workforce, generate more than half of the nation's gross domestic 

een Youth & Family 

Development and Office of Economic & Community Development. The program begins with a one 

was created to develop 

a financial mindset to help with basic money management skills, entrepreneurship principles and 

will build as a course project.  The Young 

hip and small business education for 12 months. As a city, we 
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must create the leaders for the next generation to continue the work that has been started.

Project Goals 

• Recruit and train 25 students

• Use camp to make an impact in the City and c

• Promote an essay contest to identify student candidates

• Track and engage with students success and support them for 12 months

• Apply effective written and oral communication skills to business and life situat

• Analyze the social business environment

• Develop youth to become investor/owners versus consumers

• Train youth to use critical thinking skills in business and personal situations

• Train youth to understand money basics and begin developing a relationship

• Provide mentoring and identify key mentors

• Identify skills, gifts and talents to connect to opportunities for growth

• Identify opportunities in their own backyard

• Promote outside-of-the-box thinking

• Provide access to technology and share techno
participants achieve their goals, work smarter and have access

• Provide expose to opportunities they normally wouldn’t see

In the midst of a rapidly changing economy it’s evident that we can’t keep using methods tha

in the past. The need for professional

schools are essential to help young adults succeed. It is important to create opportunities

that increase the odds for young adults to have the life they envision or desire

opportunities include, but are not limited to, increased business

leadership skills, and presentation skills.

understanding of planning and goal setting.

students to earn additional income

become successful. 

Summer eVenture Developmental
26 Students (13 Boys/13 Girls) 
Ages 16-18 

The model for the eVentures Development

and experienced great success.  Sponsored by a local Atlanta Bank

students from the pilot are still connected and being mentored. The students that have participated

stay engaged because the program taps into the existing resources they are already using to

communicate such as social medi

Family Development’s Chattanooga Ambassadors Program (CAP) will provide computers and

internet access to the students, we can provide this opportunity and demonstrate to students how to

turn their computer into a potential revenue source for themselves and their families.

The Chattanooga eVenture Developmental Camp partnership

City of Chattanooga 

Offers 

must create the leaders for the next generation to continue the work that has been started.

25 students for the camp 
Use camp to make an impact in the City and create a sustainable model for future initiatives
Promote an essay contest to identify student candidates
Track and engage with students success and support them for 12 months
Apply effective written and oral communication skills to business and life situat
Analyze the social business environment
Develop youth to become investor/owners versus consumers
Train youth to use critical thinking skills in business and personal situations
Train youth to understand money basics and begin developing a relationship

Provide mentoring and identify key mentors

Identify skills, gifts and talents to connect to opportunities for growth

Identify opportunities in their own backyard

box thinking

Provide access to technology  and share technology-based resources that can assist the
participants achieve their goals, work smarter and have access

Provide expose to opportunities they normally wouldn’t see

In the midst of a rapidly changing economy it’s evident that we can’t keep using methods tha

The need for professional, as well as, key life skills that are not taught in the

schools are essential to help young adults succeed.  It is important to create opportunities

for young adults to have the life they envision or desire

opportunities include, but are not limited to, increased business knowledge, confidence,

presentation skills. This initiative also promotes an awareness and

planning and goal setting. Additionally, it provides an opportunity for the

students to earn additional income, as well as, other incentives that will help their ventures

Developmental Camp 

eVentures Development Camp launched a pilot in 2012 that received rave reviews

and experienced great success. Sponsored by a local Atlanta Bank the camp was a success and the

students from the pilot are still connected and being mentored.  The students that have participated

stay engaged because the program taps into the existing resources they are already using to

communicate such as social media and other web based tools. Due to the fact that the

Chattanooga Ambassadors Program (CAP) will provide computers and

we can provide this opportunity and demonstrate to students how to

turn their computer into a potential revenue source for themselves and their families.

Developmental Camp partnership will address and impact Smarter

must create the leaders for the next generation to continue the work that has been started. 

reate a sustainable model for future initiatives 

Apply effective written and oral communication skills to business and life situations 

Train youth to use critical thinking skills in business and personal situations
Train youth to understand money basics and begin developing a relationship with money 

based resources that can assist the 

In the midst of a rapidly changing economy it’s evident that we can’t keep using methods that worked 

key life skills that are not taught in the 

schools are essential to help young adults succeed. It is important to create opportunities 

for young adults to have the life they envision or desire. These 

nowledge, confidence, 

an awareness and 

rovides an opportunity for the 

help their ventures 

that received rave reviews 

the camp was a success and the 

students from the pilot are still connected and being mentored. The students that have participated 

stay engaged because the program taps into the existing resources they are already using to 

a and other web based tools. Due to the fact that the Youth & 

Chattanooga Ambassadors Program (CAP) will provide computers and 

we can provide this opportunity and demonstrate to students how to 

turn their computer into a potential revenue source for themselves and their families.   

will address and impact Smarter 
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Students, Stronger Families, and a Growing Economy in Chattanooga, TN. The program

with a one week camp for both boys and girls. The

Friday 9:00 a.m. – 6:00 p.m. Each camp will be broken down into small groups o

create synergy, support and collaboration opportunities.

months of technical, business, and online support.

Each week following the camp, student

• Group calls to eVenture
• Facebook Private Group discussions
• Webinars

• Each student will be assigned a mentor to help them develop the necessary skills to be a
successful entrepreneur.

• Each student will have an opportunity to pitch their business to help develop communica
skills.

• Each student will have an opportunity to raise money for their business giving community
service hours.

• Each month, a live 2 hour session through the eVentures Incubator Center to answer
questions, teach and motivate participants.

• The partnership will have weekly office hours where the students can connect to receive
personal support and resources.

• The team will share stories of entrepreneurial success from the participants’ peers. We will
introduce guest speakers, as well as, vid
succeeded in business and come from similar backgrounds and circumstances.

• Students will learn to use technology to achieve financial goals.

• The program will instill money

Benefits of Entrepreneurship 
Entrepreneurship is an employment strategy that can lead to economic self

with disabilities. Self-employment provides people with disabilities and their families with the

potential to create and manage businesses in which they function as the employer or boss, rather

than merely being an employee. Oftentimes, people with disabilities are eligible and receive

supplemental supports (technical and financial) which can serve as

the risk involved with pursuing self

Nearly 80 percent of would-be entrepreneurs in the United States are between the ages of 18 and

34! A 2005 poll from Junior Achievement (JA) found that 68.6 perce

wanted to become entrepreneurs, even though they knew that it would not be an easy path. In spite

of this overwhelming interest, however, youth rarely receive any information about entrepreneurship

City of Chattanooga 

Offers 

Stronger Families, and a Growing Economy in Chattanooga, TN. The program

with a one week camp for both boys and girls. The week-long camp will be held Monday through

6:00 p.m. Each camp will be broken down into small groups o

create synergy, support and collaboration opportunities. After the camp, students will receive 12

months of technical, business, and online support. 

students will be able to participate in: 

Facebook Private Group discussions

Each student will be assigned a mentor to help them develop the necessary skills to be a

Each student will have an opportunity to pitch their business to help develop communica

Each student will have an opportunity to raise money for their business giving community

Each month, a live 2 hour session through the eVentures Incubator Center to answer
questions, teach and motivate participants.

will have weekly office hours where the students can connect to receive
personal support and resources.

The team will share stories of entrepreneurial success from the participants’ peers. We will
introduce guest speakers, as well as, video interviews of people they can relate to that have
succeeded in business and come from similar backgrounds and circumstances.

Students will learn to use technology to achieve financial goals.

The program will instill money-management tools that work in all aspects of their lives.

Entrepreneurship is an employment strategy that can lead to economic self-sufficiency for people

employment provides people with disabilities and their families with the

otential to create and manage businesses in which they function as the employer or boss, rather

than merely being an employee. Oftentimes, people with disabilities are eligible and receive

supplemental supports (technical and financial) which can serve as a safety net that may decrease

the risk involved with pursuing self-employment opportunities. 

be entrepreneurs in the United States are between the ages of 18 and

34! A 2005 poll from Junior Achievement (JA) found that 68.6 percent of the teenagers interviewed

wanted to become entrepreneurs, even though they knew that it would not be an easy path. In spite

of this overwhelming interest, however, youth rarely receive any information about entrepreneurship

Stronger Families, and a Growing Economy in Chattanooga, TN. The program will launch 

camp will be held Monday through 

6:00 p.m. Each camp will be broken down into small groups of five (5) each to 

After the camp, students will receive 12 

Each student will be assigned a mentor to help them develop the necessary skills to be a

Each student will have an opportunity to pitch their business to help develop communication 

Each student will have an opportunity to raise money for their business giving community

Each month, a live 2 hour session through the eVentures Incubator Center to answer

will have weekly office hours where the students can connect to receive

The team will share stories of entrepreneurial success from the participants’ peers.  We will
eo interviews of people they can relate to that have

succeeded in business and come from similar backgrounds and circumstances.

in all aspects of their lives. 

sufficiency for people 

employment provides people with disabilities and their families with the 

otential to create and manage businesses in which they function as the employer or boss, rather 

than merely being an employee. Oftentimes, people with disabilities are eligible and receive 

a safety net that may decrease 

be entrepreneurs in the United States are between the ages of 18 and 

nt of the teenagers interviewed 

wanted to become entrepreneurs, even though they knew that it would not be an easy path. In spite 

of this overwhelming interest, however, youth rarely receive any information about entrepreneurship 
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as a career option. 

Entrepreneurship education offers a solution. It seeks to prepare people, particularly youth, to be

responsible, enterprising individuals who become entrepreneurs or entrepreneurial thinkers by

immersing them in real life learning experiences where they can take

learn from the outcomes. 

Advantages of Entrepreneurship Education

Through entrepreneurship education, young people, including those with disabilities, learn

organizational skills, including time management, leadership

all of which are highly transferable skills sought by employers. According to

Outcomes for Youth Entrepreneurship Programs (2001)

Investment Corporation, other positive outcomes include:

attendance; and educational attainment

• Increased problem-solving and decision

• Improved interpersonal relationships, teamwork, mo

• Job readiness

• Enhanced social psychological development (self

• Perceived improved health status

Ongoing research commissioned by the National Foundation for Teaching En

(NFTE) to evaluate the effectiveness and impact of its programs found that when youth participated

in entrepreneurship programs: 

• Interest in attending college increased 32 percent

• Occupational aspirations increased 44 percent

• Independent reading increased 4 percent

• Leadership behavior increased 8.5 percent

• Belief that attaining one's goals is within one's control (locus of control) increased, and

• alumni (99 percent) recommended NFTE programs

Benefits of Entrepreneurship Education
Research regarding the impact of entrepreneurship education on youth with disabilities shows the
following benefits: 

• Opportunity for Work Based Experiences
o Work experiences for youth with disabilities during high school, both paid and unpaid, help

them acquire jobs at higher wages after they graduate. Also, students who participate in
occupational education and special education in integrated settings are more likely to be
competitively employed than students who have not participated in such activities.

• Opportunity to Exercise Leadership and Develop Interpersonal Skills
o By launching a small business or school

experience different roles. In addition, they learn to communicate their ideas and influence
others effectively through the development of self
Moreover, they learn how to become team players, and to engage in problem solving and

City of Chattanooga 
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reneurship education offers a solution. It seeks to prepare people, particularly youth, to be

responsible, enterprising individuals who become entrepreneurs or entrepreneurial thinkers by

immersing them in real life learning experiences where they can take risks, manage the results, and

Advantages of Entrepreneurship Education 

Through entrepreneurship education, young people, including those with disabilities, learn

organizational skills, including time management, leadership development and interpersonal skills,

all of which are highly transferable skills sought by employers. According to

Outcomes for Youth Entrepreneurship Programs (2001), a report by the D.C. Children and Youth

positive outcomes include: improved academic performance, school

attendance; and educational attainment. The eVentures Development Program promotes:

solving and decision-making abilities 

mproved interpersonal relationships, teamwork, money management, and public speaking skills

nhanced social psychological development (self-esteem, ego development, self

erceived improved health status

Ongoing research commissioned by the National Foundation for Teaching En

(NFTE) to evaluate the effectiveness and impact of its programs found that when youth participated

nterest in attending college increased 32 percent

ccupational aspirations increased 44 percent

ding increased 4 percent

eadership behavior increased 8.5 percent

elief that attaining one's goals is within one's control (locus of control) increased, and

alumni (99 percent) recommended NFTE programs

Benefits of Entrepreneurship Education 
regarding the impact of entrepreneurship education on youth with disabilities shows the

for Work Based Experiences
Work experiences for youth with disabilities during high school, both paid and unpaid, help

at higher wages after they graduate. Also, students who participate in
occupational education and special education in integrated settings are more likely to be
competitively employed than students who have not participated in such activities.

to Exercise Leadership and Develop Interpersonal Skills
By launching a small business or school-based enterprise, youth with disabilities can lead and
experience different roles. In addition, they learn to communicate their ideas and influence

ctively through the development of self-advocacy and conflict resolution skills.
Moreover, they learn how to become team players, and to engage in problem solving and

reneurship education offers a solution. It seeks to prepare people, particularly youth, to be 

responsible, enterprising individuals who become entrepreneurs or entrepreneurial thinkers by 

risks, manage the results, and 

Through entrepreneurship education, young people, including those with disabilities, learn 

development and interpersonal skills, 

all of which are highly transferable skills sought by employers. According to Logic Models and 

, a report by the D.C. Children and Youth 

improved academic performance, school 

. The eVentures Development Program promotes: 

ney management, and public speaking skills 

esteem, ego development, self-efficacy), and 

Ongoing research commissioned by the National Foundation for Teaching Entrepreneurship 

(NFTE) to evaluate the effectiveness and impact of its programs found that when youth participated 

elief that attaining one's goals is within one's control (locus of control) increased, and

regarding the impact of entrepreneurship education on youth with disabilities shows the 

Work experiences for youth with disabilities during high school, both paid and unpaid, help
at higher wages after they graduate. Also, students who participate in

occupational education and special education in integrated settings are more likely to be
competitively employed than students who have not participated in such activities.

based enterprise, youth with disabilities can lead and
experience different roles. In addition, they learn to communicate their ideas and influence

advocacy and conflict resolution skills.
Moreover, they learn how to become team players, and to engage in problem solving and
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critical thinking -- skills valued highly by employers in the competitive workplace of th
21st Century. Mentors, including peer mentors both with and without disabilities, can assist the
youth in developing these competencies.

• Opportunity to Develop Planning, Financial Literacy, and Money Management Skills
o The ability to set goals and to

entrepreneurship skills which are useful in any workplace

Other potential benefits of the Chattanooga

• How to structure a business

• Start a Business for $0

• Creating Financial Statements

• Mastering Marketing Plans

• Understanding every component

Developing a marketing plan is one of the most important things anyone can do to ensure that

business will make a profit. Students will l

• Market research and analysis

• Product development & Pricing

• Advertising

• Promotions and campaigns

• Publicity, sales and customer service

• Create a mindset for success – eliminate poverty mindsets

• Remove barriers from past and/or present life that interfere with living the best life now

• Gain clarity on what’s next and balance when thin

• Reverse feelings of discouragement, disillusion or fear of arriving at the wrong location

• Experience peace of mind in your thought life

Request for Offer(s) that

1. Youth develop financial literacy and presentation skills

2. Youth are exposed to entrepreneurship opportunities

3. Youth have opportunities to learn, grow smarter

City of Chattanooga 
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skills valued highly by employers in the competitive workplace of th
Century. Mentors, including peer mentors both with and without disabilities, can assist the

youth in developing these competencies. 

to Develop Planning, Financial Literacy, and Money Management Skills
The ability to set goals and to manage time, money and other resources are important

ch are useful in any workplace. 

Chattanooga eVenture Development Camp program include:

a business plan 

Start a Business for $0

Creating Financial Statements

Mastering Marketing Plans

Understanding every component of your business and business plan

Developing a marketing plan is one of the most important things anyone can do to ensure that

Students will learn the importance of: 

• Publicity, sales and customer service

eliminate poverty mindsets

• Remove barriers from past and/or present life that interfere with living the best life now

• Gain clarity on what’s next and balance when things get crazy 

• Reverse feelings of discouragement, disillusion or fear of arriving at the wrong location

• Experience peace of mind in your thought life

frIdentify Which Desired Outcomes fromom Request for Offer(s) that this Offer Impacts: 

Youth develop financial literacy and presentation skills

entrepreneurship opportunities and develop small businesses, leading to a growing economy

, grow smarter and have an environment for innovation 

skills valued highly by employers in the competitive workplace of the 
Century. Mentors, including peer mentors both with and without disabilities, can assist the 

to Develop Planning, Financial Literacy, and Money Management Skills
manage time, money and other resources are important 

program include: 

of your business and business plan 

Developing a marketing plan is one of the most important things anyone can do to ensure that 

• Remove barriers from past and/or present life that interfere with living the best life now

• Reverse feelings of discouragement, disillusion or fear of arriving at the wrong location

leading to a growing economy 
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on Dept. Operating

Department 

Personnel Cost

(including Benefits)

Youth & Family 

Development 0

Economic & 

Community 

Development 0

Total $ 
ing Department totals for this offer

Capital Budget Impact?        Yes      

dget Request Form

Financial Offsets: (Please list any Revenue e.g. golf course revenue,

Name 

Measurement 1:   Participants/Attendance

FY2012 FY2013

Measurement 2:   Number  of Programs/Events

FY2012 FY2013

Measurement 3:  Revenues 

FY2012 FY2013

Return on Investment: 

How do citizens benefit?  The eVentures Development

business owners. Small business is the key to improving and

growth. An opportunity for Chattanooga’s youth to participate in this initiative encourages bright

City of Chattanooga 

Offers 

BUDGET REQUEST

(Please complete basSummary:  (Please complete baseded on Dept. Operating el

Personnel Cost 

(including Benefits) Operations Request 

0 50,000 $50,000.00 

0 0 0 

$  0 $  50,000 $50,000.00 
*Amounts MUST agree with collabo*Amounts MUST agree with collabora r t ating Department totals for this offer 

   x No $Amount 

*Please prepare and attach Capital*Please prepare and attach Capital Bu B udget Request Form 

Please list any Revenue e.g. golf course revenue, Grants, Private/Corporate Contri

Amount 

PERFORMANCE DATA

Participants/Attendance 

FY2013 FY2014 FY2015 Target

Number of Programs/Events 

FY2013 FY2014 FY2015 Target

FY2013 FY2014 FY2015 Target

The eVentures Development Summer Camp provides a platform to train future small

business owners. Small business is the key to improving and restoring local economies and creating job

growth. An opportunity for Chattanooga’s youth to participate in this initiative encourages bright

PersoDetail and Dept. Personnnnel Detail Forms) 

%  of 

offer 

 FTEs 

required 

100% 0 

0% 0 

100% 0 

Grants, Private/Corporate Contributions, Etc.) 

FY2015 Target 

26 

FY2015 Target 

 50 

FY2015 Target 

 12,000 

a platform to train future small 

restoring local economies and creating job 

growth. An opportunity for Chattanooga’s youth to participate in this initiative encourages bright 
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entrepreneurs to stay in the city and contribute to a growing economy. Many of the youth train

initiative may also consider starting businesses and serving communities where they live. eVentures also

creates a platform to create an informed populous to move youth and their families beyond

consumerism and toward job development and up

such as Chattanooga benefit from the revenue generated from taxes.

Does this activity leverage other financial resources?

Community Development will recruit mentors and volunteers from the business community to provide

technical support and workshops after the initial training. The Youth & Family Development Department will

provide venues for training and tinkering with ideas and

participants will be involved as participants, mentors, and provide other resources for the success and

sustainability of this initiative.  Other financial resources will be leveraged over time through sustainability

efforts. Proposals for grant sources, fundraisers, donations, and scholarships will be part of the sustainability

plan. 

How does this decrease costs over time?

“Train the Trainer”. Training the Trainer wil

process of teaching youth business models and provide the tools necessary to create small businesses and

micro-enterprises. Leaders for this effort will be identified from city department

and community leaders. Once a template has been established, the cost for the program will decrease and

additional youth can be trained in future years.

City of Chattanooga 

Offers 

entrepreneurs to stay in the city and contribute to a growing economy. Many of the youth train

initiative may also consider starting businesses and serving communities where they live. eVentures also

creates a platform to create an informed populous to move youth and their families beyond

consumerism and toward job development and upward mobility. Anytime businesses are developed, cities

such as Chattanooga benefit from the revenue generated from taxes. 

Does this activity leverage other financial resources?  The City of Chattanooga Office of Economic &

uit mentors and volunteers from the business community to provide

technical support and workshops after the initial training. The Youth & Family Development Department will

provide venues for training and tinkering with ideas and start-up ventures. OECD, 

participants will be involved as participants, mentors, and provide other resources for the success and

Other financial resources will be leveraged over time through sustainability

r grant sources, fundraisers, donations, and scholarships will be part of the sustainability

How does this decrease costs over time?  The design of the initial eVentures program will include a model to

“Train the Trainer”. Training the Trainer will involve a half-day session to train up to ten local leaders

process of teaching youth business models and provide the tools necessary to create small businesses and

. Leaders for this effort will be identified from city departments, local nonprofits, business

and community leaders. Once a template has been established, the cost for the program will decrease and

additional youth can be trained in future years.   

entrepreneurs to stay in the city and contribute to a growing economy. Many of the youth trained in the 

initiative may also consider starting businesses and serving communities where they live. eVentures also 

creates a platform to create an informed populous to move youth and their families beyond simple 

ward mobility. Anytime businesses are developed, cities 

The City of Chattanooga Office of Economic & 

uit mentors and volunteers from the business community to provide 

technical support and workshops after the initial training. The Youth & Family Development Department will 

OECD, YFD staff, and CAP 

participants will be involved as participants, mentors, and provide other resources for the success and 

Other financial resources will be leveraged over time through sustainability 

r grant sources, fundraisers, donations, and scholarships will be part of the sustainability 

The design of the initial eVentures program will include a model to 

up to ten local leaders on the 

process of teaching youth business models and provide the tools necessary to create small businesses and 

s, local nonprofits, business 

and community leaders. Once a template has been established, the cost for the program will decrease and 
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Offer Name: Community Education and Recreation

Offer Number:  One (1) 

Lead 
Department: Youth and Family Development

Administrator: Lurone Jennings 

Offer Cost: 5 ,347,667.00 

1. Safer Streets –Safe communities, reduced crime, positive opportunities,

2. Growing Economy – Growing and supporting local businesses, workforce development,
business recruitment and retention, and an environment for innovation.

3. Stronger Neighborhoods
residential markets, and rapid rehousing.

4. Smarter Students, Stronger Families
community health.

5. High Performing Government
customer service, resource management, and

6. Innovation Fund –Something different
way government operates.

Description :( What is the service/program? How will it be provided? What innovation &

does this leverage? What difference does this offer make and how will we know? Make a compelling case for

your offer.) 

Communities are concerned about gang activity, risk

and alcohol abuse. In the midst of vast changes in our communities and the need for regenerating our society

because of the economic issues and violence that

recreational opportunities in place for pers

recreation opportunities that are not only fun but also educational has been strongly linked to reductions in

crime and to reduced delinquency.  

Participation in recreational activities boosts

Community Centers provide gathering places for families and social groups, as well as for individuals of all ages

and economic status, regardless of their ability to pay for access.

Devoting some time for recreation on a daily basis helps in the long run in maintaining health and achieving a

piece of mind.  Research has shown that recreation on a daily basis reduces risks of diabetes and

hypertension, enhances physical and mental heal

City of Chattanooga 
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OFFER SUMMARY 

Community Education and Recreation 

Department 
Offer Rank: 1 

Youth and Family Development Collaboration: Y ____ 

, Stronger Families

RESULTS AREA

Safe communities, reduced crime, positive opportunities, and 

Growing and supporting local businesses, workforce development,
business recruitment and retention, and an environment for innovation.

Stronger Neighborhoods – Neighborhood leadership, connected communities, healthy
nd rapid rehousing.

Smarter Students, Stronger Families – Parents and first teachers, commu

High Performing Government –Data-driven decision making, sound operations, outstanding
customer service, resource management, and exceptional talent. 

Something different – processes, services, technologies, ideas. Shifting the
way government operates.

DETAILS 

is the service/program? How will it be provided? What innovation & 

does this leverage? What difference does this offer make and how will we know? Make a compelling case for

Communities are concerned about gang activity, risk-taking behavior of youth, single parent households, drugs

the midst of vast changes in our communities and the need for regenerating our society

and violence that our citizens are facing, it is important that we have

recreational opportunities in place for personal needs, social interaction, creativity and inspiration.

recreation opportunities that are not only fun but also educational has been strongly linked to reductions in

boosts positive energies, and encourages a positive temperament.

Community Centers provide gathering places for families and social groups, as well as for individuals of all ages

and economic status, regardless of their ability to pay for access. 

Devoting some time for recreation on a daily basis helps in the long run in maintaining health and achieving a

Research has shown that recreation on a daily basis reduces risks of diabetes and

hypertension, enhances physical and mental health and improves the quality of life.  

1 

 N__X___ 

Smarter StudenPrimary Results Area: Smarter Studenttss, Stronger Families 

and alternate pathways. 

Growing and supporting local businesses, workforce development,

Neighborhood leadership, connected communities, healthy

Parents and first teachers, community support, and 

driven decision making, sound operations, outstanding

processes, services, technologies, ideas.  Shifting the

sustainability practice 

does this leverage? What difference does this offer make and how will we know? Make a compelling case for 

taking behavior of youth, single parent households, drugs 

the midst of vast changes in our communities and the need for regenerating our society 

our citizens are facing, it is important that we have 

onal needs, social interaction, creativity and inspiration.  Access to 

recreation opportunities that are not only fun but also educational has been strongly linked to reductions in 

a positive temperament.   YFD 

Community Centers provide gathering places for families and social groups, as well as for individuals of all ages 

Devoting some time for recreation on a daily basis helps in the long run in maintaining health and achieving a 

Research has shown that recreation on a daily basis reduces risks of diabetes and 
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In 2013 820,878 citizens of all ages 

Programs and 26 Special Events  scheduled

14 of the YFD Community Centers operating hours were

and 10:00 a.m. to 6:30 p.m. on Saturdays. Brainerd, Hixson and South Chattanooga Community Center

Complexes operating hours were Monday through Friday

a.m. to 6:30 p.m. 

During the summer months June and July centers

hours were Monday through Friday 10:00 a.m. to 6:30 p.m.

the YFD Community Centers who participated in

Friday 8:00 a.m. to 6:30 p.m. and Saturday from 10:00 a.m. to 6:30 p.m. The 3

Complexes (Brainerd, Hixson & South Chattanooga) operating hours were Monday through Friday 8:00 a.m. to

8:00 p.m. and Saturday’s from 10:00 a.m. to 6:30 p.m.

2013 Summer Programs:  441 Teens boys and girls ages 13 to 18 years old

Kidz Kamp had 835 participants’  between the

assist families who couldn’t afford child care or the fees to send the children to summer camps. Kidz Kamp

was scheduled at 11 of YFD Community Centers. Operating h

through Friday.  However, most of the parents drop their kids off at 7:30 a.m. and pay a small fee of $5.00.

Kidz Kamp is a fee base program.  However, parents who couldn’t afford to pay

could apply for scholarships that reduce the fee from

children for a total of 835 participants.

between the ages of 6 to 12 years old. 

from $280 per-child to $40 per-child.  

scholarships. 

Parents who didn’t receive a reduce rate never complain. They were truly grateful that they didn’t have to

worry about leaving their children at home unsupervised or pay for their children to attend a camp that

charged from $75 to $100 per-week.   We awarded 714 scholarships for a total of $171,360. Fees collected

for 121 childrenwho pay $280was $33,800

collected for 2013 Kidz Kamp was $62,360

Teen Centers: Theme “AOK” Acts of Kindness: 225 Participants ages 13 to 18 years old

Program. 

4 YFD Community Centers and 1 CHA Housing Development were identified as Teen Centers; Cromwell Hills,

Carver, Hixson, Washington Hills and South Chattanooga.

Saturday nights from 6:00 p.m. to 9:00 p.m.

Camp, Theater/Spoken Word, Arts & Crafts, My NBA 2K League, and Film. Participants performed at the YFD

CARE Awards. 
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of all ages participated in one or more of our 98 Recreation andEducation

scheduled at our 17 YFD Community Centers Monday through Saturday.

operating hours were Monday through Friday from 11:30 a.m. to 8:00 p.m.

and 10:00 a.m. to 6:30 p.m. on Saturdays.  Brainerd, Hixson and South Chattanooga Community Center

Monday through Friday from 9:00 a.m. to 8:00 p.m. and Saturday from 10:00

During the summer months June and July centers (4) who didn’t participate in Kidz Kamp 

10:00 a.m. to 6:30 p.m. and Saturday from 10:00 a.m. to 6:30 p.m. 11 of

participated in Kidz Kamp Program operating hours were Monday through

Friday 8:00 a.m. to 6:30 p.m. and Saturday from 10:00 a.m. to 6:30 p.m.  The 3 YFD Community Center

South Chattanooga) operating hours were Monday through Friday 8:00 a.m. to

8:00 p.m. and Saturday’s from 10:00 a.m. to 6:30 p.m. 

441 Teens boys and girls ages 13 to 18 years old835 Participants 12 and under

between theages 6 to 12 Kidz Kamp Programwas created 15 years ago to

assist families who couldn’t afford child care or the fees to send the children to summer camps. Kidz Kamp

was scheduled at 11 of YFD Community Centers.  Operating hours were 8:00 a.m. to 5:30 p.m. Monday

through Friday. However, most of the parents drop their kids off at 7:30 a.m. and pay a small fee of $5.00.

However, parents who couldn’t afford to pay the $280 for their childre

could apply for scholarships that reduce the fee from $280 to $40 per-child.  207 families

835 participants.  Most of the families had an average of 3 to 4 children or more

between the ages of 6 to 12 years old.  714 of the 835 childrenreceived scholarships that reduced their fee

 We had 121 children whose parent or guardian didn’t apply or qualify for

Parents who didn’t receive a reduce rate never complain.  They were truly grateful that they didn’t have to

worry about leaving their children at home unsupervised or pay for their children to attend a camp that

.   We awarded 714 scholarships for a total of $171,360. Fees collected

$33,800 and fees for the 714 who paid $40 was $28,560

$62,360. 

ters: Theme “AOK” Acts of Kindness: 225 Participants ages 13 to 18 years old

4 YFD Community Centers and 1 CHA Housing Development were identified as Teen Centers; Cromwell Hills,

Carver, Hixson, Washington Hills and South Chattanooga.  Programs were scheduled on Thursday, Friday and

Saturday nights from 6:00 p.m. to 9:00 p.m.  Programs were selected by the teens; Music, Fashion Boot

Camp, Theater/Spoken Word, Arts & Crafts, My NBA 2K League, and Film.  Participants performed at the YFD

2 

98 Recreation andEducation 

at our 17 YFD Community Centers Monday through Saturday. 

Monday through Friday from 11:30 a.m. to 8:00 p.m. 

and 10:00 a.m. to 6:30 p.m. on Saturdays. Brainerd, Hixson and South Chattanooga Community Center 

from 9:00 a.m. to 8:00 p.m. and Saturday from 10:00 

Kidz Kamp Program operating 

a.m. to 6:30 p.m.   11 of 

Kidz Kamp Program operating hours were Monday through 

YFD Community Center 

South Chattanooga) operating hours were Monday through Friday 8:00 a.m. to 

835 Participants 12 and under 

was created 15 years ago to 

assist families who couldn’t afford child care or the fees to send the children to summer camps.   Kidz Kamp 

ours were 8:00 a.m. to 5:30 p.m. Monday 

through Friday. However, most of the parents drop their kids off at 7:30 a.m. and pay a small fee of $5.00. 

the $280 for their children 

207 families registered their 

Most of the families had an average of 3 to 4 children or more 

that reduced their fee 

didn’t apply or qualify for 

Parents who didn’t receive a reduce rate never complain. They were truly grateful that they didn’t have to 

worry about leaving their children at home unsupervised or pay for their children to attend a camp that 

. We awarded 714 scholarships for a total of $171,360.  Fees collected 

$28,560 .  Total fees 

ters: Theme “AOK” Acts of Kindness: 225 Participants ages 13 to 18 years old6 Week 

4 YFD Community Centers and 1 CHA Housing Development were identified as Teen Centers; Cromwell Hills, 

Programs were scheduled on Thursday, Friday and 

Programs were selected by the teens; Music, Fashion Boot 

Camp, Theater/Spoken Word, Arts & Crafts, My NBA 2K League, and Film. Participants performed at the YFD 



City of Chattanooga

FY15 Offers

Youth & Family Development 

“Late Night Hoops” Basketball League for Boys and g

20 Teams and 216 Participants. 

Games were scheduled at Howard High School starting at 6:00 p.m. to 11:00 p.m. on Thursday, Fr

Saturday nights.  Average 400 to 500 spectators (teens, family members, and friends) each night.

Tournament was schedule the last week of the program.

“Stars of Chattanooga”:12 Participants

consisted of a talent showcase that teens and young adults auditions for one of the twelve spots. During the

summer artist were scheduled at Riverbend, Bessie Smith Strut and

“Next In Line” Internship Program: 30

were assigned to 15 of our YFD Community Centers. We provided them with an opportunity to shadow center

staff and gain on the job experience.  Teens also learned resume building, how to conduct an interview, work

place etiquette and volunteer to work on community service projects. When participants completed the 6

week program they received a $300 stipend

Administration and YFD Community Center Employees;

policies and procedures, fiscal management of FY budget, communications and helping to generate program

and staff development. Community Education and Recreation is dedicated to enhancing the quality of life of for

all citizens who live, work and play in our communities by provid

Families will be given opportunities and experiences that enable them to become self

parents.  To ensure they have these opportunities and experiences YFD Centers will provide community

programs designed to provide families with support resources, literacy and career development, exposed to job

training, job referrals, and strengthen relationships with children by participating in activities and community

projects.   

Develop youth programs that will; improve academic performance and job readiness skills, gain exposure to

Career Development, have access to technology and tools to become self

positive social outlets and activities, decrease the likelihoo

likelihood of graduating high school.YFD Centers and specialized program facilities (Eastgate Senior Center,

Heritage House, North River Civic Center, and Skate Park) will create programs and special events

provide;   

Social Benefits; Involvement (responsibility, community pride & participation, and stimulate volunteerism),

Safe Places (positive diversions & gatherings, caring & accessible and security),

(neighborhood sustainability, celebrate richness of diversity), and increase cultural identity and unity), and

Partnerships (strengthen existing bonds, leverage resources and common purpose).

Personal Benefits; Fun (play & imagination, creativity & innovation and self

Wellness (balance life style and fitness & ethnic and wellness),

life & job skills and enhances cultural understanding & tolerance),

relationships & inclusion and create memories).
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Basketball League for Boys and girls ages 14 to 18 years old.

Games were scheduled at Howard High School starting at 6:00 p.m. to 11:00 p.m. on Thursday, Fr

Saturday nights. Average 400 to 500 spectators (teens, family members, and friends) each night.

Tournament was schedule the last week of the program.   

12 Participants who wrote their own songs and produce a CD. The progra

consisted of a talent showcase that teens and young adults auditions for one of the twelve spots. During the

summer artist were scheduled at Riverbend, Bessie Smith Strut and 11 community events throughout the City

“Next In Line” Internship Program: 30 Participants ages 13 to 15 years old.  Participants participated

were assigned to 15 of our YFD Community Centers. We provided them with an opportunity to shadow center

staff and gain on the job experience.  Teens also learned resume building, how to conduct an interview, work

and volunteer to work on community service projects.  When participants completed the 6

week program they received a $300 stipend  

Administration and YFD Community Center Employees;Director is responsible for providing leadership,

fiscal management of FY budget, communications and helping to generate program

Community Education and Recreation is dedicated to enhancing the quality of life of for

all citizens who live, work and play in our communities by providing “Life Long Learning” opportunities.

Families will be given opportunities and experiences that enable them to become self-sufficient and nurturing

parents. To ensure they have these opportunities and experiences YFD Centers will provide community

programs designed to provide families with support resources, literacy and career development, exposed to job

training, job referrals, and strengthen relationships with children by participating in activities and community

ams that will; improve academic performance and job readiness skills, gain exposure to

Career Development, have access to technology and tools to become self-sufficient and successful, increase

positive social outlets and activities, decrease the likelihood of dropping out of high school and increase the

likelihood of graduating high school.YFD Centers and specialized program facilities (Eastgate Senior Center,

Heritage House, North River Civic Center, and Skate Park) will create programs and special events

(responsibility, community pride & participation, and stimulate volunteerism),

(positive diversions & gatherings, caring & accessible and security), Strong Communities;

celebrate richness of diversity), and increase cultural identity and unity), and

(strengthen existing bonds, leverage resources and common purpose).  

(play & imagination, creativity & innovation and self-expression &

(balance life style and fitness & ethnic and wellness), Learning (experience something new,

life & job skills and enhances cultural understanding & tolerance), Connections; positive role models, foster

sion and create memories). 

3 

irls ages 14 to 18 years old. 

Games were scheduled at Howard High School starting at 6:00 p.m. to 11:00 p.m. on Thursday, Friday and 

Saturday nights. Average 400 to 500 spectators (teens, family members, and friends) each night. 

who wrote their own songs and produce a CD. The program 

consisted of a talent showcase that teens and young adults auditions for one of the twelve spots. During the 

community events throughout the City. 

Participants participated 

were assigned to 15 of our YFD Community Centers. We provided them with an opportunity to shadow center 

staff and gain on the job experience. Teens also learned resume building, how to conduct an interview, work 

and volunteer to work on community service projects. When participants completed the 6 

Director is responsible for providing leadership, 

fiscal management of FY budget, communications and helping to generate program 

Community Education and Recreation is dedicated to enhancing the quality of life of for 

ing “Life Long Learning” opportunities. 

sufficient and nurturing 

parents. To ensure they have these opportunities and experiences YFD Centers will provide community-based 

programs designed to provide families with support resources, literacy and career development, exposed to job 

training, job referrals, and strengthen relationships with children by participating in activities and community 

ams that will; improve academic performance and job readiness skills, gain exposure to 

sufficient and successful, increase 

d of dropping out of high school and increase the 

likelihood of graduating high school.YFD Centers and specialized program facilities (Eastgate Senior Center, 

Heritage House, North River Civic Center, and Skate Park) will create programs and special events that 

(responsibility, community pride & participation, and stimulate volunteerism), 

Strong Communities; 

celebrate richness of diversity), and increase cultural identity and unity), and 

expression & spontaneity), 

(experience something new, develops 

; positive role models, foster 
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Smarter Students, Stronger Families and Safer Streets

Stronger families make strong communities, where the hope of our children’s future begins. The

communities receive when work together to develop Smarter Students, and Stronger Families are:

• Safer Streets (Results Area 1)
• Reduce in crime and delinquency
• Connects families to start the process to rebuild “broken homes”
• Enhances ethnic and cultural understanding, harmony and tolerance
• Provides outlets for conflict resolution
• Creates caring adults (volunteers and mentors)
• Builds lifelines for elderly
• Community Pride (enhances property values)
• Reduce vandalism (business retention)
• Self-supporting programs (businesses become “stake holder”)

n & Marking of Programs and Services Provided by YFD)

t matters most for all ages of Chattanooga in an effort to support

munity partnerships and positive community health. Public information

s a critical asset in reaching such a large and diverse audience that

d vi

rvices. YFD’s rebranding and marketing goal is to increase community

ination of printed materials from our numerous faci

radio, print and billboard advertisement and utilize email marketing and

ive ROI and allowing for a multitude of target audiences. YFD will

d in an effort to keep cost down. A broad marketing plan will provide

neral overview of our areas of focus, along with citywide programs,

ages. This includ

rease is requested to

As rebranding takes shape, new platforms will be designed to capture interest, better ways to communicate,
ad value, and media coverage. This includes a new website landing page and restructured placement of
information, which follows in line with our 5 Ar
RecTrac registration service at our centers and facilities, and online sign up and registration tools. While a
large survey was conducted recently by the Regional Planning Agency, which provide
information, a new analysis may help us identify our strengths, weaknesses and opportunities even further,
again utilizing services such as RecTrac and surveys. Our social media presence is strong, however, the ever
changing algorithms and requirements will require us to keep up with trends to best utilize this beneficial and
free service. In some cases, due to new rules, a small amount of funding may be used to promote certain post
on our Facebook page. 

Eastgate Senior Activity Center is an entity of the City of Chattanooga Department of Youth and Family
Development that provides a holistic service to our elder population. The variety of programs that we offer are
developed and provided by staff, as well as dedicated volunteers tha
traditional exercise/health related classes, dance, computer, arts and crafts, as well as educational seminars,
that are specifically geared toward the interests of our senior community in Chattanooga. Our goal is
recruit, support and educate this often underserved population by offering a place where they can interact with
others with similar/generational interest. By developing quality programs and activities we are ensured a
growing and thriving population that reached over 45,000 in 2013.
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Smarter Students, Stronger Families and Safer Streets     

Stronger families make strong communities, where the hope of our children’s future begins. The

communities receive when work together to develop Smarter Students, and Stronger Families are:

(Results Area 1)
Reduce in crime and delinquency
Connects families to start the process to rebuild “broken homes”

and cultural understanding, harmony and tolerance
Provides outlets for conflict resolution
Creates caring adults (volunteers and mentors)
Builds lifelines for elderly
Community Pride (enhances property values)
Reduce vandalism (business retention)

upporting programs (businesses become “stake holder”)

Publication Information (Promot ed by YFD)

strives to proactively communicate w ort to support

ter students, stronger families, c . Public information

through advertisement and marketin e audience that

promotes and justifies opportunities a rship, Career

Development, Recreation, and Social crease community

and partner awareness through disse

community partners, provide proactiv mail marketing and

social media presence, creating a pos ces. YFD will

onprofit rates offe g plan will provide

the public and supporting agencies a ywide programs,

events, and YFD’s efforts to engage a arketing through

multiple advertisement sources. An i prime

Publication Information (Promoti ioon & Marking of Programs and Services Providided by YFD)  YFD 

strives to proactively communicate whahat matters most for all ages of Chattanooga in an effffort to support 

smarter students, stronger families, comommunity partnerships and positive community heal ltthh. Public information 

through advertisement and marketing g i is a critical asset in reaching such a large and diversse audience that 
promotes and justifies opportunities annd vision in YFD’s 5 Areas of Focus; Education, Leaddeership, Career 

Development, Recreation, and Social S eServices. YFD’s rebranding and marketing goal is to  iinncrease community 

and partner awareness through dissemmination of printed materials from our numerous facciilities, staff and 

community partners, provide proactive  e radio, print and billboard advertisement and utilizee  e email marketing and 

social media presence, creating a positi tive ROI and allowing for a multitude of target audieennces. YFD will 

continue to utilize nonprofit rates offerered in an effort to keep cost down.  A broad marketiinng plan will provide 

the public and supporting agencies a g egeneral overview of our areas of focus, along with ciittywide programs, 

events, and YFD’s efforts to engage alll l ages. This includes new brochures, signage, and mmarketing through 

multiple advertisement sources. 

As rebranding takes shape, new platforms will be designed to capture interest, better ways to communicate,
ad value, and media coverage. This includes a new website landing page and restructured placement of
information, which follows in line with our 5 Areas of Focus. This office plans to capture information through
RecTrac registration service at our centers and facilities, and online sign up and registration tools. While a
large survey was conducted recently by the Regional Planning Agency, which provided valuable communication
information, a new analysis may help us identify our strengths, weaknesses and opportunities even further,
again utilizing services such as RecTrac and surveys. Our social media presence is strong, however, the ever

thms and requirements will require us to keep up with trends to best utilize this beneficial and
free service. In some cases, due to new rules, a small amount of funding may be used to promote certain post

is an entity of the City of Chattanooga Department of Youth and Family
Development that provides a holistic service to our elder population. The variety of programs that we offer are
developed and provided by staff, as well as dedicated volunteers that engage our seniors in classes, such as
traditional exercise/health related classes, dance, computer, arts and crafts, as well as educational seminars,
that are specifically geared toward the interests of our senior community in Chattanooga.  Our goal is
recruit, support and educate this often underserved population by offering a place where they can interact with
others with similar/generational interest.  By developing quality programs and activities we are ensured a

at reached over 45,000 in 2013. 
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Smarter Students, Stronger Families and Safer Streets

Stronger families make strong communities, where the hope of our children’s future begins.  The benefits that 

communities receive when work together to develop Smarter Students, and Stronger Families are: 

Publication Information (Promotion & Marking of Programs and Services Prov

strives to proactively communicate what matters most for all ages of Chattanooga in an e

ter students, stronger families, community partnerships and positive community hea

through advertisement and marketing is a critical asset in reaching such a large and diver

sion in YFD’s 5 Areas of Focus; Education, Lea

Development, Recreation, and Social Services. YFD’s rebranding and marketing goal is to

and partner awareness through dissemination of printed materials from our numerous fa

community partners, provide proactive radio, print and billboard advertisement and utiliz

social media presence, creating a positive ROI and allowing for a multitude of target audi

onprofit rates offered in an effort to keep cost down. A broad market

the public and supporting agencies a general overview of our areas of focus, along with c

, and

a wee

As rebranding takes shape, new platforms will be designed to capture interest, better ways to communicate, 
ad value, and media coverage. This includes a new website landing page and restructured placement of 

eas of Focus. This office plans to capture information through 
RecTrac registration service at our centers and facilities, and online sign up and registration tools. While a 

d valuable communication 
information, a new analysis may help us identify our strengths, weaknesses and opportunities even further, 
again utilizing services such as RecTrac and surveys. Our social media presence is strong, however, the ever-

thms and requirements will require us to keep up with trends to best utilize this beneficial and 
free service. In some cases, due to new rules, a small amount of funding may be used to promote certain post 

is an entity of the City of Chattanooga Department of Youth and Family 
Development that provides a holistic service to our elder population. The variety of programs that we offer are 

t engage our seniors in classes, such as 
traditional exercise/health related classes, dance, computer, arts and crafts, as well as educational seminars, 
that are specifically geared toward the interests of our senior community in Chattanooga.  Our goal is to 
recruit, support and educate this often underserved population by offering a place where they can interact with 
others with similar/generational interest. By developing quality programs and activities we are ensured a 
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Heritage House Arts & Civic Center
downtown. The facility is a moderately sized and priced venue available to residents to use for community
events and celebrations (anniversaries, weddings, showers, birthdays, family reunions, pastor appreciations,
funerals, graduations, services, festivals,
retreats, public meetings and forums for nei
hosts training and retreats for other city departments and for
the Community. Heritage House co-hosts two very large community festivals wi
thousand for each and a local diversity event with 5
unified community and families, and are a celebration of both. The facility also hosts a community
concerts, free networking and training events, a free film series, an arts collective, exercise classes and arts
classes. Heritage House is working with the General Services department in order to make many more classes
feasible in the next year at little or no a
developing an adult literacy and reading English as a second language center. Because of our unique look,
location and layout, Heritage House will be a less daunting and more “grown up” and co
adults and immigrants to attend reading courses. Our staff is also developing a special program with a national
leading authority, to teach young adults life skills that will help them adapt and interact comfortably in
unfamiliar communities whether the difference is cultural or demographic.

The North River Civic Center has been serving the North River area since the grand opening in February
2004.  The center features educational, recreational and fitness programs for adults and sen
also serves as an art and entertainment venue, and meeting place for business and community organizations.
An average of 2,000 visitors and program participants come through our doors monthly.

How will it be provided?: Programs/Specia
bridge clubs, car shows, card games, cooking classes, knitting, life drawing, line dancing, low impact aerobics,
rug hooking, tap dance, computer literacy for seniors and special events

What innovation & sustainability practice does this
501©(3) organization established to act as an advisory panel to support the center in promotion, programs,
publicity (printing for NRCC Program Booklet for Sunset Concert Series (free to the public) & seasonal
programs/events), volunteer staffing and fundraising. Facility rental fees (community organizations and
citizens) and rental fees. We presently have twenty
Assist, Life Care, Memorial Hospital, Morning Pointe, Quee
Brightstar, Grace Clinic, Kiwanis, Rehab South, MedTech Enterprises, American Legion 159, Custom Custodial,
Friends of Hixson, Gas Appliance, State Farm, County Commissioners and private citizens.

What difference does this offer make and how will we know?

By popular demand, we strive to provide the community with requested programs for senior including
computer literacy, beginning painting and drawing, free health and wellness seminars and cultural arts
activities.  Our programs are affordable and monitored by atten

Identify Which Desired Outcomes 

• Stronger Students and Stronger Families
• YFD Centers are seen as a
• Provide opportunities to give youth a “voice” on decisions that impact their lives
• Provide literacy program that improve students’ academic performance
• Provide Culture Arts Programs that youth and adu
• Provide new platforms to promote and market YFD Programs and Services

City of Chattanooga 

Offers 

Heritage House Arts & Civic Center is a unique multi use facility. It is the only space of its kind east of
downtown. The facility is a moderately sized and priced venue available to residents to use for community

d celebrations (anniversaries, weddings, showers, birthdays, family reunions, pastor appreciations,
festivals, holiday markets etc.) as well as business training, conferences

, public meetings and forums for neighborhood associations and other civic groups.
hosts training and retreats for other city departments and for inter-city / county seminars. Our focus is unity in

hosts two very large community festivals with attendees numbering 6
thousand for each and a local diversity event with 5-700 attendees annually. These festivals focus on a strong
unified community and families, and are a celebration of both. The facility also hosts a community

s, free networking and training events, a free film series, an arts collective, exercise classes and arts
with the General Services department in order to make many more classes

feasible in the next year at little or no additional cost to the city. This coming year, Heritage House is
developing an adult literacy and reading English as a second language center. Because of our unique look,
location and layout, Heritage House will be a less daunting and more “grown up” and comfortable location for
adults and immigrants to attend reading courses. Our staff is also developing a special program with a national
leading authority, to teach young adults life skills that will help them adapt and interact comfortably in

munities whether the difference is cultural or demographic. 

has been serving the North River area since the grand opening in February
2004. The center features educational, recreational and fitness programs for adults and sen
also serves as an art and entertainment venue, and meeting place for business and community organizations.
An average of 2,000 visitors and program participants come through our doors monthly. 

Programs/Special Events include free concerts, visual arts exhibitions, bingo,
bridge clubs, car shows, card games, cooking classes, knitting, life drawing, line dancing, low impact aerobics,
rug hooking, tap dance, computer literacy for seniors and special events such as health fairs.

What innovation & sustainability practice does this leverage? Friends of the NRCC is a not
501©(3) organization established to act as an advisory panel to support the center in promotion, programs,
publicity (printing for NRCC Program Booklet for Sunset Concert Series (free to the public) & seasonal

ts), volunteer staffing and fundraising. Facility rental fees (community organizations and
We presently have twenty-one sponsors; Alexian Brothers Senior Ministries, Care

Assist, Life Care, Memorial Hospital, Morning Pointe, Queen Financial, Chamber of Commerce, Hixson Council,
Brightstar, Grace Clinic, Kiwanis, Rehab South, MedTech Enterprises, American Legion 159, Custom Custodial,
Friends of Hixson, Gas Appliance, State Farm, County Commissioners and private citizens. 

ference does this offer make and how will we know? 

By popular demand, we strive to provide the community with requested programs for senior including
computer literacy, beginning painting and drawing, free health and wellness seminars and cultural arts

ivities. Our programs are affordable and monitored by attendance and customer satisfaction.

Identify Which Desired Outcomes cts

Stronger Students and Stronger Families
YFD Centers are seen as a resource for families and youth to connect to services
Provide opportunities to give youth a “voice” on decisions that impact their lives
Provide literacy program that improve students’ academic performance
Provide Culture Arts Programs that youth and adults can express themselves
Provide new platforms to promote and market YFD Programs and Services
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is a unique multi use facility. It is the only space of its kind east of 
downtown. The facility is a moderately sized and priced venue available to residents to use for community 

d celebrations (anniversaries, weddings, showers, birthdays, family reunions, pastor appreciations, 
training, conferences and 
groups. The facility also 

/ county seminars. Our focus is unity in 
th attendees numbering 6-8 

700 attendees annually. These festivals focus on a strong 
unified community and families, and are a celebration of both. The facility also hosts a community Board, free 

s, free networking and training events, a free film series, an arts collective, exercise classes and arts 
with the General Services department in order to make many more classes 

This coming year, Heritage House is 
developing an adult literacy and reading English as a second language center. Because of our unique look, 

mfortable location for 
adults and immigrants to attend reading courses. Our staff is also developing a special program with a national 
leading authority, to teach young adults life skills that will help them adapt and interact comfortably in 

has been serving the North River area since the grand opening in February 
2004. The center features educational, recreational and fitness programs for adults and seniors.  The facility 
also serves as an art and entertainment venue, and meeting place for business and community organizations. 

l Events include free concerts, visual arts exhibitions, bingo, 
bridge clubs, car shows, card games, cooking classes, knitting, life drawing, line dancing, low impact aerobics, 

health fairs.  

of the NRCC is a not-for-profit 
501©(3) organization established to act as an advisory panel to support the center in promotion, programs, 
publicity (printing for NRCC Program Booklet for Sunset Concert Series (free to the public) & seasonal 

ts), volunteer staffing and fundraising. Facility rental fees (community organizations and 
one sponsors; Alexian Brothers Senior Ministries, Care 

n Financial, Chamber of Commerce, Hixson Council, 
Brightstar, Grace Clinic, Kiwanis, Rehab South, MedTech Enterprises, American Legion 159, Custom Custodial, 

 

By popular demand, we strive to provide the community with requested programs for senior including 
computer literacy, beginning painting and drawing, free health and wellness seminars and cultural arts 

dance and customer satisfaction.  

this Offer Ifrom Request for Offer(s) that this Offer Impmpaacts: 

resource for families and youth to connect to services 
Provide opportunities to give youth a “voice” on decisions that impact their lives

lts can express themselves 
Provide new platforms to promote and market YFD Programs and Services
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1. Healthy and active seniors.

2. A vital senior community that allows seniors to interact with others their own age.

3. A well informed and educated senior c

1. Increase Reading Proficiency for children and adults

2. More parental involvement

3. Provides all of the last four budget strategies engaging volunteers/ civic participation, multi
programming, access to technology, public safety

1. Expand our cultural arts programs and special events that acknowledge our diverse visual arts
community.2.  Provide an intensive art program focusing on the development of the artistic talents of
our seniors.3.  Provide opportunities for senior
and youth literacy programs at our YFD Centers

on Dept. Operating

Department 

Personnel Cost
(including
Benefits)

Youth and Family 
Development 4 ,183,625

Total  4 ,183,625

orating Department totals for this

Capital Budget Impact?  Xx  Yes 

l Budget Request Form

Financial Offsets :( Please list any Revenue
Contributions, Etc.) 

Name 

Southeast Tennessee Area Agency on Aging &
Disability  

Arts Build/Allied Arts 

Aerobic & Tap Dance Classes 

Rentals 

Class fees 

Revenues/Rental and Program Fees 

Corporate Sponsors/Friends of the North River Civic
Center 

Grant/Arts Build 

City of Chattanooga 

Offers 

2. A vital senior community that allows seniors to interact with others their own age.

3. A well informed and educated senior community. 

1. Increase Reading Proficiency for children and adults

3. Provides all of the last four budget strategies engaging volunteers/ civic participation, multi
programming, access to technology, public safety classes. 

our cultural arts programs and special events that acknowledge our diverse visual arts
community.2. Provide an intensive art program focusing on the development of the artistic talents of
our seniors.3. Provide opportunities for seniors and adults to volunteer in community service projects
and youth literacy programs at our YFD Centers. 

BUDGET REQUEST 

(Please complete base l

Personnel Cost 
(including 
Benefits) Operations Request 

183,625 1,164,042 5 ,347,667 

183,625 1,164,042 5 ,347,667 

*Amounts MUST agree with co
*Amounts MUST agree with collab lla borating Department totals for this offer 

No  $7,200,000  Amount 

*Please prepare and attach Cap*Please prepare and attach Capita it al Budget Request Form 

Revenue e.g. golf course revenue, Grants, Private/Corporate

Amount 

Southeast Tennessee Area Agency on Aging & $44,016 

$2,500 

$1,286.75 

26,000 

500.00 

10,000 approx. 

Corporate Sponsors/Friends of the North River Civic $25,000 

$1425 

6 

3. Provides all of the last four budget strategies engaging volunteers/ civic participation, multi-generational 

our cultural arts programs and special events that acknowledge our diverse visual arts
community.2. Provide an intensive art program focusing on the development of the artistic talents of

s and adults to volunteer in community service projects

Dept. Person

%  of 
offer 

 FTEs 
require

d 

100% 69.5 

0% 

100% 69.5 

Grants, Private/Corporate 
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Measurement 3:Participant Attendance

FY2012 FY2013

70,000 approx. 

Measurement 2:Number of Programs

FY2012 FY2013

1000 approx. 1000

Measurement 3:Revenues 

FY2012 FY2013

100000 approx. 100000

Return on Investment: 

How do citizens benefit?An investment in Chattanooga’s youth and families is an investment in our city’s

growth and prosperity. Developing smarter students is an investment in our future workforce and leadership

for local communities. An educated populous creates better outcomes fo

Statistics show that educating citizens reduces the strain on our courts systems and creates safer streets.

When the community has healthy, positive alternative programs for youth and families, young adults make

economic and social decisions to stay in a vibrant, progressive city with opportunities for everyone.

Participation in educational and recreational programs has an impact on creating safer streets, stronger

neighborhoods, provides revenue to sustain programs, and bonds families in lasting ways. These healthy

options for youth and their families to learn a

action.   

Current information for the Lexia Program
Measurement 4:  Lexia Beginning Data vs Current Data 9

Number of Active 
Students 

% of Students
On Grade Level

or Above

1221 

Beginning information of the Lexia Program

Number of Active 
Students 

% of Students
On Grade Level

or Above

227 

City of Chattanooga 
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PERFORMANCE DATA 

Participant Attendance 

FY2013 FY2014 FY2015 Target

75,000 approx. 80,000 approx. 

Number of Programs 

FY2013 FY2014 FY2015 Target

1000 approx. 1000 approx. 

FY2013 FY2014 FY2015 Target

100000 approx. 100000 approx. 

investment in Chattanooga’s youth and families is an investment in our city’s

growth and prosperity. Developing smarter students is an investment in our future workforce and leadership

for local communities. An educated populous creates better outcomes for our schools and business community.

Statistics show that educating citizens reduces the strain on our courts systems and creates safer streets.

When the community has healthy, positive alternative programs for youth and families, young adults make

ic and social decisions to stay in a vibrant, progressive city with opportunities for everyone.

Participation in educational and recreational programs has an impact on creating safer streets, stronger

neighborhoods, provides revenue to sustain programs, and bonds families in lasting ways. These healthy

options for youth and their families to learn and thrive make for a sound investment through prevention and

Current information for the Lexia Program 
Measurement 4: Lexia Beginning Data vs Current Data 9-13 vs 3-14 

% of Students  
On Grade Level 

or Above 

% of Students 
Below Grade 

Level 

Average Weekly
Usage 

28% 72% 39 min/wk 

Beginning information of the Lexia Program 

% of Students  
On Grade Level 

or Above 

% of Students 
Below Grade 

Level 

Average Weekly
Usage 

14% 86% 33 min/wk 

7 

FY2015 Target 

85,000 

FY2015 Target 

1500 

FY2015 Target 

150000 

investment in Chattanooga’s youth and families is an investment in our city’s 

growth and prosperity. Developing smarter students is an investment in our future workforce and leadership 

r our schools and business community. 

Statistics show that educating citizens reduces the strain on our courts systems and creates safer streets. 

When the community has healthy, positive alternative programs for youth and families, young adults make 

ic and social decisions to stay in a vibrant, progressive city with opportunities for everyone.   

Participation in educational and recreational programs has an impact on creating safer streets, stronger 

neighborhoods, provides revenue to sustain programs, and bonds families in lasting ways.  These healthy 

nd thrive make for a sound investment through prevention and 

Average Weekly Monthly Units 
Gained  

31,137 

Average Weekly Monthly Units 
Gained  

5,767 
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Does this activity leverage other financial resources?

How does this decrease costs over time?

stronger families, the impact on safer streets and stronger neighborhoods cannot be overlooked. Increasing

the number of users and subsequent fees assessed for access, will decrease costs over

perfecting the delivery of services and meeting the desired outcomes will afford YFD to apply for other funding

sources over time, thereby decrease the cost of programs in the future.

Return on Investment:     

How do citizens benefit? Seniors benefit from all programs, activities, and educational programs specifically

designed for them that help to foster a healthier more sustainable life style.

Does this activity leverage other financial resources?

of the expenses that are incurred during the year.

How does this decrease costs over time?

community that does not need to rely on the medical community to help sustain the individual. This me

healthier, mind, body, and spirit that will not be susceptible to the ravages of aging, depression, and many

unhealthy choices that often plague the elderly community.

Return on Investment: 

How do citizens benefit?  Multi Use facility accessible for free or at moderate cost which offers

multigenerational use and programming that encourages a healthy active lifestyle and a unified community.

Access to technology which creates adult literacy in native English speakers

and success of immigrants. Both of which additionally assist in the success of children /students of participants.

Access to safety, art, music, film, acting, dance, exercise and other classes at a greatly discounted rate

free.  

Does this activity leverage other financial 

sponsorships, interdepartmental/ county city events, equipment donations, county commission support.

Festival proceeds are traditionally donated t

and an off leash dog park. 

How does this decrease costs over time?

community benefits the entire economy. A vibrant park, facility w

activities increase the value of homes and businesses in the area which contribute to the tax base and

infrastructure. Once the elemental resources, computers, web access router etc. are purchased or donated,

they may be used for many years. 

Return on Investment: 

How do citizens benefit? Recreational, educational, community health programs, cultural and community

events are very beneficial to seniors and adults in the North Chattanooga area. The Civic Center strives

continue providing lifelong learning; a better quality of life and means to an improved healthy lifestyle

City of Chattanooga 

Offers 

Does this activity leverage other financial resources?  

How does this decrease costs over time?  Although YFD services focus on developing smarter students and

stronger families, the impact on safer streets and stronger neighborhoods cannot be overlooked. Increasing

the number of users and subsequent fees assessed for access, will decrease costs over time. Improving and

perfecting the delivery of services and meeting the desired outcomes will afford YFD to apply for other funding

sources over time, thereby decrease the cost of programs in the future.   

Return on Investment:

benefit from all programs, activities, and educational programs specifically

designed for them that help to foster a healthier more sustainable life style. 

Does this activity leverage other financial resources?  At Present the STAAD grant helps to offset

of the expenses that are incurred during the year.  

How does this decrease costs over time?  The return investment is a healthier more engaged senior

community that does not need to rely on the medical community to help sustain the individual. This me

healthier, mind, body, and spirit that will not be susceptible to the ravages of aging, depression, and many

choices that often plague the elderly community. 

Multi Use facility accessible for free or at moderate cost which offers

multigenerational use and programming that encourages a healthy active lifestyle and a unified community.

Access to technology which creates adult literacy in native English speakers and increases the naturalization

immigrants. Both of which additionally assist in the success of children /students of participants.

Access to safety, art, music, film, acting, dance, exercise and other classes at a greatly discounted rate

Does this activity leverage other financial resources? Through rentals, class/ instructor fees,

sponsorships, interdepartmental/ county city events, equipment donations, county commission support.

Festival proceeds are traditionally donated to the city for a specific use, such as park benches, programming

How does this decrease costs over time?Fees and cash donations offset costs. An educated literate

community benefits the entire economy. A vibrant park, facility with active neighborhood associations and

activities increase the value of homes and businesses in the area which contribute to the tax base and

infrastructure. Once the elemental resources, computers, web access router etc. are purchased or donated,

Recreational, educational, community health programs, cultural and community

events are very beneficial to seniors and adults in the North Chattanooga area.  The Civic Center strives

continue providing lifelong learning; a better quality of life and means to an improved healthy lifestyle
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Although YFD services focus on developing smarter students and 

stronger families, the impact on safer streets and stronger neighborhoods cannot be overlooked. Increasing 

time. Improving and 

perfecting the delivery of services and meeting the desired outcomes will afford YFD to apply for other funding 

benefit from all programs, activities, and educational programs specifically 

At Present the STAAD grant helps to offset many 

The return investment is a healthier more engaged senior 

community that does not need to rely on the medical community to help sustain the individual. This means a 

healthier, mind, body, and spirit that will not be susceptible to the ravages of aging, depression, and many 

Multi Use facility accessible for free or at moderate cost which offers 

multigenerational use and programming that encourages a healthy active lifestyle and a unified community. 

and increases the naturalization 

immigrants. Both of which additionally assist in the success of children /students of participants. 

Access to safety, art, music, film, acting, dance, exercise and other classes at a greatly discounted rate or for 

rentals, class/ instructor fees, 

sponsorships, interdepartmental/ county city events, equipment donations, county commission support. 

o the city for a specific use, such as park benches, programming 

offset costs. An educated literate 

ith active neighborhood associations and 

activities increase the value of homes and businesses in the area which contribute to the tax base and 

infrastructure. Once the elemental resources, computers, web access router etc. are purchased or donated, 

Recreational, educational, community health programs, cultural and community 

events are very beneficial to seniors and adults in the North Chattanooga area. The Civic Center strives to 

continue providing lifelong learning; a better quality of life and means to an improved healthy lifestyle.  
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Does this activity leverage other financial resources?

1. Twenty five percent (25%) of the program fees are retained by the city to offset expe

will include affordable registration entry fees for activities such as car shows & health fair vendors.

2. The Friends of the North River Civic Center

publicity and volunteer staffing.

3. Facility Rental fees the center charges $60 per hour for special events plus damage deposit of $75 and

an affordable of $35-$50 is charges for meetings to offset the operating cost.

How does this decrease costs over

programs sponsorships and grants. 

City of Chattanooga 

Offers 

Does this activity leverage other financial resources?  

Twenty five percent (25%) of the program fees are retained by the city to offset expe

will include affordable registration entry fees for activities such as car shows & health fair vendors.

The Friends of the North River Civic Center board supports the center in promotion, programs,

publicity and volunteer staffing.   

the center charges $60 per hour for special events plus damage deposit of $75 and

$50 is charges for meetings to offset the operating cost. 

How does this decrease costs over time? Portions of the operating cost are covered by volunteer staffing;

9 

Twenty five percent (25%) of the program fees are retained by the city to offset expenses.  Also, we 

will include affordable registration entry fees for activities such as car shows & health fair vendors. 

board supports the center in promotion, programs, 

the center charges $60 per hour for special events plus damage deposit of $75 and 

of the operating cost are covered by volunteer staffing; 
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OFFER SUMMARY 

Offer Name: Fire Explorer Program 

Offer Number:  7 

Department 
Offer Rank:         7 of 7 

Lead 
Department: Fire Department Collaboration: Y ____     N__X__ 

Administrator: Fire Chief Lamar Flint 

Offer Cost: $6,810 Primary Results Area: Smarter Students & Stronger Families 

RESULTS AREA

1. Safer Streets – Safe communities, reduced crime, positive opportunities, and alternate pathways.

2. Growing Economy – Growing and supporting local businesses, workforce development, business
recruitment and retention, and an environment for innovation.

3. Stronger Neighborhoods – Neighborhood leadership, connected communities, healthy residential
markets, and rapid rehousing.

4. Smarter Students, Stronger Families – Parents and first teachers, community support, and

community health.

5. High Performing Government – Data-driven decision making, sound operations, outstanding

customer service, resource management, and exceptional talent.

6. Innovation Fund – Something different – processes, services, technologies, ideas.  Shifting the way

government operates.

DETAILS 

Description: (What is the service/program? How will it be provided? What innovation & sustainability practice does this leverage? 
What difference does this offer make and how will we know? Make a compelling case for your offer.) 

Offer 7 – Fire Explorer Program 
The following offer seeks to fund a program to provide youth in the City with an opportunity to join a group 
dedicated to learning about the fire service and so much more. This venture partners the Chattanooga Fire 
Department (CFD) with the Boy Scouts of America (BSA) in a program called “Chattanooga Fire Explorers.” 
However, it is not just for boys, as “Exploring” provides a safe learning environment, where all students 
between the ages of 14-20, can become responsible individuals by learning about diversity, positive character 
traits, career development, and leadership and life skills. All of these help these youth make ethical choices 
and achieve their full potential. 

To elaborate, the young people that share in this opportunity, will be provided the following: 

 Leadership Training – They will learn to make decisions that positively affect those around them, to
proactively impact their world for the better, and to find out what they are capable of accomplishing;

 Responsibility – They will learn how to answer for their actions, help and hold others accountable for
theirs, and learn what it means to help their team succeed in all activities and areas of life;

 Teamwork – They will learn that there is not one-person team, that each person is valuable and
unique, and that each member is vital to successfully achieving goals.
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Members of the CFD will voluntarily staff this monthly program to provide a stable and safe environment, 
ensure activities are scheduled and safely performed, and most of all, to provide positive mentorship to the 
program’s participants. There is no greater form of teaching character than mentorship, and that’s ultimately 
what this program seeks to achieve for some youth that might not otherwise have access to it. 

Fire Explorer Program – Attributes 

 Explorers – Practical, real-world career experiences and insight; stimulated interest in continual
education; building of leadership, self-confidence and problem-solving skills; cooperative relationship
between adults and youth; and community service to others

 Employees – Increased realization that we are ALL responsible for molding today’s youth and
tomorrow’s leaders; greater job awareness; opportunity for greater community involvement;
enhanced communication, planning and program development skills; and increased initiative of
employees

 Department – Cultivation of possible future employees; impacting the education process of youth;
preparing young adults for transition from school to work; development of future responsible and
caring adults; improving staff teamwork toward common goals outside normal duties; and visible
commitment to the overall welfare of the community.

As one can see, this program provides external opportunities for youth development, opportunities for 
employees to serve in a “big picture” way, as well as, opportunities for the department to have a positive and 
proactive impact on the community. 

______________________________________________________________________ 

Fire Explorer Program – Results Areas and Desired Outcomes 
Primary – Smarter Students and Stronger Families 

1) More kids graduating high school and college/career ready – Some young men and women don’t
have access to great role models or activities that can help them develop. This program seeks to 
provide positive mentorship and activities toward the development of knowledge, skills and ability. 

Budget Strategies Realized: Through a partnership with the BSA, this program seeks to target 
youth with high quality activities, programming and interaction designed to help them develop 
into becoming responsible adults. 

Secondary – Safer Streets 
1) Reduce juvenile crime – Some arson occurs at the hands of juveniles. This offer seeks to reduce
that amount by helping the community provide worthy involvement in a program that provides 
mentorship and activities designed to develop Leadership, Responsibility and Teamwork 

Budget Strategies Realized:  Maintains safe and secure streets, facilities, and public spaces for 
all citizens by providing an exciting venue for participation and mentorship. 

______________________________________________________________________ 

Fire Explorer Program – Staffing 
Summary – The program will be voluntarily staffed by members of the CFD, and therefore, there is no cost 
for staffing toward the implementation of this program. There has already been an exciting, preliminary 
response from CFD employees, who have shown interest in assisting with the program. In addition, BSA 
representatives will be providing initial expertise and assistance as the program is implemented. 
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______________________________________________________________________ 

Fire Explorer Program – Operating Expenses 
This offer seeks to fund the Fire Explorer Program at an initial program cost of $6,810. While this is a new 
venture to the department, there are several operating expenses associated with the program. These include 
BSA program fees, uniforms and safety equipment for the students, learning literature pertinent to the fire 
service, insurance to cover activities for the youth and adults, and smoke detectors for a program service 
opportunity. 

Since the program will target youth that might not be able to pay for the program’s uniform and equipment 
needs, this offer seeks the program’s funding through the Budgeting For Outcomes process. These costs are 
further broken down in Table 1: Fire Explorer Program Costs below. 

Table 5: Fire Explorer Program Costs 

______________________________________________________________________ 

Fire Prevention Bureau – Overall Performance Metrics 
- Number of Students – In establishing the Explorer Program, the number of students and hours of 

involvement will be recorded monthly and reported on a quarterly basis 
Current:  N/A – Establishing New Program 
Goal: Increase number of students involved in program as it progresses 
Tabulation: Record meetings, activities and service hours monthly through sign-in sheets and 
report quarterly 

______________________________________________________________________ 
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Fire Administration – Mandates, Standards and Recommendations 
- BSA Exploring Literature – brochures and program literature to provide guidance on establishment of 

program 
- BSA Cherokee Area Council Leadership – Philip Jones (Mountain District Senior District Executive) 

and Ryan Ivey (Mission District Senior District Executive) – To provide leadership and guidance to 
establish program and provide formal Council recognition of “Chattanooga Explorer Post” 

- Walker County Emergency Services Explorer Post 2146 – By-laws and guidelines to assist in 
establishment of program 

Identify Which Desired Outcomes from Request for Offer(s) that this Offer Impacts: 

*See each section above for more thorough information regarding each of the Desired Outcomes this offer
hopes to impact. 

1. Smarter Students & Stronger Families – More kids graduating high school and college/career ready by
providing mentorship, and knowledge and skill development. 

2. Safer Streets – Reduce juvenile crime by providing a safe venue for exciting activity, learning and service
opportunities. 

BUDGET REQUEST

Summary:  (Please complete based on Dept. Operating Detail and Dept. Personnel Detail Forms) 

Department 
Personnel Cost 

(including Benefits) Operations Request 
%  of 
offer 

 FTEs 
required 

Fire – Fire Explorer Program N/A $6,810 $6,810 100% 0 

Total N/A $6,810 $6,810 100% 0 
*Amounts MUST agree with collaborating Department totals for this offer 

Capital Budget Impact?        Yes      XNo     $Amount 

*Please prepare and attach Capital Budget Request Form 

Financial Offsets: (Please list any Revenue e.g. golf course revenue, Grants, Private/Corporate Contributions, Etc.) 

Name Amount 

N/A N/A 

PERFORMANCE DATA

Measurement 1:  Number of Students – In establishing the Explorer Program, the number of students and 
hours of involvement will be recorded monthly and reported on a quarterly basis 

FY2012 FY2013 FY2014 FY2015 Target 

N/A – New Program Establishing Baseline – 30 Students 
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Return on Investment: 

How do citizens benefit?  This offer benefits citizens by providing mentorship and skill development to youth 

in our City. This program will target male and female youth between the ages of 14-20, who might not 

otherwise have access to this type of educational opportunity. In many communities, youth can struggle to 

find mentors and activities that build character and opportunity. This program seeks to do that in a special 

way. In partnership with the Boy Scouts of America, this program provides a safe, but exciting venue that 

provides some knowledge and skill training, but more importantly provides an opportunity for the young man 

or woman to develop character traits toward leadership, responsibility and teamwork.  

Therefore, as this offer is funded, citizens can expect an exciting, alternative program for young men and 

women that seek mentorship and help them prepare for a great future. 

Does this activity leverage other financial resources?  N/A 

How does this decrease costs over time?  It doesn’t, as the staffing for the program is completely voluntary. 
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OFFER SUMMARY 

Offer Name: Senior Recreation and Education Programs 

Offer Number:  Seven (7) 

Department 
Offer Rank:  7 

Lead 
Department: Youth & Family Development Collaboration: Y ____  N__X___ 

Administrator: Lurone Jennings 

Offer Cost: $60,016.20 Primary Results Area: 

Smarter Students, Stronger 

Families 

RESULTS AREA

1. Safer Streets – Safe communities, reduced crime, positive opportunities, and alternate
pathways.

2. Growing Economy – Growing and supporting local businesses, workforce development,
business recruitment and retention, and an environment for innovation.

3. Stronger Neighborhoods – Neighborhood leadership, connected communities, healthy
residential markets, and rapid rehousing.

4. Smarter Students, Stronger Families – Parents and first teachers, community support, and
community health.

5. High Performing Government – Data-driven decision making, sound operations, outstanding
customer service, resource management, and exceptional talent.

6. Innovation Fund – Something different – processes, services, technologies, ideas.  Shifting the
way government operates.

DETAILS 

Description: (What is the service/program? How will it be provided? What innovation & sustainability practice 

does this leverage? What difference does this offer make and how will we know? Make a compelling case for 

your offer.)  

Senior Recreation and Education Programs goal is to provide life enrichment for all seniors 50 years of age and 

over through opportunities that promote health, happiness and peace of mind in a safe, social and interactive 

environment. 

Seniors will have the opportunity to participate in wellness programs that offer a variety of health benefits as 

well as educational and information resources for seniors in all demographics.  Guiding behaviors, habits and 

lifestyle enhances quality of life for many seniors, and offers ideas and tips on how to live longer, healthier 

lives.  The focus of senior health or wellness programs is to educate seniors on how best to manage their 

health and activity levels for optimal function and performance. 

Home Safety Seminars will include but are not limited to fire safety, creating a safe, fall proof living 

environment, and availability to home improvement options like safety grab bars in bathrooms and non-skid 
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rugs in the kitchens, hallways and bathrooms leads to reduced falls and injuries in the home. 

Educational Programs that encourage the independence of seniors helps them maintain a richer 

personal life and ability to remain in their homes longer.  Regular exercise and fitness is encouraged to help 

seniors maintain and improve mobility, range of motion, balance, stability and strength and endurance, leading 

to greater ability to function on a daily basis without help. 

Bridging the Gap Between Youth and Seniors; provide opportunities for seniors and youth to work 

together for a “Strong Future” for both generations.  Youth has energy and that needs to be channelizing into 

positive force for welfare and betterment of our seniors.  Research suggests that youthful energy may not be 

“wasted” after all.  Through social interactions alone, the young can pass some of their vigor on to the senior 

populations, improving the older generation’s cognitive abilities and vascular health and even increasing their 

life span. 

Social and cultural changes in society are giving rise to transitions in intergenerational relations.  Both the 

younger and older generation complain of generation gap and a breakdown in communication between the 

two.  How the young and old judge one another determines whether they can live harmoniously with each 

other.  Their attitudes towards each other and the way they perceive each other needs to properly understood 

if the gap needs to be bridge.  Research suggests that despite tensions and differences between the two 

generation there is some amount of love and care shared by the two generations, which needs to be 

strengthened.  Both need to realize that they cannot try to “make over” the other and change others. 

Mentorship Programs can share the benefits of their accumulated knowledge and experience by mentoring 

students or younger adults who are interested in spending time with and learning from a more mature person. 

Activities can range from conversation to helping a younger person master a new language or a musical 

instrument, playing chess, or crocheting.  Mentorship partners meet once or on an ongoing basis at mutually 

convenient times and locations. 

Oral History Projects; A senior’s unique story is one of the most valuable gifts he or she can give to the 

younger generation.  In this program, students visit seniors to conduct oral histories, and share copies of their 

final projects with the seniors whose lives they have documented. 

Olympics is an event for seniors 50 and older that combines a wide range of competitive activities. The 

objectives of the Senior Olympics are to recognize people who have achieved and maintained good health 

throughout their lives; promote physical fitness and the pursuit of the lifetime leisure activities; and provides 

opportunities for fun, recreation and fellowship. 

Identify Which Desired Outcomes from Request for Offer(s) that this Offer Impacts: 

1. Maintain good health

2. Bridging the Gap Between Youth and Seniors;

3. Mentorship Programs

4. Competition amongst peers

5. Fellowship
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BUDGET REQUEST

Summary:  (Please complete based on Dept. Operating Detail and Dept. Personnel Detail Forms) 

Department 

Personnel Cost 

(including Benefits) Operations Request 

%  of 

offer 

 FTEs 

required 

Youth & Family 

Development $60,016.20 $0.00 $60,016.20 100% 1 

0% 

Total $  60,016.20 $  0.00 $  60,016.20 100% 1 
*Amounts MUST agree with collaborating Department totals for this offer 

Capital Budget Impact?        Yes      X      No $Amount 

*Please prepare and attach Capital Budget Request Form 

Financial Offsets: (Please list any Revenue e.g. golf course revenue, Grants, Private/Corporate Contributions, Etc.) 

Name Amount 

Sponsorships $10,000.00 to $20,000.00 

PERFORMANCE DATA

Measurement 1:  District Participation * DENOTES MOST OF ALL TN DISTRICTS 

FY2012 FY2013 FY2014 FY2015 Target 

*471 *455 475 500 

Measurement 2: Number of seniors participating in seminars and programs. 

FY2012 FY2013 FY2014 FY2015 Target 

Increase in the first 
six months 

Measurement 3: Number of youth participating in programs 

FY2012 FY2013 FY2014 FY2015 Target 

Increase in the first 
six months 

Return on Investment: 

How do citizens benefit?  Regular exercise lowers the risk for heart disease, high blood pressure, type 2 

diabetes, stroke and obesity.  Exercise can also add years to your life expectancy and also increase one’s 
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strength and energy. 

Does this activity leverage other financial resources?  Yes, a healthier population DECREASES insurance cost 

How does this decrease costs over time?  Active lifestyles decrease insurance, doctor’s visits and hospital 

stays. 
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Offer Name: Special Programs 

Offer Number:  Three (3) 

Lead 
Department: Youth & Family Development

Administrator: Lurone Jennings 

Offer Cost: 2,609,849 

1. Safer Streets – Safe communities, reduced crime, positive opportunities, and alternate
pathways.

2. Growing Economy – Growing and
business recruitment and retention, and an environment for innovation.

3. Stronger Neighborhoods
residential markets, and rapid rehousing.

4. Smarter Students, Stronger Families

community health. 

5. High Performing Government

customer service, resource management, and exceptional talent.

6. Innovation Fund – Something different
way government operates.

Description: (What is the service/program? How will it be provided? What innovation &
sustainability practice does this leverage?
know? Make a compelling case for your offer.)

What is the Service/Program? 

Nooga.com’s headline published 
development with Mayor Andy Berke
congregations across Chattanooga met with Mayor Andy Berke and new members of his
administration at City Hall. The article
called to discuss challenges facing the city’s youth and how they might be addressed in an
empowering way. Mayor Berke was quoted as saying, “Youth is the greatest investment we can
make. I will do my part, but I need everyone else to do theirs.”
several occasions, the group’s conversation returned to the topic of fostering character development
in youth.  

City of Chattanooga 
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OFFERSUMMARY 

Department 
Offer Rank: 2 

Youth & Family Development Collaboration: Y ____ N__

, Stronger Families

RESULTS AREA

Safe communities, reduced crime, positive opportunities, and alternate

Growing and supporting local businesses, workforce development,
business recruitment and retention, and an environment for innovation.

Stronger Neighborhoods – Neighborhood leadership, connected communities, healthy
residential markets, and rapid rehousing.

udents, Stronger Families – Parents and first teachers, community support, and

High Performing Government – Data-driven decision making, sound operations, outstanding
customer service, resource management, and exceptional talent.

Something different – processes, services, technologies, ideas. Shifting the
way government operates.

DETAILS 

(What is the service/program? How will it be provided? What innovation &
sustainability practice does this leverage? What difference does this offer make and how will we
know? Make a compelling case for your offer.) 

Thursday, May 9th, 2013 read, “Faith leaders discuss youth
y Berke”. On this day, a dozen clergymen representing different

congregations across Chattanooga met with Mayor Andy Berke and new members of his
The article continued on to say that the meeting had no agenda and was

called to discuss challenges facing the city’s youth and how they might be addressed in an
empowering way. Mayor Berke was quoted as saying, “Youth is the greatest investment we can

but I need everyone else to do theirs.” The web-based story noted that on
several occasions, the group’s conversation returned to the topic of fostering character development

1 

_  N__x___ 

Smarter StudenPrimary Results Area: Smarter Studenttss, Stronger Families 

Safe communities, reduced crime, positive opportunities, and alternate

supporting local businesses, workforce development, 

Neighborhood leadership, connected communities, healthy

Parents and first teachers, community support, and

driven decision making, sound operations, outstanding

processes, services, technologies, ideas.  Shifting the

(What is the service/program? How will it be provided? What innovation & 
What difference does this offer make and how will we 

Faith leaders discuss youth 
On this day, a dozen clergymen representing different 

congregations across Chattanooga met with Mayor Andy Berke and new members of his 
on to say that the meeting had no agenda and was 

called to discuss challenges facing the city’s youth and how they might be addressed in an 
empowering way. Mayor Berke was quoted as saying, “Youth is the greatest investment we can 

based story noted that on 
several occasions, the group’s conversation returned to the topic of fostering character development 
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Engaging and addressing the needs of Chattanooga’s youth ranked as one of the highest priorities of
concerned citizens during subsequent
addressing the needs of youth has become one of Chattanooga’s most critical issues
streets, a growing economy, and stronger neighborhoods. The Department of Youth & Family
Development (YFD) provides structured,
youth and their families, year-round
providing positive alternative services to address family
and education. The programs and services to be considered under this offer
“Special Programs” and address the results areas of

Youth and Family programs and services provide necessary resources to
residents in meaningful and progressive activities leading to Smarter Students and Stronger Families
By providing quality programs and services
character development, career exploration
quality of life, YFD builds a healthy
accessible, maintained, and fully utilized venues create a better quality of life
YFD services are used to prepare youth to
addresses the needs of the entire family by focusing on
positively impacting graduation rates, increasing employme
families to move out of poverty.
Chattanooga’s youth and their families

How It Works 

Customers visit YFD centers to participate in
YFD staff engages customers at the check
determine their interest in other program
nominal fee is assessed for access or use. For customers visiting centers for the first time,
assist the customer and determine appropriate programs and services to meet the
interest. Some customers are referred for services by community partners,
schools, neighborhood associations,
have proven to be a dynamic approach to a coordinated effort of addressing
their families. 

YFD promotes special programs and services to the community using a host of marketing tools
including digital media (website, Twitter, Facebook, etc),
other forms of public advertising. 
the specifics of YFD programs and services.
and publishes a weekly “top ten” of outstanding programs and services via email.

In addressing the needs of youth,
recreation, and character development.Y
that parents have about whether or not children have a base
focuses on providing caring, responsible adults to h
pre-occupy youth time, nudge 
opportunities to foster smarter students
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Engaging and addressing the needs of Chattanooga’s youth ranked as one of the highest priorities of
subsequent town hall meetings hosted by Mayor Berke in

addressing the needs of youth has become one of Chattanooga’s most critical issues
streets, a growing economy, and stronger neighborhoods. The Department of Youth & Family

provides structured, engaging, progressive programs to address the needs of
round. YFD services and programs focus on the entire fami

services to address family development, health & wellness,
The programs and services to be considered under this offer shall

and address the results areas of Smarter Students & Stronger Families

programs and services provide necessary resources to engage
in meaningful and progressive activities leading to Smarter Students and Stronger Families

programs and services aimed at educational enrichment,
character development, career exploration, health & wellness, sports & fitness, 

, YFD builds a healthy environment for families to thrive. Well-managed,
utilized venues create a better quality of life for YFD customers

prepare youth to learn, grow, and become contributing cit
addresses the needs of the entire family by focusing on reducing health risk, improving awareness,

graduation rates, increasing employment options, and better
families to move out of poverty. The Special Programs strategies offered by
Chattanooga’s youth and their families with a blueprint for wellness and success. 

visit YFD centers to participate in organized, recreational, and leisure activities
at the check-in counter to develop an identification

other programs or services. Depending on the service or program, a
nominal fee is assessed for access or use. For customers visiting centers for the first time,

determine appropriate programs and services to meet the
are referred for services by community partners, faith

ssociations, and local non-profit groups.The referral system and partnerships
approach to a coordinated effort of addressing the needs of youth

programs and services to the community using a host of marketing tools
including digital media (website, Twitter, Facebook, etc), center bulletin boards, live

advertising. Customers respond or reply to the promotions and inquire about
programs and services. Our website, youthandfamily.com is updated regularly

and publishes a weekly “top ten” of outstanding programs and services via email. 

In addressing the needs of youth, YFD focuses on education, career, social serv
recreation, and character development.Youth services at YFD centers closes the gap on the fears
that parents have about whether or not children have a base of support to achieve and develop.
focuses on providing caring, responsible adults to help youth develop life-long skills

their educational achievement, build character,
foster smarter students and stronger families. 

2 

Engaging and addressing the needs of Chattanooga’s youth ranked as one of the highest priorities of 
erke in 2013. In fact, 

addressing the needs of youth has become one of Chattanooga’s most critical issues impacting safer 
streets, a growing economy, and stronger neighborhoods. The Department of Youth & Family 

, progressive programs to address the needs of 
the entire family by 

health & wellness, prevention, 
shall be referred to as 

Smarter Students & Stronger Families. 

engage Chattanooga’s 
in meaningful and progressive activities leading to Smarter Students and Stronger Families. 

educational enrichment, leadership and 
health & wellness, sports & fitness, and an improving 

managed, affordable, 
for YFD customers. 

contributing citizens. YFD also 
reducing health risk, improving awareness, 

nt options, and bettering the odds for 
strategies offered by YFD provide 

leisure activities of interest. 
to develop an identification profile and to 
Depending on the service or program, a 

nominal fee is assessed for access or use. For customers visiting centers for the first time, staff will 
determine appropriate programs and services to meet their needs and 

aith-based institutions, 
The referral system and partnerships 

the needs of youth and 

programs and services to the community using a host of marketing tools 
live radio show, and 

respond or reply to the promotions and inquire about 
Our website, youthandfamily.com is updated regularly 

on education, career, social services, leadership, 
centers closes the gap on the fears 

of support to achieve and develop. YFD 
long skills. YFD helps to 

build character, and create 
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Additionally, YFD provides opportunities for
improve wellness through Recreation Sports, Therapeutic Recreation, Fitness Centers, and Aquatics.
Youth and young adults enjoy the option of participating in AAU Athletics and Little League Baseball
(RBI). Mature and senior adults enjoy any number of other wellness services managed by trained,
qualified professionals. Regardless of ability, YFD provides opportunities for all in the family to take
full advantage of programs and services through affordable and accessib
city. YFD measures facility results by monitoring attendance, revenues, and periodic user satisfaction
surveys. YFD continues to monitor public health issues, including rates of obesity, heart disease, and
diabetes by using the research and skills of our local partner, University of Tennessee at
Chattanooga. 

The programs offered by YFD to engage

Chattanooga Ambassadors Program (CAP)

The Chattanooga Ambassadors Program (CAP)
perpetuates the rates of high crime, low literacy, and low employment. By encouraging and enabling
parents and youth to develop their work ethic and employability, and by taking the step of investing
in its citizens, the City of Chattanooga gives CAP participants
self-sufficient, decreasing their dependence on cash assistance and improving their quality of life.
CAP provides resources to address the needs of 50
girls) identified by area schools, faith
centers. Youth participate in the leadership and literacy
part of the return on the investment. CAP participants develop work skills, mentor younger youth,
read to elementary and middle school students, and serve as ambassadors across Chattanooga.
Critical supportive services are provided to the families of CAP participants t
have every opportunity to succeed.
than 400 hours of service to the Chattanooga community
children, restoring neighborhood parks, pa
initiatives. CAP provides prevention and intervention strategies
families struggling with issues in their community
their families learn to navigate personal

Teen Programs 

Youth engagement involves giving young people a voic
mix of programs and services to teenage
Services program served 1,984 participants in 2012.
five YFD Centers – South Chattanooga, Westside, Washington Hills, East Chattanooga, and Eastdale.
This outlet for teens provides their 
programs on weekends. These centers will offer

Stars of Chattanooga 

A professional recording studio, housed at
provide Chattanooga’s youth with training on the record industry, studio time, and professional
quality recording. Youth participating in the Stars of Chattanooga have appeared at Riverbend
Festival and several have signed professional recording contracts.
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, YFD provides opportunities for youth and adults to develop healthy lifestyles and
improve wellness through Recreation Sports, Therapeutic Recreation, Fitness Centers, and Aquatics.
Youth and young adults enjoy the option of participating in AAU Athletics and Little League Baseball

adults enjoy any number of other wellness services managed by trained,
Regardless of ability, YFD provides opportunities for all in the family to take

full advantage of programs and services through affordable and accessible options throughout
facility results by monitoring attendance, revenues, and periodic user satisfaction

surveys. YFD continues to monitor public health issues, including rates of obesity, heart disease, and
search and skills of our local partner, University of Tennessee at

offered by YFD to engage youth and strengthenfamilies include the following:

Chattanooga Ambassadors Program (CAP) 

The Chattanooga Ambassadors Program (CAP) seeks to reduce the cycle of generational poverty that
perpetuates the rates of high crime, low literacy, and low employment. By encouraging and enabling
parents and youth to develop their work ethic and employability, and by taking the step of investing
n its citizens, the City of Chattanooga gives CAP participants and their families the tools to become

sufficient, decreasing their dependence on cash assistance and improving their quality of life.
CAP provides resources to address the needs of 50 teen-age youth participants

area schools, faith-based institutions, nonprofits, community leaders, and
. Youth participate in the leadership and literacy initiative and provide community service as

eturn on the investment. CAP participants develop work skills, mentor younger youth,
read to elementary and middle school students, and serve as ambassadors across Chattanooga.
Critical supportive services are provided to the families of CAP participants to ensure participants
have every opportunity to succeed. During 2013 and the start of 2014, CAP members provided

the Chattanooga community by distributing more than 5,000 books to
children, restoring neighborhood parks, painting schools, and supporting various

CAP provides prevention and intervention strategies and training for youth
struggling with issues in their community and at home. Through the CAP process, y

personal challenges and negotiate better outcomes

Youth engagement involves giving young people a voice to express themselves. Providing the right
mix of programs and services to teenagers often determines the success.  YFD’s 

program served 1,984 participants in 2012. Teen prevention centers will be established at
South Chattanooga, Westside, Washington Hills, East Chattanooga, and Eastdale.

 families with safe havens for youth to socialize and enjoy positive
These centers will offer any number of the following programs:

A professional recording studio, housed at the South Chattanooga YFD Center serves as place to
provide Chattanooga’s youth with training on the record industry, studio time, and professional

recording. Youth participating in the Stars of Chattanooga have appeared at Riverbend
everal have signed professional recording contracts.  
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dults to develop healthy lifestyles and 
improve wellness through Recreation Sports, Therapeutic Recreation, Fitness Centers, and Aquatics. 
Youth and young adults enjoy the option of participating in AAU Athletics and Little League Baseball 

adults enjoy any number of other wellness services managed by trained, 
Regardless of ability, YFD provides opportunities for all in the family to take 

le options throughout our 
facility results by monitoring attendance, revenues, and periodic user satisfaction 

surveys. YFD continues to monitor public health issues, including rates of obesity, heart disease, and 
search and skills of our local partner, University of Tennessee at 

include the following: 

seeks to reduce the cycle of generational poverty that 
perpetuates the rates of high crime, low literacy, and low employment. By encouraging and enabling 
parents and youth to develop their work ethic and employability, and by taking the step of investing 

the tools to become 
sufficient, decreasing their dependence on cash assistance and improving their quality of life. 

participants (25 boys and 25 
based institutions, nonprofits, community leaders, and YFD 

and provide community service as 
eturn on the investment. CAP participants develop work skills, mentor younger youth, 

read to elementary and middle school students, and serve as ambassadors across Chattanooga. 
o ensure participants 

During 2013 and the start of 2014, CAP members provided more 
distributing more than 5,000 books to 

various community 
for youth and their 

Through the CAP process, youth and 
challenges and negotiate better outcomes for their lives. 

e to express themselves. Providing the right 
 Prevention & Youth 

Teen prevention centers will be established at 
South Chattanooga, Westside, Washington Hills, East Chattanooga, and Eastdale. 

families with safe havens for youth to socialize and enjoy positive 
any number of the following programs: 

the South Chattanooga YFD Center serves as place to 
provide Chattanooga’s youth with training on the record industry, studio time, and professional 

recording. Youth participating in the Stars of Chattanooga have appeared at Riverbend 
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Students Against Gangs 

Leisure opportunities for teens to participate in programs at other centers. The initiative builds
bridges between teens from neighborhoods across the Chattanooga community.

Next in Line 

Teens shadow adult leaders and gain on
an interview, and workplace etiquette. When completing the program, youth
stipend. 

Listen Up Radio Program 

Youth participants learn and display their talents after developing fundamental skills of running a
professional recording studio and internet

I’m Unique 

for youth girls to express their view of beauty. Participants hos
informative group discussions on everyday life situations and solutions

Grilling with “B” 

A fun, interactive way to teach teens how to prepare healthier, nutritious, tasty meals that are low in
fat and affordable. 

Culture Arts Programs 

Culture Arts Programs are used to enhance creativity, problem
thinking skills. Culture arts programs focus on educational opportunities to assists participants to
create their own unique work through music, dance, theater, film, writing,
design, and modeling. 

Youth Councils 

This program highlights youth as the driving force in planning activities that focus on development,
prevention, and intervention activities.
and to have their voices heard. 

youth and staff to assist with events throughout the city. Events
lude parades.

Community Service Projects 

Youth of all ages explore and research
through community service hours and sustainability approaches.

Park Stewardship 

Youth are engaged to help restore community parks throughout the city. This program teaches
youth of all ages about conservation and

City of Chattanooga 
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Leisure opportunities for teens to participate in programs at other centers. The initiative builds
bridges between teens from neighborhoods across the Chattanooga community. 

Teens shadow adult leaders and gain on-the-job training. Teens also learn to build resumes, conduct
an interview, and workplace etiquette. When completing the program, youth are provided with a

learn and display their talents after developing fundamental skills of running a
and internet-based radio show. 

A fun, educational and creative w . Participants hos
informative group discussions on everyday life situations and solutions. 

A fun, interactive way to teach teens how to prepare healthier, nutritious, tasty meals that are low in

Programs are used to enhance creativity, problem-solving, and other higher lever
thinking skills. Culture arts programs focus on educational opportunities to assists participants to
create their own unique work through music, dance, theater, film, writing, graphic design, fashion

This program highlights youth as the driving force in planning activities that focus on development,
prevention, and intervention activities. Youth Councils serve as the premier strategy to eng

YFD provide ut the city. Events
as volunteers i

Community Events – YFD provides s youth and staff to assist with events throughhoout the city. 
Events where youth serve as volunteers incnclude parads. 

Youth of all ages explore and research opportunities to give back to the Chattanooga Community
through community service hours and sustainability approaches. 

Youth are engaged to help restore community parks throughout the city. This program teaches
nservation and preservation of community assets. 
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Leisure opportunities for teens to participate in programs at other centers. The initiative builds 

job training. Teens also learn to build resumes, conduct 
are provided with a 

learn and display their talents after developing fundamental skills of running a 

A fun, educational and creative way for youth girls to express their view of beautA fun, educational and creative wayay for girls to express their view of beauty. Participants host

A fun, interactive way to teach teens how to prepare healthier, nutritious, tasty meals that are low in 

solving, and other higher lever 
thinking skills. Culture arts programs focus on educational opportunities to assists participants to 

graphic design, fashion 

This program highlights youth as the driving force in planning activities that focus on development, 
Youth Councils serve as the premier strategy to engage youth 

YFD provides youth and staff to assist with events throug

opportunities to give back to the Chattanooga Community 

Youth are engaged to help restore community parks throughout the city. This program teaches 
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Youth Conferences 

YFD seeks to co-sponsor a regional
schools, faith-based institutions, and regional youth groups
fundraiser to create sustainability of future youth initiatives offered by Youth & Family Development.

Career Development & Preparation

Preparing young people and their parents
of the Chattanooga community. YFD will provide career development and preparation services for
youth and their families during FY15.
offering workplace training and prep
and application assistance, soft-skills training, and
full services centers. Youth and their families
as they are referred by staff. During summer months, school breaks
receive work experience training. 
through the use of computer kiosks and assisted services by from YFD staff.
years of age) will learn how to dress, show up for work on time, complete timesheets, and manage
their time and money during the training. Teens, ages 16
working at YFD centers, schools, and community nonprofits.
program will be developed to teach youth how to start sma

Customer prospects for gaining employment
development and preparation services. Successful completion of YFD career services
prepares customers to be referred to
services and case management. 

Educational Enrichment 

In 2013, YFD adopted the use of the
youth. Lexia has been established as
youth from Hamilton County Schools,
based program is an interactive learning tool that tracks user
comprehensive report to administrators and teachers.

YFD uses Educational Enrichment T
youth. Ten Enrichment Tutors assist
enhance reading. The goal of the tutoring sessions is to increase educational functioning levels of
participants by a minimum of two grade levels.
skills, ACT/SAT preparation, reading, and improve grades
enrichment tutors conduct literacy/numeracy camps, coordinate field trips to relevant
interest, and help students avoid losing educational gains from the previous school year.

YFD utilizes the services of two high school
students to develop achievement plans to include the best program to meet academic and post
secondary goals. Graduation Coaches work with school faculty and staff, parents, and guardians to
identifying and resolving barriers to graduation, facilitate
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regional youth conference for teens from all 17 centers
, and regional youth groups. This effort will be considered a premier

fundraiser to create sustainability of future youth initiatives offered by Youth & Family Development.

Career Development & Preparation 

and their parents for the workforce is an essential component to the growth
of the Chattanooga community. YFD will provide career development and preparation services for

during FY15. Five YFD centers have been designated as full services centers
offering workplace training and preparation for youth and adults. Interview skills, 

skills training, and job shadowing are a few of the services offered at
and their families from smaller centers are transported

as they are referred by staff. During summer months, school breaks, and weekends, youth will
receive work experience training. Adults will receive assistance with job search and preparation
through the use of computer kiosks and assisted services by from YFD staff. Younger youth (13

learn how to dress, show up for work on time, complete timesheets, and manage
their time and money during the training. Teens, ages 16-19, will develop employable work skills by
working at YFD centers, schools, and community nonprofits. Additionally, an entrepreneur training
program will be developed to teach youth how to start small businesses and micro

Customer prospects for gaining employment are strengthened through the use of career
development and preparation services. Successful completion of YFD career services

customers to be referred to our local partner  (Tennessee Career Centers

In 2013, YFD adopted the use of the Lexia Learning System to enrich the education of
has been established as the signature education initiative. YFD enrolled

Hamilton County Schools, faith-based institutions, nonprofits, and YFD centers. The web
based program is an interactive learning tool that tracks user’s progress, use time, and provides
comprehensive report to administrators and teachers. 

nrichment Tutors at local centers to enhance literacy and numeracy skills of
utors assists students with homework, core subject areas, Lexia,

The goal of the tutoring sessions is to increase educational functioning levels of
participants by a minimum of two grade levels. High school students are engaged to strengthen test
kills, ACT/SAT preparation, reading, and improve grades. During summer months, educational
enrichment tutors conduct literacy/numeracy camps, coordinate field trips to relevant
interest, and help students avoid losing educational gains from the previous school year.

YFD utilizes the services of two high school Graduation Coaches who are engaged in assisting
students to develop achievement plans to include the best program to meet academic and post

oaches work with school faculty and staff, parents, and guardians to
identifying and resolving barriers to graduation, facilitate career choices and planning. Graduation
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Additionally, an entrepreneur training 
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the use of career 
development and preparation services. Successful completion of YFD career services program 
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to enrich the education of Chattanooga’s 
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nstitutions, nonprofits, and YFD centers. The web-
s progress, use time, and provides a 

to enhance literacy and numeracy skills of 
students with homework, core subject areas, Lexia, and 

The goal of the tutoring sessions is to increase educational functioning levels of 
High school students are engaged to strengthen test 

summer months, educational 
enrichment tutors conduct literacy/numeracy camps, coordinate field trips to relevant points of 
interest, and help students avoid losing educational gains from the previous school year.  

who are engaged in assisting 
students to develop achievement plans to include the best program to meet academic and post-

oaches work with school faculty and staff, parents, and guardians to 
career choices and planning. Graduation 
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coaches develop and implement individual intervention strategies to increase the likel
these students will stay in school and graduate; coordinate a transition program for 9
successfully adapt to the rigor of high school; and provide training to parents of students identified
as being at risk of not graduating. 

YFD will develop an educational enrichment afterschool academy
as a component of the Urban Technology and Opportunity Center
offered in the BFO process. The afterschool enrichment academy will
needed by employers unable to fill existing jobs due to a
to enhance their ability to think critically,
direct result of participation in the YFD afterschool academy.

Chattanooga Leadership Network

“Everything rises and falls with leadership.
youth and adult leadership training
people navigate through life. Multiplicity of leaders
and development of the whole person
Leadership Network (CLN). The CLN utilizes a prepared curriculum manual to train
whowill subsequently train youth and their families. The exponential process creates the desired
multiple leaders needed across Chattanooga communities. The CLN proposes
leadership workshops and training sessions at schools,
centers.  

Partnerships:  Maclellan Foundation, Faith
some of the sources wanting to invest in the future of our youth

Recreation Sports 

Youth participating in organized enhances a youth’s physical and social skills, mental and physical
growth, promote hard work, fellowship, self
guidelines that can be generalized to classroom and lifelong achievements. Basis skills and
fundamentals of sports are taught where all youth will have the opportunity to play regardless of skill
level. Educating participants and parents in all aspects of e
these goals, especially learning how to accept both winning and losing. Another aspect of this
program is to train and teach young teens the rules of some sports well enough for them to become
officials or referees thus creating jobs for youth employment.

Therapeutic Recreation Services

The Therapeutic Recreation Division provides leisure and recreation opportunities for citizens of all
abilities and their families. We serve both
disabilities. Through our programs, education and advocacy, individuals can build confidence,
improve physical and cognitive abilities, expand support and social networks; and enhance overall
quality of life. TR provides over fifteen programs both in the spring and the fall. During the summer,
TR offers summer camp opportunities at the Zoo. This is one of the few summer camp opportunities
in the Chattanooga area that focus on kids and adults with d
also assists with the community-wide disability awareness event (Go!Fest). Previous grants funded
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develop and implement individual intervention strategies to increase the likel
these students will stay in school and graduate; coordinate a transition program for 9
successfully adapt to the rigor of high school; and provide training to parents of students identified

educational enrichment afterschool academy. The academy will be established
Urban Technology and Opportunity Center under an innovation proposal to be

. The afterschool enrichment academy will focus on
unable to fill existing jobs due to a regional skills deficit. Students will be able

to enhance their ability to think critically, comprehend what they read, and use analytical skills as a
rticipation in the YFD afterschool academy. 

Leadership Network 

Everything rises and falls with leadership.” With the support of visionary leaders, YFD provides
leadership training in an effort to maximize the number of leaders available

Multiplicity of leaders is essential to the process of character building
of the whole person. YFD will train new leaders in FY15 through the Chattanooga

hip Network (CLN). The CLN utilizes a prepared curriculum manual to train
subsequently train youth and their families. The exponential process creates the desired

multiple leaders needed across Chattanooga communities. The CLN proposes
leadership workshops and training sessions at schools, businesses, faith-based institutions, and YFD

Maclellan Foundation, Faith-Based Community, Local Businesses and Citizens
to invest in the future of our youth. 

Youth participating in organized enhances a youth’s physical and social skills, mental and physical
growth, promote hard work, fellowship, self-esteem, and development of life skills. This provides
uidelines that can be generalized to classroom and lifelong achievements. Basis skills and

fundamentals of sports are taught where all youth will have the opportunity to play regardless of skill
rticipants and parents in all aspects of each sport will be accomplished through

these goals, especially learning how to accept both winning and losing. Another aspect of this
program is to train and teach young teens the rules of some sports well enough for them to become

us creating jobs for youth employment. 

Therapeutic Recreation Services (Innovation/sustainability practices) 

The Therapeutic Recreation Division provides leisure and recreation opportunities for citizens of all
. We serve both youth and adults with physical, cognitive, and/or emotional

disabilities. Through our programs, education and advocacy, individuals can build confidence,
improve physical and cognitive abilities, expand support and social networks; and enhance overall

ity of life. TR provides over fifteen programs both in the spring and the fall. During the summer,
TR offers summer camp opportunities at the Zoo. This is one of the few summer camp opportunities
in the Chattanooga area that focus on kids and adults with disabilities as well was their siblings. TR

wide disability awareness event (Go!Fest). Previous grants funded
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these students will stay in school and graduate; coordinate a transition program for 9th graders to 
successfully adapt to the rigor of high school; and provide training to parents of students identified 

academy will be established 
under an innovation proposal to be 

focus on developing skills 
. Students will be able 

, and use analytical skills as a 

support of visionary leaders, YFD provides 
maximize the number of leaders available to help 
is essential to the process of character building 

in FY15 through the Chattanooga 
hip Network (CLN). The CLN utilizes a prepared curriculum manual to train-the-trainer 
subsequently train youth and their families. The exponential process creates the desired 
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Based Community, Local Businesses and Citizens are 

Youth participating in organized enhances a youth’s physical and social skills, mental and physical 
esteem, and development of life skills. This provides 

uidelines that can be generalized to classroom and lifelong achievements. Basis skills and 
fundamentals of sports are taught where all youth will have the opportunity to play regardless of skill 

ach sport will be accomplished through 
these goals, especially learning how to accept both winning and losing. Another aspect of this 
program is to train and teach young teens the rules of some sports well enough for them to become 

The Therapeutic Recreation Division provides leisure and recreation opportunities for citizens of all 
youth and adults with physical, cognitive, and/or emotional 

disabilities. Through our programs, education and advocacy, individuals can build confidence, 
improve physical and cognitive abilities, expand support and social networks; and enhance overall 

ity of life. TR provides over fifteen programs both in the spring and the fall. During the summer, 
TR offers summer camp opportunities at the Zoo. This is one of the few summer camp opportunities 

isabilities as well was their siblings. TR 
wide disability awareness event (Go!Fest). Previous grants funded 
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the initial startup of the TR program and help fund a veterans adaptive kayaking program; UTC
connections help provide a source of student volunteers; etc.

Chattanooga Fitness Center  

The Chattanooga Fitness Center (CFC) strives to provide affordable health and fitness opportunities

for users of all abilities.  Located in Warner Park (a multi

city), the Chattanooga Fitness Center opened to the public on May 2

and mortar community fitness facility and flagship fitness programming option within Youth and

Family Development.  Over the years,

facility from a space that formerly housed a machine shop into what is now a state

facility.   Its popularity and value to the community is reflected most effectively by the atte

two million participants served (as of March, 2014). Even with the current influx of for

profit/commercial facilities and personal trainers in Chattanooga, this facility continues to offer the

best option to address the needs of individuals who a

obligation/frills/gimmicks option. 

Aquatics 

Aquatic Services operate four YFD aquatic complexes and programs out of five facilities (including

the North River Y).  The year-round ADA accessible indoor pools (2) are located at

South Chattanooga Community Centers, and the outdoor pools (2) are located at Warner Park and

the Carver Community Center. Innovation/Sustainability practices? Aquatics

safety and education, and provides opportunities

of innovation practices include:   adding yearly updates to the Warner Park pool, including the state’s

largest outdoor splash park, a 20 yard inflatable obstacle course, and a 12 foot FreefallAquaGlide

slide; co-hosting an annual swim race to raise monies to support a scholarship program which funds

lifeguard job opportunities for minorities; providing instructional training to the Fire Dept. Marine

Rescue Division and EMT certification courses.

Reviving Baseball in Inner Cities

Chattanooga RBI “5 Star” program provides inner

and Grow. We use the power of teams to Coach, Teach and Inspire youth to recognize their

potential and challenge them mental

attributes of resilient young adults who are confident, competent, caring, physically and mentally

healthy and positive role models. Chattanooga RBI 5 STAR Program uses the power of “play” a

tool to emphasize academics, life skills and community responsibilities. Off the field players will

participate in programs that teach and address family and community issues.

AAU/Chattanooga Basketball 

Chattanooga Basketball is an educational

student participation in literacy initiatives, life skills classes, and parent, education with the ultimate

goal of improving the lives of area student
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the initial startup of the TR program and help fund a veterans adaptive kayaking program; UTC
ide a source of student volunteers; etc. 

The Chattanooga Fitness Center (CFC) strives to provide affordable health and fitness opportunities

for users of all abilities. Located in Warner Park (a multi-use community park located in the central

city), the Chattanooga Fitness Center opened to the public on May 2nd, 1990.  It serves as the bricks

and mortar community fitness facility and flagship fitness programming option within Youth and

Family Development. Over the years, a series of renovations and upgrades have transformed the

facility from a space that formerly housed a machine shop into what is now a state

facility. Its popularity and value to the community is reflected most effectively by the atte

two million participants served (as of March, 2014).  Even with the current influx of for

profit/commercial facilities and personal trainers in Chattanooga, this facility continues to offer the

best option to address the needs of individuals who are looking for a simple, no

operate four YFD aquatic complexes and programs out of five facilities (including

round ADA accessible indoor pools (2) are located at

South Chattanooga Community Centers, and the outdoor pools (2) are located at Warner Park and

the Carver Community Center. Innovation/Sustainability practices?  Aquatics - 

safety and education, and provides opportunities to all generations at an affordable price. Examples

of innovation practices include: adding yearly updates to the Warner Park pool, including the state’s

largest outdoor splash park, a 20 yard inflatable obstacle course, and a 12 foot FreefallAquaGlide

hosting an annual swim race to raise monies to support a scholarship program which funds

lifeguard job opportunities for minorities; providing instructional training to the Fire Dept. Marine

Rescue Division and EMT certification courses. 

Reviving Baseball in Inner Cities 

Chattanooga RBI “5 Star” program provides inner- city youth with the opportunities to Play, Learn

and Grow. We use the power of teams to Coach, Teach and Inspire youth to recognize their

potential and challenge them mentally and physically. Achieving their goals, players will embody the

attributes of resilient young adults who are confident, competent, caring, physically and mentally

healthy and positive role models. Chattanooga RBI 5 STAR Program uses the power of “play” a

tool to emphasize academics, life skills and community responsibilities. Off the field players will

participate in programs that teach and address family and community issues. 

Chattanooga Basketball is an educational program that uses competitive basketball as a hook for

student participation in literacy initiatives, life skills classes, and parent, education with the ultimate

goal of improving the lives of area student-athletes and their families through the opportuni
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the initial startup of the TR program and help fund a veterans adaptive kayaking program; UTC 

The Chattanooga Fitness Center (CFC) strives to provide affordable health and fitness opportunities 

located in the central 

, 1990. It serves as the bricks 

and mortar community fitness facility and flagship fitness programming option within Youth and 

a series of renovations and upgrades have transformed the 

facility from a space that formerly housed a machine shop into what is now a state-of-the-art fitness 

facility. Its popularity and value to the community is reflected most effectively by the attendance - 

two million participants served (as of March, 2014). Even with the current influx of for-

profit/commercial facilities and personal trainers in Chattanooga, this facility continues to offer the 

re looking for a simple, no 

operate four YFD aquatic complexes and programs out of five facilities (including 

round ADA accessible indoor pools (2) are located at the Brainerd and 

South Chattanooga Community Centers, and the outdoor pools (2) are located at Warner Park and 

 emphasizes water 

to all generations at an affordable price.  Examples 

of innovation practices include: adding yearly updates to the Warner Park pool, including the state’s 

largest outdoor splash park, a 20 yard inflatable obstacle course, and a 12 foot FreefallAquaGlide 

hosting an annual swim race to raise monies to support a scholarship program which funds 

lifeguard job opportunities for minorities; providing instructional training to the Fire Dept. Marine 

city youth with the opportunities to Play, Learn 

and Grow. We use the power of teams to Coach, Teach and Inspire youth to recognize their 

players will embody the 

attributes of resilient young adults who are confident, competent, caring, physically and mentally 

healthy and positive role models. Chattanooga RBI 5 STAR Program uses the power of “play” as a 

tool to emphasize academics, life skills and community responsibilities. Off the field players will 

program that uses competitive basketball as a hook for 

student participation in literacy initiatives, life skills classes, and parent, education with the ultimate 

athletes and their families through the opportunity to 
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attend and graduate from college. Beginning with elementary school student athletes and continuing

through high school, the focus of the program is on reading at or above grade level, exemplary

school performance and attendance, and using the sport o

The basic A, B, C’s of Chattanooga Basketball are Academics, Basketball, and Character

development. The goal of the program is straightforward: all 300 participants will gain admission to

post-secondary education, graduate, and become strong contributors to our community.

Section– Aquatics 

How will it be provided?   Aquatics operate four YFD aquatic complexes and programs out of five

facilities (including the North River Y). The year

located at the Brainerd and South Chattanooga Community Centers, and the outdoor pools (2)

are located at Warner Park and the Carver Community Center

s?

affordable price. Examples of innovation practices include: adding

, including the state’s largest outdoor splash park, a 20 yard inflatable

llAquaGlide slide; co

funds lifeguard job opportunities for minorities; providing instructional

training to the Fire Dept. Marine Rescue Division and EMT cert

What difference does this offer make and how will we

een prevented

serious public health problem and it is the second leading cause of unintentional death for children ages 1

Minority children drown at a rate of 3:1 on the national average. YFD aquatic instructional and educational

programs focus on populations most at risk of drowning. If a parent had a fear of water, it translates to the

child and they may never seek resources to teach them to swim. It is continuous cycle that is hard to fix. We

want to provide programs and services that will help reduce or prevent drowning in the Chattanooga area.

Why is this different and how will it work?

of water lovers! It’s different because we will continue to offer pool safety campaigns and education not only

for the children but also for the parents, guardians, and caregivers. The instructional programs will teach kids

and adults new skills that lead to future employment. Swim lessons build confidence and encourages students

to join a swim team, and participate in aquatic fitness classes that promote health and wellness. In addition to

this, we want all ages to embrace the 

water rafting down the Ocoee, or going to a large water park. Our goal with this budget is to increase our

participation so that everyone who wants to has the opportunity to learn to s

program.  Aquatics - aims to build a stronger person and family by promoting lifelong activity.

Section: Fitness 

Service/Program - The Chattanooga Fitness Center (CFC) strives to provide affordable health and
fitness opportunities for users of all abilities.
located in the central city), the Chattanooga Fitness Center opened to th
It serves as the bricks and mortar community fitness facility and flagship fitness programming option
within Youth and Family Development. Over the years, a series of renovations and upgrades have
transformed the facility from a space that formerly housed a machine shop into what is now a state
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attend and graduate from college. Beginning with elementary school student athletes and continuing

through high school, the focus of the program is on reading at or above grade level, exemplary

school performance and attendance, and using the sport of basketball for life skills development.

The basic A, B, C’s of Chattanooga Basketball are Academics, Basketball, and Character

development. The goal of the program is straightforward: all 300 participants will gain admission to

graduate, and become strong contributors to our community.

Aquatics operate four YFD aquatic complexes and programs out of five

facilities (including the North River Y).  The year-round ADA accessible indoor

located at the Brainerd and South Chattanooga Community Centers, and the outdoor pools (2)

are located at Warner Park and the Carver Community Center.  

Innovation/Sustainability pract cation,

opportunities to all generations at a s include: adding

yearly updates to the Warner Park p a 20 yard inflatable

12 foot Free to raise monies to

support a scholarship program whic oviding instructional

training to the Fire Dept. Marine Rescue Division and EMT certification courses. 

What difference does this offer make and how will we know? In the last 6 months we lost three young

lives from something that could havelives from something that could have  bbeen prevented. nds, drowning is a

serious public health problem and it is the second leading cause of unintentional death for children ages 1

Minority children drown at a rate of 3:1 on the national average. YFD aquatic instructional and educational

programs focus on populations most at risk of drowning. If a parent had a fear of water, it translates to the

ources to teach them to swim. It is continuous cycle that is hard to fix. We

want to provide programs and services that will help reduce or prevent drowning in the Chattanooga area.

Why is this different and how will it work?  To reach our goals, we will work to create whole new groups

of water lovers! It’s different because we will continue to offer pool safety campaigns and education not only

for the children but also for the parents, guardians, and caregivers. The instructional programs will teach kids

nd adults new skills that lead to future employment.  Swim lessons build confidence and encourages students

to join a swim team, and participate in aquatic fitness classes that promote health and wellness. In addition to

 FUN of swimming - cooling off at the pool on a hot summer day, white

water rafting down the Ocoee, or going to a large water park. Our goal with this budget is to increase our

participation so that everyone who wants to has the opportunity to learn to swim or participate in an aquatic

aims to build a stronger person and family by promoting lifelong activity.

The Chattanooga Fitness Center (CFC) strives to provide affordable health and
fitness opportunities for users of all abilities.  Located in Warner Park (a multi-use community park
located in the central city), the Chattanooga Fitness Center opened to the public on May 2
It serves as the bricks and mortar community fitness facility and flagship fitness programming option
within Youth and Family Development.  Over the years, a series of renovations and upgrades have

a space that formerly housed a machine shop into what is now a state
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attend and graduate from college. Beginning with elementary school student athletes and continuing 

through high school, the focus of the program is on reading at or above grade level, exemplary 

f basketball for life skills development. 

The basic A, B, C’s of Chattanooga Basketball are Academics, Basketball, and Character 

development. The goal of the program is straightforward: all 300 participants will gain admission to 

graduate, and become strong contributors to our community.  

Aquatics operate four YFD aquatic complexes and programs out of five 

round ADA accessible indoor pools (2) are 
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emphasizes water safety and ed

opportunities to all generations at an affordable price. Examples of innovation practi
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support a scholarship program which funds lifeguard job opportunities for minorities;

Innovation/Sustainability practices:  Aquatics - emphasizes water safety and eduucation, and provides 

opportunities to all generations at ann affordable price.  Examples of innovation practiccees include:   adding 

yearly updates to the Warner Park pooool, including the state’s largest outdoor splash parkk, , a 20 yard inflatable 
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support a scholarship program which h funds lifeguard job opportunities for minorities; ppr roviding instructional 

the last 6 months we lost three young 

drowning!! As frightening as itAs frightening as it sounds, drowning is a 

serious public health problem and it is the second leading cause of unintentional death for children ages 1-14. 

Minority children drown at a rate of 3:1 on the national average. YFD aquatic instructional and educational 

programs focus on populations most at risk of drowning. If a parent had a fear of water, it translates to the 

ources to teach them to swim. It is continuous cycle that is hard to fix. We 

want to provide programs and services that will help reduce or prevent drowning in the Chattanooga area. 

ork to create whole new groups 

of water lovers! It’s different because we will continue to offer pool safety campaigns and education not only 

for the children but also for the parents, guardians, and caregivers. The instructional programs will teach kids 

nd adults new skills that lead to future employment. Swim lessons build confidence and encourages students 

to join a swim team, and participate in aquatic fitness classes that promote health and wellness. In addition to 

cooling off at the pool on a hot summer day, white 

water rafting down the Ocoee, or going to a large water park. Our goal with this budget is to increase our 

wim or participate in an aquatic 

aims to build a stronger person and family by promoting lifelong activity. 

The Chattanooga Fitness Center (CFC) strives to provide affordable health and 
use community park 
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of-the-art fitness facility.   Its popularity and value to the community is reflected most effectively by
the attendance - two million participants served (as of March, 2014). Even with
for-profit/commercial facilities and personal trainers in Chattanooga, this facility continues to offer
the best option to address the needs of individuals who are looking for a simple, no
obligation/frills/gimmicks option.   

How will it be provided?  With a user fee of $1.00, no memberships or contracts, a full
complement of strength and cardiovascular equipment options, and a diverse selection of fitness
classes offered per week, the CFC provides the community with an affordable
adults and teens.  All operational aspects, including facility design, equipment selection, and
programming options, are geared towards accessibility, inclusion, and serving the underserved, i.e.
individuals with mental and/or physi
financial limitations, etc.  

Innovation/Sustainability practices?

accessible, requires no electricity, accommodates larger individuals, a

We seek building renovations that will increase the health and efficiency of the facility, including

quality of air & efficiency of heating/cooling, utilizing the roof for “green” purposes, i.e. Solar

enhanced roofing materials, minimizing rainwater runoff (rooftop gardens), etc. We utilize &

promote outside free fitness opportunities, including a fitness trail that runs thru Warner Park. We

partner with a number of organizations, including

and outdoor fitness equipment to the City, and the Chattanooga Fire Dept., which relies on CFC for

the physical training component for every new hire academy (these services have been rendered

since 1993). 

What difference does this offer make and how will we know?

continue to provide our community with an affordable & accessible fitness option that is time

We measure facility results by monitoring attendance, revenues, and periodic user satisfac

surveys.  We can continue to monitor public health issues, including rates of obesity, heart disease,

and diabetes, by using the research capabilities and skills of our partners, including UTC, Partnership

for Health Living/Step One (Health Department

Section: Sports 

Participating in organized sports enhances a youth’s physical and social skills, mental and physical
growth; promote hard work, fellowship, self
guidelines that can be generalized 

Basic skills and fundamentals of sports are taught where all youth will have the opportunity to play
regardless of skill level. Educating participants and parents in all aspects of each spo
accomplished through these goals, especially learning how to accept both winning and losing.

Another aspect of this program is to provide future job opportunities for youth and teens by
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art fitness facility. Its popularity and value to the community is reflected most effectively by
two million participants served (as of March, 2014).  Even with the current influx of

profit/commercial facilities and personal trainers in Chattanooga, this facility continues to offer
the best option to address the needs of individuals who are looking for a simple, no

 

With a user fee of $1.00, no memberships or contracts, a full
complement of strength and cardiovascular equipment options, and a diverse selection of fitness
classes offered per week, the CFC provides the community with an affordable and flexible option for
adults and teens. All operational aspects, including facility design, equipment selection, and
programming options, are geared towards accessibility, inclusion, and serving the underserved, i.e.
individuals with mental and/or physical disability, who are obese or with other health concerns, with

Innovation/Sustainability practices?  The CFC seeks to provide fitness equipment that is

accessible, requires no electricity, accommodates larger individuals, and is easy to use and maintain.

We seek building renovations that will increase the health and efficiency of the facility, including

quality of air & efficiency of heating/cooling, utilizing the roof for “green” purposes, i.e. Solar

ng materials, minimizing rainwater runoff (rooftop gardens), etc. We utilize &

promote outside free fitness opportunities, including a fitness trail that runs thru Warner Park. We

partner with a number of organizations, including Play Core, which periodically donates playground

and outdoor fitness equipment to the City, and the Chattanooga Fire Dept., which relies on CFC for

the physical training component for every new hire academy (these services have been rendered

offer make and how will we know? This offer will allow YFD to

continue to provide our community with an affordable & accessible fitness option that is time

We measure facility results by monitoring attendance, revenues, and periodic user satisfac

surveys. We can continue to monitor public health issues, including rates of obesity, heart disease,

and diabetes, by using the research capabilities and skills of our partners, including UTC, Partnership

for Health Living/Step One (Health Department), &Play Core. 

Participating in organized sports enhances a youth’s physical and social skills, mental and physical
hard work, fellowship, self-esteem and development of life skills.

that can be generalized to classroom and lifelong achievements. 

Basic skills and fundamentals of sports are taught where all youth will have the opportunity to play
regardless of skill level. Educating participants and parents in all aspects of each spo
accomplished through these goals, especially learning how to accept both winning and losing.

Another aspect of this program is to provide future job opportunities for youth and teens by
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art fitness facility. Its popularity and value to the community is reflected most effectively by 
the current influx of 

profit/commercial facilities and personal trainers in Chattanooga, this facility continues to offer 
the best option to address the needs of individuals who are looking for a simple, no 

With a user fee of $1.00, no memberships or contracts, a full 
complement of strength and cardiovascular equipment options, and a diverse selection of fitness 

and flexible option for 
adults and teens. All operational aspects, including facility design, equipment selection, and 
programming options, are geared towards accessibility, inclusion, and serving the underserved, i.e. 

cal disability, who are obese or with other health concerns, with 

The CFC seeks to provide fitness equipment that is 

nd is easy to use and maintain. 

We seek building renovations that will increase the health and efficiency of the facility, including 

quality of air & efficiency of heating/cooling, utilizing the roof for “green” purposes, i.e.  Solar panels 

ng materials, minimizing rainwater runoff (rooftop gardens), etc.  We utilize & 

promote outside free fitness opportunities, including a fitness trail that runs thru Warner Park.  We 

cally donates playground 

and outdoor fitness equipment to the City, and the Chattanooga Fire Dept., which relies on CFC for 

the physical training component for every new hire academy (these services have been rendered 

This offer will allow YFD to 

continue to provide our community with an affordable & accessible fitness option that is time-tested. 

We measure facility results by monitoring attendance, revenues, and periodic user satisfaction 

surveys. We can continue to monitor public health issues, including rates of obesity, heart disease, 

and diabetes, by using the research capabilities and skills of our partners, including UTC, Partnership 

Participating in organized sports enhances a youth’s physical and social skills, mental and physical 
skills. This provides 

Basic skills and fundamentals of sports are taught where all youth will have the opportunity to play 
regardless of skill level. Educating participants and parents in all aspects of each sport will be 
accomplished through these goals, especially learning how to accept both winning and losing.   

Another aspect of this program is to provide future job opportunities for youth and teens by 
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providing the skills and knowledge they received by part
referees, time clock and coaching.  Several of our YFD part time and full time staff started their
careers by working in our summer sports leagues.

Section: Therapeutic Recreation

Service/Program - Therapeutic Recreation (TR) &

Therapeutic Recreation (TR) Division of the Chattanooga YFD Department seeks to provide leisure
and recreation opportunities for citizens of all abilities and their families. We serve bot
adults with physical, cognitive, and/or emotional disabilities. Through our programs, education and
advocacy, individuals can build confidence, improve physical and cognitive abilities, expand support
and social networks; and enhance overall qu
the spring and the fall. During the summer, TR offers summer camp opportunities at the Zoo. This is
one of the few summer camp opportunities in the Chattanooga area that focus on kids and adults
with disabilities as well was their siblings. TR also assists with the community
awareness event (Go! Fest). Previous grants funded the initial startup of the TR program and help
fund a veterans adaptive kayaking program; UTC connections help p
volunteers; etc. 

How will it be provided? 

TR provides all of these opportunities with two full
both degreed and certified as a Certified Therapeutic Recreation Specialist), suppl
time Temp employees, interns, and volunteers (volunteers who gave over 3600 hours in 2013). In
2013, we were able to successfully serve over 16,493 individuals with a variety of disabilities and
their families.  

What difference does this offer make and how will we know?

TR will continue to monitor program numbers, families served, partnerships developed, community
involvement and program evaluations to measure the difference TR makes within the Chattanooga
community. The current feedback 
shows not only the need for current programs but a want to increase overall services (this is
available upon request). Our budget narrative goes into detail about individual cost center increases.

Identify Which Desired Outcomes

1. Out-of-School Learning

2.Positive Alternatives for Youth

3. Access to Health and Wellness Programs

1. Education and water safety classes and programs that create

environment 

2. Healthy and active lifestyles are more attainable by participating in water activities and fitness

City of Chattanooga 

Offers 

providing the skills and knowledge they received by participating in organized leagues; officials,
referees, time clock and coaching.  Several of our YFD part time and full time staff started their
careers by working in our summer sports leagues. 

Therapeutic Recreation 

Therapeutic Recreation (TR)  &Innovation/Sustainability practices

Therapeutic Recreation (TR) Division of the Chattanooga YFD Department seeks to provide leisure
and recreation opportunities for citizens of all abilities and their families. We serve bot
adults with physical, cognitive, and/or emotional disabilities. Through our programs, education and
advocacy, individuals can build confidence, improve physical and cognitive abilities, expand support
and social networks; and enhance overall quality of life. TR provides over fifteen programs both in
the spring and the fall. During the summer, TR offers summer camp opportunities at the Zoo. This is
one of the few summer camp opportunities in the Chattanooga area that focus on kids and adults

disabilities as well was their siblings. TR also assists with the community
). Previous grants funded the initial startup of the TR program and help

fund a veterans adaptive kayaking program; UTC connections help provide a source of student

TR provides all of these opportunities with two full-time staff (a TR Coordinator and a TR Specialist,
both degreed and certified as a Certified Therapeutic Recreation Specialist), suppl
time Temp employees, interns, and volunteers (volunteers who gave over 3600 hours in 2013). In
2013, we were able to successfully serve over 16,493 individuals with a variety of disabilities and

offer make and how will we know? 

TR will continue to monitor program numbers, families served, partnerships developed, community
involvement and program evaluations to measure the difference TR makes within the Chattanooga
community. The current feedback from a community survey that was done in December of 2013
shows not only the need for current programs but a want to increase overall services (this is
available upon request). Our budget narrative goes into detail about individual cost center increases.

Identify Which Desired Outcomes er Impacts:

Access to Health and Wellness Programs

Education and water safety classes and programs that create awareness about the aquatic

Healthy and active lifestyles are more attainable by participating in water activities and fitness
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icipating in organized leagues; officials, 
referees, time clock and coaching. Several of our YFD part time and full time staff started their 

Innovation/Sustainability practices -

Therapeutic Recreation (TR) Division of the Chattanooga YFD Department seeks to provide leisure 
and recreation opportunities for citizens of all abilities and their families. We serve both youth and 
adults with physical, cognitive, and/or emotional disabilities. Through our programs, education and 
advocacy, individuals can build confidence, improve physical and cognitive abilities, expand support 

ality of life. TR provides over fifteen programs both in 
the spring and the fall. During the summer, TR offers summer camp opportunities at the Zoo. This is 
one of the few summer camp opportunities in the Chattanooga area that focus on kids and adults 

disabilities as well was their siblings. TR also assists with the community-wide disability 
). Previous grants funded the initial startup of the TR program and help 

rovide a source of student 

time staff (a TR Coordinator and a TR Specialist, 
both degreed and certified as a Certified Therapeutic Recreation Specialist), supplemented with part-
time Temp employees, interns, and volunteers (volunteers who gave over 3600 hours in 2013). In 
2013, we were able to successfully serve over 16,493 individuals with a variety of disabilities and 

TR will continue to monitor program numbers, families served, partnerships developed, community 
involvement and program evaluations to measure the difference TR makes within the Chattanooga 

from a community survey that was done in December of 2013 
shows not only the need for current programs but a want to increase overall services (this is 
available upon request). Our budget narrative goes into detail about individual cost center increases. 

this Ofrom Request for Offer(s) that this Of fffer Impacts: 

awareness about the aquatic 

Healthy and active lifestyles are more attainable by participating in water activities and fitness
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classes 

3. Building stronger families by promoting activities for all ages

4. Career/workforce development -

lifeguard, swim instructor, or more

1. Community health - Focusing on leisure, recreation, educational and overall healthy, active
lifestyles for individuals with disabilities and their family.

2. Utilizing volunteers to increase program numbers as well as foster meaningful relationships and
inclusive environments. 

3. Educating the community on disability awareness.

4. Developing community partnerships that no
overall awareness of individual’s abilities.

1. Respect

2. Teamwork

3. The ability to gain employment

1. Community Health – physical activity and health educational opportunities for all generations

2. Opportunities for people with disabilities
Recreation program 

3. City employee health, YFD & Citywide
wellness with YFD employees, and provides the Chattanooga Fire Department with training to help
increase health/fitness/performance levels of their new hire cadets

ed on Dept.Summary:(Please complete basased on 
Dept. Forms) 

Department 

Personnel Cost
(including
Benefits)

Youth and Family 
Development 2,121,600

Total 2,121,600

laborating Department totals for this offer

Capital Budget Impact?xYes 

City of Chattanooga 

Offers 

Building stronger families by promoting activities for all ages

- teaching and learning new skills that will enable youth to get

jobs in the field of aquatics, suchjobs in the field of aquatics, such asas lifeguard, swim instructor. 

Focusing on leisure, recreation, educational and overall healthy, active
ith disabilities and their family. 

2. Utilizing volunteers to increase program numbers as well as foster meaningful relationships and

3. Educating the community on disability awareness.

4. Developing community partnerships that not only helps to increase services available but creates
overall awareness of individual’s abilities. 

physical activity and health educational opportunities for all generations

Opportunities for people with disabilities – CFC is ADA accessible and houses the Therapeutic

City employee health, YFD & Citywide – CFC supports Well Advantage, promotes employee
wellness with YFD employees, and provides the Chattanooga Fire Department with training to help
increase health/fitness/performance levels of their new hire cadets 

BUDGET REQUEST 

(Please complete b rsonnel Detail

Personnel Cost 
(including 
Benefits) Operations Request 

2,121,600 488,249 2,609,849 

2,121,600 488,249 2,609,849 

*Amounts MUST agree with c r

No $3,890,000 Amount 
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ing and learning new skills that will enable youth to get 

Focusing on leisure, recreation, educational and overall healthy, active

2. Utilizing volunteers to increase program numbers as well as foster meaningful relationships and

t only helps to increase services available but creates 

physical activity and health educational opportunities for all generations

CFC is ADA accessible and houses the Therapeutic

, promotes employee
wellness with YFD employees, and provides the Chattanooga Fire Department with training to help 

Operating Detail and Dept.Operating Detail and Dept. PPeersonnel Detail 

%  of 
offer 

 FTEs 
require

d 

100% 15.5 

0% 

100% 15.5 

*Amounts MUST agree with collaborating Department totals for this of*Amounts MUST agree with co l ollaborating Department totals for this offe f er 
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ital Budget Request Form

Financial Offsets:(Please list any Revenue e.g.
Contributions, Etc.) 

Name 

Arts Build Grant (Potential) 

Fitness Center Revenues 

Sports Registrations 

Aquatics Revenues 

Therapeutic Recreation Revenues 

Therapeutic Recreation Fundraising
Application 

Measurement 1:Participants/Attendance

FY2012 FY2013

108460 109506

Measurement 2:Number of Program/Events

FY2012 FY2013

50 

Measurement 3:Revenues 

FY2012 FY2013

89816 

Return on Investment: 

Youth Development 

How do citizens benefit?  An investment in Chattanooga’s youth and families is an investment in

our city’s growth and prosperity. Developing smarter students is an investment in our future

workforce and leadership for local communities. An educated populous creates better outcomes

our schools and business community. Statistics show that educating citizens reduces the strain on

our courts systems and creates safer streets. When the community has healthy, positive alternative

programs for youth and families, young adults make econ

vibrant, progressive city with opportunities for everyone. The young people who decide to stay in the

city as a result of the recreational and lifestyle options later invest in housing, contribute to the local

City of Chattanooga 

Offers 

*Please prepare and attach C*Please prepare and attach Ca p apital Budget Request Form 

(Please list any Revenue e.g. golf course revenue, Grants, Private/Corporate

Amount 

3000.00 

55000.00 

14000.00 

30000.00 

 3000.00 

Therapeutic Recreation Fundraising/Grant TBD 

PERFORMANCE DATA 

Participants/Attendance 

FY2013 FY2014 FY2015 Target

109506 110425 

Number of Program/Events 

FY2013 FY2014 FY2015

50 50 

FY2013 FY2014 FY2015 Target

98782 97850 approx 

An investment in Chattanooga’s youth and families is an investment in

our city’s growth and prosperity. Developing smarter students is an investment in our future

workforce and leadership for local communities. An educated populous creates better outcomes

our schools and business community. Statistics show that educating citizens reduces the strain on

our courts systems and creates safer streets. When the community has healthy, positive alternative

programs for youth and families, young adults make economic and social decisions to stay in a

vibrant, progressive city with opportunities for everyone. The young people who decide to stay in the

city as a result of the recreational and lifestyle options later invest in housing, contribute to the local

12 

golf course revenue, Grants, Private/Corporate 

FY2015 Target 

117600 

FY2015 Target 

50 

FY2015 Target 

105000 

An investment in Chattanooga’s youth and families is an investment in 

our city’s growth and prosperity. Developing smarter students is an investment in our future 

workforce and leadership for local communities. An educated populous creates better outcomes for 

our schools and business community. Statistics show that educating citizens reduces the strain on 

our courts systems and creates safer streets. When the community has healthy, positive alternative 

omic and social decisions to stay in a 

vibrant, progressive city with opportunities for everyone. The young people who decide to stay in the 

city as a result of the recreational and lifestyle options later invest in housing, contribute to the local 
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economy, and pay taxes. Citizens who take full advantage of the options in health and wellness

programs experience a reduction in the cost of healthcare to families and business. Through YFD

services, both students and families develop a heightened awareness of l

nutrition, physical fitness, and options for recreational opportunities for those with a disability.

Participation in recreational sports has an impact on creating safer streets, stronger neighborhoods,

provides revenue to sustain programs, and bonds families in lasting ways. These healthy options for

youth and their families to learn and thrive make for a sound investment through prevention and

action.   

Does this activity leverage other financial resources?

fees are assessed with athletic programs. Matching sources are also realized through partnerships

and across departments in YFD. 

How does this decrease costs over time?

students and stronger families, the impact on safer streets and stronger neighborhoods cannot be

overlooked. Increasing the number of users and subsequent fees assessed for access, will decrease

costs over time. Improving and perfecting the delivery of services and meeting the

will afford YFD to apply for other funding sources over time, thereby decrease the cost of programs

in the future.   

Sports 

How do citizens benefit?  

The benefits of sports are many:

strengthening of the parent-child bond or relationship. Youth participating in sports are more

physically fit which addresses the youth obesity problem and parents and other family members are

usually attend games which builds and strengthens the family bond.

Does this activity leverage other financial resources?

Kick Program & all staff expenses to organize the National Competition at the NFL All Star Game),

NBL (Pitch, Hit and Run Program), Hershey Corporation (Hershey Track and Field Program), Howard

High School (Late Night Hoops and Reach One Youth Football League), Front Porch Alliance (RBI

Program), Hamilton County Commissioners (RBI and youth football), Engle Foundati

High School (Legends Baseball Clinic) Finley Stadium (youth football), Blue Cross Blue Shield,

Y.M.C.A.,  McCallie (Senior Games) and North River Soccer Association (soccer leagues).

from adult sports programs. 

How does this decrease costs over

will decrease costs and create new partnerships

Aquatics 

How do citizens benefit? The citizens benefit by having aquatics options that are accessible and

affordable, and help promote water safety and fitness.

City of Chattanooga 
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, and pay taxes. Citizens who take full advantage of the options in health and wellness

programs experience a reduction in the cost of healthcare to families and business. Through YFD

services, both students and families develop a heightened awareness of life-long skills regarding

nutrition, physical fitness, and options for recreational opportunities for those with a disability.

Participation in recreational sports has an impact on creating safer streets, stronger neighborhoods,

programs, and bonds families in lasting ways.  These healthy options for

youth and their families to learn and thrive make for a sound investment through prevention and

Does this activity leverage other financial resources?  Yes. User revenues a

fees are assessed with athletic programs. Matching sources are also realized through partnerships

How does this decrease costs over time? Although YFD services focus on developing smarter

families, the impact on safer streets and stronger neighborhoods cannot be

overlooked. Increasing the number of users and subsequent fees assessed for access, will decrease

costs over time. Improving and perfecting the delivery of services and meeting the

will afford YFD to apply for other funding sources over time, thereby decrease the cost of programs

many: Physical, social and acceptance, fun networking and

child bond or relationship.  Youth participating in sports are more

physically fit which addresses the youth obesity problem and parents and other family members are

es which builds and strengthens the family bond. 

Does this activity leverage other financial resources? NFL and Tennessee Titans (Punt, Pass &

Kick Program & all staff expenses to organize the National Competition at the NFL All Star Game),

t and Run Program), Hershey Corporation (Hershey Track and Field Program), Howard

High School (Late Night Hoops and Reach One Youth Football League), Front Porch Alliance (RBI

Program), Hamilton County Commissioners (RBI and youth football), Engle Foundati

High School (Legends Baseball Clinic) Finley Stadium (youth football), Blue Cross Blue Shield,

Y.M.C.A., McCallie (Senior Games) and North River Soccer Association (soccer leagues).

How does this decrease costs over time? Over time enhancing partnerships and relationships

ase costs and create new partnerships 

citizens benefit by having aquatics options that are accessible and

affordable, and help promote water safety and fitness. 
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, and pay taxes. Citizens who take full advantage of the options in health and wellness 

programs experience a reduction in the cost of healthcare to families and business. Through YFD 

long skills regarding 

nutrition, physical fitness, and options for recreational opportunities for those with a disability. 

Participation in recreational sports has an impact on creating safer streets, stronger neighborhoods, 

programs, and bonds families in lasting ways. These healthy options for 

youth and their families to learn and thrive make for a sound investment through prevention and 

Yes. User revenues are generated as 

fees are assessed with athletic programs. Matching sources are also realized through partnerships 

Although YFD services focus on developing smarter 

families, the impact on safer streets and stronger neighborhoods cannot be 

overlooked. Increasing the number of users and subsequent fees assessed for access, will decrease 

costs over time. Improving and perfecting the delivery of services and meeting the desired outcomes 

will afford YFD to apply for other funding sources over time, thereby decrease the cost of programs 

, social and acceptance, fun networking and 

child bond or relationship. Youth participating in sports are more 

physically fit which addresses the youth obesity problem and parents and other family members are 

NFL and Tennessee Titans (Punt, Pass & 

Kick Program & all staff expenses to organize the National Competition at the NFL All Star Game), 

t and Run Program), Hershey Corporation (Hershey Track and Field Program), Howard 

High School (Late Night Hoops and Reach One Youth Football League), Front Porch Alliance (RBI 

Program), Hamilton County Commissioners (RBI and youth football), Engle Foundation and McCallie 

High School (Legends Baseball Clinic) Finley Stadium (youth football), Blue Cross Blue Shield, 

Y.M.C.A., McCallie (Senior Games) and North River Soccer Association (soccer leagues). Also, fees 

time enhancing partnerships and relationships 

citizens benefit by having aquatics options that are accessible and 
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Does this activity leverage other financial

operating expenses.  Future goals are to identify and secure grants, donations, and other funding

opportunities to help CA fund new programming, equipment acquisition, and facility renovation.

How does this decrease costs over

equipment and facilities, increased usage rates (= more revenues), and potential to lower health

care costs for the public and reduce water

Fitness 

How do citizens benefit? The citizens benefit by having an easy access and affordable option to

help address their physical fitness needs, as well as help combat rising health care costs and

incidence of disease, including diabetes, obesity, and he

community with a health/fitness option that strives to remove obstacles for individuals of all abilities.

Does this activity leverage other financial

operating expenses.  Continued and future goals are to identify and secure grants, donations, and

other funding opportunities to help the CFC and other YFD facilities fund programming, fitness

equipment acquisition, and facility renovation.

How does this decrease costs ove

equipment and facilities, increased programming and improved equipment options (which should

increase usage rates/ revenues), and offering a viable option to help favorably address community

wellness concerns, including rising health care costs and incidence of chronic disease.

Therapeutic Recreation 

How do citizens benefit? The 

the participants, their families and the volunteers involved. TR

participants to gain social skills, independence and overall quality of life. TR programs offer

opportunities to establish/reestablish new life skills, increase physical fitness and foster meaningful

relationships.  

Does this activity leverage other financial

private donations and small fundraisers. TR also utilizes community partnerships for a variety of

facilities and other assistance.   

How does this decrease costs ove

opportunities mentioned above. 

City of Chattanooga 
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Does this activity leverage other financial resources? Currently only user revenues help offset

operating expenses. Future goals are to identify and secure grants, donations, and other funding

opportunities to help CA fund new programming, equipment acquisition, and facility renovation.

e costs over time? Costs to the City will decrease due to more efficient

equipment and facilities, increased usage rates (= more revenues), and potential to lower health

care costs for the public and reduce water-related tragedies, including drowning. 

citizens benefit by having an easy access and affordable option to

help address their physical fitness needs, as well as help combat rising health care costs and

incidence of disease, including diabetes, obesity, and heart disease.  The CFC provides the

community with a health/fitness option that strives to remove obstacles for individuals of all abilities.

Does this activity leverage other financial resources? Currently only user revenues help offset

s. Continued and future goals are to identify and secure grants, donations, and

other funding opportunities to help the CFC and other YFD facilities fund programming, fitness

equipment acquisition, and facility renovation. 

How does this decrease costs over time? Costs to the City will decrease due to more efficient

equipment and facilities, increased programming and improved equipment options (which should

increase usage rates/ revenues), and offering a viable option to help favorably address community

s, including rising health care costs and incidence of chronic disease.

 Therapeutic Recreation program offers a diversity of benefits for

the participants, their families and the volunteers involved. TR programs are an effective way for

participants to gain social skills, independence and overall quality of life. TR programs offer

opportunities to establish/reestablish new life skills, increase physical fitness and foster meaningful

his activity leverage other financial resources? Yes, TR is constantly looking for grants,

private donations and small fundraisers. TR also utilizes community partnerships for a variety of

How does this decrease costs over time? Costs to the City will decrease due to external funding
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only user revenues help offset 

operating expenses. Future goals are to identify and secure grants, donations, and other funding 

opportunities to help CA fund new programming, equipment acquisition, and facility renovation. 

to the City will decrease due to more efficient 

equipment and facilities, increased usage rates (= more revenues), and potential to lower health 

 

citizens benefit by having an easy access and affordable option to 

help address their physical fitness needs, as well as help combat rising health care costs and 

The CFC provides the 

community with a health/fitness option that strives to remove obstacles for individuals of all abilities.  

only user revenues help offset 

s. Continued and future goals are to identify and secure grants, donations, and 

other funding opportunities to help the CFC and other YFD facilities fund programming, fitness 

to the City will decrease due to more efficient 

equipment and facilities, increased programming and improved equipment options (which should 

increase usage rates/ revenues), and offering a viable option to help favorably address community 

s, including rising health care costs and incidence of chronic disease. 

Therapeutic Recreation program offers a diversity of benefits for 

programs are an effective way for 

participants to gain social skills, independence and overall quality of life. TR programs offer 

opportunities to establish/reestablish new life skills, increase physical fitness and foster meaningful 

, TR is constantly looking for grants, 

private donations and small fundraisers. TR also utilizes community partnerships for a variety of 

Costs to the City will decrease due to external funding 



Prioritizing Offers:
Result teams were formed for each of the five result areas.  Result team responsibilities included 
reviewing and ranking the offers for funding and providing feedback on how to improve offers.  Each 
result team included a member of the leadership team, a budget analyst, two City department 
administrators or deputy administrators, and a volunteer community member knowledgeable in the 
result area.

The result teams reviewed all offers and ranked them twice.  After the first ranking, the result teams 
provided feedback to departments and agencies on how to improve their offers.  The second ranking 
was submitted to the leadership team for review, followed by input from the Mayor. The ranking 
process is subject to change based on the recommendations of all the reviewers until the final budget has 
been compiled. 

The rankings are listed in priority order, with offers likely to achieve the most results at the top of the list 
and the offers likely to achieve the fewest results at the bottom of the list.  The amount of money 
available for each result area is allocated to the offers beginning at the top of the ranked list until the 
money runs out.  A line is drawn and everything above the line is recommended for funding.  
Everything below the line is recommended not to be funded.  If something below the line needs to be 
funded, an offer that is currently above the line needs to be adjusted or moved below the line.  This 
process allows decision-makers at each level to see the impact of budget decisions. 

The following are Offers for the Smarter Students & Stronger Families Result Area that did 
not receive funding: 
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OFFER SUMMARY 

 
Offer Name: Chattanooga History Center Youth Development Programs 

Lead Agency: Chattanooga History Center 

Collaborating City Department(s): Youth & Family Development 

Contact Name: Marlene Payne 

Primary Results Area: Smarter Students, Stronger Families  

Offer Cost (Funding Request): $28,000   
 

RESULTS AREAS 
 

1. Safer Streets – Safe communities, reduced crime, positive opportunities, and alternate 
pathways. 

2. Growing Economy – Growing and supporting local businesses, workforce development, 
business recruitment and retention, and an environment for innovation. 

3. Stronger Neighborhoods – Neighborhood leadership, connected communities, healthy 
residential markets, and rapid re-housing. 

4. Smarter Students, Stronger Families – Parents and first teachers, community support, and 
community health. 

5. High Performing Government – Data-driven decision making, sound operations, outstanding 
customer service, resource management, and exceptional talent. 

6. Innovation Fund – Something different – processes, services, technologies, ideas.  Shifting the 
way government operates. 

DETAILS 
 

Description: (What is the service/program? How will it be provided? What innovation & sustainability practice does this leverage? 
What difference does this offer make and how will we know? Make a compelling case for your offer.)    
 
Proposed Pilot Program:  My Place 
Designed and Presented by the Chattanooga History Center for the City of Chattanooga Department of Youth and 
Family Development Smarter Students, Stronger Families Initiative 
 
The Chattanooga History Center (CHC) plans to provide a three-pronged cultural enrichment program designed to assist 
the Department of  Youth and Family Development in meeting its goal of creating Smarter Students and Stronger 
Families. The pilot program would be offered for 10 children in each of the following age groups -- 6-8 year olds, 9-11 
year olds, 12-14 year olds and focused in the Alton Park/Piney Woods neighborhood.  Department of Youth and Family 
Development would assist in recruitment of participants.  Each group of 10 would meet once a week. 
 
CHC Administrative and Education staff will design, plan, supervise and direct the implementation of the program.  CHC 
staff will monitor and evaluate the program on an ongoing basis.  (Note:  CHC staff will be meeting with Lurone Jennings 
of the Department of Youth and Family Development to discuss this plan on May 10, 2014.) 
 
The proposed program consists of the following elements: 
 
1. Generations of Stories (9-11 year olds) -- This element builds on the CHC's ongoing collection of oral histories. The 
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focus in this program will be connecting generational cohorts. Recent scholarship ("Did You Know?" study, Emory 
University) shows that knowing family stories aids in childhood development. The links in space and in time created 
through this knowledge helps ground youngsters and provides a narrative into which youngsters can insert themselves. 
The sense of continuity and feeling of belonging created through such knowledge helps young learners make sense out 
of their experience and feel connections to broader networks of neighbors and kin.  CHC staff and volunteers will 
facilitate the interviews, which will include incorporating the participation of  immediate and extended family and/or 
friends and neighbors. 
 
2. Reading Enrichment (6-8 year olds) -- The CHC has begun conversations with the Alton Park Development 
Corporation, Baylor School, the Creative Discovery Museum, and the Public Library aimed at creating a pilot program 
that targets young readers. As studies show, learning success is predicated on a strong literacy base that is in place by 
third grade. Local leaders know well that an inability to read at or above grade level by 3rd grade correlates to 
subsequent incarceration. By working with partners across the community, the CHC will ultimately be able to help create 
a network of learning centers in which tutors help through storytelling and intergenerational reading activities, to 
establish a strong foundation in reading for pleasure and for information.  In the pilot year, participants will begin 
learning research skills, and will receive exposure to a variety of literary forms. 
 
3. Learning our Past (12-14 year olds) -- This element of the program aims to provide a strong foundation in 
Chattanoogans' shared histories. All of the programs developed by the CHC correspond to grade level curriculum 
standards for Tennessee schools. This afterschool program, conducted by CHC educators, supplements the work being 
done in the classroom.  Using history sources, CHC educators help "build knowledge through content-rich nonfiction." At 
the same time, this program will promote "Reading, writing and speaking grounded in evidence from text, both literary 
and informational" and has the potential to be instrumental in building these critical reading skills throughout 
childhood.  The curriculum will be project oriented. 
 
Program Services: As the only institution of its kind in the region focused on interpreting local history, the 
new CHC will fill a major gap in historical interpretation and documentation for the region. The CHC will also 
fill a significant gap in K-12 public school curricula by providing a deep resource on which teachers can draw 
to use the city’s and region’s rich historical record to illuminate American history. The CHC is requesting 
$28,000 from the City of Chattanooga to support My Space, a Youth Development Programs, which will join 
its schedule of youth education programming in FY 2015. The CHC will also provide other youth development 
programs after school, during the summer, and on school breaks—periods when students are out of school 
and not focusing time on learning. The CHC will also expand its off-site education programs, bringing history 
to life in schools, youth and family development centers, the public library, and other museums and cultural 
institutions. With an innovative and new approach to history interpretation, the CHC has tremendous 
potential to make the often abstract-seeming history of the nation local, manageable, and immediately 
relevant to visitors and students at all levels.  
 
The CHC’s grant request aligns with City of Chattanooga’s goals for Stronger Students & Stronger Families by 
providing rich educational experiences for youth that will contribute to academic development and 
enrichment, college and career awareness, and increased reading proficiency and critical thinking skills.  All of 
these academic benefits can also have an impact on students’ motivation to attend and stay in school. As a 
center positioned downtown, the CHC is uniquely poised to serve low-income youth and families throughout 
Chattanooga’s urban core who often lack opportunities for cultural enrichment due to their economic status.  
With field trips included in the My Place pilot curriculum, the CHC will be able to use its location as a hub for 
other cultural institution visits and walking tours.  The CHC will offer many of its youth development programs 
for free (or offer scholarships to fee-based programs) and will have monthly free museum days open to the 
community. In addition, the CHC brings history to youth throughout the community via on-site visits to 
schools, youth and family development centers, and other partner organizations. The CHC’s new center will 
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also have a significant economic impact on the City by drawing more visitors to the downtown district and 
increasing the number of days visitors stay downtown. Our Youth Development Programs will serve more 
than 4,200 students during FY 2015. 
 
Community Need, Benefits, and Impact: Founded in 1978, the CHC began as a grassroots effort by local 
citizens who recognized the need for an institution that preserved and interpreted the city’s past. As the only 
institution of its kind in the region focused on interpreting local history, the new CHC will fill a major gap in 
historical interpretation and documentation for the region and fill a significant gap in K-12 public school 
curricula by providing a deep resource on which teachers can draw to use the city’s and region’s rich historical 
record to illuminate American history.  Serving as an educational resource for the region is core to the CHC’s 
mission and has been a driving force in redefining our mission and designing the new interpretive center. 
Operating as a museum without walls since 2008 during the construction of our new center, the CHC has 
continued to offer several programs that benefit Chattanooga residents and enable broad participation in 
cultural education. When the new center opens, the CHC will expand to serve more than 69,000 people 
annually, which includes 15,000 K-12 students. Key beneficiaries and impact include: 

• K-12 Students: The CHC currently serves as an education resource for K-12 schools through classroom 
presentations, guest lectures, object studies, and walking tours. CHC staff also create K-12 lesson 
plans aligned with Tennessee content standards, many of which can be adapted to serve any grade 
level or the museum’s programming for the general public. The CHC partners closely with Normal 
Park Museum Magnet School to develop many of its lesson plans and will expand this museum 
magnet model to other schools. The CHC has had a flurry of requests from other schools for 
curriculum support, which indicates a need for expansion of learning experiences in the CHC’s new 
center. With over 40,000 students in HCDE (and another 90,000 regionally), the CHC has a strong base 
of students and teachers to recruit into its K-12 programs. When the new center opens, the CHC’s K-
12 education impact will grow substantially to serve more than 15,000 students annually.  

• University Students: Through its cadre of programs (class lectures, history walking tours, special 
programs, and internships), the CHC serves dozens of university students annually from UTC, 
Chattanooga State and other regional institutions. The CHC has worked with UTC to develop an 
internship program in public history, which trains interns in the practice of presenting history to the 
public and provides practical experience in museum operations. In the long-term, the CHC and UTC 
will partner to create a certificate program in Public History.  

• Lifelong and Adult Learners: The CHC offers a variety of programs to the general public and regularly 
has full capacity for these offerings, which include tours, lectures, workshops, events, and film 
studies. The CHC’s most popular public programs include the lecture series “A Short History of 
Chattanooga,”  the Nicely Tours (a series of walking tours based on Maury Nicely’s Chattanooga 
Walking Tour and Historic Guide), and Cherokee history and Civil War tours. The CHC has also 
partnered with the Hunter Museum of American Art for history and art gallery programs. 

• My Place Participants:  This program provides intensive, personalized education work with children 
who are at risk of being deprived of opportunities to expand their learning experiences.   
 

Beyond the core areas of audience and program impact described above, the CHC’s new interpretive center 
will provide additional benefits to the community and region: 

• Discounted and Free Admission: To ensure all City residents can fully benefit from and have access to 
the CHC’s new interpretive center, the CHC will offer City residents discounted admission to the 
museum, as well as free admission on specified days/times each month.  

• Civic Engagement: Drawing on Chattanooga’s history of public participation in community planning 
projects such as the Moccasin Bend Task Force, Chattanooga Venture, Vision 2000, and Imagine 
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Chattanooga 20/20, the final exhibition space is called History Isn’t Over. This space, both a gallery 
and a classroom, is inspired by the city’s successful community visioning project (Vision 2000) and will 
be the site of frequent meetings in which the community is asked to take part in sessions that will 
create an updateable Commitment Portfolio of ideas that will help chart the city’s future.  

• Story Center: The exhibition will house a digital recording station that will be a repository for 
community memory. At the Story Center booth, CHC staff will help visitors document their oral 
histories, and visitors will be able to listen to existing records through headphones. Using the latest 
portable digital recording technology, the CHC staff and specially trained volunteers have already 
begun collecting stories from Chattanoogans of all backgrounds and socio-economic levels in 
churches, homes, and community centers across the city. Through the Story Center, the CHC will 
contribute to the city’s official record by capturing the voices of everyday people, who often 
disappear from historical documentation.  

• Learning Labs and Program Spaces: The center will incorporate a series of learning labs and program 
spaces to support a range of education programs for students, teachers, and adult learners. 
Programming in these spaces will be ongoing and engage questions of history and contemporary 
community issues. The CHC will work with local partners to draw attention to the major issues 
confronting the city and promote discussions and initiatives that will lead to actionable solutions.  

• Technology Integration: The center will activate the latest museum technologies, which will permit 
visitors to engage deeply with areas within the exhibit they find compelling and allow visitors to 
download content they can carry with them as they strike out on tours of the city’s historic landscape.  

• Environmental Awareness: As Tennessee’s first LEED certified museum and one of only 26 LEED 
certified museums nationwide, the CHC will raise environmental awareness. 

• Tourism Revenue: By adding a new cultural destination to Chattanooga’s riverfront, the CHC will 
impact tourism revenue in the City, as visitors may choose to remain longer in the city to take in all of 
the cultural attractions. 

• Partnerships: The CHC will continue to partner with other local institutions in educational efforts, 
including the Hunter Museum, Creative Discovery Museum, Tennessee Aquarium, UTC, Association of 
Chattanooga Museum Educators, Bessie Smith Cultural Center, UTC, National Park Service, the Public 
Library, the Convention and Visitors Bureau, and Tennessee Riverwalk.  

• Support for Local Artists: The CHC will house a rotating art exhibition featuring local artists, which will 
support and promote the visual arts to a broad audience base.   
 

The CHC’s innovative approach to history interpretation helped us attract Ralph Appelbaum Associates (RAA), 
an internationally renowned museum design firm that is directing the design, fabrication, and installation 
phases of the project. RAA is expert in drawing out the emotive force of historic objects, images, and voices to 
create thrilling environments that can inspire and humble at the same time (such as the Constitution Center, 
in Philadelphia, the Country Music Hall of Fame, in Nashville, and the United States Holocaust Memorial 
Museum, in Washington, D. C.). Such powerful exhibition techniques make it impossible for visitors not to be 
touched, fueled, enraged, and inspired.  Out of this emotional power comes a call for action that transforms 
individuals, communities, and cities.  The CHC experience elevates Chattanooga and its citizens and sets a new 
standard for museums of this kind. And in so doing, leads the city into a new century better prepared to meet 
the challenges we know will confront us. 
 

 
Identify Which Desired Outcomes This Offer Impacts:  

1.  More kids graduating high school college and career ready 
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2.  Fewer kids dropping out of school 
3.  Increase reading proficiency for children and adults 
 

BUDGET REQUEST 
 

Summary:  (Please complete based on information contained in Attachment F) 
 

Offer Name 
Personnel Costs 

(including Benefits) Operating Costs Total Request 
 FTEs 

required 
My Place (Youth 

Development 
Program) $15,020 $12,980 $28,000 0 

 
*The CHC’s Youth Development Programs will cost $148,000 in FY 2015. The CHC is requesting $28,000 from the City to 
support youth programming (19% of total program costs). 
 
Capital Budget Impact?    No     Amount – N/A 
 

 
Financial Offsets: (Please list other revenues associated with the specific program for which funding is requested) 

Name Amount 
General Operating Income (Admissisons, gift shop, etc.) $120,000 
  
  

 

PERFORMANCE DATA 
 

Measurement 1: Serve at least 4,200 K-12 students and 125 K-12 teachers during FY 2015.   
 

Historical Comparison Data?  CHC programs were presented to 1,081 Hamilton County students during the 
last complete fiscal year, which includes in-school programs, lectures, and tours.  The CHC offers programs 
integrated with the Tennessee State Board of Education’s curriculum standards for grades K-12. School 
programs are presented to teachers with descriptions and precise statements about which curriculum 
standards they match. Staff meets with all the teachers at Normal Park Upper and Lower Schools every nine 
weeks to plan exactly how Center programs can fit into the upcoming curriculum map. Staff also happily 
accepts requests from teachers at other schools for specific programs that are not on the roster and designs a 
class or activity customized especially for them. Many programs originally designed for schools have been 
adapted to adult level and incorporated into the general programming. Production of programs on demand is 
driving constant and ongoing program expansion, often resulting in programs and activities which would not 
have been created otherwise. K-12 education programs will expand significantly when the new center opens, 
offering students and teachers an interactive exhibition to study and explore the history of our region. 

 
 Measurement 2: Engage at least 500, including 30 My Place pilot participants,  K-12 students in 

out-of-school time programming, including afterschool, spring break, winter break, and summer 
programming and internships.    
 
Historical Comparison Data?  Though the CHC has been able to present only very minimal offerings in this 
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category of programming during its new facility development stage, serving as an educational hub for the 
community is a key component of the CHC’s model. Even while operating as a “museum without walls” we 
have continued to have a significant impact on K-12 education in our community, impacting at least 1,000 K-
12 students annually over the last five years through on-site programs, walking tours, and special lectures and 
programs with partner institutions. As we move into our operational phase in our new interpretive center in 
FY 2015, we will be able to dramatically enhance our Youth Development Programs for the community 
through afterschool programs, summer programs, programs offered during school breaks, and internships 
and job shadowing experiences for high school youth.  

 Measurement 3: Serve at least 150 university students in FY 2015 through lectures, internships 
and special programs in FY 2015. 
 

Historical Comparison Data?  During the last fiscal year, CHC teaching and practical instruction has reached 
over 100 UT Chattanooga, UT Knoxville and Southern Adventist University students through class lectures, 
history walking tours and internships which introduce UTC history students to public history and museum 
work.  In addition to conducting programs that bolster the local primary and secondary schools, CHC Director, 
Dr. Daryl Black, has taught a Seminar in Public History (History 499), Civil War and Reconstruction (History 
335) and developed an internship program through the University of Tennessee at Chattanooga History 
Department that integrates UTC history curriculum into documenting and interpreting local history. The 
Center works in a like manner with interns from Southern Adventist University.  Such connections to higher 
education in the region have been bolstered by history teachers at UTC and Chattanooga State who have 
encouraged participation at CHC events by giving extra credit to students who attend certain History Center 
programs. The CHC will work to engage university students further in its new center, which will activate the 
latest museum technologies with a special emphasis on creating interfaces between hand-held devices (such 
as smart-phones and iPads) and the exhibition.   
 

 

Measurement 4: Serve at least 14,900 individuals through walking tours, bus tours, lectures, 
special events and classes in FY 2015. 
 
Historical Comparison Data? CHC programs for adult audiences continue to be well attended and 
enthusiastically received. Over the last fiscal year, 1,224 attendees have participated in walking tours, bus 
tours, lectures, special events and classes. Full capacity or near capacity groups have turned out for an 
astonishing variety of History Center programs:  tours, lectures, workshops, and special events.  Programs 
such as “A Short History of Chattanooga”, our series of downtown walking tours based on Maury Nicely’s 
guidebook, and our Cherokee history bus tours have been repeated due to public demand and placed on the 
ongoing calendar of events. The CHC partners with the UTC Department of History on a number of projects, 
including hosting the annual East Tennessee History Day competition. In addition, the Center has partnered 
with the Hunter Museum of American Art for History and Art gallery programs. The Center has also provided 
research, writing and photographic selection expertise for the Convention and Visitors Bureau sponsored Civil 
War Trails program. When the new center opens, the CHC will continue these successful programs and 
expand its offerings via new learning labs and teaching spaces available to accommodate special programs 
and events.  
 

 

 
Return on Investment: 
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How do citizens benefit?  Because of our location, the CHC is able to seamlessly take history into the streets 
and teach in engaging, entertaining, and historically significant neighborhoods – through these programs, the 
landscape and the cityscape become constant reminders of the ways that people have acted on the region’s 
dramatic surroundings. As we move into our operational phase in our new interpretive center in FY 2015, we 
will be able to dramatically enhance our Youth Development Programs for the community through 
afterschool programs, summer programs, programs offered during school breaks, and internships and job 
shadowing experiences for high school and college students. It is our goal to provide engaging educational 
curriculum tied to state standards in order to improve students’ academic preparation, including literacy and 
critical thinking skills. By exciting students about their education and motivating them to engage in their 
community, the CHC can have a direct impact on improving students’ motivation to attend and stay in school.  
 
The CHC has demonstrated its commitment to educational programming by hiring a Senior Educator, Caroline 
Sunderland, to develop K-12 programs tied to our new exhibit content. These programs are aligned with state 
content standards and provide multiple avenues for students to think critically and practice high-level literacy 
and analysis skills. One example is a session focused on the Environmental History of Chattanooga, which 
helps students see and experience the connections between environmental science and the social, political, 
and economic factors that bring about environmental change and encourage civic engagement. Another 
example is a session focused on the Civil Rights Movement, which allows students to explore national trends 
in this transformative time in American History by looking at how it unfolded in Chattanooga. In addition, we 
will launch a new Junior Curator program for high school students that teaches them the principles of historic 
research and collection care. Students will work with CHC staff to learn about the process of historic research, 
engage with artifacts and learn about proper care, and engage with evaluation of primary sources to analyze 
the significance of the object. By the end of their session, students will have gone through all of the stages 
necessary to help the CHC catalog an object. All educational programs are adaptable to multiple grade levels, 
which ensures educational content and programming is accessible to the broadest number of youth. 
 
In addition, the Story Center will benefit all citizens in the community by providing a digital recording station 
that will be a repository for community memory. At the Story Center booth, CHC staff will help visitors 
document their oral histories, and visitors will be able to listen to existing records through headphones. Using 
the latest portable digital recording technology, the CHC staff and specially trained volunteers have already 
begun collecting stories from Chattanoogans of all backgrounds and socio-economic levels in churches, 
homes, and community centers across the city. Through the Story Center, the CHC will contribute to the city’s 
official record by capturing the voices of everyday people, who often disappear from historical 
documentation.  
 
The CHC also serves as a hub for exploring contemporary issues facing the city and has hosted a variety of 
roundtable discussions. As we move into an operational mode, these programs will be expanded with a 
special focus on monthly “commitment portfolio” meetings, which will be facilitator-led, roundtable 
discussions that will help prioritize community-wide objectives and energize inclusive discussions about 
inspiring community participation, change, and renewal. The CHC will benefit the entire community by 
providing a forum and voice for citizens throughout the community to help shape their future.  
 
The interpretive goals of the new center emphasize Chattanooga’s place in national history, paying particular 
attention to its pivotal role in Cherokee relocation, its part in expansion of the West, in the Civil War, its 
industrial development and urban growth, and how the city confronted one of the most dire environmental 
problems of the 20th century. Three poetic pieces—called “memory lanterns”—punctuate the story in 
dramatic story-telling spaces in which contemporary Americans speak about how their memory of three 
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pivotal moments in Chattanooga’s past has shaped their lives, including how modern Cherokee continue to 
remember the Trail of Tears, the Civil War has been remembered and disremembered, and experiences of 
segregated Chattanooga from the perspective of the city’s African American citizens. By giving voice to those 
who have traditionally been left out of history or marginalized, the CHC will help create a more cohesive and 
understanding community that benefits all citizens of Chattanooga. 
 
The My Place pilot, by providing supplemental education opportunities to children who need them, benefits 
the larger community by keeping children in school and encouraging development of an educated work force, 
reducing crime, and building a sense of community and shared experience. 
 
The CHC is committed to ongoing audience evaluation to ensure the CHC’s programs, educational materials, 
and exhibition galleries reflect the needs and preferences of participants. Below are the key methods for 
collecting impact data, which will ensure the CHC is offering the greatest benefits to the community: 

• Activity Logs and Surveys: The CHC documents program participation through activity logs and 
conduct surveys of teachers, students, and adult learners to measure the effectiveness of the 
curriculum and technology used in the labs.  

• Demographic Data: As much as possible, CHC staff gathers specific demographic information from 
audiences (including age, gender, race, and residence).  

• Qualitative Data: Because we currently operate as a “museum without walls” and focus on delivering 
high quality programs, we currently seek out detailed feedback from teachers and program 
participants. Part of this effort is anecdotal in that we solicit informal comments from program and 
class participants. By positioning information gathering as a casual conversation, participants feel free 
to comment in detail on their interests, concerns, and desires.   

• Planning Meetings: Quarterly planning meetings with teachers at the museum magnet schools we 
currently partner with provide important feedback on programs presented during the previous 9 
weeks as well as needs for the upcoming 9 weeks. 

• Development of an Evaluation Tool for the My Place Pilot Program:  The CHC will work with the 
Department of Youth and Family Development to create an evaluation tool which will meet all data 
collection criteria defined by both the CHC and the City of Chattanooga. 

 

Results of program assessments and participant input are reviewed by CHC staff at least quarterly to guide 
refinement of curricula and programs, to determine future curriculum or technology needs, and (in the 
future) will be used to determine if there are exhibit, technical, programmatic changes needed in our new 
center to meet the needs and better benefit the community.  
 
Does this activity leverage other financial resources?  The CHC is a fiscally responsible and sustainable 
organization that receives operational funds from ArtsBuild, City allocations, corporate partners, foundations, 
and individual donations and memberships. We will leverage funds from corporate partners, grants, 
donations, and memberships to cover the other operational costs for our Youth Development Programs. 
 

How does this activity decrease costs over time for the City?  The CHC, though it has a bright future 
ultimately, has a very difficult present and immediate future.  Since the sale of its old home at 4th and 
Chestnut Streets was necessary to help finance the new project, the institution had to let go of its admissions 
and gift shop income with the building.  Operating without revenue from museum admissions is an ongoing 
challenge. The CHC is currently dependent to a large extent on grants received from the City, ArtsBuild, and 
other sources to continue offering outreach and education programs over the next year. At that point, with 
the new facility up and running, the pro forma should apply.  Sponsorship in some form may be necessary to 
continue free programs targeting at-risk populations, but the ultimate savings to the City in meeting its 
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Smarter Students, Stronger Families Initiative goals should be far greater than its annual expenditure on the 
proposed program. 
 
How can this program become sustainable without City funding?  To support long-term sustainability of the 
new center, the CHC developed a solid proforma that includes a diverse mix of income streams: visitors, gift 
shop, facility rental, programs, events, membership, sponsorship, annual giving, and grants. A combination of 
admissions and museum store sales will be the bedrock of the CHC’s long-term financial success. Visitor 
estimates are 69,000 per year, which is based on a market analysis of other cultural institutions in the city and 
region. Income from ticket sales ($12.95 per adult and $6.50 per child) and associated spending in the 
museum store (averaged at $3.00 per patron) will account for nearly 80% of operating expenses.   
 

The CHC’s pro forma is based on the CHC’s current business plan (developed by museum consulting firm, 
LaPaglia & Associates) and a study completed by the Chattanooga Area Convention & Visitors Bureau for the 
Tennessee Aquarium to gage expected visitation. The proforma has been vetted with the Aquarium’s chief 
financial officer and with two banks and has been judged sound and very conservative by all who have seen it.  
It is supported further by an innovative exhibit plan designed for active engagement of visitors.  By employing 
the services of the nation’s premier museum design firm, Ralph Appelbaum Associates (RAA), the CHC has 
brought to this project a skilled specialist who embodies the ideals that drive the CHC. RAA is creating a core 
interpretive exhibit, temporary gallery space, and teaching labs that will provide the physical plant necessary 
to engage CHC patrons and support the long-term sustainability of the CHC.  
 
The My Place pilot program can become sustainable through corporate sponsorship, or through grants from 
organizations with an education focus for their awards.  
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The mission of the Chattanooga Zoo is to engage and inspire our community to 

better understand and preserve wildlife by creating meaningful connections 

between people and animals. 

With its intimate, innovative exhibits, its wide-ranging education offerings, and 

its commitment to conservation, the Chattanooga Zoo is a top destination for all 
residents and visitors and the pride of our community. 



 

 

 

 

Community Agency Support 

Re: Executive Summary 

 

To whom it may concern, 

 

The Chattanooga Zoo receives approximately 35% of its annual operating budget ($2.1 million) 

from the City of Chattanooga, as a part of the contract agreement between the City and Friends 

of the Zoo, Inc. (the non-profit organization that manages the Chattanooga Zoo).  This is used to 

fund general zoo operations, which in the past was managed by the City of Chattanooga.  The 

agency requests submitted are for programs performed above and beyond those covered under 

the City contract.   

 

The Zoo prides itself on the role it plays within the community as a provider of low-cost, quality 

education programs, accessible and rewarding volunteer opportunities, cutting-edge conservation 

research and expansive animal rehabilitation efforts. Founded in 1939, for many years the zoo 

was the only exposure to non-domestic animals for Chattanooga residents within a 120 mile 

radius. It was, and still is a primary fieldtrip and family destination that is unique, low cost, 

educational, and of course FUN. 

 

As a leader in low cost educational programming, the Chattanooga Zoo continues to provide 

150,000 people per year with unique and memorable learning opportunities.  Last year the Zoo 

conducted over 300 outreach programs, educating nearly 11,000 people.  In addition, the Zoo’s 

on-site programs enriched the lives of nearly 10,000 participants.  Approximately 50% of all Zoo 

education programs are provided free of charge or subsidized by the Zoo for a much reduced 

rate.   During the summer months, the Chattanooga Zoo offers one of the lowest priced summer 

camps in the area. In 2013, the Zoo had over 470 summer camp members, 10 of which received 

full scholarships.  An active outreach program to seniors is also a popular and important part of 

the community outreach. The Zoo maintains partnerships with numerous area nonprofit agencies 

and schools, offering free hands-on learning and observation opportunities to their constituents.  

 

Similarly, the Zoo provides over free wildlife rehabilitation services to the residents of 

Chattanooga and Hamilton and surrounding counties.  Last year alone, the Zoo helped over 500 

wild animals brought in by local community members heal and return to the wild. This service is 

not offered by any other agency in the region and is important not only to wildlife conservation, 

but to the health and safety of our city. From rabies to West Nile Virus, the zoo is a critical  

 



 

 

 

 

partner in detection of zoonotic diseases that threaten residents through partnership with USDA, 

the Health Department, and Tennessee Wildlife Resources Agency. 

 

The Zoo also offers job training and employment opportunities to underserved and at risk youth 

through a unique program entitled PEDZ, Promoting Ethnic Diversity in Zoos. Perhaps better 

than any other zoo program, PEDZ exemplifies the ability to utilize resources, partnerships, as 

well as passion and ingenuity to create life changing programs for those who need them most.  

 

Finally, as an attraction that is affordable, proximal to downtown, and unique within the city, the 

Chattanooga Zoo contributes to the all important tourism market. Last year almost 40% of 

visitors came from outside a radius of 150 miles. The Zoo is an active partner in the Chamber of 

Commerce, CVB, and participates in the annual Spring Break promotion as well as others.  

 

Outside of the programmatic offerings, the Chattanooga Zoo represents one of the most 

successful and long-lived public/private partnerships in the city. Since 1985, Friends of the Zoo 

(FOZ) has worked with the City to completely transform the old and decrepit facility that was the 

Zoo of 1985 into an accredited, aesthetic, and well loved community resource. In addition to new 

state of the art animal exhibits, the improvements spread beyond the gates to create a new 

entrance at Holtzclaw Avenue, which removed and restored one of the most unsightly stretches 

of road that could be found near our beautiful downtown. To date over 11 million dollars have 

been spent towards creating the “Best Little Zoo in America” and the work is far from over. The 

next major expansion will bring giraffe to the Zoo and to our City, creating a fabulous 

experience for our City residents and all of our guests. 

 

With regards to reporting for this agency support offer, Friends of the Zoo, Inc. will provide any 

documentation needed to show how and for what purposes municipal funds were spent.  Friends 

of the Zoo, Inc. will also continue to provide copies of its annual audit to the City of 

Chattanooga.  

 

Sincerely, 

 
Dardenelle Long 

CEO/President 

Chattanooga Zoo/Friends of the Zoo, Inc. 

dlong@chattzoo.org 



Friends of the Zoo, Inc.

Chattanooga Zoo

2014 Budget

Account Description 2013 Actual 2013 Budget 2014 Budget

Admissions Revenue 562,958.14 560,000.00 575,000.00                 

Animal Adventure Donation 135.00 300.00 150.00                        

Animal Sponsorship 18,750.34 10,000.00 20,000.00                   

Boo in the Zoo 48,375.00 45,000.00 50,000.00                   

Camel Rides 47,760.50 35,000.00 49,000.00                   

Carousel Revenue 30,341.00 31,000.00 31,000.00                   

Cash Drawer - Return 0.00 0.00 -                              

City Contract Payment 671,727.96 671,000.00 750,000.00                 

Coke Machines 4,994.00 6,000.00 5,700.00                     

Conservation Revenue 709.67 300.00 1,000.00                     

Dream Night 5,650.00 5,000.00 5,650.00                     

Ed Donations - Other 35.00 0.00 -                              

Educational Programs 8,427.00 4,000.00 9,000.00                     

Employee Advance Repayment 0.00 0.00 -                              

Facility Rental 23,031.00 20,000.00 25,000.00                   

Family Concessions 13,651.33 20,000.00 16,000.00                   

Food Machines 2,838.56 3,200.00 3,000.00                     

General Donations 23,430.00 10,000.00 25,000.00                   

Go Banana 0.00 0.00 -                              

Guided Tours 115.00 0.00 -                              

Hellbender Symposium 0.00 0.00 -                              

Holiday Lights 6,943.50 23,587.00 16,500.00                   

Keeper for a Day 1,320.00 1,500.00 1,500.00                     

Lipscomb 10,000.00 10,000.00 10,000.00                   

Membership / General 163,028.86 160,000.00 185,885.00                 

Misc- Special Events Operating 746.00 0.00 -                              

Miscellaneous Revenue 0.00 0.00 -                              

Operating - Interest Checking 32.12 100.00 50.00                          

Other Revenue 0.00 0.00 -                              

Outreach Programs 7,259.00 6,500.00 7,300.00                     

PEDZ 15,000.00 2,500.00 73,800.00                   

Penny Press 1,217.85 1,000.00 1,200.00                     

Rehab Donations 3,359.00 3,900.00 10,000.00                   

Sales - Gift Shop 245,301.18 256,000.00 260,000.00                 

Train 0.00 - 14,000.00                   

Volunteer Revenue 0.00 0.00 900.00                        

Youth Programs 450.00 500.00 500.00                        

Zoo Birthday Parties 47,473.00 42,000.00 51,000.00                   

Zoo Camp 61,607.00 46,000.00 63,000.00                   

Zoo Overnights 3,230.00 5,000.00 6,975.00                     

Cost of Sales 98,420.93 106,000.00 100,000.00                 

Cost of Sales-Freight 5,314.32 4,000.00 6,000.00                     

Inventory Adjustments 746.00 600.00 600.00                        

Accounting 15,721.04 15,000.00 15,000.00                   

Accreditation Expense 17,873.50 5,000.00 2,500.00                     

Administrative Expense 0.00 100.00 -                              

Advertising / Marketing 54,189.28 62,200.00 54,190.00                   

Animal Sponsorship Expense 559.04 1,000.00 500.00                        

Birthday Party Expense 6,903.35 6,000.00 6,000.00                     

Boo in the Zoo 16,075.00 12,000.00 10,000.00                   

Camel Ride Expense 668.94 0.00 240.00                        

Care - Animal 23,441.56 16,000.00 24,000.00                   

Carousel Expense 3,219.00 2,500.00 3,000.00                     

Cell Phones 1,125.00 1,125.00                     



Friends of the Zoo, Inc.

Chattanooga Zoo

2014 Budget

Internet 5,496.25 4,500.00 2,550.00                     

City - County Taxes 874.00 1,000.00 900.00                        

Cleaning Expense 25,317.58 12,000.00 12,800.00                   

College Stipend 500.00 3,000.00 1,000.00                     

Conservation - Hellbenders 175.00 1,000.00 500.00                        

Conservation Expense 11,785.00 16,000.00 10,500.00                   

Cremation & Burial Services 885.00 900.00 900.00                        

Donations to Non-Profits 0.00 0.00 -                              

Dream Night 5,585.00 5,000.00 5,000.00                     

Due & Memberships 13,917.50 4,000.00 11,000.00                   

Ed - Promotions & Programs 245.92 200.00 200.00                        

Education - Vehicle & Gas 2,749.00 1,500.00 1,500.00                     

Education Supplies 2,884.00 3,000.00 2,800.00                     

Electrical - Maintenance 0.00 7,500.00 10,000.00                   

Electricity 75,522.80 42,000.00 85,500.00                   

Employee Advance 5.00 0.00 -                              

Employee Food 5,159.29 1,500.00 300.00                        

Employee Medical Test 510.00 2,000.00 2,000.00                     

Employment Search 366.00 0.00 700.00                        

Equipment Rental 0.00 0.00 -                              

Facility Rental 5,650.60 1,000.00 5,000.00                     

First Aid Expense 30.00 500.00 250.00                        

Food - Animal 86,475.66 72,000.00 83,000.00                   

Gas -  Utility 17,908.93 27,000.00 18,500.00                   

Gift Shop Supplies 3,375.00 2,400.00 2,400.00                     

Go Banana 0.00 0.00 -                              

Hellbender Symposium 12,080.00 0.00 -                              

Holiday Lights 3,649.82 4,550.00 3,000.00                     

Hug A Bunny 1,801.00 500.00 500.00                        

Insurance - Automobile 0.00 0.00 -                              

Insurance - Directors 3,199.00 0.00 3,500.00                     

Insurance - Employee Health 24,686.34 18,000.00 24,000.00                   

Insurance - Liability 36,029.33 34,000.00 37,500.00                   

Insurance - Workmen Comp 29,396.21 24,000.00 29,500.00                   

IT Expense 3,021.14 7,500.00 200.00                        

Keeper for a Day 292.00 500.00 400.00                        

Leased Equipment 4,636.26 4,500.00 4,600.00                     

Legal & Professional 198.60 800.00 700.00                        

Maintenance - Chimp Sculpture 0.00 0.00 -                              

Maintenance/Landscaping 29,162.11 80,000.00 41,000.00                   

Membership Expense 28,646.85 20,000.00 20,000.00                   

Merchant Fees - Credit Cards 18,710.81 16,000.00 19,000.00                   

Misc Expense 1,118.60 0.00 1,000.00                     

Misc- Special Events Operating 8,243.55 12,000.00 6,250.00                     

Office Equipment 0.00 0.00 -                              

Office Supplies - Operating 5,591.00 8,500.00 6,000.00                     

Operating Payroll Taxes 90,808.90 80,000.00 92,000.00                   

Other Employee Benefits 0.00 0.00 -                              

Outreach Programs 208.00 0.00 100.00                        

Party for the Planet 0.00 0.00 -                              

PEDZ 29,197.72 9,000.00 74,000.00                   

Pest Control - Maintenance 6,361.17 6,200.00 6,200.00                     

Postage & Freight 2,954.98 3,437.00 3,000.00                     

Printing 13,322.14 10,000.00 10,000.00                   

Professional Development 13,838.00 15,000.00 17,200.00                   

Promotions 2,142.50 0.00 1,200.00                     

Public Relations 0.00 0.00 -                              
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Rehabilatation 5,941.30 5,000.00 5,500.00                     

Safety 0.00 500.00 400.00                        

Security 43,977.46 50,000.00 43,100.00                   

Sewer 6,289.00 6,050.00 7,000.00                     

Special Events - Operating 0.00 0.00 -                              

Telephone 1,917.28 800.00 1,900.00                     

Tn Corp Receipts 0.00 0.00 -                              

Train 0.00 - 21,000.00                   

Uniforms 2,830.00 2,500.00 2,100.00                     

Vet - Lab Services 20,554.88 21,450.00 21,000.00                   

Vet Services 13,353.50 16,500.00 15,500.00                   

Veterinary Meds & Supplies 12,400.04 11,500.00 12,500.00                   

Volunteer Expense 2,867.00 500.00 500.00                        

Wages - Administrative 97,556.00 80,000.00 98,350.00                   

Wages - Admissions 54,170.44 52,000.00 53,500.00                   

Wages - Birthday Parties 18,099.92 15,000.00 19,910.00                   

Wages - Camel Rides 34,443.44 40,000.00 35,000.00                   

Wages - Carousel 18,083.68 16,000.00 19,095.00                   

Wages - Dir of Animal Program 55,399.00 65,000.00 50,000.00                   

Wages - Education 83,324.50 65,000.00 85,000.00                   

Wages - Gift Shop 22,961.00 21,000.00 22,800.00                   

Wages - Graphics 0.00 0.00 -                              

Wages - IT 7,800.00 20,800.00 16,224.00                   

Wages - Janitorial 0.00 0.00 -                              

Wages - Keeper 326,053.27 279,190.00 395,800.00                 

Wages - Maintenance Supervisor 54,080.00 25,000.00 41,250.00                   

Wages - Maintenance/Landscape 113,818.05 118,560.00 100,256.00                 

Wages - Marketing 70,049.07 65,800.00 59,511.00                   

Wages- Special events - - 9,360.00                     

Wages- Facility Rental - - 9,360.00                     

Wages - Membership 28,842.14 7,000.00 23,766.00                   

Wages - Rehab 0.00 0.00 -                              

Wages - Security 21,884.42 21,500.00 22,277.00                   

Wages - Special Projects 37,762.77 34,000.00 34,000.00                   

Wages - Vet Tech 27,746.10 27,040.00 29,120.00                   

Wages - Zoo Camp 22,565.00 20,000.00 21,616.00                   

Wages - Zoo Director 67,970.08 68,860.00 68,860.00                   

Waste Disposal - Maintenance 9,302.07 10,000.00 9,500.00                     

Water 12,069.58 11,450.00 12,300.00                   

Zoo Camp 18,592.97 9,500.00 16,000.00                   

Zoo Overnights 2,023.00 2,500.00 3,450.00                     

Revenue 2,029,897.01 1,979,387.00 2,268,110.00

- Cost of Sales -105,045.56 -110,600.00 -106,600.00

Gross Profit 1,924,851.45 1,868,787.00 2,161,510.00

- Expenses 2,089,216.23 1,872,287.00 2,161,510.00

Net Income -164,364.78 -3,500.00 0.00















Dear Friends,
For most of us at the Chattanooga Zoo, 2012 will be known as the year we 
celebrated our 75th Anniversary. In celebration of our 75 years, we decided to 
roll out some brand new programs, animals and exhibits. The positive response 
we received by the local community was nothing short of amazing!  

When I became Director of the Chattanooga Zoo in 1985, we were still managed 
by the City of Chattanooga. The Zoo staff consisted of one keeper and me. 
Shortly thereafter, Friends of the Zoo (FOZ), a nonprofi t consortium of local 
citizens, was formed to support the Zoo’s work. In 2010 FOZ took over 
full-time management of the Zoo and drastic changes began. The best part 
is the changes are still happening!  

In 2012, the Chattanooga Zoo employed an all-time high number of 40 full-time 
and 9 part-time staff. Our animal collection expanded to a record 860 animals 
and the Deserts portion of the Deserts and Forests of the World exhibit was 
opened. In addition to our diverse and growing animal collection, development 
around the Zoo continued to thrive. The fl ower beds surrounding the chimpanzee 
sculptures in the front entrance received a much needed face lift, the bronze 
sculpture of Hank the Chimpanzee was unveiled outside of Gombe Forest 
and the special event area was enhanced and strategically relocated. Not to 
mention, the construction and opening of a new camel exhibit.

The most exciting part of 2012 was the Zoo’s near doubling of our conservation 
efforts. In addition to the much celebrated birth of two highly endangered 
snow leopard cubs, the Zoo built a one-of-a-kind Hellbender breeding facility 
meanwhile increasing partnership efforts with international conservation 
groups such as the Snow Leopard Trust and the Zoo Conservation Outreach 
Group (ZCOG) 

Our plan for 2013 is to continue our upward trajectory of growth and expansion. 
The Zoo has employed a master design and planning fi rm to create a blueprint 
for the next ten years. 

Imagine for a moment:
     
     A new Forest of the World exhibit complete with Komodo Dragons.
     A renovated and expanded North American region.
     A new stage and event area in the heart of the Zoo for a variety of activities.
     A redesigned and updated Himalayan Passage exhibit.
     And fi nally, the creation of a new Giraffe exhibit.

This is an ambitious road map that will be used to guide us in all of our major 
programs and initiatives over the next few years. 

Thank you for your support this year and for the exciting 
years that lie ahead. As a nonprofi t organization, it is 
because of your generous contributions that we are able 
to continue to grow and give our animals the exemplary 
care they deserve.

Sincerely for the Animals,

Dardenelle Long, President & CEO

2012 YEAR IN REVIEW

75 YEARS
This past year the Chattanooga Zoo celebrated 
its 75th anniversary. To thank the local community 
for its continued support over the years, the Zoo 
hosted 75 Days of Fun.  

     Photo Safaris
     Pancake Breakfast with the Animals
     Animal Encounters Show
     Zoo Tales
     75th Birthday Celebration

Each day for seventy-fi ve days, the Zoo offered 
guests the opportunity to upgrade their Zoo 
visit to include activities like a photo safari 
with a professional photographer, pancake 
breakfast with the animals and more! 
All programs were offered free of charge and 
resulted in some new permanent Zoo additions 
such as the Animal Encounters Show and Zoo 
Tales Story Time. During this time, the Zoo 
also unveiled a commissioned Bart Walter 
sculpture honoring Hank the Chimpanzee.  
The Zoo’s birthday celebration wrapped up 
with a zoo-wide birthday party, complete with 
live entertainment, games and a 6-ft banana 
Moonpie birthday cake.

CONSERVATION
2012 was a big year for the Chattanooga Zoo in terms of conservation.

     Expanded partnership with Snow Leopard Trust
     Zoo Conservation Outreach Group (ZCOG) sponsorship
     Hellbender Hefeweizen from Terminal Brewing

The Zoo continued to maintain its highly endangered 
Kihansi Spray Toad population while expanding upon 
its partnership with the Snow Leopard Trust, a nonprofi t 
organization committed to protecting highly endangered 
snow leopards worldwide. In 2012, the Zoo was able to 
provide a high-tech Iridium 9555 satellite fi eld phone 
for the organization’s in-fi eld researcher in Kyrgyzstan. 
The Zoo also worked with ZCOG to provide a scholarship for 
South American zoologists in training. This year’s 
scholarship went to Arnaud Desbiez, PhD, who is completing 
ground-breaking research on the highly endangered 
giant armadillo. In addition, the Chattanooga Zoo formed 
a partnership with Terminal Brewing Company to raise 
money and awareness for the Zoo’s ground-breaking 
Hellbender research designed to help protect this 
native species.  



OPERATIONS
It has been an amazing year for the Chattanooga Zoo’s operations department.  

     Camel Encounters
     Construction and opening of Deserts of the World
     IT upgrades
     New Den Cam and Snow Leopard Cam

The year started off with a bang with the construction 
and opening of Camel Encounters, an interactive 
exhibit where visitors can ride the animals they 
are learning about. Also this year, was the opening 
of the Deserts portion of the new Deserts and 
Forests of the World exhibit. The new exhibit 
adds 15 new species to the Zoo’s collections and 
provides a wonderful indoor viewing space for 
visitors. Simultaneously, the Zoo installed for the 
first time ever a series of in-network video 
cameras which keeper staff could use to view 
Zoo animals from a remote location. This upgrade allowed for 
staff members to watch live the birth of baby snow leopard cubs. 

Finally, if guest visitors are unable to see the 
cub on exhibit during their visit to the Zoo, 
they can be sure to check out the Zoo’s new 
“Den Cam” on a wide-screened television in the 
Nepalese trading post.    

FACILITY RENTALS
In addition to the Zoo’s own in-house special events, were a growing number 
of private parties held at the Zoo. From company picnics, to family reunions 
and wedding receptions, the Zoo hosted it all. In fact, we had so much fun, 
we added a member to our marketing staff whose job is to ensure our guests 
with the best possible rental experience.   

EDUCATION
The Chattanooga Zoo’s education programs continued to grow and expand 
in 2012. This past year, the Chattanooga Zoo educated over 22,000 people. 
Many of our education programs were offered free to the local community 
thanks to a grant from the Lipscomb Foundation and private individual support.

     Free Community Outreach Programs
     Zoo Club
     PEDZ
     Zoo Tales
     Summer Camp
     Zoo Keeper for a Day

Both Zoo Club and the PEDZ (Promoting 
Ethnic Diversity in Zoos) programs continued 
to grow and evolve providing a unique 
education and jobs training experience for 
teens and young adults. The Education 
Department also introduced a new reading 
program for young children called Zoo Tales. 
This program is free with admission and convenes 
weekly in the recently updated Education classroom.  

Summer Camp 2012 was a phenomenal success with over 
432 campers, nearly double the number of campers from 
2011. Similarly, “Snooze in the Zoo” overnights grew 
exponentially in popularity.  

Last year’s addition of the Zoo Keeper for A Day program was another big 
success. This program allows normal, everyday citizens to experience what it 
would be like to be a Zoo keeper for an entire day. The goal is to continue to 
grow and expand this program in 2013.  
   



SPECIAL EVENTS
In 2012 the Chattanooga Zoo hosted a variety of unique special events.  

     Boo in the Zoo
     Banana Ball with Jack Hanna
     Q n’ Brew
     Holiday Lights
     Hug a Bunny Day
     Zoo Night at the Chattanooga Lookouts
     Patriot Day
     Snow Leopard Appreciation Day
     Party for the Planet

Boo in the Zoo was by far the largest attended event spanning over two weekends 
and hosting over 4,000 people. Banana Ball was also a phenomenal success 
as the Zoo hosted special guest Jack Hanna and previewed the opening of 
the new Deserts of the World exhibit. This year at Banana Ball the Zoo replaced 
the typical live/silent auction with a unique ‘Sponsor an Animal’ program. 
Here guests were given the opportunity to contribute directly to the care of 
some of their favorite animals. As a result, the Chattanooga Zoo was able to 
raise over $80,000 to be used towards the care of our many wonderful animals. 
This year, the Zoo also debuted a brand new event, Q n’ Brew. This casual, 
family-friendly event with live Bluegrass music, tasty barbeque and cold beer 
was the perfect complement to a super-hot summer. The year wrapped up 
with Holiday Lights at the Zoo. This event spanned two weekends and boasted 
record attendance. The second weekend, children 12 and under received free 
admission and donations were taken for the Newtown Memorial Fund.  
    

PARTNERSHIPS
This year the Chattanooga Zoo was blessed to form strategic partnerships with 
a number of local businesses.  

     Mapco Express/Chattanooga Coca-Cola Bottling Company
     City of Chattanooga Department of Therapeutic Recreation
     Unum
     Chattanooga State

One of the most notable being the Mapco Express and Coca Cola Bottling 
partnership in which local Mapco Express stores collected donations on behalf 
of the Chattanooga Zoo while Coca-Cola donated to the Zoo a certain amount 
of the proceeds from every 20 oz Coca Cola product purchased at Mapco during 
the same time frame. Meanwhile, the Zoo provided a variety of volunteer 
opportunities for both partner employees. The entire campaign lasted for three 
months and ending up raising $80,000 for the Chattanooga Zoo! 
This money will be used to help finish construction of the Forests portion 
of the Deserts and Forests of the 
World exhibit. Meanwhile, 
the Zoo continued to strengthen 
its partnership with the City 
of Chattanooga’s Department 
of Therapeutic Recreation by 
hosting multiple, well-attended 
Dreamnight events throughout 
the year. During such events, 
individuals with special needs 
and the families that care for 
them were invited to a free night 
at the Zoo complete with food, 
entertainment, up-close animal 
encounters and more. Unum 
was a presenting sponsor for June’s Dreamnight 
event and the Zoo is thankful for their donation of time and resources. In 2012, 
the Zoo’s Veterinary Team also formed a unique partnership with Chattanooga 
State who sent Veterinary Technician students to assist in animal physicals.



Helping Wildlife
Maybelline the deer is a wonderful example 

of the Chattanooga Zoo’s animal welfare and 
rehabilitation program in action. She arrived 

at the Chattanooga Zoo in the fall of 2010 with a 
broken leg after having been hit by a car. The Zoo’s 
veterinary team immediately performed surgery and 
placed a pin in her back leg. Maybelline now lives with 
her other deer friends in the Zoo’s 
North American exhibit. Maybelline 
received her name because of her 
long eyelashes. She has adjusted 
well to life at the Zoo and has 
continues to thrive.

VOLUNTEERS
The Chattanooga Zoo’s volunteer program is a critical component to the 
successful operation of the organization. The thousands of thankless hours 
donated by caring citizens allow the Zoo to continue to provide excellent quality 
of care to our animals and the ultimate educational experience for our guests.  

     Nearly 350 volunteers contributing over 10,098 hours of service
     Volunteers helped with all aspects of Zoo operations
     New Volunteer Lounge

In 2012 hosted close to 350 community volunteers culminating in over 10,098 
hours of service. Volunteers assisted Zoo staff in all aspects of Zoo management 
including but not limited to: animal husbandry, landscaping, special events, 
administration, guest services and maintenance. In a small show of thanks, the 
Zoo rehabilitated a space within the Education Building dedicated specifically to 
volunteers. The new volunteer lounge provides a comfortable space for volunteers to 
relax and take a break during their service times.  

PLANS FOR 2013
Each new year brings with it new seasons, new life and new journeys. 
The Chattanooga Zoo hopes to not only achieve but surpass the many goals 
set for the organization in 2013.  

     Complete construction and open Forests of the World
     Increase secondary school education programs
     Increase number of facility rentals
     Expand current animal collection
     Embark on master expansion plan

Some of these goals include: opening the Forests portion of the Deserts 
and Forests of the World exhibit, offering an increased number of education 
programs targeted for secondary education students, increasing the number 
of private facility rentals, upgrading and expanding current animal exhibits, 
developing a master expansion plan to guide the Zoo through the next ten 
years and bringing in a variety of new animals with which the public can 
watch and interact.



2012 Financial Review

City of Chattanooga
$619,797

Admissions
$559,936

Donations & Grants
$384,276

Earned Revenue
$306,356

Special Events
$197,881

Memberships
$143,010

Education
$103,616

FY 2012

Revenue

Exhibit Construction
$596,235

Animal Care
$491,188

Wages & Employee Development*
$358,522

Maintenance
$182,515

Education
$137,034

Infrastructure & Equipment
$96,160

City Loan Repayment
$75,000

Utilities
$53,773

Conservation
$22,306

Other Expenses
$553,023

Earned Revenue Expense Marketing/Development
$238,565  $64,118

Special Events Professional Services
$127,449  $26,292

Insurance  Accreditation 
$71,575  $23,934

  Miscellaneous
  $1,090

FY 2012

Expenses

Complete audited FY 2012 fi nancial statements may be requested by writing the Chattanooga Zoo.
Friends of the Zoo, Incorporated is a private, non-profi t, 501(c) (3) organization.

2012 By the Numbers

150,095
Total visitors to the Zoo in 2012

2,434
Member households in 2012

348
Volunteers culminating in 12,552 total volunteer hours

432
Happy Zoo Campers

860
Total animals living at the Zoo
*Includes 293 Kihansi Spray Toads

475
Animals helped through the Zoo’s Wildlife Rehabilitation Center

Zoo Education

22,000
People reached in 2012

   Off-Site Participants:   9,234
   On-Site Participants:   12,774
   Zoo Camp Participants:  432

*Maintenance, Education and Guest Services wages 
are not included in this total but rather as part of 
their respective categories.



Animal Collection By the Numbers

Invertebrates
Total Specimens: 98, Total species: 14

Fish
Total specimens: 115, Total species: 4

Amphibians
Total specimens: 330, Total species: 8

Reptiles
Total specimens: 165, Total species: 61   

Birds
Total specimens: 49, Total species: 22

Mammals
Total specimens: 103, Total species: 39

Significant Births

Snow Leopard: 1 male and 1 female

Prairie Dog: 1, sex unknown

Green & Black Poison Dart Frog: 
20, sex unknown

Kenyan Sand Boa: 9, sex unknown

Mountain Horned Lizard: 10, sex unknown

Significant Acquisitions

Mammals: 30 

Sand Cat: 1 male, 1 female

Rock Hyrax: 1 male

Desert Cottontail: 1 male, 3 female

Fennec Fox: 1 male, 2 female

Meerkat: 1 male, 2 female

Naked Mole Rat: 10, sex unknown

African Crested Porcupine: 1 male

Bennett’s Wallaby: 1 male

Two-toed Sloth: 1 female

Black Crested Mangabey: 1 male, 2 female

Dromedary Camel: 1 male

Significant Acquisitions

Reptiles: 50

Timber Rattlesnake: 1, sex unknown

Banded Rock Rattlesnake: 1 male, 1 female

Great Basin Collared Lizard: 2 male, 2 female

Rio Fuerte Beaded Lizard: 1, sex unknown

Gila Monster: 1 male, 1 female

Serrate Toed Tree Lizard: 2, sex unknown

Desert Horned Lizard: 4 male, 3 female

Lansberg Hognosed Pit Viper: 1, sex unknown

Chuckwalla: 1 female

Crevice Spiney Lizard: 3 male, 3 female

Mountain Horned Lizard: 1 male, 1 female, 
8, sex unknown

Puff Adder: 1, sex unknown

East African Gaboon Viper: 1, sex unknown

West African Gaboon Viper: 1 female

Rhinoceros Viper: 1, sex unknown

Eyelash Viper: 4 male, 2 female

Urutu: 1, sex unknown

Komodo Dragon: 2 male

Amphibians: 5

Eastern Hellbender: 5, sex unknown

Loaned Animals

Mammals: Out on loan: 3, In on loan: 14
Birds: Out on loan: 2, In on loan: 0
Reptiles: Out on loan: 0, In on loan: 2  

Endangered Animals

Chimpanzee: 1 male, 2 female

Snow Leopard: 1 male, 2 female

Red Panda: 1 male

Pied Tamarin: 1 male, 1 female

Cotton-Top Tamarin: 3 male, 3 female

Bali Mynah: 2 female

Rhinoceros Iguana: 2 female

Rio Fuerte Beaded Lizard: 3, sex unknown

Bushmaster: 1 male

Chinese Alligator: 1 male, 1 female 

Prehensile Tailed Skink: 1 male, 1 female, 
2 sex unknown

African Pancake Tortoise: 1 male,
2 sex unknown

Kihansi Spray Toad: 293, sex unknown



OUR STAFF STAFF SPOTLIGHT:
MONTY WILSON
What started out as an eight-week training 
program has resulted in a 10-year career for 
Chattanooga Zookeeper, Monty Wilson. Monty 
initially arrived at the Zoo as a ninth grader in 
the Promoting Ethnic Diversity in Zoos (PEDZ) 
program. The PEDZ program, which partners with 
local nonprofit organizations such as Hope for 
Inner City Ministries and the Chattanooga Urban League, was created 
to help increase diversity among Zoo staff and also provide life-changing 
opportunities for inner-city and minority youth. 

Along with working full-time at the Zoo, Monty is a second year 
student at Chattanooga State pursuing a degree in Elementary Education. 
The fact that Monty has continued to pursue his higher education 
goals while working at the Zoo has made him eligible for a PEDZ 
college stipend. Monty also has plans to get married at the Zoo in 
September 2013.  

“I feel extremely blessed and grateful to have been chosen to participate 
in the PEDZ program in 2002 and my job at the Chattanooga Zoo is 
the only real job I have ever had.”  

The continued success of the Zoo would not be possible without 
the tireless efforts of our dedicated staff. Whether its providing 
exceptional care for the animals, welcoming guests into our 
facility, or diligently working behind the scenes to advance our 
mission, this special group of individuals is the heart and soul 
of the Chattanooga Zoo.

Back Row from Left to Right:
Darde Long, Black Curtis, Mike Scarborough, Chris Kilby, David Hedrick, 
Ian Salter, Rick Jackson, Steve Culpepper, Marisa Ogles

Middle Row from Left to Right:
Garrett Skipper, Mark Ryan, Betsy Budreau, Caiti Robinson, Candis Malcolm, 
Adam Borchardt, Geoff Downey, Cheryl Morrison, Leah Pickens, 
Terry Simmons

Front Row from Left to Right:
Monty Wilson, Stacy Laberdee, Liz Crowe, Lisa Flood, Hannah McWilliams, 
Laura Ellinor, Danielle Thomas

Not Pictured:
Kirk Parker, Willie Truett, Lacey Hinkle, Dr. Anthony Ashley, Darren Kilby, 
Roy Allen, Tawnya Williams, Andy VonHandorff, Michael Reid, Ashley Lane, 
Bill Hughes, Kate Warner



301 North Holtzclaw Avenue
Chattanooga, TN 37404

(423) 697-1322
www.chattzoo.org

The mission of the Chattanooga Zoo is to engage 
and inspire our community to better understand 

and preserve wildlife by creating meaningful 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 

To the Board of Directors 
Friends of the Zoo, Inc. 
Chattanooga, Tennessee 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Friends of the Zoo, Inc. (a nonprofit 
organization), which comprise the statements of financial position as of December 31, 2012 and 2011, and 
the related statements of activities and changes in net assets and cash flows for the years then ended, and 
the related notes to the financial statements.  

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes 
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair 
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.  

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial statements based on our audits.  We conducted 
our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America.  
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audits to obtain reasonable assurance about whether 
the financial statements are free from material misstatement.  

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the 
financial statements.  The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment 
of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.  In making 
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair 
presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal 
control.  Accordingly, we express no such opinion.  An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness 
of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by 
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.  

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 
audit opinion. 

1200 MARKET STREET  |  CHATTANOOGA, TN 37402  |  T 423.756.7771  |  F 423.265.8125  |  WWW.HHMCPAS.COM
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Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the 
financial position of Friends of the Zoo, Inc. as of December 31, 2012 and 2011, and the changes in their 
net assets and their cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America. 

Chattanooga, Tennessee 
May 9, 2013 



2012 2011

Cash 163,052$      481,778$
Inventory 34,379          34,669
Prepaid expenses 2,834            2,075
Contributions receivable, less present value discount 165,735       288,662
Vehicle, less accumulated depreciation 8,829            13,067
City of Chattanooga allocation 1,225,000 1,550,000

TOTAL ASSETS 1,599,829$  2,370,251$

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable 80,559$         39,832$
Accrued payroll 46,246          39,391
Deferred revenue 61,436          58,386
Taxes payable 710               740
City of Chattanooga note payable 1,225,000 1,550,000

Total liabilities 1,413,951 1,688,349

NET ASSETS
Unrestricted net asset 20,144          393,241
Temporarily restricted net assets 165,734 288,661

Total net assets 185,878 681,902

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS 1,599,829$  2,370,251$

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

FRIENDS OF THE ZOO, INC.

STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

DECEMBER 31, 2012 AND 2011

ASSETS

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. 3



Temporarily
Unrestricted Restricted Total

REVENUES, SUPPORT AND OTHER
Contributions 231,295$   -$               231,295$
City of Chattanooga allocation 583,179    -                583,179
Program service revenue 984,120    -                984,120
Membership revenue 139,960    -                139,960
Interest income 167           -                167
Net assets released from restrictions 122,927 (122,927) -

2,061,648 (122,927) 1,938,721

Sales, gift shop 257,366    -                257,366
Cost of sales (137,252) - (137,252)

Net sales 120,114 - 120,114

Total revenue, support and other 2,181,762 (122,927) 2,058,835

EXPENSES
Program service expenses

Exhibits 439,926    -                439,926
Other zoo expenses 1,725,932 -                1,725,932
Special events 115,669 - 115,669

Total program service expenses 2,281,527 -                2,281,527

Management and general expenses 169,523    -                169,523
Fundraising expenses 99,571      -                99,571
Depreciation expense 4,238 - 4,238

Total expenses 2,554,859 - 2,554,859

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS (373,097) (122,927) (496,024)

Net assets - beginning of year 393,241 288,661 681,902

Net assets - end of year 20,144$  165,734$  185,878$

FRIENDS OF THE ZOO, INC.

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2012

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. 4



Temporarily
Unrestricted Restricted Total

REVENUES, SUPPORT AND OTHER
Contributions 317,772$   -$               317,772$
City of Chattanooga allocation 611,093    -                611,093
Program service revenue 717,576    -                717,576
Membership revenue 120,097    -                120,097
Interest income 275           -                275
Net assets released from restrictions 264,371 (264,371) -

2,031,184 (264,371) 1,766,813

Sales, gift shop 298,786    -                298,786
Cost of sales (224,187) - (224,187)

Net sales 74,599 - 74,599

Total revenue, support and other 2,105,783 (264,371) 1,841,412

EXPENSES
Program service expenses

Exhibits 215,290    -                215,290
Other zoo expenses 1,490,168 -                1,490,168
Special events 126,572 - 126,572

Total program service expenses 1,832,030   -                 1,832,030

Management and general expenses 145,840    -                145,840
Fundraising expenses 57,867      -                57,867
Depreciation expense 4,238 - 4,238

Total expenses 2,039,975 - 2,039,975

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS 65,808 (264,371) (198,563)

Net assets - beginning of year 327,433 553,032 880,465

Net assets - end of year 393,241$  288,661$  681,902$

FRIENDS OF THE ZOO, INC.

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2011

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. 5



2012 2011
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Change in net assets (496,024)$ (198,563)$
Adjustment to reconcile change in net assets to

net cash from operating activities:
Deprecation expense 4,238            4,238

Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Contributions receivable 122,927       264,370
Inventory 290 (147)
Prepaid expenses (759)              3,714
Accounts payable 40,727          21,226
Accrued payroll 6,855            18,735
Deferred revenue 3,050            9,503
Taxes payable (30) 232

Net cash from operating activities (318,726) 123,308

NET CHANGE IN CASH (318,726)      123,308

Cash at beginning of year 481,778 358,470

Cash at end of year 163,052$  481,778$

FRIENDS OF THE ZOO, INC.

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2012 AND 2011

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. 6
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FRIENDS OF THE ZOO, INC.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

DECEMBER 31, 2012 AND 2011 
_____________________________________________________________________________

NOTE 1 – SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

Nature of Activities 

Friends of the Zoo, Inc. ("FOZ"), was incorporated in 1987 to promote the health and well-being 
of animals and to educate the public and otherwise increase public awareness regarding the 
characteristics and needs of animals in general and specifically those confined in zoos or other 
places that are open to the public in Hamilton County, Tennessee.  The principal operation is at 
The Chattanooga Zoo at Warner Park. 

FOZ (the "Organization") entered into a new lease agreement with the City of Chattanooga ("the 
City") in 2010.  The City is the owner of the Zoo and in this agreement, agrees to lease the Zoo 
premises to FOZ and allows FOZ to provide for the entire Zoo operation.  The lease agreement is 
for an initial term of five years with extended terms for two additional three year periods 
commencing at the end of the initial term.  During the term of the agreement, FOZ shall pay the 
City an annual rent equal to one dollar.  The agreement allows for each party to terminate the 
agreement with 90 days with written notice of such intent.  Under this agreement, the City of 
Chattanooga retains ownership of all property and equipment purchased or constructed by FOZ.   

Also under this agreement, the City of Chattanooga contributes monetary support to the FOZ for 
all operating expense of the Zoo.  The program service revenue of the FOZ comes from 
admissions, memberships, and various activities conducted and organized by the FOZ yearly. 

Method of Accounting 

The financial statements of the Organization have been prepared utilizing the accrual basis of 
accounting in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.  

Contributions

FOZ has adopted Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) Accounting Standards 
Codification (ASC) 958, Accounting for Contributions Received and Contributions Made.
Contributions are recognized when the donor makes a promise to give to FOZ that is, in 
substance, unconditional.  Contributions that are restricted by the donor are reported as increases 
in unrestricted net assets if the restrictions expire in the fiscal year in which the contributions are 
recognized.  All other donor-restricted contributions are reported as increases in temporarily or 
permanently restricted net assets depending on the nature of the restrictions.  When a restriction 
expires, temporarily restricted net assets are classified as net assets released from restrictions. 

FOZ uses the allowance method to determine uncollectible contributions receivable.  The 
allowance is based on prior years’ experience and management’s analysis of specific promises 
made. 

Contributions that are receivable in more than one year are recorded at the present value using a 
3.25% discount rate. 

(Continued)
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FRIENDS OF THE ZOO, INC.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

DECEMBER 31, 2012 AND 2011 
_____________________________________________________________________________

NOTE 1 – SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Contributed Services 

FOZ receives a substantial amount of services from volunteers (assisting pervasively in programs 
as well as management).  Estimated values for these services totaled $277,237 and $111,218 for 
2012 and 2011, respectively.  Donated services did not meet the FASB ASC 958 criteria for 
recognition in the financial statements. 

Use of Estimates 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting 
principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain reported 
amounts and disclosures.  Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates. 

Financial Statement Presentation 

FOZ has adopted FASB ASC 958-205, Financial Statements of Not-for-Profit Organizations.
Under FASB ASC 958-205, FOZ is required to report information regarding its financial position 
and activities according to three classes of net assets:  unrestricted net assets, temporarily 
restricted net assets, and permanently restricted net assets.  Accordingly, net assets of the 
Organization and changes therein are classified and reported as follows: 

Unrestricted net assets – Net assets that are not subject to donor-imposed stipulations. 

Temporarily restricted net assets – Net assets subject to donor-imposed stipulations that may or 
will be met, either by actions of the Organization or the passage of time.  When a restriction 
expires, temporarily restricted net assets are reclassified to unrestricted net assets and reported in 
the statement of activities as net assets released from restrictions.  If net assets were released from 
restrictions by incurring expenses satisfying the purpose of the grant or contribution within the 
same reporting period, those net assets have been classified as unrestricted. 

Permanently restricted net assets – Net assets subject to donor-imposed stipulations that they be 
maintained permanently by the Organization.  Generally, the donors of these assets permit the 
Organization to use all or part of the income earned on any related investments for general or 
specific purposes.  The Organization does not have any assets that are considered permanently 
restricted.

Income Taxes 

The Organization is exempt from Federal and state income taxes under Section 501(c)(3) of the 
Internal Revenue Code. However, it is subject to Federal tax on unrelated business income. This 
income is reported on the federal form 990-T as unrelated business income. 

(Continued)
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FRIENDS OF THE ZOO, INC.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

DECEMBER 31, 2012 AND 2011 
_____________________________________________________________________________

NOTE 1 – SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Uncertain Tax Positions 

The Organization follows the accounting guidance for uncertainty in income taxes using the 
provisions of FASB ASC Topic 740, Income Taxes. Using this guidance, tax positions initially 
need to be recognized in the financial statements when it is more-likely-than-not the position will 
be sustained upon examination by the tax authorities.  Such tax positions initially and 
subsequently need to be measured as the largest amount of tax benefit that has a greater than 50% 
likelihood of being realized upon ultimate settlement with the tax authority assuming full 
knowledge of the position and relevant facts.

Based on its evaluation, the Organization has concluded that there are no significant uncertain tax 
positions requiring recognition in its financial statements. The Organization’s evaluation was 
performed for the tax years ended December 31, 2009 through December 31, 2012, for U.S. 
Federal Income Tax. These are the years which remain subject to examination by major tax 
jurisdictions as of the year ended December 31, 2012. 

Concentration of Risk 

From time to time the Organization has on deposit, in institutions whose accounts are insured by 
the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC), funds that total in excess of the insured 
maximum. The at-risk amount is subject to significant fluctuations on a daily basis throughout the 
year.  FOZ does not believe they are exposed to undue risk on cash balances. 

Capital Expenditures 

Because all property and equipment purchased or constructed by FOZ become the property of the 
City of Chattanooga, capital expenditures are reported in the statement of activities as an expense. 

In 2010, the Organization received a donation specifically for purchase of a hybrid vehicle.  The 
vehicle purchased is owned by the Organization and has accordingly been capitalized.  The 
vehicle is stated at cost and depreciation is computed on the straight-line method over its 
estimated useful life. Expenditures for repairs and maintenance are charged to expense as 
incurred.

Revenue Recognition 

The Organization’s primary income is derived from admissions to the zoo along with donations to 
the zoo.  Admissions income is recognized daily once services have been paid for by the 
participants. Donations are earned as received or committed.  

The Organization also derives income from annual memberships sold throughout the year.  
Income from the sale of memberships is recognized over the months covered by the membership.  
Revenue applicable to future periods is deferred and recorded when earned.
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FRIENDS OF THE ZOO, INC.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

DECEMBER 31, 2012 AND 2011 
_____________________________________________________________________________

NOTE 1 – SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Inventory

Inventory is comprised of gift shop items and is stated at the lower of cost (first-in, first-out) or 
market. 

Presentation of Sales Tax 

The state of Tennessee and counties within the state impose a sales tax on the gift shop sales to 
non-exempt customers.  The Organization collects that sales tax from customers and remits the 
entire amount to the state.  The Organization’s accounting policy is to include the tax collected 
and remitted to the state in revenue.  

Reclassifications

Certain amounts in the prior year financial statements have been reclassified for comparative 
purposes to conform to the presentation in the current year financial statements.  

NOTE 2 – CONTRIBUTIONS RECEIVABLE
2012 2011

Receivable in less than one year $ 165,735 $ 165,800 
Receivable in one to five years  -  128,100
 Total contribution receivable  165,735  293,900 
Less discount to net present value  -  (5,238)
 Net contribution receivable $ 165,735 $ 288,662

Unconditional promises to give due in more than one year are reflected at the present value of 
estimated future cash flows using a discount rate of 3.25%. 

Management believes all contributions receivable are collectible and that no allowance for 
doubtful accounts should be recognized. As they are determined to be uncollectible, management 
writes off contributions accordingly. 

NOTE 3 – PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT 

The following is a summary of the property and equipment owed by the FOZ at December 31, 
2012 and 2011:

2012 2011 
Vehicle cost $ 21,190 $ 21,190 
Less: Accumulated depreciation  (12,361)  (8,123)
 $ 8,829 $ 13,067

Total depreciation expense for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011, was $4,238 and 
$4,238, respectively. 
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FRIENDS OF THE ZOO, INC.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

DECEMBER 31, 2012 AND 2011 
_____________________________________________________________________________

NOTE 4 – RESTRICTIONS ON NET ASSETS

Net assets were released from donor restrictions by meeting the time restrictions or by 
incurring expenses satisfying the restrictions specified by donors. 

2012 2011 
Receipt of contributions receivable $ 122,927 $ 264,371

As of December 31, 2012 and 2011, temporarily restricted net assets consisted of the following:  

2012 2011 
Contributions receivable $ 165,735 $ 288,662

NOTE 5 – RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

FOZ had contributions receivable from board members of $117,600 and $256,400 as of December 
31, 2012 and 2011, respectively.  

FOZ had contributions from board members and other related parties of $15,200 and $280,738 
during the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively.  Also, FOZ paid one of the 
board members $0 and $31,400 for consulting services performed during the years ended 
December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively.  

NOTE 6 – AGREEMENT WITH CITY OF CHATTANOOGA 

The Organization entered into a loan agreement with the City of Chattanooga to construct 
improvements to the Chattanooga Zoo at Warner Park.  Upon completion of the improvements, 
the City retained right, title, and interest in the improvements, and the Organization relinquished 
any ownership right in the improvements.  The original loan agreement outlined a payback of 
$2,000,000 of which $300,000 has been paid in previous years.  In 2010, the Organization 
amended the loan agreement with the City of Chattanooga.  Under the new loan agreement, FOZ 
will repay the outstanding balance of $1,700,000 with payments of $150,000 per year. The 
balance on the loan at December 31, 2012 and 2011, was $1,225,000 and $1,550,000, 
respectively.  

As an early payoff incentive for the Organization, the City agreed to appropriate an amount equal 
to one dollar for every two dollars raised by the Organization through donation for capital 
improvements, up to a maximum of $250,000 per year subject to annual appropriation.  The 
Organization believes it will be able to raise sufficient funds annually and to have the full debt 
paid off by allocation from the City of Chattanooga annually.  Therefore, the Organization has set 
up an allocation receivable from the City of Chattanooga to match anticipated debt payments to 
the City of Chattanooga over the life of the loan.  

NOTE 7 – LITIGATION 

From time to time, the Organization becomes involved in various legal matters in the ordinary 
course of business.  As of December 31, 2012, management is of the opinion that no matters exist 
that would have a material impact upon the financial statements of the Organization.
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FRIENDS OF THE ZOO, INC.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

DECEMBER 31, 2012 AND 2011 
_____________________________________________________________________________

NOTE 8 – SUBSEQUENT EVENTS 

Management has evaluated events and transactions subsequent to the balance sheet date through 
the date of the independent auditor’s report (the date the financial statements were available to be 
issued) for potential recognition or disclosure in the financial statements. Management has not 
identified any items requiring recognition or disclosure.
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OFFER SUMMARY 

 

Offer Name: Diversity Youth Employment: The PEDZ Program 

Lead Agency: Chattanooga Zoo 

Collaborating City Department(s): 
Department of Youth and Family Development; Office of Multicultural 
Affairs  

Contact Name: Dardenelle Long 

Primary Results Area: Smarter Students, Stronger Families   

Offer Cost (Funding Request): $25,047.58   

 

RESULTS AREAS 

 
1. Safer Streets – Safe communities, reduced crime, positive opportunities, and alternate 

pathways. 

2. Growing Economy – Growing and supporting local businesses, workforce development, 
business recruitment and retention, and an environment for innovation. 

3. Stronger Neighborhoods – Neighborhood leadership, connected communities, healthy 
residential markets, and rapid re-housing. 

4. Smarter Students, Stronger Families – Parents and first teachers, community support, and 

community health. 

5. High Performing Government – Data-driven decision making, sound operations, outstanding 

customer service, resource management, and exceptional talent. 

6. Innovation Fund – Something different – processes, services, technologies, ideas.  Shifting the 

way government operates. 

DETAILS 

 

Description: (What is the service/program? How will it be provided? What innovation & sustainability practice does this leverage? 
What difference does this offer make and how will we know? Make a compelling case for your offer.)   

          

The Program 

The Promoting Ethnic Diversity in Zoos (PEDZ) program was developed by the Chattanooga Zoo in 
2002 for the purpose of working with low/moderate income, minority youth, specifically originating 
from neighborhoods surrounding the Zoo, in an effort to address the lack of diversity in zoo’s and 
aquariums around the United States. Since the program’s inception, it has grown significantly in the 
number of participants, and the problems which it seeks to address.  The areas that the PEDZ 
program now addresses include: 

 the lack of viable employment, life-skills and career training opportunities for minority youth 

 the lack of positive role models for these youth 

 the lack of available resources necessary for pursuing higher education 

 the lack of diversity and exposure to career opportunities in the Zoo/Aquarium industry   

Chattanooga Zoo’s PEDZ program addresses all of these issues through the provision of paid 
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employment, career-training, mentoring and higher education incentives. During their employment 
at the Chattanooga Zoo they receive training in fields such as animal husbandry, guest services, 
business administration, education and facilities/horticulture.  In addition to paid employment and 
on-the-job skills training, participants are provided with: 

 Numerous life-skills training courses (i.e. Interviewing, Managing Personal Finances, Resume 
Writing, Employer Expectations, etc.). 

 Assistance in obtaining legal documents required to enter the workforce (i.e. Social Security 
Card, State ID, Birth certificate, etc.). 

 Assistance in achieving higher education goals. 

 Exposure to careers in the animal care industry through organized field trips 
opportunities for enhanced community involvement. 

 One-on-one weekly mentoring sessions with the PEDZ Program Coordinator. 

 Involvement in community service projects/programs. 

Mentoring sessions include discussion of the participant’s experience and review of knowledge 
gained.  The mentor also, if applicable, assists the mentee with the college research and application 
process.  Participants who demonstrate a good work ethic, attitude and passion for the Zoo’s 
mission during the summer are then invited to continue to work for the Zoo during the school year.  
All current PEDZ participants are encouraged, through application assistance and a $500 semester 
stipend, to pursue higher education following graduation from high school. 

The full budget for operating this program is $73,899.58.  All sources of funding are listed below in 
the “Financial Offsets” information.  By providing $25,047.58 the City of Chattanooga will be funding 
34% of this program’s full budget.   

Program Outcomes 

Ultimately, the goal of the PEDZ program is to provide legal, income-earning opportunities and job 
training for low-income, minority youth.  PEDZ participants will gain the confidence, knowledge and 
skills necessary to interview and obtain future gainful employment, thereby negatively impacting the 
levels of poverty, unemployment, and crime taking place in their communities of origin.    

PEDZ program outputs directly match the City of Chattanooga’s priorities of: 

 Creating smarter students and stronger families through close mentorship with these at-risk 
youth leading to more college and career ready young adults. 

 Building safer streets by occupying at risk youth’s time with employment rather than criminal 
activities, leading to a reduction in the juvenile crime rate committed by participants. 

 Growing the economy through providing and building increased employment opportunities, 
and employment experiences of the youth participants.  

 
Program Organization 

The Chattanooga Zoo partners with several youth-serving local nonprofits including: Hope for the 



 

City of Chattanooga 
FY15 Offers 

 

Chattanooga Zoo 
 

3 

Inner City, Urban League of Chattanooga, Upward Bound, City of Chattanooga Youth and Family 
Development, local neighborhood associations and Boys and Girls Club to recruit PEDZ participants.  
Participants are initially hired to work 20 hours a week for 8 weeks during the summer.  If 
participants show skill and initiative in one of the work areas, they are invited to continue to work 
part-time at the zoo, during the school year.  Since the program’s inception, the number of 
participants has grown from 4 to 12 summer participants and 0 to 3 annual participants.  In FY 2013-
2014, the PEDZ program expanded to include a full time coordinator/mentor for the program to 
oversee and engage the participants.  This coordinator leads the participants through working 
rotations in the various departments of the zoo, and mentors them in work and life skills.   

Future Expansion 

The goals for the FY 2014-2015 program are first, to increase the number of participants to 16 
summer participants (12 participants in FY 2013-2014; 33% increase) and 6 annual participants (3 
participants in FY 2013-2014; 100% increase).  Second, to increase and add value to the life/work-
skills training provided to participants by bringing in professionals in the respective field (finance, 
workplace behaviors, resume building, etc.).  Third, to provide assistance to participants in securing 
documentation needed to enter the workforce (Social Security Card, State ID, Birth certificate, etc.).  
Lastly, expand the program to show the value of community and become involved with local 
community service programs/projects.  

Research Data 

Research has shown that the biggest contributor to poverty is income and employment disparities.  
According to a recent study by the Center for Law and Social Policy (CLASP), a disproportionate 
number of minority youth struggle to find and maintain employment and pursue higher education.  
In fact, one in five young workers (ages 16-24) is unemployed and minority low income youth face 
the most challenges in terms of finding employment.   

Education levels are also correlated with employment outcomes.  Greater educational attainment 
reduces the likelihood of being unemployed.  Supporting Youth Employment: A Guide for 
Community Groups notes how, “nationwide, 15 million people between the ages of 16 and 24 are 
not prepared for high-wage employment.  Inadequate education or training is a major reason.”  

Compounding the challenges faced by low-income, minority youth is the exposure to the criminal 
and often deviant behaviors exhibited by local gangs.  Respondents to the 2013 Chattanooga 
Comprehensive Gang Assessment stated that the main reason for joining gangs is the desire for 
money and the most important factor in reducing the power and growth of gangs is jobs and job 
training.  Also worth noting also is that 65% of gang-related incidents occur between 7 am and 9 pm, 
by individuals ages 17 to 24 primarily during the warmer months.  These are precisely the times in 
which the PEDZ program will be taking place and occupying this target audience.   

Unfortunately, gang members, due to a lack of parental involvement, often serve as the only role 
models for low-income minority youth.  According to the Journal of Youth and Adolescence, positive 
role models can contribute to the resilience of African-American adolescents who are exposed to 
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negative non-parental adult behavior.  Consequently, adolescents with an identifiable role model 
receive higher grades, have higher self-esteem, and report stronger ethnic identity than their 
counterparts who lack role models.  Ultimately, supportive relationships with a workplace role 
model appear to be the most important reason youth stay in work programs.  

In summary, research has shown that exposing low-income minority youth to paid job opportunities, 
career and life-skills training, structured work schedules, higher education guidance and incentives 
and relationships with positive role models,  all serve to promote better grades, higher self-esteem, 
aversion to criminal behaviors, and tools for escaping the cycle of poverty.   

City of Chattanooga Support 

The City of Chattanooga should support the PEDZ program because of the impact this program has 
on the youth participants and their families.  Not only does the PEDZ program provide benefits for 
the individual participants, it also provides benefits to our local community, and larger community 
by: 

 Lowering juvenile crime rate through providing employment during the times when juvenile 
crime is most likely to take place. 

 Increasing employment opportunities in the Chattanooga area. 

 Shaping a younger generation to be involved in the community through community service 
projects. 

 Increasing the diversity among zoo staff, leading to greater diversity in the zoo/aquarium 
industry. 

Perhaps the best statements about the significance and success of the program come from the 
participants themselves: 

“The most valuable lesson I learned this summer was how to have a good work ethic.”  
 – David Tolliver, ‘13 

“The PEDZ program impacted my life because I learned a great deal of responsibility.  I 
learned how to make money, save money, the importance of being on time and that 
nothing is easy.” – Deja Pope, ’13 

 
Identify Which Desired Outcomes This Offer Impacts:  

1.  More kids graduating high school college and career ready- Smarter Students & Stronger Families 

2.  Fewer kids dropping out of school- Smarter Students & Stronger Families 

3.  Reducing the juvenile crime rate- Safer Streets 

 

BUDGET REQUEST 

 
Summary:  (Please complete based on information contained in Attachment F) 
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Offer Name 
Personnel Costs 

(including Benefits) Operating Costs Total Request 
 FTEs 

required 

Diversity Youth 
Employment: The 
PEDZ Program $71,422 $2,478 $25,047.58 9 

 

Capital Budget Impact?        Yes      X  No          $Amount 

 

 
Financial Offsets: (Please list other revenues associated with the specific program for which funding is requested) 

Name Amount 

Community Development Block Grant $45,000 - Pending 

SunTrust Foundation Grant $25,000 - Pending 

PeyBack Foundation Grant $10,565 - Pending 

Chattanooga Zoo Support $6,362 - Secured 
 

PERFORMANCE DATA 

 
Measurement 1: 

Increase in the number of participants in the program.  This increases employment opportunities for local at-risk youth 
leading to economic development.   

 

All recruiting for the program is done through community partnerships with Hope for the Inner City, Urban League of 
Chattanooga, Upward Bound, City of Chattanooga Youth and Family Development, local neighborhood associations and the 
Boys and Girls Club.   

 

Historical Comparison Data?  

2013 - 12 Summer Participants –  3 full year participants 

2012 - 8 Summer Participants –  1 full year participant 

2011 - 5 Summer Participants 

 

 
Measurement 2: 

Increase in learned workplace behaviors/attitudes by the participants. 

 

Zoo staff members and the PEDZ coordinator will assess the participants at their entry into the program to understand the 
baseline behaviors that the participants have.  At the conclusion of the program, the participants will again be assessed 
using the same measure, to look comparatively at the difference in the behaviors and attitudes of the participants after 
successful completion of the summer program.   

 

Historical Comparison Data?  

None.  This evaluation has not previously been performed.  

 

 
Measurement 3: 

Increase in school engagement throughout the program, as well as higher education aspirations as well as attainment. This 
would include encouraging participants to come back to the program each year and measuring school engagement over 
time. 
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Historical Comparison Data?  

None.  
 

 

Return on Investment: 

How do citizens benefit?       Citizens of Chattanooga, but more specifically the neighborhoods surrounding 

the zoo benefit from this program for several reasons.  The first reason is that this program provides 

interactive and unique employment for the local youth, which leads to less youth on the streets during these 

times and more engaged young people at work.  Secondly, being employed in a paid program means that 

these youth become more economically advantaged, this leads to purchases and economic growth for the 

Chattanooga area.  Third, these youth are educated and learn while on the job which leads to smarter 

students, and smarter workers entering the workforce when they get older.  

Does this activity leverage other financial resources?       The PEDZ program leverages funds from several 

places (amounts listed above) including support from a Community Development Block Grant, SunTrust 

Foundation, PeyBack Foundation, and support from the Chattanooga Zoo itself.  

How does this activity decrease costs over time for the City?        The benefits described above in the 

narrative explain that increased employment, reducing juvenile crime, leading youth to become smarter 

students, and supporting local youth in further educational attainment will all reduce costs for the City of 

Chattanooga.  The continuation and growth of this program will cyclically lead to further reduced costs 

associated with the aforementioned benefits. 

How can this program become sustainable without City funding?        While this is an existing program at 

the zoo, plans for increased capacity and quality of training require additional funds.  The zoo sought grants 

and programs to align with this growth to help jump start the new program standard.  As the program grows, 

funding will become more available and lead to 

 



Attachment B: Comparative Financial Information 
 
 

Agency Name:  Chattanooga Zoo 
 

This section relates to agency efforts specifically funded by Chattanooga dollars to benefit Chattanooga 
residents, relative to the dollars given by adjoining governmental entities.    
 

Dollars provided to your organization 
in FY 2014 by the following entities:    

Percent of your total annual 
operational funding provided by 
local government  

% of 
Hamilton 
County 
Population*   

Chattanooga 35% - Contracted agreement 49.83% 

Unincorporated Hamilton County  30.22% 

Hamilton County Government’s  
(General funds)  

0.3% from Hamilton County 
Commissioner’s Discretionary 
Funds 

 

Collegedale  2.46% 

East Ridge  6.24% 

Lakesite  0.54% 

Lookout Mountain  0.54% 

Red Bank  3.46% 

Ridgeside  0.12% 

Signal Mountain  2.25% 

Soddy-Daisy  3.78% 

Walden   0.56% 

Other (Outside Hamilton County) 74.7% from Earned Revenue, 
private support, state/federal 
support, grants, etc. 

 

 Above percentages should total 
100%   

 

   

Percent of Services rendered to 
residents of:    

Estimate, if you do not now track 
this data. 

 

Chattanooga  49.83% 

Unincorporated Hamilton County  30.22% 

Hamilton County Government’s  
(General funds)  

48% of total visitation from 
Hamilton County residents 

 

Collegedale  2.46% 

East Ridge  6.24% 

Lakesite  0.54% 

Lookout Mountain  0.54% 

Red Bank  3.46% 

Ridgeside  0.12% 

Signal Mountain  2.25% 

Soddy-Daisy  3.78% 

Walden   0.56% 

Other (Outside Hamilton County) 52% visitation from other local 
sources outside of Ham. Co., and 
non-local areas.  

 

 Above percentages should total 
100%   

 

 
*Population numbers are from 2010 U.S. Census. 



 

Attachment C: Program Beneficiary Statistics 
  
Agency Name: Chattanooga Zoo Program: Diversity Youth Employment: The PEDZ Program 

 

Program Beneficiary Characteristics 
Clients/Patients/Recipients/Other 

FY 2013 
FY 2014  
(YTD) 

FY 2015 
(Projected) 

1. Unduplicated Count of Program Beneficiaries           
TOTAL 

152,328 70,811 155,735 

 Total Continuing From Previous Fiscal Year 0 0 0 

 Total New for the Year 152,328 70,811 155,735 

 Total Terminated During the Year 0 0 0 

2. Age Group                                                                  TOTAL 152,328 70,811 155,735 

 Infants – Under 5    

 Between 5 and 12    

 Between 13 and 17    

 Between 18 and 29    

 Between 30 and 64    

 65 and over    

 Not Known 152,328 70,811 155,735 

3. Sex                                                                               TOTAL 152,328 70,811 155,735 

 Male    

 Female    

 Not Known 152,328 70,811 155,735 

4. Ethnic Background                                                     TOTAL 152,328 70,811 155,735 

 White    

 Black    

 Hispanic    

 Asian    

 Other – Ethnic Minority    

 Not Known 152,328 70,811 155,735 

5. % Income Level                                                           TOTAL 152,328 70,811 155,735 

 Below 9,999     

 10,000 –19,999    

 20,000 – 29,999    

 30,000 and Over    

 Not Known 152,328 70,811 155,735 

6. Location of Residence                                                TOTAL 152,328 70,811 155,735 

 Chattanooga 91,396 42,487 93,441 

 Outside of Chattanooga 60,932 28,324 62,294 

 Not Known    

 



Attachment D: Schedule of Positions, Salaries & Wages 

Agency Name: Chattanooga Zoo 
 

ALL FINANCIAL INFORMATION TO THE NEAREST DOLLAR.  FOR ADDITIONAL EMPLOYEES, COPY THIS FORM AS NEEDED. 

 

Title of 
Position 

Last Name, 
Initial 

Full 
Time 

or  
Part 
Time 

Number 
of Years 

Employed 

Current – FY 2014 Projected – FY 2015 

Weeks 
Employed  

 
Annual Rate Budgeted 

Weeks 
Employed 

Annual 
Rate 

Budgeted 

CEO/President Long, D. Full 3 52 68848 68848 52 70225 70225 

COO Crowe, E. Full 2 52 55016 55016 52 56116 56116 

Curator of 
Ectotherms & 
Exhibits 

Jackson, R Full 7 52 54080 54080 52 55161 55161 

Curator of 
Birds and 
Mammals 

Laberdee, S Full 2 52 33280 33280 52 33945 33945 

Business 
Manager 

Simmons, T Full 1 52 42432 42432 52 43280 43280 

Visitor 
Services 
Manager 

Morrison, C Full 2 52 25459 25459 52 25968 25968 

Education 
Curator 

Skipper, G Full 3 52 35360 35360 52 36067 36067 

Director of 
Community 
Engagement 

Brantley, J Full 1 52 23920 23920 52 24398 24398 

IT Specialist Curtis, B Full 2 52 31200 31200 52 31824 31824 

Special 
Projects and 
Programs 
Coordinator 

Parker, K Full 3 52 34008 34008 52 34668 34668 

Director of 
Marketing, 
Interim 

McWilliams, 
H 

Full 1 52 28080 28080 52 28641 28641 

Vet Tech Hickle, L Full 1 52 27040 27040 52 27580 27580 

Maintenance 
Supervisor 

Houser, C. Full 1 52 28080 28080 52 28641 28641 

Keeper Borchardt, A Full 
 

1 52 24960 24960 52 25459 25459 



Keeper Budreau, B Full 1 52 24440 24440 52 24928 24928 

Keeper Harwood, P Full 
 

4 52 22880 22880 52 23337 23337 

Keeper Hedrick D Full 
 

5 52 29120 29120 52 29702 29702 

Keeper Landenburg, 
J 

Full 
 

0 46 23400 23400 52 23868 23868 

Keeper Malcolm, C Full 1 52 24440 24440 52 24928 24928 

 Keeper Muldoon, E Full 0 52 21840 21840 52 22276 22276 

 Keeper Robinson, C Full 3 52 25480 25480 52 25989 25989 

 Keeper Solis, A Full 0 50 24000 24000 52 24480 24480 

 Keeper Thayer, R Full 2 52 25480 25480 52 25989 25989 

 Keeper Williams, T Full 1 52 26520 26520 52 27050 27050 

 Keeper Wilson, M  Full 8 52 21840 21840 52 22276 22276 

 Keeper Warner, K Part 12 52 7540 7540 52 7540 7540 

 Keeper Witmer, R Full 0 52 27040 27040 52 27580 27580 

Maintenance 

Assistant 

Kilby, C Full 1 52 24960 24960 52 25459 25459 

Maintenance 

Assistant 

Kilby, D Full 1 52 24960 24960 52 25459 25459 

Maintenance 

Assistant 

Downey, G  Full 1 52 24960 24960 52 25438 25438 

Maintenance 

Assistant 

Scarbrough, 

M 

Full 1 52 24960 24960 52 25459 25459 

Security Truitt, W Full 3 52 21840 21840 52 22276 22276 

Visitor 

Services 

Associate 

Brady, M Full 0 52 20800 20800 52 21216 21216 

Visitor 

Services 

Associate 

Tolliver, D Part 0 52 8320 8320 52 8320 8320 

Visitor 

Services 

Associate 

Tracy, N Part 2 52 6630 6630 52 6630 6630 

Visitor 

Services 

Associate 

Williams, T Full 0 52 12480 12480 52 12729 12729 

Education 

Specialist 

Stubblefield, 

M 

Full 0 52 23920 23920 52 24398 24398 



 

Education 

Assistant 

Ferguson, H Part 

 

1 52 8892 8892 52 8892 8892 

Education 
Assistant 

Leonard, R Part 0 48 8151 8151 52 8314 8314 

Keeper 

Assistant 

Price, C Part 0 52 7800 7800 52 7800 7800 

Keeper 
Assistant 

Simmons, I Full 1 52 24960 24960 52   

Keeper 
Assistant 

Blackwell, A Part 0 52 11440 11400 52 11400 11400 

Keeper 
Assistant 

Pope, Deja Part 0 52 6240 6240 52 6240 6240 

Visitor 
Services 
Associate 

Culpepper, 
S 

Part 2 52 8320 8320 52 8486 8486 

Visitor 
Services 
Associate 

Hughes, W Part 4 52 8320 8320 52 8486 8486 

          

          

          

          

          

          

          

          

          

          



Attachment E:  Major Sources of Funding for the Past Five Years 
 

Agency Name: Chattanooga Zoo 
 
 

Program/Project 
Title 

Name of 
Funding 
Source 

FY 2010 FY 2011 FY 2012 FY 2013 FY 2014 
FY 2015 

(Projected) 

Operations City Contract $317,684 $657,847 $667,276 $674,216 $671,728 $750,000

Operations 
Friends of the 

Zoo, Inc. 
$307,617 $288,770 $1,039,964 $1,040,433 $1,439,782 $1,361,510 

Operations 
City 

Appropriation 
$321,316 n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a

        

        

        

        

        

        

        

        

        

        

        

        

        

Subtotal,  
Major Funding 
Sources 

--- 946,617 946,617 $1,707,240 $1,714,649 $2,111,510 $2,111,510 

Total, All 
Revenue 
Sources 

--- 946,617 946,617 $1,707,240 $1,714,649 $2,111,510 $2,111,510 

 
 

 

 



Attachment F: Budget Format Agency Name:

Account Category                        Actual FY 2011 Actual FY 2012 Actual FY 2013 Budget FY 2014 Request FY 2015
Incr (Decr) Request 

vs. FY 14 Budget

% Change Request 

vs FY 14 Budget

REVENUES

Contributions

     Individuals/Private -$                      N/A

     Corporate/Organizations/Churches 23,852$                 23,852$               N/A

Fees/Grants from Governmental Agencies  

    Federal -$                    -$                    -$                    45,000$               -$                        (45,000)$              -100.0%

    State -$                      N/A

   Hamilton County -$                      N/A

   City of Chattanooga 25,048$                 25,048$               N/A

   Other Cities (Please list) -$                      N/A

United Way 

    Foundations (including grants) 15,000$             35,565$               25,000$                 (10,565)$              -29.7%

    Gross Proceeds Special Events -$                      N/A

    Other UWs/Federations -$                      N/A

    CFC/Designations received thru UWGC -$                      N/A

     UWGC Program Allocation -$                      N/A

     UWGC Special Funding -$                      N/A

Membership Dues -$                      N/A

Program Income -$                      N/A

Governmental Insurance -$                      N/A

Private Insurance -$                      N/A

Contracted Services -$                      N/A

Fee for Services -$                      N/A

Other Program Income -$                      N/A

Sales to Public -$                      N/A

Investment Income -$                      N/A

Miscellaneous -$                      N/A

Other Revenues (Please list separately  any major item) -$                      N/A

Transfers in from other internal  budgets -$                      N/A

Income from Previous Year -$                      N/A
TOTAL REVENUES                           -$                    -$                    15,000$             80,565$               73,900$                 (6,665)$                -8.3%

OPERATIONS

Personnel Expenses

Salaries 2,041$                6,604$               13,224$             61,060$               61,060$                 -$                      0.0%

CITY OF CHATTANOOGA

 FY 2015 Agency Funding Financial Form

Chattanooga Zoo



Attachment F: Budget Format Agency Name: Chattanooga Zoo

Fringe Benefits 375$                   4,000$                 4,000$                   -$                      0.0%

Employee Health -$                      N/A

Pension/Retirement -$                      N/A

Payroll Taxes, etc. 200$                   600$                   1,300$               6,362$                 6,362$                   -$                      0.0%

Other (unemployment, life insurance, etc) -$                      N/A
Total Personnel Expenses 2,241$                7,204$               14,899$             71,422$               71,422$                 -$                      0.0%

OPERATING EXPENSES

Administration

Professional Fee & Contract service -$                      N/A

Utilities -$                      N/A

Other -$                      N/A

Rent -$                      N/A

Travel/Transportation 1,326$                 1,326$                   -$                      0.0%

Insurance (not employee health) -$                      N/A

Materials & Supplies 120$                   150$                   270$                   1,152$                 1,152$                   -$                      0.0%

Telephone, Fax, ISP -$                      N/A

Postage and Shipping -$                      N/A

Occupancy/Building/Utilities -$                      N/A

Equipment Rental and Maintenance (including contracts) -$                      N/A

Outside Printing, Art Work, etc. -$                      N/A

Conferences, Conventions, etc. -$                      N/A

Special Assistance to Individuals -$                      N/A

National Dues/Support Payments -$                      N/A

Organization Dues (other than above) -$                      N/A

Awards and Grants -$                      N/A

Fund Raising/Self-Support Activities -$                      N/A

Miscellaneous -$                      N/A

Equipment Purchases (incl. capital expenses) -$                      N/A

Depreciation -$                      N/A

Other Expenses (Please list separately  any major item) -$                      N/A

-$                      N/A
Operating Expenses Total 120$                   150$                   270$                   2,478$                 2,478$                   -$                      0.0%

TOTAL OPERATIONS 2,361$                7,354$               15,169$             73,900$               73,900$                 -$                      0.0%

REVENUE OVER/ (UNDER) OPERATIONS (2,361)$              (7,354)$              (169)$                 6,665$                 -$                        (6,665)$                -100.0%
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Girls Inc.
®
 709 S. Greenwood Avenue 

of Chattanooga  Chattanooga, TN 37404  
                                                      Tel: 423 624-4757 

 Fax: 423 698-4345 
 www.girlsincofchatt.org 

                       

                                                                                                                     

               

               

                                                                                           

 
Dear Mayor Berke, 

Girls Inc. of Chattanooga is pleased to submit a proposal to the City of Chattanooga for $63,390 to 

expand our successful, STEM-focused Build IT program. With these funds, we would expand to 

the Chattanooga Girls Leadership Academy, where an additional 40 to 50 girls in the 6
th
, 7

th
, and 

8
th
 grades would be able to participate. Build IT increases participants’ knowledge about IT and 

design applications, increase their computer literacy and use, and increases their awareness and 

interest in design and IT careers. 

 

The mission of Girls Inc. is to inspire and equip all girls to be strong, smart, and bold
SM 

--healthy, 

educated, and independent -- on their journey to self-discovery. Girls Inc. offers in-school, 

afterschool, and school break programming for girls ages 6-18 that is age-appropriate, research-

based, and outcome-focused. 

 

Girls Inc.’s programs are successful and far-reaching because of our many partnerships within 

schools throughout Hamilton County, including Clifton Hills, Woodmore, and East Ridge 

Elementary Schools for girls ages 6-11 as well as East Lake Academy of Fine Arts, Chattanooga 

Girls Leadership Academy, Brainerd High School, Orchard Knob Middle, and Girls Preparatory 

Schools for girls ages 12-18. Additionally, we have partnerships with the Highland Park 

Neighborhood Association, and Harrison and Brainerd United Methodist Churches, whose 

facilities allow us to provide afterschool programming for our girls. We also engage volunteers 

from a several colleges and corporations throughout Chattanooga, including the University of 

Tennessee at Chattanooga, Chattanooga State Community College, and several others. Through 

these partnerships, we are able to provide girls with community support and a critical mass of 

supportive adults who understand what it takes to help children succeed. Girls Inc. understands 

that community partnerships are essential to the success of children.    

 

Girls Inc. provides girls with tools to improve academically, make smarter choices, build self-

confidence, and stay focused on higher education, careers, and a successful future. Since we were 

established in 1961, we have served more than 25,000 girls throughout Hamilton County. We are 

proud that since we began tracking in 2007, 100 percent of girls who complete our high 

school afterschool programs in their senior year go on to college.  

 

Result area for which funding is requested: Smarter Students & Stronger Families 

Amount of money requested: $63,390 

Knowledgeable Contact: Phil Trammell. Phone: (423) 624-4757. E-mail: ptrammell@girlsincofchatt.org 

 

Sincerely, 

  
 

Bea Lurie 

President & CEO 

 

 

 

 

                          

 

 

Inspiring all girls 
to be strong,  
smart and bold

SM 

mailto:ptrammell@girlsincofchatt.org


Girls Inc. of Chattanooga is requesting $63,390 for the expansion of its Build IT program into the 

Chattanooga Girls Leadership Academy. This program aligns perfectly with having more students 

computer coding and has already demonstrated success in involving and engaging girls in technology.  

Since the 1990s, Girls Inc. has been a pioneer in introducing STEM education and career possibilities to 

girls. Through our hands-on, research and outcome-based programming, girls have discovered new 

passions and broken through societal barriers as they pursue their academic studies to achieve careers 

in STEM fields. Girls Inc. continues this work today with our Build IT curriculum. 

In our third year of teaching Build IT during the school day to middle school girls at East Lake Academy of 

Fine Arts, the Build IT curriculum integrates Common Core State Standards in an engaging method that 

teaches girls about technology in concert with math, science, and engineering. According to Caleb 

Bagby, a technology teacher at the Chattanooga Girls Leadership Academy, there is no comparable 

curriculum available for middle school girls, making the need for Build IT even greater in this community.  

Girls Inc. is seeking investment to expand Build IT beyond East Lake Academy of Fine Arts so that we 

may reach more girls in Chattanooga. Recently, the Benwood Foundation awarded Girls Inc. a grant of 

$140,000 to continue the program at the East Lake Academy and to expand it to East Lake Elementary 

and the Howard High School allowing us to create a continuous track of technology instruction from 

elementary through high school. This will provide more Chattanooga students with the tools necessary 

to succeed in STEM subjects and pursue technology-related careers. Funding provided by the City would 

allow the expansion of this highly effective programming to the Chattanooga Girls Leadership Academy 

and would accelerate the growth and impact of the Build IT program.  

Although women fill close to half of all jobs in the U.S. economy, they hold less than 25% of STEM jobs 

according to the U.S. Department of Commerce  This has been true throughout the past decade even as 

college educated women have increased their share of the overall workforce. The U.S. computing 

workforce is made up of only 3% African-American women, 4% Asian women, and 1% Latina women.  

The number of female engineers in the U.S. is surprisingly low — only 14%, according to the 

Congressional Joint Economic Committee.  Women who do enter STEM career fields earn 33% more 

when compared to women in non-STEM jobs — considerably higher than the STEM premium for men.   

Build IT’s main goals are: (1) to increase participants’ knowledge of Information Technology and Design 

applications, (2) to increase students’ computer literacy and use, (3) and to increase girls’ awareness and 

interest in Design and IT careers. In alignment with the City’s stated objective of more kids computer 

coding, Girls Inc. sets measurable goals and utilizes data to evaluate students’ and program needs. 

Progress towards these goals in 2012-2013 was measured through pre- and post-tests on content 

knowledge, pre- and post-surveys of students’ attitudes about technology, anecdotal evidence, and 

observations by Girls Inc. staff and school administration.  

Girls Inc. has documented success with students who have completed the Build IT program. Data from 

the girls’ post-program surveys this past school year reflect the girls’ improved computer literacy and 

comfort with a variety of IT applications. The percentage of students who reported using computers to 

complete school assignments increased from 53% to 88%, and the percentage that practiced 



programming or coding rose from 18% to 80%. As the girls’ abilities and computer use improved, their 

confidence also soared. The percentage of girls who believed they could use computers without help 

increased from 62% to 76% and the percentage who felt comfortable when learning about computers 

increased from 76% to 83%.  After taking Build IT, nearly 100% of participants believed that learning 

about computers was worthwhile and exciting. 

Girls Inc. seeks funding from the City to expand the Build IT program into the Chattanooga Girls 

Leadership Academy, where an additional 40 to 50 girls in the 6th, 7th and 8th grades would be able to 

participate. Doing so would provide an increase in the number of Chattanooga girls receiving this 

impactful program from approximately 160 in the coming year to more than 200.  

Girls Inc. of Chattanooga will at the close of each fiscal year for which we have received funding, provide 

a detailed accounting of how and for what purpose municipal funds have been spent as well as a list of 

accomplishments achieved with the use of municipal funding provided by the City of Chattanooga.  

Additionally, Girls Inc. of Chattanooga will provide the City of Chattanooga with copies of our annual 

audit for each year that we spend funds appropriated by the City of Chattanooga to Girls Inc.  

 

 

Sincerely, 

 

Bea Lurie 

President and CEO 
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OFFER SUMMARY 
 

Offer Name: Build IT – More Girls Computer Coding 

Lead Agency: Girls Inc. of Chattanooga 

Collaborating City Department(s):  

Contact Name: Phil Trammell 

Primary Results Area: 
Smarter Students & Stronger 
Families   

Offer Cost (Funding Request): $63,390   
 

RESULTS AREAS 
 

1. Safer Streets – Safe communities, reduced crime, positive opportunities, and alternate 
pathways. 

2. Growing Economy – Growing and supporting local businesses, workforce development, 
business recruitment and retention, and an environment for innovation. 

3. Stronger Neighborhoods – Neighborhood leadership, connected communities, healthy 
residential markets, and rapid re-housing. 

4. Smarter Students, Stronger Families – Parents and first teachers, community support, and 
community health. 

5. High Performing Government – Data-driven decision making, sound operations, outstanding 
customer service, resource management, and exceptional talent. 

6. Innovation Fund – Something different – processes, services, technologies, ideas.  Shifting the 
way government operates. 

DETAILS 
 

Description: (What is the service/program? How will it be provided? What innovation & sustainability practice does this leverage? 
What difference does this offer make and how will we know? Make a compelling case for your offer.)   
          

Since the 1990s, Girls Inc. has been a pioneer in introducing STEM education and career possibilities 
to girls. Through our hands-on, research and outcome-based programming, girls have discovered new 
passions and broken through societal barriers as they pursue their academic studies to achieve careers 
in STEM fields. Girls Inc. continues this work today with our Build IT curriculum. 
 
In our third year of teaching Build IT during the school day to middle school girls at East Lake 
Academy of Fine Arts, the Build IT curriculum integrates Common Core State Standards in an 
engaging method that teaches girls about technology in concert with math, science, and engineering. 
According to Caleb Bagby, a technology teacher at the Chattanooga Girls Leadership Academy, there 
is no comparable curriculum available for middle school girls, making the need for Build IT even 
greater in this community.  
 
Girls Inc. is seeking investment to expand Build IT beyond East Lake Academy of Fine Arts because 
of the effectiveness of the programming so that we may reach more girls in Chattanooga. Recently, 
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the Benwood Foundation awarded Girls Inc. a grant of $140,000 to continue the program at the East 
Lake Academy and to expand it to East Lake Elementary and the Howard High School allowing us to 
create a continuous track of technology instruction from elementary through high school. This will 
provide more Chattanooga students with the tools necessary to succeed in STEM subjects and become 
interest in technology-related careers. Funding provided by the City would allow the expansion of this 
highly effective programming to the Chattanooga Girls Leadership Academy and would accelerate the 
growth and impact of the Build IT program.  
 

Although women fill close to half of all jobs in the U.S. economy, they hold less than 25% of STEM 
jobs according to the U.S. Department of Commerce0F

1 This has been true throughout the past decade 
even as college educated women have increased their share of the overall workforce. The U.S. 
computing workforce is made up of only 3% African-American women, 4% Asian women, and 1% 
Latina women.1F

2 The number of female engineers in the U.S. is surprisingly low — only 14%, 
according to the Congressional Joint Economic Committee. 2F

3 Women who do enter STEM career 
fields earn 33% more when compared to women in non-STEM jobs — considerably higher than the 
STEM premium for men.3F

4 Evidence of these statistics at work in our community has been shared with 
Girls Inc. by companies such as Unum and Kenco, which have expressed their frustration in finding 
females with degrees and experience in technology fields. We see those same difficulties when 
seeking to identify female professionals who can speak to and inspire the girls about their careers. 
 
Build IT’s main goals are: (1) to increase participants’ knowledge of Information Technology and 
Design applications, (2) to increase students’ computer literacy and use, (3) and to increase girls’ 
awareness and interest in Design and IT careers. In alignment with the City’s stated objective of more 
kids computer coding, Girls Inc. sets measurable goals and utilizes data to evaluate students’ and 
program needs. Progress towards these goals in 2012-2013 was measured through pre- and post-tests 
on content knowledge, pre- and post-surveys of students’ attitudes about technology, anecdotal 
evidence, and observations by Girls Inc. staff and school administration.  
 
Girls Inc. has documented success with students who have participated in  the Build IT program. Data 
from the girls’ post-program surveys this past school year reflect improved computer literacy and 
comfort with a variety of IT applications. The percentage of students who reported using 
computers to complete school assignments increased from 53% to 88%, and the percentage that 
practiced programming or coding rose from 18% to 80%. As the girls’ abilities and computer use 
improved, their confidence also soared. The percentage of girls who believed they could use 
computers without help increased from 62% to 76% and the percentage who felt comfortable when 
learning about computers increased from 76% to 83%.  After taking Build IT, nearly 100% of 

                                                           
1 U.S. Department of Commerce Economics and Statistics Administration  
2 NCWIT's Women in IT: By the Numbers  
3 American Society of Mechanical Engineers 
4 U.S. Department of Commerce Economics and Statistics Administration 
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participants believed that learning about computers was worthwhile and exciting. 
 
Girls Inc. seeks funding from the City to expand the Build IT program into the Chattanooga Girls 
Leadership Academy, where an additional 40 to 50 girls in the 6th, 7th and 8th grades would be able to 
participate. Doing so would provide an increase in the number of Chattanooga girls receiving this 
impactful program from approximately 160 in the coming year to more than 200.  
 
As a potential investor in Build IT, you may ask, why girls only? 
 
A publication by the United Way states that while society’s expectations affect both boys and girls, 
studies show that girls are more disadvantaged by them. Research conducted by Harris Interactive 
found that 56% of girls – 78% of high school girls – said that, in school, boys think they have a right 
to discuss a girl’s body in public; and 65% of all girls said girls are expected to spend a lot of their 
time on housework and taking care of younger children.  
 
Harris Interactive also found that students and adults say that girls are more likely to express what 
they really feel, be listened to, be leaders, and try new things when they are in groups with girls only. 
Additionally, girls who participated in girls-only groups were more likely to say they read books, play 
sports, like school, and plan to go to college than girls who did not participate in such groups. Of the 
girls surveyed those who believe that boys and girls have the same abilities and strengths (82%) are 
more likely to plan to go to college than are girls who believe they are very different from boys 
(68%). 
 
Girls Inc. programming addresses these and other areas of gender inequity by providing gender-
specific and age appropriate curricula specifically designed for the ways girls learn. Programs are 
delivered in a safe, affirming, girls-only environment that fosters empowerment. Girls Inc. girls 
flourish and develop into the confident, compassionate, community-minded and empowered young 
women which we expect them to be, and which our community urgently needs them to be.   

 
 
 
 
 
 

Identify Which Desired Outcomes This Offer Impacts:  

1.  More kids computer coding 
2.  
3. 
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0BBUDGET REQUEST 
 

Summary:  (Please complete based on information contained in Attachment F) 
 

Offer Name 
Personnel Costs 

(including Benefits) Operating Costs Total Request 
 FTEs 

required 
Build IT – More girls 
Computer Coding $47,155 $16,235                  $63,390 1.1 

 
Capital Budget Impact?   X Yes           No     $1,000.00 Amount 
 

 
Financial Offsets: (Please list other revenues associated with the specific program for which funding is requested) 

Name Amount 
  
  
  

 

1BPERFORMANCE DATA 
 

Measurement 1: 
Use of Computers to complete homework assignments 
 
Historical Comparison Data?  
The percentage of students who reported using computers to complete school assignments will 
increase year over year. 

 
 Measurement 2: 

The percentage of girls that practice programming or coding. 
Historical Comparison Data?  

The percentage of girls that practice coding will increase year over year.  

 
 Measurement 3: 
Reduction of the percentage of girls who feel uncomfortable when learning about computers. 
Historical Comparison Data?  

The percentage of girls who feel uncomfortable learning about computers will decrease year over 
year.  

 
 

 
Return on Investment: 

How do citizens benefit?  More Chattanooga students receiving technology education than is currently 
provided in City schools, leading to more girls pursuing higher education and eventually careers in STEM 
related fields. This will result an increase of qualified women available to Chattanooga employers with these 
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much sought after skills.  

 

Does this activity leverage other financial resources?  The Build IT program is supported by local charitable 
foundations and corporate underwriters who believe its impact has positive implications for the City 

How does this activity decrease costs over time for the City?  The benefits to the City are costs avoided with 
trying to create and implement a similar program. With the assistance of Girls Inc. national and our agency 
partners, including the Stanford Research Institutes involvement in the design of the Build IT curriculum, it 
would be expensive and time consuming for the City to acquire and implement this program.  

How can this program become sustainable without City funding?  The program currently receives funding 
from corporate, foundation and individual partners and likely would continue to do so. City funding is needed 
to increase the reach of the program. Lack of future city funds might only result in fewer students benefitting.  

 



Attachment F: Budget Format Agency Name: Chattanooga Girls Leadership Academy

Account Category Actual FY 2011 Actual FY 2012 Actual FY 2013 Budget FY 2014 Request FY 2015
Incr (Decr) Request

vs. FY 14 Budget
% Change Request

vs FY 14 Budget
REVENUES (Not Applicable) (Not Applicable) (Not Applicable) (Not Applicable)
Contributions
     Individuals/Private -$ N/A
     Corporate/Organizations/Churches 5,750$ 8,214$ (8,214)$ N/A
Fees/Grants from Governmental Agencies
    Federal -$ N/A
    State -$ N/A
   Hamilton County 1,998$ 1,031$ (1,031)$ N/A
   City of Chattanooga 63,390$ 63,390$ N/A
   Other Cities (Please list) -$ N/A
United Way
    Foundations (including grants) 10,000$ 14,286$ (14,286)$ N/A
    Gross Proceeds Special Events -$ N/A
    Other UWs/Federations -$ N/A
    CFC/Designations received thru UWGC -$ N/A
     UWGC Program Allocation 3,952$ 18,648$ (18,648)$ N/A
     UWGC Special Funding 12,500$ 17,857$ (17,857)$ N/A
Membership Dues -$ N/A
Program Income -$ N/A
Governmental Insurance -$ N/A
Private Insurance -$ N/A
Contracted Services -$ N/A
Fee for Services -$ N/A
Other Program Income -$ N/A
Sales to Public -$ N/A
Investment Income -$ N/A
Miscellaneous -$ -$ N/A
Other Revenues - Girls Inc. national (Kellog Grant) 35,714$ -$ (35,714)$ N/A
Transfers in from other internal  budgets -$ N/A
Income from Previous Year -$ N/A
TOTAL REVENUES -$ -$ 34,200$ 95,751$ 63,390$ (32,361)$ N/A

OPERATIONS (Not Applicable) (Not Applicable) (Not Applicable) (Not Applicable)
Personnel Expenses
Salaries 13,581$ 50,543$ 39,551$ (10,992)$ N/A
Fringe Benefits -$ N/A
Employee Health 344$ 820$ 3,482$ 2,662$ N/A
Pension/Retirement 50$ 119$ 791$ 672$ N/A
Payroll Taxes, etc. 1,057$ 3,866$ 3,026$ (840)$ N/A
Other (unemployment, life insurance, etc) 585$ 1,673$ 306$ (1,367)$ N/A
Total Personnel Expenses -$ -$ 15,617$ 57,020$ 47,155$ (9,865)$ N/A

Girls Inc. of Chattanooga - Build IT

CITY OF CHATTANOOGA
 FY 2015 Agency Funding Financial Form



Attachment F: Budget Format Agency Name: Chattanooga Girls Leadership Academy

Account Category Actual FY 2011 Actual FY 2012 Actual FY 2013 Budget FY 2014 Request FY 2015
Incr (Decr) Request

vs. FY 14 Budget
% Change Request

vs FY 14 Budget

Girls Inc. of Chattanooga - Build IT

CITY OF CHATTANOOGA
 FY 2015 Agency Funding Financial Form

OPERATING EXPENSES
Administration
Professional Fee & Contract service 37$ 500$ 500$ N/A
Utilities -$ N/A
Other -$ N/A
Rent -$ N/A
Travel/Transportation 1,623$ 1,857$ (1,857)$ N/A
Insurance (not employee health) 1,201$ 3,446$ 2,010$ (1,436)$ N/A
Materials & Supplies 1,084$ 4,286$ 2,290$ (1,996)$ N/A
Telephone, Fax, ISP 517$ 2,607$ 780$ (1,827)$ N/A
Postage and Shipping -$ N/A
Occupancy/Building/Utilities 639$ 2,663$ 1,553$ (1,109)$ N/A
Equipment Rental and Maintenance (including contracts) 357$ 400$ 43$ N/A
Outside Printing, Art Work, etc. 590$ 1,471$ 1,000$ (471)$ N/A
Conferences, Conventions, etc. 846$ 1,729$ 750$ (979)$ N/A
Special Assistance to Individuals -$ N/A
National Dues/Support Payments 346$ 1,162$ 707$ (455)$ N/A
Organization Dues (other than above) -$ N/A
Awards and Grants -$ N/A
Fund Raising/Self-Support Activities 2,500$ 4,000$ 500$ (3,500)$ N/A
Miscellaneous 63$ 286$ 314$ 29$ N/A
Equipment Purchases (incl. capital expenses) 6,616$ 8,000$ 1,000$ (7,000)$ N/A
Depreciation 1,461$ 4,725$ 2,940$ (1,785)$ N/A
Other Expenses - Support Staff 1,060$ 2,143$ 1,490$ (653)$ N/A

-$ N/A
Operating Expenses Total -$ -$ 18,583$ 38,732$ 16,235$ (22,497)$ N/A

N/A
TOTAL OPERATIONS -$ -$ 34,200$ 95,752$ 63,390$ (32,361)$ N/A

REVENUE OVER/ (UNDER) OPERATIONS -$ -$ 0$ (0)$ -$ 0$ N/A
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OFFER SUMMARY 

 

Offer Name: Chattanooga Innovation and Technology Center 

Offer Number:  Offer #6 

Department 
Offer Rank:          6 of 6 

Lead 
Department: Youth & Family Development Collaboration: Y     X         N___ 

Administrator: Lurone Jennings, Sr. 

Offer Cost: $5,482,300          Primary Results Area: Innovation Fund 

 

RESULTS AREA  

 
 

1. Safer Streets – Safe communities, reduced crime, positive opportunities, and alternate 

pathways. 

2. Growing Economy – Growing and supporting local businesses, workforce development, 
business recruitment and retention, and an environment for innovation. 

3. Stronger Neighborhoods – Neighborhood leadership, connected communities, healthy 
residential markets, and rapid rehousing. 

4. Smarter Students, Stronger Families – Parents and first teachers, community support, and 

community health. 

5. High Performing Government – Data-driven decision making, sound operations, outstanding 

customer service, resource management, and exceptional talent. 

6. Innovation Fund – Something different – processes, services, technologies, ideas.  Shifting the 

way government operates. 

DETAILS 

 

Description: (What is the service/program? How will it be provided? What innovation & sustainability practice does this leverage? 
What difference does this offer make and how will we know? Make a compelling case for your offer.)   

          

The Department of Youth & Family Development has five important areas of focus that impact the daily lives of families 
and students the most: education, career development, leadership training, social services, and recreation.  While the City’s 
Youth & Family Development Centers have been charged with providing opportunities for learning as well as recreation, 
and have incorporated the Lexia learning systems into their facilities, much more is needed to fulfill the promise of stronger 
families and smarter students for the Chattanooga of the future.  A place must be provided that nurtures creativity, ignites 
dreams, teaches follow-through, and scaffolds services around these future business owners, scientists, engineers, chefs, 
artists, and other professionals to ensure their success. 

 

With the creation of the Chattanooga Innovation and Technology Center (CITC), to be housed in the former John P. 
Franklin School building, Chattanooga will be uniquely positioned to create a 21st century learning environment that will 
foster the creation of small businesses, the education of Chattanooga’s youth, and provide opportunities for parents to 
engage and invest in the future of their children. 

 

The lifetime cost to taxpayers for a single disengaged youth is $704,020.  Research has shown that “disengaged youth are 
… more likely to be living in poverty, receiving public assistance, in prison, on death row, unhealthy, divorced, single 
parents, and, ultimately, high school drop outs with children who drop out of high school themselves.”  Further, each 
disengaged youth translates to approximately $1,680 in lost tax revenue each year.  Disengaged youth are also more likely 
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to be involved in crime.  Local governments spend approximately $75 billion each year on crime-related costs for youth 
aged 16-24.  These are precisely the reasons that it is imperative that Chattanooga engage at-risk youth in activities that 
prepare them for success, both academically and socially. 

While disengaged youth represent a high cost to society each year, those who are high school graduates contribute fiscally 
and socially to government and society over their lifetime at a rate of approximately $250,000 per individual.  Engaging 
these at-risk youth in career readiness programs, and providing them with work skills and the tools they need for academic 
success, will represent a large return on the investment in their future. 

The CITC will house a number of programs primarily targeted in the areas of youth and technology.  Youth will have the 
opportunity to learn skills in the areas of computer technology, engineering, coding, and software development.  Online 
learning specialists, housed in the former school’s library, will implement and monitor virtual learning environments 
targeting reading and math literacy, career development, supplemental learning in all academic areas, diploma completion, 
GED, ACT, and Work Keys prep, English language learning, and much more.  A Career Development component will target 
felons and violent reformed gang affiliates who desire a better future for themselves and their families.  Parents will have 
the opportunity to participate in Baby College, learning the skills to parent their children effectively.  Childcare will also be 
offered, giving parents the opportunity to further their education, begin building a small business with guidance from 
business leaders and nonprofit organizations, or learn new or improved parenting skills. 

To address the twin crises of poverty and violence in the Chattanooga area, the Department of Youth and Family 
Development has entered into partnership with Village Virtual, Green Arc Labs, the Urban League, LAUNCH of Chattanooga, 
Chattanooga Technology Council, the Chamber of Commerce, the Chattanooga Home School Association, the Hamilton 
County Department of Education, the University of Tennessee at Chattanooga, the Chattanooga Housing Authority, and 
Chattanooga State.  These partners will transform the space into a community headquarters that provides vital services to 
an area in need of growth and stability. 

100% of the youth who participate in programs and services offered by the CITC will complete high school graduation 
requirements and will leave high school fully prepared for college and a future career. 

Identify Which Desired Outcomes from Request for Offer(s) that this Offer Impacts: 

1. Increase employment
2. Increase in new businesses created
3. Reduce juvenile crime
4. More students computer coding
5. Fewer students dropping out of school
6. More students graduating high school, college and career ready
7. Bridge the gap of “digital divide” for low-income and minority students

BUDGET REQUEST

Summary:  (Please complete based on Dept. Operating Detail and Dept. Personnel Detail Forms) 

Department 
Personnel Cost 

(including Benefits) Operations Request 
%  of 
offer 

 FTEs 
required 

YFD – Career 
Development 1,500,000.00 100% n/a 

 YFD – Innovation & 
Technology 100% 

n/a 

Total  $   1,500,000    3,867,550  $  5,367,550  100% n/a 
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*Amounts MUST agree with collaborating Department totals for this offer 

Capital Budget Impact?   X Yes           No     $2,500,900 $Amount 

*Please prepare and attach Capital Budget Request Form 

Financial Offsets: (Please list any Revenue e.g. golf course revenue, Grants, Private/Corporate Contributions, Etc.) 

Name Amount 

TN State Food Program $150,000.00 

Career Assessments & Training $100,000.00 

Grants $550,000.00 

Business Development & Leases $200,000.00 

Conference Fees $100,000.00 

PERFORMANCE DATA

Measurement 1:  Increase Academic Performance of Those Students Attending the Center 

FY2012 FY2013 FY2014 FY2015 Target 

100% 

Measurement 2: Increase Technology Skills of Those Students Attending the Center 

FY2012 FY2013 FY2014 FY2015 Target 

100% 

Measurement 3:     Increase Graduation Rates & Career Readiness of Those Students Attending the Center 

FY2012 FY2013 FY2014 FY2015 Target 

100% 

Return on Investment: 

How do citizens benefit? 

Citizens will benefit from the CITC in a number of ways:  youth will develop skills necessary for employment, jobs will be 

created through the building of small businesses, and juvenile crime will be reduced through the engagement of youth in 

positive outlets and activities. 

Does this activity leverage other financial resources?   Yes 

How does this decrease costs over time?  As a business, service fees, and contributions increase, our operating 

costs will be minimized. 
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City of Chattanooga
Mayor Andy Berke

February 20, 2014

Honorable Mayor Andy Berke
101 East n= Street
Chattanooga, TN 37402

RE: Support for Community Agency Support Grant
Girls Inc.

Dear Mayor Berke,

The Department of Youth and Family Development would like to give its support to Girls Inc. The
agency's programs are in direct alignment with what our department is putting our focus on - "Smarter
Students - Stronger Families".

We feel that this program would greatly benefit the citizens of Chattanooga as well as be a benefit to
helping Youth & Family Development achieve its goals.

Sincerely,

Lurone "Coach" Jennings, Sr.
Administrator
Youth & Family Development
City of Chattanooga

501 West 12th Street • Chattanooga, Tennessee 37402 • Office: (423) 757-5551 • Fax: (423) 757-5294



 

 
Bea Lurie 
  President & CEO 
 
Board of Directors 
 
Executive Committee 
 
Dr. Deborah Arfken 
  Chair 
 
Barbara Marter 
  1st Vice Chair 
 
Kim Lawrence 
  Treasurer 
 
Dr. Jennifer Ellis 
  Secretary 
 
Amelia Allen 
  At Large 
 
 
          
Members 
 
Bilda Acuna 
Lee Ann Adams 
Rhonda Catanzaro 
Lucy Gates 
Andra Jurist 
Gina McCommon 
Beverly McKeldin 
Peggy Myers 
Tiffanie Robinson 
Johnny Smith 
Bruce Stewart 
Edna Varner 
 
 
 
Honorary Lifetime 
Members 
 
Dr. Dane Boyington 
Sheila Boyington 
Uneva Shaw 
Dr. Sue Anne Wells 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Girls Inc.® 709 S. Greenwood Avenue 
of Chattanooga  Chattanooga, TN 37404  
                                                      Tel: 423 624-4757 

 Fax: 423 698-4345 
 www.girlsincofchatt.org 

                       

                                                                                                                     
               
                                                                                           
 
Dear Mayor Berke, 

Girls Inc. of Chattanooga is pleased to submit a proposal to the City of Chattanooga for $120,000 
to fund our in-school, afterschool, and school break programs in the 2014-2015 school year. Girls 
Inc. has been producing the desired outcomes the City of Chattanooga seeks for 53 years. Through 
research-based and outcome-focused programming, our girls graduate high school and go on to 
college; youth are provided with information on how to prevent adolescent pregnancy; our girls 
are reading at grade level by third grade; they can create web sites and code in HTML, CSS and 
Java Script; and their parents are more engaged in their activities. Since we began tracking in 
2007, 100% of the girls who complete our high school afterschool programs go on to college. 
 
The mission of Girls Inc. is to inspire and equip all girls to be strong, smart, and boldSM --healthy, 
educated, and independent -- on their journey to self-discovery. Girls Inc. offers in-school, 
afterschool, and school break programming for girls ages 6-18 that is age-appropriate, research-
based, and outcome-focused. 
 
Girls Inc.’s programs are successful and far-reaching because of our many partnerships within 
schools throughout Hamilton County, including Clifton Hills, Woodmore, and East Ridge 
Elementary Schools for girls ages 6-11 as well as East Lake Academy of Fine Arts, Chattanooga 
Girls Leadership Academy, Brainerd High School, Orchard Knob Middle, and Girls Preparatory 
Schools for girls ages 12-18. Additionally, we have partnerships with the Highland Park 
Neighborhood Association, and Harrison and Brainerd United Methodist Churches, whose 
facilities allow us to provide afterschool programming for our girls. We also engage volunteers 
from a several colleges and corporations throughout Chattanooga, including the University of 
Tennessee at Chattanooga, Chattanooga State Community College, and several others. Through 
these partnerships, we are able to provide girls with community support and a critical mass of 
supportive adults who understand what it takes to help children succeed. Girls Inc. understands 
that community partnerships are essential to the success of children.    
 
Girls Inc. provides girls with tools to improve academically, make smarter choices, build self-
confidence, and stay focused on higher education, careers, and a successful future. Since we were 
established in 1961, we have served more than 25,000 girls throughout Hamilton County. We are 
proud that since we began tracking in 2007, 100 percent of girls who complete our high 
school afterschool programs in their senior year go on to college.  
 
Result area for which funding is requested: Smarter Students & Stronger Families 
Amount of money requested: $120,000 
Knowledgeable Contact: Phil Trammell. Phone: (423) 624-4757. E-mail: ptrammell@girlsincofchatt.org 
 
Sincerely, 

  
 
Bea Lurie 
President & CEO 

 
 
 

                          

 

 

Inspiring all girls 
to be strong,  
smart and boldSM 

mailto:ptrammell@girlsincofchatt.org


Girls Inc. of Chattanooga requests investment in results from the City of Chattanooga of $120,000 to 

fund a fraction of our total budget in support of our in school, afterschool, and school break programs. 

Girls Inc. of Chattanooga has been producing the desired outcomes the City of Chattanooga seeks for 53 

years. Through research based and outcome focused programming, our girls graduate high school and 

go on to college, youth are provided with information to prevent adolescent pregnancy and to avoid 

unhealthy choices which negatively impact infant mortality, they show up at school regularly and their 

behavior when they are there is improved, they are reading at grade level by third grade, they can 

create web sites and code in HTML, CSS and Java Script and their parents are more engaged in their 

activities. In fact, since we began tracking in 2007, 100% of the girls who complete our high school 

afterschool programs go on to college. That is a truly remarkable statistic.  

How do we know this? Because we measure our results, testing before and after programs to see if 

what we do is working and if it’s not, we adapt based on those outcomes. We survey our parents and 

invite them to see the progress of their children. We work with the school administrators and teachers 

to promote cooperation and collaboration.   

Our programs align perfectly with the results articulated in the Smarter Students & Stronger Families 

results area:  

More kids graduating high school college and career ready, fewer kids dropping out of school, & 

decreased chronic absenteeism: 

More pregnant women accessing prenatal care 

Increase reading proficiency 

More parental involvement 

More kids computer coding 

The programs outlined in this offer represent a fraction of the work Girls Inc. does for students in 

Chattanooga. Additionally, we offer afterschool programming for girls ages 6-11 in several schools and 

other sites throughout Chattanooga. This afterschool programming offers college and career exploration 

as well as training in leadership and life skills, public speaking, character education, and conflict 

resolution. Girls also receive homework help, physical fitness time, and engage in community service 

projects. We also offer several programs for teens including the Women’s History Project, in which girls 

learn about American women’s history and discover for themselves what it means to be a leader. As 

part of the Women’s History Project, girls are connected with local women leaders who have the 

opportunity to serve as positive mentors and role models. Finally, we offer several educational camps 

that take place during school breaks (spring, summer, and fall). For the upcoming spring semester, we 

are offering GEOgirl, which teaches girls survival and life skills; Grassroots, in which girls learn about 

social justice movements from around the world and take on a service learning project of their own; and 

several other educational camps are being offered this year. 



With support from Girls Inc. national, of which we are an affiliate, the United Way of Greater 

Chattanooga and a breadth of Chattanooga area organizations and companies, Girls Inc. of Chattanooga 

currently provides more than 15 programs to girls age 6 to 18 throughout Chattanooga, serving a total 

of nearly 1,000 girls this year and more than 25,000 since we opened in Chattanooga in 1961. We 

request that the City of Chattanooga invest in our highly effective programming which has long-term 

positive impacts on the stated results areas the City seeks. All of our programming uses research-based 

and outcome focused curriculum.  

Girls Inc. staff who work directly with the girls are all trained professionals. We require a college degree 

and a minimum of two years of related experience to become a part of our team. Several of our staff 

have advanced degrees directly related to the programs which they teach and administer. Our 

programming provides sustained experiences, mentoring relationships, research based curricula, 

intentional programming and interactive activities, delivered in a girls only environment. Those factors 

result in measurable and tangible success for every girl, every day. 

Girls Inc. of Chattanooga will at the close of each fiscal year for which we have received funding, provide 

a detailed accounting of how and for what purpose municipal funds have been spent as well as a list of 

accomplishments achieved with the use of municipal funding provided by the City of Chattanooga.  

Additionally, Girls Inc. of Chattanooga will provide the City of Chattanooga with copies of our annual 

audit for each year that we spend funds appropriated by the City of Chattanooga to Girls Inc.  

Sincerely, 

 

Bea Lurie 

President and CEO 
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OFFER SUMMARY 

 

Offer Name: Invest in Girls Inc. - Programs That Work 

Lead Agency: Girls Inc. of Chattanooga 

Collaborating City Department(s):  

Contact Name: Phil Trammell 

Primary Results Area: 
Smarter Students – Stronger 
Families   

Offer Cost (Funding Request): $120,000   

 

RESULTS AREAS 

 
1. Safer Streets – Safe communities, reduced crime, positive opportunities, and alternate 

pathways. 

2. Growing Economy – Growing and supporting local businesses, workforce development, 
business recruitment and retention, and an environment for innovation. 

3. Stronger Neighborhoods – Neighborhood leadership, connected communities, healthy 
residential markets, and rapid re-housing. 

4. Smarter Students, Stronger Families – Parents and first teachers, community support, and 

community health. 

5. High Performing Government – Data-driven decision making, sound operations, outstanding 

customer service, resource management, and exceptional talent. 

6. Innovation Fund – Something different – processes, services, technologies, ideas.  Shifting the 

way government operates. 

DETAILS 

 

Description: (What is the service/program? How will it be provided? What innovation & sustainability practice does this leverage? 
What difference does this offer make and how will we know? Make a compelling case for your offer.)   

          

Girls Inc. of Chattanooga is seeking $120,000 in investment from the City of Chattanooga to support 

our research-based and outcome-focused in-school, afterschool, and school break programs in the 

2014-2015 school year. 

  

For over 53 years, Girls Inc. of Chattanooga has been producing significant results that are in direct 

alignment with several of the City’s desired outcomes for Smarter Students and Stronger Families. 

We know this because we measure the results of our programs, testing students before and after 

programs to ensure success and monitoring participant progress through staff observations so 

programmatic adjustments can be made at any point. We also survey participant’s parents and invite 

them to see the progress of their children. We work with school administrators and teachers to 

promote cooperation and collaboration and promote an open door policy to anyone to see the progress 

of our girls. Like the City, Girls Inc. believes it is important to help children as early in life as possible 

to create a critical mass of supportive adults who understand what it takes to help children succeed. So 

many of our programs do just this:  
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More kids graduating high school college and career ready, fewer kids dropping out of school, & 

decreased chronic absenteeism: Girls Inc. girls attend school regularly and their parents and teachers 

tell us they do so with improved behavior and performance. Through participation in our programs, 

girls consistently graduate high school and emerge prepared for college. In fact, since we began 

tracking in 2007, 100% of the girls who complete our high school afterschool programs have 

gone on to college. Our programs give girls a reason to be engaged in their education. Starting at age 

six, we teach girls the importance of higher education and the steps they can begin taking now to 

improve their chances for a successful future.  

 

More pregnant women accessing prenatal care: Our IMPACT program (Infant Mortality Public 

Awareness Campaign for Tennessee) provides the City’s youth with information to help prevent 

adolescent pregnancy and to avoid unhealthy choices which negatively impact infant mortality. Now 

in its sixth year, IMPACT is a high school teen-led, peer-to-peer education campaign in which 

participants present to local middle and high school students to discuss the steps they can take now to 

prevent the death of their child if/when they have children as adults. The teens also create print, radio, 

and television ads that are broadcast throughout Chattanooga and used as part of their education 

campaign. Between December 2012 and November 2013, 730 students attended presentations made 

by our IMPACT team. Those who attended completed multiple-choice pre- and post-tests. Results 

from these tests indicate significant success: When asked to define infant mortality, 51% responded 

correctly on the pre-test whereas 92% responded correctly on the post-test. When asked what the 

number one cause of infant death is in the U.S., 31% responded with the correct answer of “birth 

defects” on the pre-test and 72% answered correctly on the post-test. When asked what supplement all 

women of child-bearing age should be taking, 49% responded with the correct answer of “folic acid” 

on the pre-test and 86% responded correctly on the post-test. There were ten questions asked in all 

and on each one, student responses improved.  

 

Increase reading proficiency:  Elementary girls’ literacy skills are markedly improving through 

participation in our afterschool program, the Bookworm Club, which teaches literacy skills to in-need 

children from underserved and low-income communities in Chattanooga. We have seen significant 

results with this program over the past two years. Our goals in the first year were to 1) increase girls’ 

reading scores to current grade level or above as evidenced by report cards; and 2) improve girls’ 

reading comprehension as evidenced by pre/post-testing. The literacy assessment we conducted asked 

girls to circle what they recognized in five different categories: 1) recognition of the alphabet (upper 

and lower case); 2) recognition of the names of numbers; 3) recognition of color names, 4) 

recognitions of names of days of the week, and 5) recognition of names of the months. 

 

Results: There was a 3.87% increase from pre-test to post-test on recognition of ABC’s. There was a 

19.6% increase in recognition of the names of numbers 1-20. There was a 6.26% increase in the 

recognition of nine color names. There was an 11.63% increase in recognition of names of days of 

the week. Finally, there was a 28.6% increase in recognition of the names of the twelve months of 

the year. Girls Inc. staff also conducted timed reading tests. Between the pre-test and the post-test, the 

girls read faster by 2 minutes and 28 seconds. The average time for the pre-test was 4 minutes and 

18 seconds. The average time for the post-test was 1 minute and 50 seconds. There was a 19.4% 
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increase in the number of correct word recognition from the pre-test to the post-test. These results 

show increased reading proficiency across several areas, and we have also seen a noticeable increase 

in girls’ eagerness to read as evidenced by anecdotal staff and teacher observations. 

 

More parental involvement:  Our afterschool programming fosters parental involvement. We 

understand that children’s success significantly depends upon early learning and family support in 

their academic, social and emotional development. Therefore, we work closely with parents to update 

them on their daughter’s progress and provide them with guidance in how to support the improvement 

of their daughter’s skills and how to address challenges. 

 

More kids computer coding: Middle school girls are creating web sites and coding in HTML, CSS and 

JavaScript with our in-school Build IT program. Build IT is a design-based curriculum that promotes 

middle school girls’ information technology (IT) fluency and incorporates the STEM content of 

mathematics and computer science. Build IT uses design to both engage and teach girls information 

technology and computer science concepts. All Build IT students learn fundamental computer-use 

skills, practice the design process, use Internet-based design and communication tools safely and 

responsibly, and design a variety of computer documents. Girls Inc. has seen great success with 

students who have completed the Build IT program. Data from the girls’ post-program surveys this 

past school year reflect the girls’ improved computer literacy and comfort with a variety of IT 

applications. The percentage of students who reported using computers to complete school 

assignments increased from 53% to 88%, and the percentage that practiced programming or coding 

rose from 18% to 80%. As the girls’ abilities and computer use improved, their confidence also 

soared. The percentage of girls who believed they could use computers without help increased from 

62% to 76% and the percentage who felt comfortable when learning about computers increased 

from 76% to 83%. After taking Build IT, nearly 100% of participants believed that learning about 

computers was worthwhile and exciting.  

 

The programs outlined in this offer represent a fraction of the work Girls Inc. does for students in 

Chattanooga. Additionally, we offer afterschool programming for girls ages 6-11 in several schools 

and other sites throughout Chattanooga. This afterschool programming offers college and career 

exploration as well as training in leadership and life skills, public speaking, character education, and 

conflict resolution. Girls also receive homework help, physical fitness time, and engage in community 

service projects. We also offer several programs for teens including the Women’s History Project, in 

which girls learn about American women’s history and discover for themselves what it means to be a 

leader. As part of the Women’s History Project, girls are connected with local women leaders who 

have the opportunity to serve as positive mentors and role models. Finally, we offer several 

educational camps that take place during school breaks (spring, summer, and fall). For the upcoming 

spring semester, we are offering GEOgirl, which teaches girls survival and life skills; Grassroots, in 

which girls learn about social justice movements from around the world and take on a service learning 

project of their own; and several other educational camps are being offered this year. 

 

With support from Girls Inc. national, of which we are an affiliate, the United Way of Greater 

Chattanooga and a breadth of Chattanooga area organizations and companies, Girls Inc. of 

Chattanooga currently provides more than 15 programs to girls age 6 to 18 throughout Chattanooga, 
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serving a total of nearly 1,000 girls this year and more than 25,000 since we opened in Chattanooga in 

1961. We request that the City of Chattanooga invest in our highly effective programming which has 

long-term positive impacts on the stated results areas the City seeks. All of our programming uses 

research-based and outcome focused curriculum.  

 

Girls Inc. staff who work directly with the girls are all trained professionals. We require a college 

degree and a minimum of two years of related experience to become a part of our team. Several of our 

staff have advanced degrees directly related to the programs which they teach and administer. Our 

programming provides sustained experiences, mentoring relationships, research based curricula, 

intentional programming and interactive activities, delivered in a girls only environment. Those 

factors result in measurable and tangible success for every girl, every day.  

 

In evaluating an investment in the results Girls Inc. delivers, you may ask, why girls only? 

  

A publication by the United Way states that while society’s expectations affect both boys and girls, 

studies show that girls are more disadvantaged by them. Research conducted by Harris Interactive 

found that 56% of girls – 78% of high school girls – said that, in school, boys think they have a right 

to discuss a girl’s body in public; and 65% of all girls said girls are expected to spend a lot of their 

time on housework and taking care of younger children.  

 

Harris Interactive also found that students and adults say that girls are more likely to express what 

they really feel, be listened to, be leaders, and try new things when they are in groups with girls only. 

Additionally, girls who participated in girls-only groups were more likely to say they read books, play 

sports, like school, and plan to go to college than girls who did not participate in such groups. Of the 

girls surveyed those who believe that boys and girls have the same abilities and strengths (82%) are 

more likely to plan to go to college than are girls who believe they are very different from boys 

(68%). 

 

Girls Inc. programming addresses these and other areas of gender inequity by providing gender-

specific and age appropriate curricula specifically designed for the ways girls learn. Programs are 

delivered in a safe, affirming, girls-only environment that fosters empowerment. Girls Inc. girls 

flourish and develop into the confident, compassionate, community-minded and empowered young 

women which we expect them to be, and which our community urgently needs them to be.   
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Identify Which Desired Outcomes This Offer Impacts:  

1. More kids graduating high school college and career ready 
2. More women accessing pre-natal care 
3. Decrease chronic absenteeism 
4. Fewer kids dropping out of school 
5. More parental involvement 
6. Increase reading proficiency 
7. More kids computer coding 

BUDGET REQUEST 

 
Summary:  (Please complete based on information contained in Attachment F) 

 

Offer Name 
Personnel Costs 

(including Benefits) Operating Costs Total Request 
 FTEs 

required 

Invest in Girls Inc. – 
Programs that Work $864,246 $414,879 $120,000 21 

 

Capital Budget Impact?        Yes           No          $Amount 

 

 
Financial Offsets: (Please list other revenues associated with the specific program for which funding is requested) 

Name Amount 

  

  

  
 

PERFORMANCE DATA 

 
Measurement 1: 

Percentage of girls who complete our programming in their senior year of high school continuing to 

college. 

Historical Comparison Data?  

Since 2007, 100% of the girls who complete our high school afterschool programs go on to college. 

 

 
Measurement 2: 

Increase reading proficiency as measured by DIBELS (Dynamic Indicators of Basic Early Literacy 

Skills) for first, second and third grade students in Chattanooga who participate in the Girls Inc. 

Bookworm Club. 

Historical Comparison Data?  

In the last year, in the schools where the Bookworm Club has been offered there was a 3.87% increase 

from pre-test to post-test on recognition of ABC’s. There was a 19.6% increase in recognition of the 

names of numbers 1-20. There was a 6.26% increase in the recognition of nine color names. There 

was an 11.63% increase in recognition of names of days of the week. Finally, there was a 28.6% 

increase in recognition of the names of the twelve months of the year. Girls Inc. staff also conducted 

timed reading tests. Between the pre-test and the post-test, the girls read faster by 2 minutes and 28 
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seconds. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Measurement 3: 

Number of girls who participate in the Build IT program and advance to coding, including HTML, 

CSS and JavaScript. 

Historical Comparison Data?  

 

 
 

 

Return on Investment: 

How do citizens benefit?  The educational opportunities provided by Girls Inc. are unique and not widely 

available to the citizens of Chattanooga. Investing in these programs will provide the citizens of Chattanooga, 

particularly those in underserved populations, opportunities that they may not otherwise have available to 

them. The resulting term benefits to Chattanooga and its citizens are a better educated, career ready 

populace. 

Does this activity leverage other financial resources?  Girls Inc. programming is funded by the United Way of 

Greater Chattanooga and a breadth of Chattanooga area organizations, companies and individuals. City 

investment would leverage these investments building on the infrastructure already established with that 

funding.  

How does this activity decrease costs over time for the City?   A better prepared, richly diverse populace is 

an economic asset to the community and an attractive benefit to employers and other organizations 

who would consider Chattanooga as a place to invest and do business. More outside investment in 

Chattanooga will over time, reduce the costs to the city through a broader, more diverse tax base. 

How can this program become sustainable without City funding?  Girls Inc. programming is funded today by a 

diverse group of foundations, organizations, corporations and individual investors. These funders believe in 

the work of Girls Inc. and would continue to provide funding in the future. We are constantly seeking 

additional funders which would allow Girls Inc. to grow its programming and reach even more girls in 

Chattanooga.  

 



Attachment F: Budget Format Agency Name:

Account Category Actual FY 2011 Actual FY 2012 Actual FY 2013 Budget FY 2014 Request FY 2015
Incr (Decr) Request

vs. FY 14 Budget
% Change Request

vs FY 14 Budget

REVENUES
Contributions
     Individuals/Private 46,215$ 46,672$ 55,921$ 119,006$ 123,433$ 4,427$ 3.7%
     Corporate/Organizations/Churches 86,473$ 69,999$ 72,786$ 234,034$ 188,715$ (45,319)$ -19.4%
Fees/Grants from Governmental Agencies 31,562$ 30,343$
    Federal -$ N/A
    State -$ N/A
   Hamilton County 34,022$ 18,190$ 28,554$ 10,364$ 57.0%
   City of Chattanooga 10,499$ 21,561$ 6,200$ 120,000$ 113,800$ 1835.5%
   Other Cities (Please list) -$ N/A
United Way
    Foundations (including grants) 9,414$ 51,078$ 126,432$ 267,161$ 347,504$ 80,343$ 30.1%
    Gross Proceeds Special Events 83,431$ 162,661$ 92,438$ 125,545$ 140,000$ 14,455$ 11.5%
    Other UWs/Federations 3,619$ -$ N/A
    CFC/Designations received thru UWGC 4,652$ 7,897$ 11,872$ 12,424$ 13,000$ 576$ 4.6%
     UWGC Program Allocation 246,659$ 246,659$ 246,659$ 246,659$ 246,659$ -$ 0.0%
     UWGC Special Funding -$ 2,000$ 25,000$ 25,000$ 25,000$ -$ 0.0%
Membership Dues -$ N/A

CITY OF CHATTANOOGA
 FY 2015 Agency Funding Financial Form

Girls Inc. of Chattanooga

Membership Dues -$ N/A
Program Income 15,387$ 20,851$ 25,260$ 31,260$ 6,000$ 23.8%
Governmental Insurance -$ N/A
Private Insurance -$ N/A
Contracted Services -$ N/A
Fee for Services -$ N/A
Other Program Income -$ N/A
Sales to Public -$ N/A
Investment Income 6,430$ 7,015$ 14,975$ 30,000$ 15,000$ (15,000)$ -50.0%
Miscellaneous -$ N/A
Other Revenues (Please list separately  any major item) -$ N/A
Transfers in from other internal  budgets -$ N/A
Income from Previous Year 7,000$ -$ (7,000)$ -100.0%
TOTAL REVENUES 514,836$ 653,829$ 722,517$ 1,116,479$ 1,279,125$ 162,646$ 14.6%

OPERATIONS
Personnel Expenses
Salaries 316,148$ 339,141$ 405,125$ 588,676$ 756,054$ 167,378$ 28.4%



Attachment F: Budget Format Agency Name: Girls Inc. of Chattanooga
Fringe Benefits -$ N/A
Employee Health 6,180$ 13,875$ 13,782$ 20,346$ 25,433$ 5,087$ 25.0%
Pension/Retirement -$ 2,104$ 2,500$ 3,607$ 6,000$ 2,393$ 66.3%
Payroll Taxes, etc. 27,808$ 22,771$ 24,824$ 45,277$ 57,838$ 12,561$ 27.7%
Other (unemployment, life insurance, etc) 9,981$ 11,197$ 14,122$ 15,137$ 18,921$ 3,784$ 25.0%
Total Personnel Expenses 360,117$ 389,088$ 460,353$ 673,043$ 864,246$ 191,203$ 28.4%

OPERATING EXPENSES
Administration
Professional Fee & Contract service 36,193$ 15,865$ 21,545$ 46,390$ 51,029$ 4,639$ 10.0%
Utilities -$ N/A
Other -$ N/A
Rent -$ N/A
Travel/Transportation 16,358$ 18,088$ 24,554$ 54,863$ 60,349$ 5,486$ 10.0%
Insurance (not employee health) 16,096$ 17,527$ 24,520$ 21,787$ 22,000$ 213$ 1.0%
Materials & Supplies 20,137$ 22,486$ 23,187$ 65,991$ 60,000$ (5,991)$ -9.1%
Telephone, Fax, ISP 7,489$ 9,368$ 10,891$ 15,892$ 16,000$ 108$ 0.7%
Postage and Shipping 2,920$ 2,011$ 3,584$ 2,598$ 4,000$ 1,402$ 54.0%
Occupancy/Building/Utilities 14,951$ 14,035$ 14,717$ 22,355$ 29,591$ 7,236$ 32.4%
Equipment Rental and Maintenance (including contracts) 3,687$ 7,999$ 4,518$ 51,372$ 10,000$ (41,372)$ -80.5%
Outside Printing, Art Work, etc. 17,548$ 19,730$ 18,917$ 23,258$ 25,584$ 2,326$ 10.0%
Conferences, Conventions, etc. 1,524$ 3,400$ 8,573$ 16,225$ 16,000$ (225)$ -1.4%
Special Assistance to Individuals -$ N/ASpecial Assistance to Individuals -$ N/A
National Dues/Support Payments 7,000$ 7,000$ 7,000$ 7,300$ 7,800$ 500$ 6.8%
Organization Dues (other than above) 455$ 386$ 733$ 2,680$ 3,000$ 320$ 11.9%
Awards and Grants -$ N/A
Fund Raising/Self-Support Activities 11,625$ 40,763$ 30,598$ 22,352$ 30,000$ 7,648$ 34.2%
Miscellaneous - Marketing, Websites 14,000$ 16,298$ 17,928$ 1,630$ 10.0%
Equipment Purchases (incl. capital expenses) 2,007$ 37,476$ 15,000$ (22,476)$ -60.0%
Depreciation 23,776$ 23,932$ 28,107$ 30,000$ 32,000$ 2,000$ 6.7%
Other Expenses - Bank Fees, Background Checks, Drug Tests 7,442$ 4,318$ 5,188$ 6,599$ 14,599$ 8,000$ 121.2%
Investment Expense 2,289$ -$ N/A
Operating Expenses Total 187,201$ 206,908$ 244,928$ 443,436$ 414,879$ (28,557)$ -6.4%

TOTAL OPERATIONS 547,318$ 595,996$ 705,281$ 1,116,479$ 1,279,125$ 162,646$ 14.6%

REVENUE OVER/ (UNDER) OPERATIONS (32,482)$ 57,833$ 17,236$ -$ (0)$ (0)$ N/A





































































































































SPLASH 

This letter is to request funding in the amount $47,484.05 for one year operating funds for SPLASH.  
SPLASH covers “the results are :  Smarter Students and Stronger Families.” 
 
“SPLASH” is a Young Artist Community Workshop with an arts apprenticeship component.  The 
motivation behind “Splash” comes from the ancient Proverb “Your gift will make room for you”.  Low-
income kids of all ages are impacted through our open-door art appreciation and enrichment workshops 
which serve as a bridge to the apprenticeship program which introduces entrepreneurship to the kids.  
Bringing an art school into the community will bring patrons from all social strata of our city, 
encouraging economic development. 
 
It is our mission to create a safe professional art studio environment for young artists including urban, 
rural, low-income and disadvantaged at-risk youth to grow and express themselves through the fine arts 
via free art classes and workshops.  The art studio workspace environment  encourages art education, 
entrepreneurship, focus, relaxation, introspection, and creativity. Art making increases hand eye 
coordination, critical thinking, research and productivity causing a sense of well being and 
accomplishment as well brain growth. The attributes of art making addresses issues of healthy 
(beautification} environments and mental health.  Students in the past have seen an improvement of 
grades in other subjects because of increased discipline and focus. Negative behavior patterns change 
because of new found interest, achievement and validation.  The murals and personal works of art will 
revitalize and beautify homes and neighborhoods.  Teaching preschoolers will prepare them for school 
life affecting the direction of their lives, creating broader educational, social and career goals and 
opportunities.  Many will go to art school and college.  Parents will learn to value art and their child's 
gift.  The apprenticeship nature of SPLASH encourages and teaches entrepreneurship and self 
employment.  SPLASH will educate the entire Chattanooga Community about the importance and 
power of art for everyone and the potential in poor and disadvantaged youth and the powerful and 
wonderful art that they are capable of creating.  
 
SLASH will: 

1. Nurture, develop and encourage young artists to use their gifts and talents in pursuit of their 
dreams of becoming artists through professional training, mentorship and apprentice 
programs, art classes, workshops and activities. 

2. Present student art exhibitions in order to offer opportunities for students  to experience, 
demonstrate, display and sell their artwork and assist in funding “Splash”. 

3. Provide exhibition and performance space for community art events and promote the arts in 
Chattanooga to a diversified audience. 

4. Outreach to schools, churches, recreation centers and other community gathering places with 
fine arts enrichment programming. 

  
ART MAKES CHILDREN POWERFUL. 
 
Thank You, 
 
 
Charlie Newton 
SPLASH Charlie Newton newtonstudio@aol.com  1814 wheeler Ave. Chattanooga, TN 37406 423-320-6738 mobile

mailto:newtonstudio@aol.com


SPLASH 

 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR SPLASH. 
 
I am requesting the amount of $47,484.05 to assist in one year operating funds for SPLASH.  We currently 
have 113 kids officially registered for SPLASH but we are only able to teach around 35-40 per week.  We serve 
a snack or meal each class.  Financial Assistance will enable us to continue teaching free art classes at the 
James A. Henry School starting May through August 2014.  The funds will expand the number of kids 
SPLASH can reach by financing administration salaries, art supplies, meals, transportation, and artist 
and assistants salaries for one year. SPLASH serves kids at risk to the influence of gangs, drug pushers 
and other negative activities that prevail in the community.  The art studio is a safe place keeping kids 
off the streets reaching kids traditionally under-served, whose parents cannot pay for art classes and 
have little appreciation or education in the Fine Arts.  SPLASH will teach two 2 hour classes per week 
totaling 4 hours (Friday after school and Saturday).  The after school class will include three age levels; 
pre-school, 6-9, and 10-17 years of age.  Literacy is  incorporated into this class.  The weekend class 
will focus entirely on production, fabrication, criticism and quality -  creating art to be sold for a profit.  
I believe that this class will arouse the interests of  parents.  The children will become little artists.  
After four months, the duration of this project, their art will go on display in a public venue to be 
revealed later as discussions are presently in progress. There is not an urban art institution quite like 
SPLASH in the entire state of Tennessee. 
 
In 2010 I began teaching free art classes on the Westside, the community I grew up in via an art 
competition put on by the Chattanooga Housing Authority at the Westside Community Center.  To fund 
the project I expanded a project I created for the Chattanooga Girls Leadership Academy (the entire 4th 
through the 6th grade) called the “I Am” project funded by Allied Art's of Greater Chattanooga.  In 2011 
I along with some 80 girls from CGLA concluded part II of the “I Am” projected with a school mural 
consisting of famous women of color alongside reproductions of the portraits created the previous year.  
I also created the Arts and Literacy (“Reading”) program at the Westside Center for three years. 
 
SPLASH officially began in my studio (then located on the campus of Tennessee Temple University)in 
the summer of 2012 with the “200. Art Introduction to Art Studio for Teens” meeting on Saturdays 
from June – July 2012.  This class was a real success so we offered a part II winter version Saturdays, 
November 10-December 15, 2012 also offering the class at Chattanooga Girls Leadership Academy in 
a free after school art program sponsored by myself and Jim Collins also an executive board member.  
 
Currently SPLASH teaches two weekly Friday and Saturday art class for upto to 34 kids ranging in age 
from 4 to 17 funded by a gift from the Benwood Foundation and a grant from the Community 
Foundation of Greater Chattanooga.  SPLASH just received an Arts Build Community Connections 
Grant to help launch our new arts and literacy project which is an evolution of three years of  our 
reading program in the Westside. 
 
One of the benefits of this project is that it will allow low income and disadvantaged children to 
become artist.  Other benefits include Creating extra income for poor families, encouraging higher 
educational goals, developing the right brain or creative side of the individual enhancing cognitive 
symphonic thinking processes, seeing the big picture, combining disparate pieces into a new whole.  



Creating empathetic thinking giving a person the ability to appreciate our differences and humanity 
forging relationships outside one's normal  cultural environment.  Creates a sense of play thereby 
relieving stress that impedes one's education and personal growth.  Liberates the child and frees the 
mind to pursue more significant desires and achieve fulfillment in life.  
At the end of the project an evaluation will be completed by teachers, students, parents, and residents.   
The Chattanooga Housing Authority supports SPLASH leasing the school to us to help kick start the 
program.  Trina DeSouza in the College Hill Court management office allowed me to announce the 
program in their monthly news letter and I have partnered with Reconciliation Ministries Network,  
Inc.(a consortium of various ministries on the Westside) to set up an art tent at their community 
barbecue in October 2013 where I drew free portraits and introduced SPLASH to a broader audience, 
the result of which has led to over 100 kids registered for art classes. We hope to obtain an additional 
class room in order to accommodate more students.  My own church FLO is temporarily giving to help 
pay the lease on the school until we can get more funding. 
 
Sustainability 
Funding will springboard us into our fund raising campaigns which includes memberships, partners, 
private and public donations and charitable events including a children's art auction.  Apprentices will  
produce art for sale with a small percentage  (25%) going back into SPLASH to purchase supplies.  
Tony the owner of Art Creations has donated supplies in the past and his continued help will benefit us. 
 
SPLASH Leadership 
SPLASH's board is made up of artists Charlie Newton, MFA, Art Professor Belhaven University, 
Pastor, In His Hand Church, Iantha Newton, BA ,Professional Artist, River Gallery,  Jim Collins, M, 
Proffessional Artist, Who's Who in American Art,  Reginald Ruff, III, BA, Architect, owner SSRR and 
Assoc. and Carolyn Towns, M Ed., former principal, Whitefield County schools all who are very 
familiar with and invested in this community having spent their careers in service to this population.   
The board is active in planning all stages of SPLASH's development, programing and staffing needs.  
Monthly meetings and weekly consultations with members and reports from the Executive Director 
keep the board informed about SPLASH's progress.   
 
SPLASH will provide a detailed accounting of how and for what purpose municipal funds were spent  
along with the list of the accomplishments scheduled by use of the municipal funding  
SPLASH will provide the City of Chattanooga with copies of annual audits or reviews (satisfactory to 
the council's fiscal advisor) for each year that it spends funds appropriated to it by the City of 
Chattanooga.  
 
Thank you, 
 
 
 
Charlie Newton, Founder, Director 
SPLASH 
 
 
 
 
 
SPLASH Charlie Newton newtonstudio@aol.com  1814 wheeler Ave. Chattanooga, TN 37406 423-320-6738 mobile 

mailto:newtonstudio@aol.com
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OFFER SUMMARY 
 

Offer Name: Venture 4th 

Lead Agency:  

Collaborating City Department(s): 
Youth and Family Development, Parks and Recreation, Chattanooga 
Ambassadors Program, Therapeutic Recreation Services 

Contact Name: Creech Hardee, Scott Graham 

Primary Results Area: 
Smarter Students and 
Stronger Families   

Offer Cost (Funding Request): $175,350.00   
 

RESULTS AREAS 
 

1. Safer Streets – Safe communities, reduced crime, positive opportunities, and alternate 
pathways. 

2. Growing Economy – Growing and supporting local businesses, workforce development, 
business recruitment and retention, and an environment for innovation. 

3. Stronger Neighborhoods – Neighborhood leadership, connected communities, healthy 
residential markets, and rapid re-housing. 

4. Smarter Students, Stronger Families – Parents and first teachers, community support, and 
community health. 

5. High Performing Government – Data-driven decision making, sound operations, outstanding 
customer service, resource management, and exceptional talent. 

6. Innovation Fund – Something different – processes, services, technologies, ideas.  Shifting the 
way government operates. 

DETAILS 
 

Description: (What	
  is	
  the	
  service/program?	
  How	
  will	
  it	
  be	
  provided?	
  What	
  innovation	
  &	
  sustainability	
  practice	
  does	
  this	
  leverage?	
  
What	
  difference	
  does	
  this	
  offer	
  make	
  and	
  how	
  will	
  we	
  know?	
  Make	
  a	
  compelling	
  case	
  for	
  your	
  offer.)	
           
          
 	
  	
  	
  	
  The Venture 4th recognizes that the natural resources within Hamilton County and the surrounding areas 
have contributed to the recent prosperity and revitalization of Chattanooga. The combination of the Tennessee 
River and the adjacent mountains provides us with boundless opportunities for outdoor recreation. Hiking, 
mountain-biking, rock climbing, canoeing, kayaking and other water sports are all readily available here in 
Chattanooga for those with the knowledge and means to access these activities. Tourism has increased, and 
business relocations to our area are on the rise. Unfortunately, while certain business sectors and other private 
entities have benefitted from this outdoor renaissance, a significant segment of the population has felt no effect.  
For this group, Chattanooga’s new moniker: “Boulder of the East” has no meaning. Chattanooga’s low-income 
areas, and those school districts where educational advancement is a challenge, are essentially excluded from 
these outdoor activities and all of the benefits that flow from them because of a lack of exposure, education, 
and general knowledge of how one engages the natural environment.	
  
	
  	
  	
  	
   With the support of extensive research, Venture 4th sees an opportunity to bring the known benefits of 
wilderness education and experiential learning to the inner city schools and community centers. Outdoor 
activities and “academic adventures” will support the state-wide adopted core curriculum and allow students to 
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2	
  

apply their newly acquired outdoor skills to specific classroom subjects. Conversely, academic subjects that 
might seem dry and irrelevant when presented in a textbook or classroom setting can become interesting and 
relevant when their application and usefulness in the real world is demonstrated. Components and outcomes of 
wilderness education and experiential learning typically include: leadership development, community building 
and service, individual responsibility and character development, and critical thinking skills.	
  
      Through canoeing, hiking, rock-climbing and overnight camping, the Venture 4th Project will expose kids 
from middle through high school to the surrounding natural environment. They will be provided with 
leadership opportunities and learn all the skills that accompany these activities. This will be a chance for them 
to enhance their innate curiosity about the natural world and their place in it. In order to support the schools and 
their curriculum, an academic component will be included with each activity: 

�   Arts: sketching, painting, videography, and editing   
�   Writing: journals, observation, and creative narratives    
�    Science: plant and wildlife identification, ornithology, and ecosystem studies   
�    Math: basic mathematical calculations, geometry, and various problems related to physics   
� History: significance of local landmarks: Chickamauga National Park and affiliated sites,      
Friends of Moccasin Bend, Cherokee Trail of Tears, Civil Rights Movement.  

    There are programs throughout the country with missions similar to what the Venture4th Project will bring 
to the Chattanooga schools and community centers. One such program is the Fresh Air Fund out of New York 
City. The Fresh Air Fund has been a prominent model for outdoor adventure for students with limited access to 
nature. Although Chattanooga is filled with possibilities, there is currently no such program providing options 
for our youth to explore the outdoors and natural world unless they have the economic resources to participate. 
The Tennessee River, and the surrounding mountains, together with the various land trusts and non-profit 
organizations, provide us with ready access to hiking trails, rock-climbing sites, canoeing and camping, nature 
preserves and wildlife habitats. Access to the physical and spiritual benefits of nature should not be limited to 
only those with financial means, and once exposed to the outdoors activities, many of its benefits will last a 
lifetime and can be done for free.  

     All activities and expeditions will occur under supervision of experienced educators, community center 
leaders, and qualified wilderness guides. All activities will take place on properties that currently operate as 
land trusts or nonprofits: Chattanooga Nature Center, Lula Lake Land Trust, Tennessee River Gorge Trust, 
Lookout Mountain Conservancy, Chickamauga and Chattanooga National Military Park, and Moccasin Bend 
National Park. 
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Identify	
  Which	
  Desired	
  Outcomes	
  This	
  Offer	
  Impacts:	
  

1. Increased educational opportunities and environmental awareness /smarter students
2. Mental and physical health benefits / community health
3. Safer neighborhoods and streets by providing kids summer opportunities, parental involvement in some programs will
strengthen ties in the community and within families 

BUDGET REQUEST

Summary:  (Please complete based on information contained in Attachment F) 

Offer	
  Name	
  
Personnel	
  Costs	
  

(including	
  Benefits)	
   Operating	
  Costs	
   Total	
  Request	
  
	
  FTEs	
  

required	
  

Venture	
  4th	
   N/A	
  

$47,900.00	
  
excluding	
  

employee	
  wages	
  
and	
  salaries	
   $175,350.00	
  

Capital Budget Impact?   Yes      No     $Amount 

Financial Offsets: (Please	
  list	
  other	
  revenues	
  associated	
  with	
  the	
  specific	
  program	
  for	
  which	
  funding	
  is	
  requested) 
Name Amount 

*** Venture 4th is a new program and will be seeking 
additional funding from foundations, grants, and private 
donations. 

PERFORMANCE DATA

Measurement 1: 

Historical	
  Comparison	
  Data?	
  	
  Venture	
  4th	
  is	
  a	
  new	
  program	
  and	
  as	
  of	
  now,	
  we	
  have	
  no	
  data	
  for	
  our	
  program.	
  Attached	
  at	
  
the	
  end	
  of	
  the	
  application	
  is	
  a	
  list	
  of	
  sources	
  and	
  research	
  material	
  that	
  confirm	
  the	
  positive	
  outcomes	
  of	
  existing	
  
outdoor	
  programs	
  and	
  experiential	
  education	
  models.	
  The	
  graduate	
  assistantship	
  that	
  is	
  budgeted	
  will	
  allow	
  a	
  
scholarship	
  for	
  a	
  student	
  and	
  that	
  individual	
  will	
  assist	
  Venture	
  4th	
  in	
  compiling	
  data	
  for	
  the	
  City	
  and	
  other	
  donating	
  
entities.	
  Academic	
  research	
  will	
  also	
  be	
  produced	
  in	
  order	
  to	
  submit	
  findings	
  to	
  scholarly	
  education	
  journals.	
  

Measurement 2: 

Historical	
  Comparison	
  Data?	
  	
  	
  See	
  above	
  

 Measurement 3: 

Historical	
  Comparison	
  Data?	
  	
  See	
  above	
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Return	
  on	
  Investment:	
  

How	
  do	
  citizens	
  benefit?	
  	
  The	
  students	
  will	
  benefit	
  from	
  the	
  exposure	
  to	
  new	
  environments	
  in	
  conjunction	
  
with	
  an	
  educational	
  component.	
  As	
  a	
  community,	
  families	
  will	
  have	
  the	
  comfort	
  of	
  knowing	
  that	
  their	
  
children	
  are	
  participating	
  in	
  supervised	
  activities	
  with	
  a	
  multitude	
  of	
  personal	
  and	
  social	
  benefits,	
  thus	
  
keeping	
  them	
  from	
  potentially	
  less	
  gratifying	
  endeavors.	
  

Does	
  this	
  activity	
  leverage	
  other	
  financial	
  resources?	
  Venture	
  4th	
  intends	
  to	
  seek	
  additional	
  and	
  substantial	
  
funding	
  from	
  other	
  foundations,	
  grant,	
  and	
  private	
  donations.

How	
  does	
  this	
  activity	
  decrease	
  costs	
  over	
  time	
  for	
  the	
  City?	
  	
  Venture	
  4th	
  believes	
  that	
  the	
  additional	
  funding	
  
in	
  following	
  years	
  will	
  supplant	
  City	
  funding.	
  Furthermore,	
  we	
  believe	
  that	
  the	
  long-­‐term	
  benefits	
  of	
  Venture	
  
4th	
  will	
  have	
  a	
  positive	
  impact	
  on	
  public	
  safety,	
  and	
  economic	
  growth.

How	
  can	
  this	
  program	
  become	
  sustainable	
  without	
  City	
  funding?	
  	
  As	
  stated	
  above,	
  Venture	
  4th	
  foresees	
  that	
  in	
  
the	
  future	
  funding	
  will	
  come	
  from	
  foundations,	
  grants,	
  and	
  private	
  donations.











Second Life of Chattanooga City of Chattanooga Request-Cover Letter 
 
Annette Flynn 
Second Life Chattanooga 
6400 Lee Highway, Suite 109 
Chattanooga, TN 37421 
 
 
The mission of Second Life of Chattanooga is to create awareness that 
drives action through collaborative relationships with like-minded 
organizations and individuals in order to end human sex trafficking in 
greater Chattanooga and Southeast Tennessee. 
 
Second Life of Chattanooga is requesting $150,000 from the Innovation 
Fund for the purpose of engaging the Manchester-Bidwell Corporation of 
Pittsburgh, PA for a study to determine the feasibility of replicating their 
social enterprise model in Chattanooga. 
 
Please contact Annette Flynn, 3311 Windsor Court, Chattanooga, TN 
37411 (865) 806-1985 regarding this request for funds.  
 
Best Regards, 
 
 
Annette Flynn 
 
	
  



Second	
  Life	
  of	
  Chattanooga	
  City	
  of	
  Chattanooga	
  Request-­‐Executive	
  Summary	
  
	
  
	
  
	
  
	
  
	
  
	
  
	
  
February	
  21,	
  2014	
  
	
  
	
  
Chattanooga	
  is	
  facing	
  a	
  crisis	
  of	
  domestic	
  abuse,	
  sex	
  trafficking	
  and	
  prostitution,	
  and	
  

chronic	
  unemployment	
  of	
  those	
  seeking	
  to	
  come	
  out	
  of	
  these	
  circumstances.	
  These	
  

complex	
  issues	
  can	
  be	
  innovatively	
  addressed	
  by	
  a	
  Social	
  Enterprise	
  solution.	
  	
  With	
  

an	
  Innovation	
  Fund	
  grant	
  from	
  the	
  city,	
  Second	
  Life	
  of	
  Chattanooga	
  proposes	
  to	
  

engage	
  The	
  Manchester-­‐Bidwell	
  Corporation	
  to	
  determine	
  the	
  best	
  possible	
  social	
  

enterprise	
  for	
  our	
  community.	
  This	
  is	
  the	
  first	
  and	
  most	
  important	
  step	
  in	
  

addressing	
  complex	
  social	
  needs	
  in	
  a	
  collaborative	
  and	
  multi-­‐-­‐agency	
  way.	
  

annetteflynn
Typewritten Text

annetteflynn
Typewritten Text
Jerry Redman, Senior Managing Partner

annetteflynn
Typewritten Text



Attachment F: Budget Format Agency	
  Name:

Account	
  Category	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
   Actual	
  FY	
  2011 Actual	
  FY	
  2012 Actual	
  FY	
  2013 Budget	
  FY	
  2014 Request	
  FY	
  2015
Incr	
  (Decr)	
  Request	
  vs.	
  

FY	
  14	
  Budget
%	
  Change	
  Request	
  vs	
  

FY	
  14	
  Budget

REVENUES
Contributions
	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  Individuals/Private 60,000$	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
   -­‐$	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
   N/A
	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  Corporate/Organizations/Churches 54,750$	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
   -­‐$	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
   N/A
Fees/Grants	
  from	
  Governmental	
  Agencies -­‐$	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
   	
  
	
  	
  	
  	
  Federal -­‐$	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
   N/A
	
  	
  	
  	
  State -­‐$	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
   N/A
	
  	
  	
  Hamilton	
  County -­‐$	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
   N/A
	
  	
  	
  City	
  of	
  Chattanooga -­‐$	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
   N/A
	
  	
  	
  Other	
  Cities	
  (Please	
  list) -­‐$	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
   N/A
United	
  Way	
  
	
  	
  	
  	
  Foundations	
  (including	
  grants) -­‐$	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
   N/A
	
  	
  	
  	
  Gross	
  Proceeds	
  Special	
  Events 7,000$	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
   -­‐$	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
   N/A
	
  	
  	
  	
  Other	
  UWs/Federations -­‐$	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
   N/A
	
  	
  	
  	
  CFC/Designations	
  received	
  thru	
  UWGC -­‐$	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
   N/A
	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  UWGC	
  Program	
  Allocation -­‐$	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
   N/A
	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  UWGC	
  Special	
  Funding -­‐$	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
   N/A
Membership	
  Dues -­‐$	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
   N/A
Program	
  Income -­‐$	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
   N/A
Governmental	
  Insurance -­‐$	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
   N/A
Private	
  Insurance -­‐$	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
   N/A
Contracted	
  Services -­‐$	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
   N/A
Fee	
  for	
  Services -­‐$	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
   N/A
Other	
  Program	
  Income -­‐$	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
   N/A
Sales	
  to	
  Public -­‐$	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
   N/A
Investment	
  Income -­‐$	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
   N/A
Miscellaneous -­‐$	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
   N/A
Other	
  Revenues	
  (Please	
  list	
  separately	
  	
  any	
  major	
  item)	
  Endowment 5,000$	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
   -­‐$	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
   N/A
Transfers	
  in	
  from	
  other	
  internal	
  	
  budgets -­‐$	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
   N/A
Income	
  from	
  Previous	
  Year -­‐$	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
   N/A
TOTAL	
  REVENUES	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
   -­‐$	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
   -­‐$	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
   126,750$	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
   -­‐$	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
   -­‐$	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
   -­‐$	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
   N/A

OPERATIONS
Personnel	
  Expenses
Salaries 73,800$	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
   -­‐$	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
   N/A
Fringe	
  Benefits -­‐$	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
   N/A
Employee	
  Health -­‐$	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
   N/A

CITY	
  OF	
  CHATTANOOGA
	
  FY	
  2015	
  Agency	
  Funding	
  Financial	
  Form

Second	
  Life	
  of	
  Chattanooga



Attachment F: Budget Format Agency	
  Name: Second	
  Life	
  of	
  Chattanooga
Pension/Retirement -­‐$	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
   N/A
Payroll	
  Taxes,	
  etc. 8,100$	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
   -­‐$	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
   N/A
Staff	
  Development 1,750$	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  
Other	
  (unemployment,	
  life	
  insurance,	
  etc) -­‐$	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
   N/A
Total	
  Personnel	
  Expenses -­‐$	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
   -­‐$	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
   83,650$	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
   -­‐$	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
   -­‐$	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
   -­‐$	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
   N/A

OPERATING	
  EXPENSES
Administration
Professional	
  Fee	
  &	
  Contract	
  service	
   1,000$	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
   -­‐$	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
   N/A
Utilities -­‐$	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
   N/A
Other -­‐$	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
   N/A
Rent -­‐$	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
   N/A
Travel/Transportation -­‐$	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
   N/A
Insurance	
  (not	
  employee	
  health) -­‐$	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
   N/A
Materials	
  &	
  Supplies -­‐$	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
   N/A
Telephone,	
  Fax,	
  ISP 3,000$	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
   -­‐$	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
   N/A
Postage	
  and	
  Shipping -­‐$	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
   N/A
Occupancy/Building/Utilities -­‐$	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
   N/A
Equipment	
  Rental	
  and	
  Maintenance	
  (including	
  contracts) -­‐$	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
   N/A
Outside	
  Printing,	
  Art	
  Work,	
  etc. -­‐$	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
   N/A
Conferences,	
  Conventions,	
  etc. -­‐$	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
   N/A
Special	
  Assistance	
  to	
  Individuals 4,000$	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
   -­‐$	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
   N/A
National	
  Dues/Support	
  Payments -­‐$	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
   N/A
Organization	
  Dues	
  (other	
  than	
  above) -­‐$	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
   N/A
Awards	
  and	
  Grants -­‐$	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
   N/A
Fund	
  Raising/Self-­‐Support	
  Activities 3,000$	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
   -­‐$	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
   N/A
Miscellaneous -­‐$	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
   N/A
Equipment	
  Purchases	
  (incl.	
  capital	
  expenses) -­‐$	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
   N/A
Depreciation -­‐$	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
   N/A
Other	
  Expenses	
  (Please	
  list	
  separately	
  	
  any	
  major	
  item) -­‐$	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
   N/A
Collaboration/Partnerships/GCCAHT 2,000$	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  
Operations 9,600$	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  
Progam:	
  Awareness 8,000$	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
   -­‐$	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
   N/A
Volunteer	
  Development 2,500$	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  
Operating	
  Expenses	
  Total -­‐$	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
   -­‐$	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
   33,100$	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
   -­‐$	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
   -­‐$	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
   -­‐$	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
   N/A

TOTAL	
  OPERATIONS	
   -­‐$	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
   -­‐$	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
   116,750$	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
   -­‐$	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
   -­‐$	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
   -­‐$	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
   N/A

REVENUE	
  OVER/	
  (UNDER)	
  OPERATIONS -­‐$	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
   -­‐$	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
   10,000$	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
   -­‐$	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
   -­‐$	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
   -­‐$	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
   N/A
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Attachment E:  Major Sources of Funding for the Past Five Years 
 

Agency Name: __________Second Life of Chattanooga_______________ 
 
 

Program/Project 
Title 

Name of 
Funding 
Source 

FY 2010 FY 2011 FY 2012 FY 2013 FY 2014 FY 2015 
(Projected) 

individuals    20.44% 49.3%   
foundations    77.01% 41.1%   
corporations    1.85%    
special events     5.7%   
other (cash)    0.70%    
faith based      3.9%  
        
        
        
        
        
        
        
        
        
        
Subtotal,  
Major Funding 
Sources 

       

Total, All 
Revenue 
Sources 

       

 
 

 

 



 
 

 
 

Attachment D: Schedule of Positions, Salaries & Wages 
 

Agency Name: Second Life of Chattanooga 
 

ALL FINANCIAL INFORMATION TO THE NEAREST DOLLAR.  FOR ADDITIONAL EMPLOYEES, COPY THIS FORM AS NEEDED. 

 
 

Title of 
Position 

Last 
Name, 
Initial 

Full 
Time 

or  
Part 
Time 

Number 
of Years 

Employed 

Current – FY 2014 Projected – FY 2015 

Weeks 
Employed  

 
Annual Rate Budgeted Weeks 

Employed Annual Rate Budgeted 

Managing 
Senior Partner 

Redman, J Full 1 8 40000 40000    

Senior Partner Self, T. Part 1 8 0 
 

8000    

Programs 
Director 

Hood, T. Part 1 8 19800 19800    

Administrative 
Support 

Martin, P. Part 1 8 6000 
 

6000    

          
          
          
          
          
          
          
          
          
          
          
          
          
          
          
          

Note: List all employees in order of responsibility. 



	
  

City	
  of	
  Chattanooga	
  
FY15 Offers	
  

	
  

Agency	
  Name	
  
	
  

1	
  

OFFER SUMMARY 
 

Offer Name: Innovation Fund Social Enterprise 

Lead Agency: Second Life of Chattanooga 

Collaborating City Department(s): Youth and Family Development 

Contact Name: Annette Flynn 

Primary Results Area: Innovation Fund   

Offer Cost (Funding Request): 150,000.   
 

RESULTS AREAS 
 

1. Safer Streets – Safe communities, reduced crime, positive opportunities, and alternate 
pathways. 

2. Growing Economy – Growing and supporting local businesses, workforce development, 
business recruitment and retention, and an environment for innovation. 

3. Stronger Neighborhoods – Neighborhood leadership, connected communities, healthy 
residential markets, and rapid re-housing. 

4. Smarter Students, Stronger Families – Parents and first teachers, community support, and 
community health. 

5. High Performing Government – Data-driven decision making, sound operations, outstanding 
customer service, resource management, and exceptional talent. 

6. Innovation Fund – Something different – processes, services, technologies, ideas.  Shifting the 
way government operates. 

DETAILS 
 

Description: (What	
  is	
  the	
  service/program?	
  How	
  will	
  it	
  be	
  provided?	
  What	
  innovation	
  &	
  sustainability	
  practice	
  does	
  this	
  leverage?	
  
What	
  difference	
  does	
  this	
  offer	
  make	
  and	
  how	
  will	
  we	
  know?	
  Make	
  a	
  compelling	
  case	
  for	
  your	
  offer.)	
     
          

          

 PROBLEM STATEMENT 

Social needs (gaps between socially desirable conditions and the existing reality) hinder the 
quality of life for all citizens of Chattanooga. Poverty, homelessness, domestic violence, 
gang activity, prostitution, and chronic unemployment are not only individually challenging 
social issues, they form a complex web of interrelated crises.  While individual agencies can 
address the social needs created by several of these issues, no agency can fill in all the gaps 
created by the web.  

Complex problems require creative and innovative solutions. Two of the complex problems 
facing Chattanooga are related: chronic unemployment and violence against women.  

Recent census data indicates the scope of chronic unemployment in Chattanooga. The City 
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2	
  

of Chattanooga suffers with high unemployment rates: 

• age 16-19  27.6% 
• age 20-24  17.9% 
• age 25-44  9.7% 

29% of Chattanoogans are living at or below the poverty level. While unemployment among 
whites is 7%, unemployment among blacks is more than double that at 16.9%.   

(http://factfinder2.census.gov/faces/tableservices/jsf/pages/productview.xhtml?fpt=tabl) 

An array of services is necessary to deal with the problem of violence against women.  The 
private agencies delivering these services are already overwhelmed. According to the 
Partnerships for Families, Children and Adults, one contributing factor to the issue of 
violence against women is the lack of adequate preparation for abused women to enter the 
workforce. If given no alternative for sustainable economic survival, an abused woman has 
no choice but to remain with her abuser.  Many women in the Domestic Violence shelter 
have been unemployed for years. When they do want a job, they face a variety of problems.  
They have chronic low self-worth as a result of being beaten down verbally and physically, 
resulting in poor interview skills.  Since they have not attained post-high school education or 
training, few positions are available. The Partnerships has a 90-day window for women to 
use their services.  While ongoing case management is available, the women are pressed in 
that short time period they must overcome the trauma that brought them to the facility, 
find housing, and find a job to pay for housing and living expenses.  It is difficult enough to 
meet these goals without a criminal record.  If they do have a record, securing a job is 
almost impossible.  

PROGRAM DESCRIPTION 

Solution: Social Enterprise 

Social Enterprise is the missing piece between the problem of chronic unemployment and 
our shared greater good for the City of Chattanooga.   

Recent trends in the social sector have led to a blurring of the distinctions between 
business, nonprofit and government organizations. Social Enterprise leverages 
traditional governmental and charitable approaches to social problems by prompting 
social sector leaders to tap into the strengths of the business and entrepreneurial 
world in their search for more sustainable and systemic solutions. Thus, homeless 
shelters are starting businesses to train and employ their residents. Numerous 
nonprofits are adopting the language and tools of business. This rash of sector-
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3	
  

blurring activity has created an opportunity for local governments and non-profits to 
have significant social impact by constructively exploring the adaptation of business 
concepts for the social sector. (http://www.caseatduke.org/about/) 

The Manchester-Bidwell Corporation (MBC) in Pittsburg, PA is a long established social 
enterprise with a mission to develop communities through hope, inspiration, and 
innovation.”  MBC has the capacity to replicate their model in other locations. It is our 
contention that, rather than “reinvent the wheel,” money would be well spent to bring the 
MBC replication team to lead the feasibility study.  

Second Life of Chattanooga is asking for $150,000 to engage the Manchester-Bidwell 
Corporation to initiate a feasibility study to determine what type of social enterprise will 
work for Chattanooga.  Manchester-Bidwell’s replication team will do a thorough assessment 
of Chattanooga to determine if a National Center for Arts and Technology (NCAT) social 
enterprise model will work here. Their study is done over 12-18 months. Even if it is 
determined the NCAT model is inadequate for the greater Chattanooga area, the data 
collected by the feasibility study will provide the information necessary to determine the 
best possible social enterprise for our region.    

Process and Methods Employed in the Study 

The steering committee for the initial part of this project will be comprised of MBC staff, 
Second Life staff, and the Chattanooga Social Enterprise Team.  The feasibility phase 
follows the process established in the Manchester Bidwell Corporation’s Replication Business 
Plan.   

Research: 

• Review of organizations in Chattanooga pertinent to the scope of work of the project 
• Familiarization with private and public sectors of the community 
• Scheduling and preparation for interviews 

 
Interviews and Presentations: 

• A series of open-ended questions will be asked in each interview. All interviews are 
pre-scheduled and preceded by information about the project. 

 

Analysis: 

• Upon the completion of all the defined interviews, respondents’ perceptions and 
concerns will be gathered and, with other materials and information data, will be 
assessed and evaluated by members of 
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the Feasibility core team. (Detailed outlines of the Manchester Bidwell Corporation 
and the services they provide to their clients and replication cities can be found it 
the attachments to this proposal). 

 
 
 
 

 
Identify	
  Which	
  Desired	
  Outcomes	
  This	
  Offer	
  Impacts:	
  	
  

Social Enterprise gives people the opportunity to gain the hard and soft skills necessary for 
today’s workforce. Participants learn how to be a good employee while earning a living 
wage, in a safe, secure, nurturing and friendly environment.  After a set period of time 
participants are able to transition into the larger economy and become self-sufficient 
contributing members of the community. 

 

 

 

BUDGET REQUEST 
 

Summary:  (Please complete based on information contained in Attachment F) 
 

Offer	
  Name	
  
Personnel	
  Costs	
  

(including	
  Benefits)	
   Operating	
  Costs	
   Total	
  Request	
  
	
  FTEs	
  

required	
  

Social	
  Enterprise	
   	
   	
   150,000.	
   	
  
 
Capital Budget Impact?   

     

Yes      

     

No     

     

$Amount 
 

 
Financial Offsets: (Please	
  list	
  other	
  revenues	
  associated	
  with	
  the	
  specific	
  program	
  for	
  which	
  funding	
  is	
  requested) 
Name Amount 

none at this time  
  

  
 

PERFORMANCE DATA 
 

Measurement 1: 

               

completed feasibility study t within 12-18 months of receiving the grant. 

Historical	
  Comparison	
  Data?	
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Measurement 2: 

               

Business plan for social enterprise project that is tailored to Chattanooga for maximum 
success including creating jobs providing self-sustaining income for the social enterprise project. 

Historical	
  Comparison	
  Data?	
  	
  

 

 Measurement 3: 

	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  

	
  
Historical	
  Comparison	
  Data?	
  	
  

 
 

 
Return	
  on	
  Investment:	
  

How	
   do	
   citizens	
   benefit?	
   	
  

	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  

 With this city grant, the citizens of Chattanooga will 
benefit… 

• Economically: job development and economic self-sufficiency 
• Politically: moving to self-determination 
• Socially: drug-free, crime-free community living 
• Morally: moving to social responsibility and self respect 

	
  

Does	
  this	
  activity	
  leverage	
  other	
  financial	
  resources?	
  	
  

	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  

This	
  project	
  has	
  the	
  potential	
  to	
  engage	
  city	
  
government,	
  private	
  for	
  profit	
  enterprises,	
  faith	
  communities	
  and	
  any	
  not	
  for	
  profit	
  agency	
  desiring	
  to	
  utilize	
  
its	
   services.	
   In October 2013, Christ United Methodist Church sent a team of people to a 
conference at Magdalene and Thistle Farms in Nashville to learn about transitional housing 
and social enterprise for women desiring to move out of prostitution.  This team has 
continued to meet monthly to determine how to develop a similar response for women in 
Chattanooga who are victims of domestic violence, women desiring to transition out of 
prostitution, and women who have been rescued from sex trafficking.  

 

Social Enterprise is one of two areas on which this team is focusing.  

The team members include real estate agents, a social worker/counselor, a lawyer, Christ 
United Methodist Church members and staff, a financial planner, and non-profit leaders from 
Second Life of Chattanooga and The Partnerships for Families, Children and Adults.  Support 
for this endeavor has been expressed from Barry Kidwell of Mustard Tree Ministries, Signal 
Crest United Methodist Church, and Lurone Jennings of the Department of Youth and Family 
Development. This team has already developed strong partnerships throughout 
Chattanooga and continues to expand this collaboration.     
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This project will leverage participation from community collaborators, including the service 
providers that are already working on these many social needs in Chattanooga: Youth and 
Family Development; Partnerships for Families, Children and Adults; Second Life 
Chattanooga; Mustard Tree MInistries faith communities; and other agencies who are in 
collaborative relationships with these organizations.  

How	
  does	
  this	
  activity	
  decrease	
  costs	
  over	
  time	
  for	
  the	
  City?	
  	
  

	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  

 By empowering the chronically 
unemployed, individuals served by a social enterprise are more likely to move away from 
government funded assistance programs and toward jobs where they pay taxes. 

	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  

	
  

How	
  can	
  this	
  program	
  become	
  sustainable	
  without	
  City	
  funding?	
  	
  

	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  

The	
  model	
  this	
  program	
  desires	
  
to	
  replicate	
  has	
  a	
  proven	
  track	
  record	
  of	
  sustainability	
  through	
  private	
  donations,	
  funds	
  generated	
  by	
  the	
  
social	
  enterprise,	
  	
  and	
  government	
  funding	
  at	
  the	
  state	
  and	
  federal	
  levels.	
  

	
  











 

City of Chattanooga 

City Council Office 

1000 Lindsey Street 

Chattanooga, TN 37402 

 

Dear City of Chattanooga: 

 

We are respectfully submitting our application for Community Agency Support Funds.  

Welcome Home of Chattanooga’s mission is to provide shelter, healing and compassionate end 

of life care for those in need.  We will provide shelter and 24/7 care for those who are terminally 

ill, working with local hospices to visit and provide medical care.   

 

The result area we would like to be considered for is “Smarter Students, Stronger Families”, for 

providing an impact on community health in Chattanooga, helping those who are frail and in 

need have the best end of life care.  There is no other shelter of this kind in Chattanooga or 

Tennessee.  It is also our mission to provide end of life care education for area nursing and social 

work students, working with area universities and colleges to learn and to help in providing care 

at Welcome Home.  We are requesting $30,000 to help with operational costs in our first year.  

 

Thank you for your consideration.   

 

Sincerely, 

 

Sherry Campbell, LMSW  

Director and Contact Person 

P.O. Box 4247 

Chattanooga, TN 37405 

(423)486-4001 

 

 

P.O Box 4247 

Chattanooga, TN 37405 

 

 



 









 



 



 

 
 

Welcome Home of Chattanooga 

Annual Report 

2013-2014 

 

Our mission began as simple conversation, recognizing a need in Chattanooga - a home for those 

who are terminally ill and have nowhere to go for end of life care.  Our thought is that no one 

should die alone or without value.  Area hospitals are overwhelmed with lack of discharge 

options in the area for those in need.  Nursing homes can provide wonderful care but they are 

having to become more restrictive in admissions and are often full.  Where would you want to be 

at end of life?  Many would want to be in a home where they are valued and cared for, where 

they feel safe and not alone. 

 

In our first year we have worked diligently to build partnerships and collaborate with area 

agencies and interested individuals in forming our mission- providing shelter, healing 

and compassionate end of life care for those in need.  We will continue to collaborate 

with others in the new year, recognizing the importance of this and for a successful home.  

Cultivating, involving and providing end of life care training for volunteers and area students 

will also lead to our success.   

 

Current partnerships and mentoring/advisory agencies include: 

 Community Foundation of Greater Chattanooga 

 Hospice of Chattanooga 

 Homeless Health Care Clinic 

 Brother Ron Fender 



 Memorial Foundation 

 Blue Cross Blue Shield of Tennessee Foundation 

 AIM Center 

 Joseph’s House (Washington, D.C.) 

 Home Place 

 Chattanooga Center for Non-Profits 

 

In May 2013, we had a very successful community conversation event, inviting individuals from 

the community to dinner to share our mission.  The response was wonderful and has helped us 

begin our volunteer and committee base.   We strongly believe that we will be able to sustain our 

mission through building a strong volunteer base.  We have also had interested donors who are 

willing to match funds.   

 

We are currently working on our grant proposal for the State of Tennessee Competitive Housing 

Trust Fund which appreciates and encourages matching grants and using smaller donations to 

leverage other funds.  We are finding that this is important to our mission. 

 

It has also been important to spend time researching best practice methods for caring for those 

who are terminally ill and homeless.  Joseph’s House in Washington, D.C., is a model that we 

are following.  They have provided mentoring and guidance for us over the year and will 

continue over the next few years.  Joseph’s House has been successful in the innovative way they 

use local and national volunteers/missionaries.  There is not a model like this in the State of 

Tennessee and our goal is to have a successful home in Chattanooga that can be replicated by 

others across the state.  Our wish is to be innovative in how we provide care and how we sustain 

Welcome Home over the long run.   We are focusing much of our time in our new year on 

research and best practice. 

 

For this year, we have developed a Strategy and Implementation Quarterly Summary.  Our goals 

include: 

 Beginning our Capital Campaign through community and church outreach. 

 Continued collaboration and relationship building with key stakeholders 

 Developing policy and protocol for accounting, admissions/criteria, hiring and 

development/training for volunteers and staff 

 Community Event for Update 

 Purchase of identified home and modifications completed 

 Opening Event/Housewarming 

 First residents move in July 2014! 

 

We will continually assess how we are doing, working on plans to sustain our program 2-3 years 

into the future, reviewing and updating our budget and plans.    

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

With regard to an Audited Financial Statement, we are a new organization that has 

not received an audited statement so we do not have historical financial 

information at this time.  Here, I have included our most recent simple Treasurer’s 

Report for this month and our proposed budget.  Our proposed budget is our best 

case scenario, with grants that we have submitted proposals being approved – at 

lowest estimate. 

 

 

 

 

Welcome Home of Chattanooga 

February 13, 2014 Treasurer’s Report 

 

• Suntrust Bank Account                                          $407.05 

• Paypal Account                                                        $246.10 

• Community Foundation                                        $125.00 

                                                            Total:                   $778.15 

 

Expenses 

• Suntrust Bank Account $12 monthly 

 

 

 

Submitted by: 

 

 

Sherry Campbell, LMSW 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

Welcome Home of Chattanooga 

 

Statement of Revenue and Expenditures 

Period Covered:  from April 1, 2013 (business est.) to November 30, 2013 

 

Support and Revenue 

Contribution Income                   1200.00 

Grants                      0 

Fees for services       0 

Fundraisers        0 

Interest        0 

       Total  1200.00 

 

Expenses 

Accounting/Bookkeeping 

Assistance to Individuals 

Fundraising Expenses 

Insurance 

Legal Fees                                                                                             

IRS Fee               850.00 (paid out of revenue) 

Postage 

Printing 

Rent 

Salaries 

Supplies 

Tax & License 

Telephone        74.69 

Other:   

       Total  924.69 

 

 Net Revenue Less Expenses               $275.31 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

Welcome Home of Chattanooga 

 

Balance Sheet 

Balance as of: November 30, 2013 

 

      Assets 

Cash & Checking       275.31 

Savings        0 

Inventories        0 

Investments        0 

Equipment                                  0 

Land & Buildings       0 

 

        Total   275.31 

 

   Liabilities 

Accounts Payable       0 

Loans         0 

Other:       

        Total    0 

 

  Net Assets      275.31 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

Welcome Home of Chattanooga 

Projected Budget 

 

 

Start Up/Year One 

 

           First Year 

         4/1/13-6/30/14 

Support and Revenue 

Current balance   (2/20/14)                                                                            778.15                                                                                

Contribution Income                    12000.00 

Grants                             0 

Fees for Services              0 

Fundraisers               0 

Interest                                                     0 

       Total  19778.15 

 

Expenses 

Accounting/Bookkeeping             0 

Assistance to Individuals             0 

Fundraising expenses                                       0 

Insurance               0 

Legal Fees/Tax & License      3075.00 

Postage          150.00 

Printing               0 

Rent                0 

Salaries               0 

Supplies          300.00 

Telephone        1000.00 

Other: Community Event                    500.00 

Membership dues                                                                                            50.00 

Banking fees                                                                                                     84.00 

       Total  $5159 

 Net Revenue Over Expenses First Year                      $14619.15 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

Welcome Home of Chattanooga 

 

Projected Budget 

Year 2 & Year 3 

 

       Capital Campaign           Third Year 

                                                                                       Year Two                           

       6/2014-7/2015         7/2015-6/2016 

 

Support and Revenue 

Balance from Previous Year                                                      14619.15                                152,919 

Contribution Income                           12000.00                    15000 

Grants                         245,000.00                              150000 

City Community Support                                                         30,000                                         0 

Housing Trust Fund                                                               225000.00                                     0 

Fees for Services           36,000                                       36000 

Fundraisers            25,000                                       20000 

Interest            20,000                                    0 

Donated Items              5000                                  5000  

                    Total        612,619.15                               378,919 

 

Expenses 

Accounting/Bookkeeping                 0                                               0 

Salaries/benefits     182,000                        200,000 

Assistance to Individuals    22500                                       17500 

 (see attachment for details) 

Fundraising expenses                    2500                                         2500 

House Purchase/Associated Costs   227000                           1500 

Home Insurance     1200                                            1300 

Liability Insurance     1000                                            1200 

Car/Van Insurance     1500                                         1500 

Home Maintenance/Repairs              10000                                         5000 

Home Inspections     500                                                 0 

Utilities      7200                                        7500 

Cleaning Supplies     1200                                        1200 

Legal Fees      0                                         0 

Postage      200                                         300 

Printing        0                                         300 

Office supplies                   200                                              200 

 

 

 

 

 



 

Welcome Home of Chattanooga 

 

 

Projected Budget (Cont’d) 

Year 2 and Year 3 

        

              Capital Campaign                   Third Year 

            Year Two         

       4/2014-7/2015      7/2015-6/2016 

 

Brochures/Marketing                                     500                                 500 

Tax & License                         000                                800 

Telephone                         600                                600 

IT Equipment                         600                                600  

                             Total  459,700                            242,500 

  Net Revenue Over Expenses 152.919                                         136,419 

 

 

Welcome Home of Chattanooga 

Assistance to Individuals 

Attachment for Specific Costs 

 

       Second Year   Third Year 

       6/2014-7/2015          4/2015-3/2016 

Expenses 

Furniture      10000**                      4500 

Food/Meals      8000                                                 8500 

Transportation     500                                                 500 

Personal Care Items     2500                                         2500 

Clothing      1500                                                  1500 

     Total  22500                                               17500 

 

**Please note, we have recently been informed that several organizations will donate furniture 

and household items for our home, decreasing the “furniture” costs.  We also plan to hold a 

housewarming party with the goal of gathering donations at this event. 

 

 

 

This is a budget in progress, still being reviewed by our Board of Directors. 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

Welcome Home of Chattanooga 

Board of Directors 

2014 

 

Sherry Campbell, Executive Director 

  One year on Board, Co-Founder 

  (423)486-4001 

  sherry@welcomehomeofchattanooga.org 

  224 W. 18th Street 

  Chattanooga, TN 37408 

•Rachel Smith, Vice President/Secretary 

  One year on Board, Co-Founder 

  Rsmith32907@gmail.com 

  8603 Surry Circle 

  Chttanooga, TN 37421 

•Steve Coulter, M.D. 

  Two months on Board 

  P.O. Box 39  

 Signal Mtn, TN 37377 

•Corinne Henderson, Treasurer 

  Two months on Board 

  871 McCallie Ave 

  Chattanooga, TN 37403 

•Kathy Lennon 

  Two months on Board 

  (423)326-7966 

  Kathy.lennon@chattanoogamarket.org 

  2417 Hickory Drive 

  Cleveland, TN 37311 

•Mary Beth Lynch, Attorney 

  Two months on Board 

  Mary_Lynch@bcbst.com 

  698 Traditions Drive 

  Chattanooga, TN 37415 

•Duane Wade 

  Six months on Board 

  wmistad@aol.com 

  1016 Summer Street 

  Chattanooga, TN 37405 

•Monique Wagner 

  Two months on Board 

  (731)336-5131 

  Monique.wagner@live.com 

  621 Memorial Drive #802 

  Chattanooga, TN 37415 
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OFFER SUMMARY 

 

Offer Name: Sherry Campbell, LMSW 

Lead Agency: Welcome Home of Chattanooga 

Collaborating City Department(s): n/a 

Contact Name: Sherry Campbell, LMSW 

Primary Results Area: 
Smarter Students, Stronger 
Families   

Offer Cost (Funding Request): $30,000   

 

RESULTS AREAS 

 
1. Safer Streets – Safe communities, reduced crime, positive opportunities, and alternate 

pathways. 

2. Growing Economy – Growing and supporting local businesses, workforce development, 
business recruitment and retention, and an environment for innovation. 

3. Stronger Neighborhoods – Neighborhood leadership, connected communities, healthy 
residential markets, and rapid re-housing. 

4. Smarter Students, Stronger Families – Parents and first teachers, community support, and 
community health. 

5. High Performing Government – Data-driven decision making, sound operations, outstanding 
customer service, resource management, and exceptional talent. 

6. Innovation Fund – Something different – processes, services, technologies, ideas.  Shifting the 
way government operates. 

DETAILS 

 

Description: (What is the service/program? How will it be provided? What innovation & sustainability practice does this leverage? 
What difference does this offer make and how will we know? Make a compelling case for your offer.)   

          

Our mission at Welcome Home of Chattanooga is to provide shelter, healing and compassionate end of life 
care for those in need.  Our focus is caring for those who are terminally ill and have nowhere to go for end of 
life care.  Currently, there is only one shelter in the area for those who are homeless.  This is an emergency 
shelter only and not for those who are seriously ill.  The Community Kitchen reported that over the past 
three years there have been an average of 20 deaths a year of the population they serve.  This does not 
include those who die alone in hospital emergency rooms or ICU. We will collaborate with key stakeholders 
(hospitals, local hospices, agencies who serve the homeless and fragmented) in the community in new and 
innovative ways to ensure sustainability of our program.   

We are modeling our program based on a very innovative program in Washington, D.C., Joseph’s House.  
They have been a great mentor for us and shared ways they have been successful.  We will provide not only 
a place of respite for those who are dying, but will work with local universities and colleges to be a facility of 
education regarding the sacredness of end of life care.  Social work and nursing students will be invited to 
help with care and complete internships and practicums at Welcome Home.  Volunteers will be cultivated 
and specially trained to provide assistance and support.  National volunteer programs such as AmeriCorps 
will be invited to stay. 

We will be able to measure our success by how many people we are able to serve and how many volunteer 
hours are provided.  We will include key stakeholders in annual assessments of how we are doing in serving 
the community.   
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Identify Which Desired Outcomes This Offer Impacts:  

1.  Welcome Home of Chattanooga is a solution in providing much needed shelter and care to our city’s most vulnerable 
and frail population; a referral source for area hospitals and agencies who serve the homeless and those in need. 

2.  Welcome Home of Chattanooga will engage and organize volunteers and students, providing much needed education 
regarding the importance of end of life care and hospice; this will also help increase capacity and sustain our program. 

3.  Welcome Home of Chattanooga will collaborate and network with key stakeholders to ensure integrity in utilizing 
resources, working together to care for those in need, a piece of the puzzle that is currently missing. 

 

 

BUDGET REQUEST 

 
Summary:  (Please complete based on information contained in Attachment F) 

 

Offer Name 
Personnel Costs 

(including Benefits) Operating Costs Total Request 
 FTEs 

required 

Welcome Home of 
Chattanooga Year Two $182,000 (year two) $263,650 $30,000  

 

Capital Budget Impact?        Yes           No          $Amount 

 

 
Financial Offsets: (Please list other revenues associated with the specific program for which funding is requested) 

Name Amount 

Memorial Hospital (pending) $50,000 

BC/BS Tennessee Foundation (pending) $300,000 (over two years) 

State of TN Competitive Housing Trust Fund (pending) 

Osborne Foundation (pending) 

Community Foundation of Greater Chattanooga (pending) 

Private donors 

$225,000 

$25,000 

$20,000 

$12,000 
 

PERFORMANCE DATA 

 
Measurement 1: 

How many are served monthly      

Historical Comparison Data?  

 

 
Measurement 2: 

     How many volunteer and student  hours are provided monthly      

Historical Comparison Data?  
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Measurement 3: 

     Key stakeholder annual assessment of how we are doing      

Historical Comparison Data?  

 
 

 

Return on Investment: 

How do citizens benefit?  We are serving an unmet need in our city.  We will provide shelter and care for our 

citizens who are terminally ill and have nowhere to go for end of life care.  We will provide an answer for 

hospitals and local agencies for searching for placement.  We will provide very important education and 

volunteer opportunities for the citizens of Chattanooga.      

Does this activity leverage other financial resources?  Yes.      

How does this activity decrease costs over time for the City?  There are many studies that have shown that 

providing affordable housing for those who are homeless, especially those in poor health, save cities and 

states money.  Many utilize high costs emergency rooms or at risk for danger on the streets.  We will be 

happy to share this information with you.      

How can this program become sustainable without City funding?  We will spend our first year collaborating 

with others and developing a skilled volunteer and student program.  Our paradox is that donors are willing to 

give to our home, but we have to get the home up and running to attract donors.      

 



 

 

 

Attachment B: Comparative Financial Information 
 
 

Agency Name: Welcome Home of Chattanooga 
 

**We have not asked adjoining governmental entities for funding.  Our home is in the City 
of Chattanooga and will primarily serve Chattanooga citizens who have nowhere to go 

for end of life care.  In our first year of operation, we will track resident status for 
measurement and assessment.  We are only asking for a small percentage of our 

operational funding. 
 
 
 

This section relates to agency efforts specifically funded by Chattanooga dollars to benefit Chattanooga 
residents, relative to the dollars given by adjoining governmental entities.    
 
Dollars provided to your organization 
in FY 2014 by the following entities:    

Percent of your total annual 
operational funding provided by 
local government  

% of 
Hamilton 
County 
Population*   

Chattanooga  49.83% 

Unincorporated Hamilton County  30.22% 

Hamilton County Government’s  
(General funds)  

 
 

Collegedale  2.46% 

East Ridge  6.24% 

Lakesite  0.54% 

Lookout Mountain  0.54% 

Red Bank  3.46% 

Ridgeside  0.12% 

Signal Mountain  2.25% 

Soddy-Daisy  3.78% 

Walden   0.56% 

Other (Outside Hamilton County)   

 Above percentages should total 
100%   

 

   
Percent of Services rendered to 
residents of:    

Estimate, if you do not now track 
this data. 

 

Chattanooga  49.83% 

Unincorporated Hamilton County  30.22% 

Hamilton County Government’s  
(General funds)  

 
 

Collegedale  2.46% 

East Ridge  6.24% 

Lakesite  0.54% 

Lookout Mountain  0.54% 

Red Bank  3.46% 

Ridgeside  0.12% 

Signal Mountain  2.25% 

Soddy-Daisy  3.78% 

Walden   0.56% 

Other (Outside Hamilton County)   



 

 

 

 Above percentages should total 
100%   

 

 
*Population numbers are from 2010 U.S. Census.  



 

 

Attachment C: Program Beneficiary Statistics 
  
Agency Name: Welcome Home of Chattanooga 
Program:  Welcome Home of Chattanooga Year Two 

 

Program Beneficiary Characteristics 
Clients/Patients/Recipients/Other 

FY 2013 
FY 2014  

(YTD) 
FY 2015 

(Projected) 

1. Unduplicated Count of Program Beneficiaries           
TOTAL 

0 0 45 

a) Total Continuing From Previous Fiscal Year 0 0 0 

b) Total New for the Year 0 0 45 

c) Total Terminated During the Year 0 0 35 

2. Age Group                                                                  TOTAL 0 0 45 

a) Infants – Under 5 0 0 0 

b) Between 5 and 12 0 0 0 

c) Between 13 and 17 0 0 0 

d) Between 18 and 29 0 0 0 

e) Between 30 and 64 0 0 20 

f) 65 and over 0 0 25 

g) Not Known    

3. Sex                                                                               TOTAL    

a) Male 0 0 0 

b) Female 0 0 0 

c) Not Known 0 0 45 

4. Ethnic Background                                                     TOTAL 0 0 45 

a) White 0 0 0 

b) Black 0 0 0 

c) Hispanic 0 0 0 

d) Asian 0 0 0 

e) Other – Ethnic Minority 0 0 0 

f) Not Known 0 0 45 

5. % Income Level                                                           TOTAL 0 0 45 

a) Below 9,999  0 0 0 

b) 10,000 –19,999 0 0 0 

c) 20,000 – 29,999 0 0 0 

d) 30,000 and Over 0 0 0 

e) Not Known 0 0 45 

6. Location of Residence                                                TOTAL 0 0 45 

a) Chattanooga 0 0 0 

b) Outside of Chattanooga 0 0 0 

c) Not Known 0 0 45 

 



 
 

 
 

Attachment D: Schedule of Positions, Salaries & Wages 

 

Agency Name: Welcome Home of Chattanooga 
 

ALL FINANCIAL INFORMATION TO THE NEAREST DOLLAR.  FOR ADDITIONAL EMPLOYEES, COPY THIS FORM AS NEEDED. 

 
 

Title of 
Position 

Last 
Name, 
Initial 

Full 
Time 

or  
Part 
Time 

Number 
of Years 

Employed 

Current – FY 2014 Projected – FY 2015 

Weeks 
Employed  

 
Annual Rate Budgeted 

Weeks 
Employed 

Annual Rate Budgeted 

Executive 
Director 

Campbell, 
S 

Full 0 0                        0 0 52 50,000annual 50,000 annual  

Assistant 
Volunteer 
Coordinator 

Unknown Full 0 0 0 0 52 35,000 
annual 

35,000annual 

Resident 
Caregiver 

Unknown Part 0 0 0 0 52 25,000 
annual 

25,000 annual 

Resident 
Caregiver 

Unknown Part 0 0 0 0 52 25,000 
annual 

25,000 annual 

          

          

          

          

          

          

          

          

          

          

          

          

          

          

          

          

Note: List all employees in order of responsibility. 
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Attachment E:  Major Sources of Funding for the Past Five Years 
 

Agency Name: Welcome Home of Chattanooga 
 
 

Program/Project 
Title 

Name of 
Funding 
Source 

FY 2010 FY 2011 FY 2012 FY 2013 FY 2014 
FY 2015 

(Projected) 

Welcome Home 
of Chattanooga 
Year Two 

Memorial 
Foundation 

0 0 0 0 0 $50,000 

 BC/BS TN 
Foundation 

0 0 0 0 0 $300,000 for 
two years 

 State of TN 
Housing Trust 
Fund 

0 0 0 0 0 $225,000 

 Osborne 
Foundation 

0 0 0 0 0 $25,000 

 Community 
Foundation 

0 0 0 0 0 $20,000 

 Private 
Donors 

0 0 0 0 0 $24,000 

        

        

        

        

        

        

        

        

        

        

Subtotal,  
Major Funding 
Sources 

      $644,000-
$150,000 
year two 
BC/BS TN 

Total, All 
Revenue 
Sources 

      494,000 

 
 

 

 



Attachment F: Budget Format Agency Name:

Account Category                        Actual FY 2011 Actual FY 2012 Actual FY 2013 Budget FY 2014 Request FY 2015
Incr (Decr) Request 

vs. FY 14 Budget

% Change Request 

vs FY 14 Budget

REVENUES

Contributions n/a n/a -$                 

     Individuals/Private n/a n/a 1,850$              12,000$             12,000$               -$                    0.0%

     Corporate/Organizations/Churches n/a n/a -$                 -$                   200,000$             200,000$           N/A

Fees/Grants from Governmental Agencies n/a n/a -$                 

    Federal n/a n/a -$                 -$                   -$                     -$                    N/A

    State n/a n/a -$                 -$                   250,000$             250,000$           N/A

   Hamilton County n/a n/a -$                 -$                   -$                     -$                    N/A

   City of Chattanooga n/a n/a -$                 -$                   30,000$               30,000$              N/A

   Other Cities (Please list) n/a n/a -$                 -$                   -$                     -$                    N/A

United Way n/a n/a -$                 -$                     

    Foundations (including grants) n/a n/a -$                 -$                   45,000$               45,000$              N/A

    Gross Proceeds Special Events n/a n/a -$                 -$                   20,000$               20,000$              N/A

    Other UWs/Federations n/a n/a -$                 -$                   -$                     -$                    N/A

    CFC/Designations received thru UWGC n/a n/a -$                 -$                   -$                     -$                    N/A

     UWGC Program Allocation n/a n/a -$                 -$                   -$                     -$                    N/A

     UWGC Special Funding n/a n/a -$                 -$                   -$                     -$                    N/A

Membership Dues n/a n/a -$                 -$                   -$                     -$                    N/A

Program Income n/a n/a -$                 -$                   -$                     -$                    N/A

Governmental Insurance n/a n/a -$                 -$                   -$                     -$                    N/A

Private Insurance n/a n/a -$                 -$                   -$                     -$                    N/A

Contracted Services n/a n/a -$                 -$                   -$                     -$                    N/A

Fee for Services n/a n/a -$                 -$                   36,000$               36,000$              N/A

Other Program Income n/a n/a -$                 -$                   -$                     -$                    N/A

Sales to Public n/a n/a -$                 -$                   -$                     -$                    N/A

Investment Income n/a n/a -$                 -$                   -$                     -$                    N/A

Miscellaneous n/a n/a -$                 -$                   -$                     -$                    N/A

Other Revenues (Please list separately  any major item) n/a n/a -$                 -$                   -$                     -$                    N/A

Transfers in from other internal  budgets n/a n/a -$                 -$                   -$                     -$                    N/A

Income from Previous Year n/a n/a -$                 -$                   -$                    N/A
TOTAL REVENUES                           n/a n/a 1,850$              12,000$             593,000$             581,000$           4841.7%

OPERATIONS

Personnel Expenses n/a n/a -$                 

Salaries n/a n/a -$                 -$                   140,000$             140,000$           N/A

CITY OF CHATTANOOGA

 FY 2015 Agency Funding Financial Form

Welcome Home of Chattanooga



Attachment F: Budget Format Agency Name: Welcome Home of Chattanooga

Fringe Benefits n/a n/a -$                 -$                   -$                     -$                    N/A

Employee Health n/a n/a -$                 -$                   14,000$               14,000$              N/A

Pension/Retirement n/a n/a -$                 -$                   -$                     -$                    N/A

Payroll Taxes, etc. n/a n/a -$                 -$                   28,000$               28,000$              N/A

Other (unemployment, life insurance, etc) n/a n/a -$                 -$                   -$                     -$                    N/A
Total Personnel Expenses n/a n/a -$                 -$                   182,000$             182,000$           N/A

OPERATING EXPENSES

Administration n/a n/a -$                 

Professional Fee & Contract service n/a n/a -$                 3,000$               (3,000)$              -100.0%

Utilities n/a n/a -$                 -$                   7,200$                 7,200$                N/A

 Other:  IRS Filing Fee, government n/a n/a 850$                 75$                    -$                     (75)$                    -100.0%

Rent n/a n/a -$                 -$                   -$                     -$                    N/A

Travel/Transportation n/a n/a -$                 -$                   1,500$                 1,500$                N/A

Insurance (not employee health) n/a n/a -$                 -$                   1,200$                 1,200$                N/A

Materials & Supplies n/a n/a -$                 300$                  200$                    (100)$                 -33.3%

Telephone, Fax, ISP n/a n/a -$                 1,000$               1,200$                 200$                   20.0%

Postage and Shipping n/a n/a -$                 150$                  200$                    50$                     33.3%

Occupancy/Building/Utilities n/a n/a -$                 -$                   -$                     -$                    N/A

Equipment Rental and Maintenance (including contracts) n/a n/a -$                 -$                   -$                     -$                    N/A

Outside Printing, Art Work, etc. n/a n/a -$                 -$                   -$                     -$                    N/A

Conferences, Conventions, etc. n/a n/a 100$                 -$                   -$                     -$                    N/A

Special Assistance to Individuals n/a n/a -$                 -$                   22,500$               22,500$              N/A

National Dues/Support Payments n/a n/a -$                 -$                   -$                     -$                    N/A

Organization Dues (other than above) n/a n/a 50$                   50$                    150$                    100$                   200.0%

Awards and Grants n/a n/a -$                 -$                   -$                     -$                    N/A

Fund Raising/Self-Support Activities n/a n/a -$                 500$                  2,500$                 2,000$                400.0%

Miscellaneous n/a n/a 84$                   84$                    -$                     (84)$                    -100.0%

Equipment Purchases (incl. capital expenses) n/a n/a -$                 -$                   2,000$                 2,000$                N/A

Depreciation n/a n/a -$                 -$                   unknown #VALUE! N/A

Other Expenses (Please list separately  any major item) n/a n/a -$                 -$                   -$                    N/A

    purchase of home n/a n/a n/a 225,000$             225,000$           N/A
Operating Expenses Total n/a n/a 1,084$              5,159$               263,650$             #VALUE! N/A

TOTAL OPERATIONS #VALUE! #VALUE! 1,084$              5,159$               445,650$             #VALUE! N/A

REVENUE OVER/ (UNDER) OPERATIONS n/a n/a 766$                 6,841$               147,350$             #VALUE! N/A

































































City of Chattanooga

FY15 Offers

Youth & Family Development 

Offer Name: Chattanooga Hybrid Intervention Program (CHIP)

Offer Number:  5 

Lead 
Department: Youth and Family Development

Administrator: Lurone Jennings 

Offer Cost: $146,239.86 

1. Safer Streets –Safe communities, reduced crime, positive opportunities,

2. Growing Economy – Growing and supporting local businesses, workforce development,
business recruitment and retention, and an environment for innovation.

3. Stronger Neighborhoods
residential markets, and rapid rehousing.

4. Smarter Students, Stronger Families
community health.

5. High Performing Government
customer service, resource management, and

6. Innovation Fund –Something different
way government operates.

Description:(What is the service/program? How will it be provided? What innovation & sustainability

What difference does this offer make and how will we know? Make a compelling case for your offer.)

This program will be a collaborative effort with Village Virtual and IVY Academy. The target students are ones that
progressing in their current school and are creating an environment that causes the school to be less productive. We will
provide an avenue for the student to catch up on their work and earn a Tennessee diploma. Village Virtual will provide the
online classes, the courses will be completed in our centers, and IVY
diploma.  Most of the cost will be the funded from state
Village Virtual.  This request is for 2 staff members to work
Virtual, and to monitor the progress.  Also, a
We are requesting 10 computers that can be placed in the centers that this program creates a burden on
maintain their current programs. 

This result of this program will be determined by
that will be less concrete.  Schools will become more productive due to the removal of
be better due to less dropouts, and our eco

We expect this program to revolutionize how we address struggling students. Most schools have limited options and must
choose to continue dealing with disruptions, or kick students out of school
This program provides another, more positive option.
their greatest need, then they will become a greater burden to the city.

City of Chattanooga 

Offers 

OFFERSUMMARY 

Chattanooga Hybrid Intervention Program (CHIP) 

Department 
Offer Rank: 5 

Youth and Family Development Collaboration: Y ___  

, Stronger Families

RESULTS AREA

Safe communities, reduced crime, positive opportunities, and 

Growing and supporting local businesses, workforce development,
business recruitment and retention, and an environment for innovation.

Stronger Neighborhoods – Neighborhood leadership, connected communities, healthy
nd rapid rehousing.

Smarter Students, Stronger Families – Parents and first teachers, commu

High Performing Government –Data-driven decision-making, sound operations, outstanding
customer service, resource management, and exceptional talent. 

Something different – processes, services, technologies, ideas. Shifting the
way government operates.

DETAILS 

(What is the service/program? How will it be provided? What innovation & sustainability practice does this leverage?

What difference does this offer make and how will we know? Make a compelling case for your offer.) 

This program will be a collaborative effort with Village Virtual and IVY Academy.  The target students are ones that
progressing in their current school and are creating an environment that causes the school to be less productive. We will
provide an avenue for the student to catch up on their work and earn a Tennessee diploma.  Village Virtual will provide the
online classes, the courses will be completed in our centers, and IVY Academy will oversee the credits and issue the

funded from state FTE funds.   The money will go to IVY Academy and they
This request is for 2 staff members to work as coaches and be the link between the schools and

. Also, a part time person will complete necessary paperwork and track the students.
computers that can be placed in the centers that this program creates a burden on

determined by the number of graduates.  However, there will be multiple other indicators
will be less concrete. Schools will become more productive due to the removal of disruptive students, our streets will

be better due to less dropouts, and our economy will increase due to more employable citizens. 

how we address struggling students.  Most schools have limited options and must
choose to continue dealing with disruptions, or kick students out of school with no other means for bettering themselves
This program provides another, more positive option.  If we do not address these students and meet them at a time of
their greatest need, then they will become a greater burden to the city. 

1 

Y ___   N__X___ 

Smarter StudenPrimaryResults Area: Smarter Studenttss, Stronger Families 

and alternate pathways. 

Growing and supporting local businesses, workforce development,

Neighborhood leadership, connected communities, healthy

Parents and first teachers, community support, and 

, sound operations, outstanding

processes, services, technologies, ideas.  Shifting the

practice does this leverage? 

This program will be a collaborative effort with Village Virtual and IVY Academy. The target students are ones that are not 
progressing in their current school and are creating an environment that causes the school to be less productive.  We will 
provide an avenue for the student to catch up on their work and earn a Tennessee diploma. Village Virtual will provide the 

will oversee the credits and issue the 
Academy and they will pay 

as coaches and be the link between the schools and IVY/Village 
time person will complete necessary paperwork and track the students. 

computers that can be placed in the centers that this program creates a burden on in order to 

the number of graduates. However, there will be multiple other indicators 
students, our streets will 

how we address struggling students. Most schools have limited options and must 
with no other means for bettering themselves. 

If we do not address these students and meet them at a time of 



City of Chattanooga

FY15 Offers

Youth & Family Development 

Request for Offer(s) that

1. Smarter Students, Stronger Families – We will provide a path for students that have fallen so far behind that they cannot
earn a diploma through traditional means.  They will be able to access courses year round and earn the required credits to
graduate on time. 

2. Safer Streets – This program provides an alternate pathway to dropping out of school and working on the streets.
Students will have a renewed sense of hope and therefore choose a path that will be better for the community.

3. Growing Economy – Increasing the number of citizens with high school diplomas will attract more businesses.

on Dept. Operating

Department 

Personnel Cost

(including Benefits)

Youth and Family 

Development $129,239.86

$

9.86
ing Department

dget Request Form

Financial Offsets:(Please list any Revenue

Name 

State and Local FTE Dollars 

Measurement 1:Students earning diploma on time

FY2012 FY2013

Measurement 2:Percentage of students finishing the program

FY2012 FY2013

City of Chattanooga 

Offers 

frIdentify Which Desired Outcomes fromom Request for Offer(s) that this Offer Impacts: 

We will provide a path for students that have fallen so far behind that they cannot
earn a diploma through traditional means.  They will be able to access courses year round and earn the required credits to

This program provides an alternate pathway to dropping out of school and working on the streets.
Students will have a renewed sense of hope and therefore choose a path that will be better for the community.

Increasing the number of citizens with high school diplomas will attract more businesses.

BUDGET REQUEST

(Please complete baseSummary:(Please complete basedd  on Dept. Operating l 

Personnel Cost 

(including Benefits) Operations Request 

$129,239.86 $17,000 $146,239.86 

$ 

129,  17,000 $  146,239.86 
*Amounts MUST agree with collabo

Total 129,23239.86 

$   *Amounts MUST agree with collabora r t ating 
Department 

totals for this offer 

X

*Please prepare and attach Capital

Capital Budget Impact?     Yes     X      No     $Amount 

*Please prepare and attach Capital Bu B udget Request 
Form 

Revenue e.g. golf course revenue, Grants, Private/Corporate Contri

Amount 

$6800 per child 

PERFORMANCE DATA

Students earning diploma on time 

FY2013 FY2014 FY2015 Target

Percentage of students finishing the program 

FY2013 FY2014 FY2015 Target

2 

We will provide a path for students that have fallen so far behind that they cannot
earn a diploma through traditional means. They will be able to access courses year round and earn the required credits to 

This program provides an alternate pathway to dropping out of school and working on the streets.
Students will have a renewed sense of hope and therefore choose a path that will be better for the community. 

Increasing the number of citizens with high school diplomas will attract more businesses.

PersonnDetail and Dept.Personneel Detail Forms) 

%  of 

offer 

 FTEs 

required 

100% 2 

0% 

100% 2 

Grants, Private/Corporate Contributions, Etc.) 

FY2015 Target 

25 

FY2015 Target 

85% 



City of Chattanooga

FY15 Offers

Youth & Family Development 

Measurement 3:Completed courses over 1 year per student

FY2012 FY2013

Return on Investment: 

How do citizens benefit?  The students enrolled in the program will have a chance to earn a high school

diploma.  This will provide a new path in which they will be able to see success. This will increase their

willingness to participate in school.  This

involved in unlawful activities.  Also, the schools will improve their operations because the number of

disruptions will be reduced. 

Does this activity leverage other financial resources?

the student to IVY Academy.  This money will be used to pay for a majority of the program

classes from Village Virtual. 

How does this decrease costs over time?

City of Chattanooga 

Offers 

Completed courses over 1 year per student

FY2013 FY2014 FY2015 Target

The students enrolled in the program will have a chance to earn a high school

This will provide a new path in which they will be able to see success.  This will increase their

willingness to participate in school. This will also keep the students off the streets where they would be

he schools will improve their operations because the number of

age other financial resources?  Student funding from the state of Tennessee will

. This money will be used to pay for a majority of the program

How does this decrease costs over time?  Computers will be a 1 time purchase. 

3 

FY2015 Target 

10 

The students enrolled in the program will have a chance to earn a high school 

This will provide a new path in which they will be able to see success. This will increase their 

will also keep the students off the streets where they would be 

he schools will improve their operations because the number of 

from the state of Tennessee will follow 

. This money will be used to pay for a majority of the program, including the 
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